
FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MARCH 29, 2011 
   

AGENDA 
 

  

 8:30  Reception for Virginia Task Force 1 (VATF-1) 
Government Center Forum 
 

 9:15  Resolution to Commend Virginia Task Force 1 (VATF-1) 
Government Center Board of Supervisors Auditorium 
  

 9:30 Done Presentations 
 

10:30  Done Appointments to Citizen Boards, Authorities, Commissions, 
and Advisory Groups 
 

10:30 Done Items Presented by the County Executive 
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
 

 

1 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Convey a 
Portion of County-Owned Property to the Virginia 
Department of Transportation for the Telegraph Road 
Project (Lee District) 
 

2 Approved Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications 
(Braddock, Dranesville, Hunter Mill, Lee, and 
Mason Districts) 
 

3 Approved Authorization to Advertise Public Hearings to Consider 
Proposed Amendments to the Public Facilities Manual Re: 
Design of Public Streets and Sidewalks 
 

4 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Franklin 
Street and Pickett Street as Part of the Residential Traffic 
Administration Program (Lee and Mount Vernon Districts) 
 

5 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Georgetown 
Pike (Eastern Section) and Balls Hill Road (Northern 
Section) as Part of the Residential Traffic Administration 
Program (Dranesville District) 
 

6 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Balls Hill 
Road (Southern Section) as Part of the Residential Traffic 
Administration Program (Dranesville District) 
 

7 Approved Streets into the Secondary System (Hunter Mill, Lee, Mason, 
and Providence Districts) 
 

(1)



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MARCH 29, 2011 
   
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
(continued) 

 

8 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing for the 
Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-Creation of Small and Local 
Sanitary Districts for Refuse/Recycling and/or Leaf 
Collection Service (Dranesville and Providence Districts) 
 

9 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on 
Amendments to the Code of the County of Fairfax, Chapter 
41.1, Animal Control and Care 
 

10 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on the 
Alternative Plans Submitted to the Board by the Citizens 
Advisory Committee and the Public to Reapportion the 
Election Districts of the Board of Supervisors 

 ACTION ITEMS  
1 Approved Endorsement of Transportation Funding Policies and 

Program Allocations for Transportation Funding Sources 
 

2 Approved Approval of Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 
11133 and Approval of a Standard Project Administration 
Agreement for the Department of Transportation to Accept 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program Funding for 
the Dulles Corridor Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
(Dranesville, Hunter Mill, and Providence Districts) 
 

3 Approved Approval of Dulles Corridor Metrorail Project Station Names 
(Dranesville, Hunter Mill, and Providence Districts) 
 

4 Approved Approval of Calendar Year 2011 Forest Pest Management 
Suppression Program 
 

5 Approved Requesting the Issuance of Fairfax County Economic 
Development Authority Transportation District Improvement 
Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project), Series 2011 
and Approving Necessary Documents for the Purpose of 
Providing up to $225 Million for the Construction of the 
Metropolitan Washington Airport Authority (MWAA) for the 
Rail to Dulles, Phase I, (Silver Line) 
 

6 Approved Approving the Issuance of Fairfax County Redevelopment 
and Housing Authority (FCRHA) Refinancing, Bond 
Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 
2011A 
 

7 Deferred; item referred to 
Public Safety Committee 

Approval to Establish an Independent Review Process for 
the Police Department 

(2)



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MARCH 29, 2011 
   
 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 

1 Noted Consolidated Plan Certification for the Fairfax County 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority Public Housing and 
Housing Choice Voucher Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2011 
  

2 Noted  Planning Commission Action on Application 2232-P10-10, 
NewPath Networks, LLC and New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC, Nodes 6 and 7 (Providence District) 
 

3 Noted Planning Commission Action on Application 2232-Y10-22, 
Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority (Sully District) 
 

4 Noted Contract Award - Contract for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) 
Design Services for the Bailey’s Crossroads Volunteer Fire 
Station (Mason District) 
 

5 Noted Contract Award – Contract for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) 
Design Services for the Herndon Fire Station (Dranesville 
District) 
 

6 Noted Agreement with Chadsworth Homes to Provide a Walkway at 
an Alternate Location Along Spring Hill Road (Dranesville 
District) 
 

7 Noted Contract Award –  Poplar Tree Road Improvements (Sully 
District) 
 

10:45 Done  Matters Presented by Board Members 
 

11:35 Done  Closed Session 
 

2:00 Not required Solid Waste Authority Special Meeting 
 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS  
2:30 Public hearing 

deferred to 4/26/2011 
at 3:30 p.m. 

Public Hearing on RZ 2010-LE-013 (WPPI Springfield HS, 
LLC) (Lee District) 
 

2:30 Public hearing 
deferred to 4/26/2011 

at 3:30 p.m. 

Public Hearing on RZ 2010-LE-009 (MR Lewin Park Capital, 
LLC) (Lee District) 
 

2:30 Approved Public Hearing on SEA 84-M-121-03 (Westminster School, 
Inc.) (Mason District) 
 

2:30 Approved Public Hearing on RZ 2010-PR-010 (Neighborhoods, VI, 
LLC) (Providence District) 

(3)



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MARCH 29, 2011 
   
 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
(continued) 

 

2:30 Denied Public Hearing on SE 2008-PR-021 (James W. Jackson)  
(Providence District) 
 

3:00 Public hearing held; 
decision deferred to 

4/12/2011 

Public Hearing for a Sewer Ordinance Amendment to 
Revise the Sewer Service Charges, Connection Charges, 
and Availability Charges  
 

3:00 Public hearing held; 
decision deferred to 

4/12/2011 

Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Chapters 2 
(Property Under County Control), 61 (Building Provisions), 
101 (Subdivision Ordinance), 104 (Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control), and 112 (Zoning Ordinance) of the 
Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia RE: Adjustment of the 
Fees Charged by Land Development Services for Plan 
Review, Permits, and Inspection Services 
 

3:00 Public hearing held; 
decision deferred to 

4/12/2011 

Public Hearing on Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Re:  Zoning Fees 
 

3:30 Approved Public Hearing on the FY 2012 Effective Tax Rate Increase 
 

3:30 Approved Public Hearing on RZ 2010-SP-012 (Westbrook Property, 
LLC) (Springfield District) 
 

3:30 Approved Public Hearing on SE 2010-DR-024 (Discovery Woods 
Learning Community, LLC) (Dranesville District) 
 

4:00 Withdrawn Public Hearing on the Acquisition of Certain Land Rights 
Necessary for the Construction of Reston Avenue Walkway 
Improvements (Hunter Mill District) 
 

4:00 Approved Public Hearing on the Acquisition of Certain Land Rights 
Necessary for the Construction of Colewood Street Sanitary 
Sewer E & I (Sully District) 
 

4:30 Public hearing held; 
decision deferred to 

4/26/2011 
Record remain open 

 

Public Hearing on the Proposed Consolidated Plan One-Year 
Action Plan for FY 2012 
 

6:00 Public hearing 
continued to 3/30/2011 

Public Hearing on the County Executive’s Proposed FY 2012 
Advertised Budget Plan, the Advertised Capital Improvement 
Program for Fiscal Years 2012-2016 (CIP) (With Future 
Fiscal Years to 2021) and the Current Appropriation in the FY 
2011 Revised Budget Plan  

 

(4)



Fairfax County, Virginia 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AGENDA 

 

     Tuesday 
     March 29, 2011 

 
 
9:15 a.m. 
 
RESOLUTION to recognize Virginia Task Force 1 deployed to Japan on behalf of the 
federal government to assist with the rescue of victims after the recent earthquake and 
tsunami. Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. DESIGNATIONS: 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate May 1, 2011, as Holocaust Remembrance Day 
in Fairfax County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 4-11, 2011, as Public Health Week in 

Fairfax County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 2011 as Childhood Immunizations 
Awareness Month in Fairfax County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 2011 as Sexual Assault Awareness 

Month in Fairfax County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 2011 as Fair Housing Month in Fairfax 
County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 2011 as Donate Life Month in Fairfax 

County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate April 10-16, 2011, as Public Safety 
Telecommunications Week in Fairfax County.  Requested by Supervisor Gross. 

 
 

(5)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Merni Fitzgerald, Director, Office of Public Affairs 
Bill Miller, Office of Public Affairs 

(6)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
10:30 a.m. 
 
 
Appointments to Citizen Boards, Authorities, Commissions, and Advisory Groups 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Appointments to be heard March 29, 2011 
An updated list will be distributed at the Board meeting. 
 
 
STAFF: 
Nancy Vehrs, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 

(7)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 

(8)



  
March 29, 2011 

 
NOTE: A revised list will be distributed immediately prior to the Board meeting. 

 

 
APPOINTMENTS TO BE HEARD MARCH 29, 2011 

(ENCOMPASSING VACANCIES PROJECTED THROUGH MARCH 31, 2011) 
(Unless otherwise noted, members are eligible for reappointment) 

 

        
 

A. HEATH ONTHANK MEMORIAL AWARD SELECTION COMMITTEE 
(1 year) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Sully District 
Representative 

 Frey Sully 

 
 

 
ADVISORY PLANS EXAMINER BOARD 

 (4 years) 
  
 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 

 Mr. Paul Kraucunas as the Virginia Department of Transportation Representative 
 

 
AFFORDABLE DWELLING UNIT ADVISORY BOARD (4 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Mark S. Ingrao 
(Appointed 1/03 by 
Mendelsohn; 5/05 by 
DuBois) 
Term exp. 5/09 
 

Citizen 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor  

At-Large 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
James Francis Carey; 
appointed 2/95-5/02 
by Hanley; 5/06 by 
Connolly) 
Term exp. 5/10 
Resigned 
 

Lending Institution 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor  

At-Large 

(9)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 2 

 

 
AIRPORTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Barbara 
Kreykenbohm 
(Appointed 1/09 by 
Gross) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. Earl Flanagan as the Planning Commission Representative 

 
 
 
 

 
ATHLETIC COUNCIL  (2 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Gregory Beckwith 
(Appointed 7/10 by 
Foust) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Dranesville 
District Alternate 
Representative 

 Foust Dranesville 

Michael Champness 
(Appointed 2/05-3/07 
by DuBois; 3/09 by 
Foust) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Dranesville 
District Principal 
Representative 

 Foust Dranesville 

James R. Elder 
(Appointed 7/07-3/09 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Hunter Mill 
District Alternate 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

Harold Leff 
(Appointed 3/93-2/99 
by Dix; 2/01-3/09 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Hunter Mill 
District Principal 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

  
         Continued on next page 
 
 
 (10)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 3 

 

 
 
 

 
ATHLETIC COUNCIL  (2 years) 
continued 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
B. Jefferson Boggs, Jr. 
(Appointed 5/07-3/09 
by Hyland) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Mount Vernon 
District Alternate 
Representative 

 Hyland Mount 
Vernon 

Jonathan Willmont 
(Appointed 5/07-3/09 
by Hyland) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Mount Vernon 
District Principal 
Representative 

 Hyland Mount 
Vernon 

Ralph Wills 
(Appointed 10/09-3/09 
by Frey) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Sully District 
Alternate 
Representative 

 Frey Sully 

David Lacey 
(Appointed 2/99-3/09 
by Frey) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Sully District 
Principal 
Representative 

 Frey  Sully 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BARBARA VARON VOLUNTEER AWARD SELECTION COMMITTEE 

(1 year) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Regina Jordan; 
appointed 6/04&6/09 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 6/10 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

 
 
 (11)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 4 

 

 
 
 
 

 
CHESAPEAKE BAY PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 

 EXCEPTION REVIEW COMMITTEE  
(4 years) 

 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Michael Fraser; 
appointed 11/08 by 
Smyth) 
Term exp. 9/11 
Resigned 
 

Providence District 
Representative 
 

 Smyth Providence 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COMMISSION ON ORGAN AND TISSUE DONATION AND TRANSPLANTATION 

(4 years)  
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Mark Yeager; 
appointed 7/06 by 
Connolly; 3/09 by 
Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/13 
Resigned 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At-Large 
Chairman’s 

Suzette Kern 
(Appointed 11/09 by 
McKay) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Lee District 
Representative 

 McKay Lee 

 
 
 
 
 (12)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 5 

 

 
 
 

 
COMMUNITY ACTION ADVISORY BOARD (CAAB) 

(3 years – up to 5 consecutive years, 10 maximum for elected/confirmed members) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Pamela Abston; 
appointed 8/04-2/08 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 2/11 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill 
District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

 
 

 
CONSUMER PROTECTION COMMISSION 

(3 years)  
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
James Mrowka; 
appointed 2/03-8/04 
by Mendelsohn; 9/06 
by DuBois; 9/09 by 
Foust) 
Term exp. 7/12 
Resigned 
 

Fairfax County 
Resident #6 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 

 
ECONOMIC ADVISORY COMMISSION  (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
     

 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. Jay Donahue as the Planning Commission Representative 

 
 

(13)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 6 

 

 
ENGINEERING STANDARDS REVIEW COMMITTEE (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
 
CONFIRMATIONS NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. Robert E. Kohnke as the Northern Virginia Soil and Water Conservation 

Representative 
 

 Mr. Keith Sinclair as the Engineers and Surveyors Institute Representative 
 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ADVISORY COUNCIL (EQAC) (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by  
Edmund P. Foster; 
appointed 1/09-12/09 
by Herrity) 
Term exp. 11/12 
Resigned 
 

Springfield 
District 
Representative 

 Herrity Springfield 

 
 

FAIRFAX AREA DISABILITY SERVICES BOARD 
(3 years- limited to 2 full consecutive terms per MOU, after initial term) 

[NOTE:  Persons may be reappointed after being off for 3 years.  State Code requires that 
membership in the local disabilities board include at least 30 percent representation by individuals 
with physical, visual or hearing disabilities or their family members.  For this 15-member board, 
the minimum number of representation would be 5. 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Thomas Choman 
(Appointed 5/02 by 
Hanley; 11/04-1/08 
by Connolly) 
Term exp. 11/10 
 

At-Large Fairfax 
County 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Ann Pimley 
(Appointed 
9/03&11/06 by Frey) 
Term exp. 11/09 
Not eligible for 
reappointment (need 
3 year lapse) 
 

Sully District 
Representative 

 Frey Sully 

(14)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 7 

 

 
 
 

 
FAIRFAX COMMUNITY LONG TERM CARE COORDINATING COUNCIL 

  (2 years) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. Art Bennett as a Community/Religious  Leaders Representative 

 
 Ms. Jocelyn Rappaport as a Fairfax City Representative 

 
 
 
 

 
HUMAN SERVICES COUNCIL (4 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Henry B. Latimer; 
appointed 5/97 by 
Dix; 7/00-9/08 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 7/12 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

 
 
 
 

 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ITPAC) 
(3 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. John Hanks as the Federation of Citizens Associations Representative 

 
 
 
 (15)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 8 

 

 
 
 

 
JUVENILE AND DOMESTIC RELATIONS COURT CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL 

(2 years) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

Michael McClanahan 
(Appointed 12/05-1/07 
by Connolly; 2/09 by 
Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At-Large 
Chairman’s 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Melissa Smarr; 
appointed 6/06&1/08 
by Smyth) 
Term exp. 1/10 
Resigned 
 

Providence District 
Representative 

 Smyth Providence 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY  

(4 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
John Kershenstein; 
appointed 3/85 by 
Herrity; 3/89-4/05 by 
McConnell; 4/09 by 
P. Herrity) 
Term exp. 4/13 
Resigned  
 

Springfield District 
Representative 

 Herrity Springfield 

 
 
 
 
 
 (16)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SOUTHGATE COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COUNCIL 

(2 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Lawrence Bussey 
(Appointed 3/05-3/09 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Fairfax County #2 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

C. Denver Lovett 
(Appointed 1/11 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Fairfax County #4 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Patrick Kane; 
appointed 3/07-3/09 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/12 
Resigned 
 

Fairfax County #7 
Representative 
 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Linda Diamond 
(Appointed 3/07-3/09 
by Hudgins 
Term exp. 3/11 
 

Fairfax County #8 
Representative 
 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 

(17)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 10 

 

 
TENANT LANDLORD COMMISSION (3 years) 

[NOTE: Per County Code Section 12-2-1, each member of this commission must be a County resident.  Tenant 
Members:  shall be a person who, prior to the time of his/her appointment, and throughout his/her term, shall be the 
lessee of and reside in a dwelling unit.  Landlord Members:  shall be a person who owns and leases, or serves as a 
manager for four (4) or more leased dwelling units in Fairfax County or is employed by a real estate management firm 
that manages more than four (4) rental units. Citizen Members:  shall be anyone who is neither a lessee nor lessor of 
any dwelling unit in Fairfax County.] 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by Mark 
Thomas; appointed 5/09 
by Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/12 
Resigned 
 

Tenant Member #1 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Evelyn McRae 
(Appointed 6/98-8/01 by 
Hanley; 12/04-1/08 by 
Connolly) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Tenant Member #2 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 
 
 

 
TRAILS AND SIDEWALKS COMMITTEE (2 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by Kala 
Quintana; appointed 
10/09-1/10 by Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/12 
Resigned 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At-Large 
Chairman’s 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
R. Douglas Pew; 
appointed 6/08-1/10 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 1/12 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

 
 
 
 (18)



March 29, 2011                       Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 11 

 

 
 

 
TREE COMMISSION (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Stacey Evers 
(Appointed  3/08 by 
Gross) 
Term exp. 10/10 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY (UOSA) 

 (4 years) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

 
CONFIRMATIONS NEEDED: 

 
 Mr. Shahram Mohsenin as the Fairfax County #1 Representative 

 
 Mr. Michael McGrath as the Fairfax County Alternate #1 Representative 

(19)



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(20)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
10:30 a.m. 
 
 
Items Presented by the County Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(21)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(22)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 1 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Convey a Portion of County-Owned 
Property to the Virginia Department of Transportation for the Telegraph Road Project 
(Lee District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to convey a portion of County-owned 
property to the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) for the Telegraph Road 
Project. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize staff to publish the 
advertisement of a public hearing to be held on May 10, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested for March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time to advertise the 
proposed public hearing on May 10, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board of Supervisors is the owner of property located at 7936 Telegraph Road, 
Alexandria, Virginia  22315 and identified as Tax Map No. 1001 01 0016.  The 
Kingstowne Fire Station (Station #37) is located on the property. 
 
The Virginia Department of Transportation (“VDOT”) would like to acquire 6,229 square 
feet of land from parcel 1001 01 0016 and permanent and temporary easements to 
construct and maintain the Telegraph Road Project.  This project is also a part of the 
Mulligan Road Project and, as such, is one of the transportation improvements being 
funded by the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”) as part of the Base 
Realignment and Closure Act (“BRAC”).  VDOT is acting as project manager. 
 
VDOT presented an offer of compensation of $141,430 for the fee taking and 
easements.  The Department of Transportation recommends, and the Facilities 
Management Department concurs, that the Board of Supervisors accepts the offer of 
$141,430 because Fairfax County purchased this property for purposes other than right-
of-way for this project.  The Department of Transportation requests that the 
compensation be deposited into Fund 124 to partially offset other significant County 

(23)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
contributions from Fund 124 being provided to VDOT and FHWA in connection with 
BRAC transportation projects. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
If the offer is approved, after public hearing, $141,430 will be deposited into Fund 124, 
County and Regional Transportation Projects, unless otherwise directed by the Board of 
Supervisors.        
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment A: Location Map 100-1 
 
 
STAFF: 
Edward L. Long, Deputy County Executive 
Jose A. Comayagua, Director, Facilities Management Department 
Tom Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation 
 
 
 
 

(24)



nm

nm

100-2100-1

100-3 100-4

MEADOW DR

PARISH

ALDERMAN

SIM
MS

M
CC

RA
CK

EN 
RD

CROSS   GATE

TOPPER

CROS SING

DR CROFT

WAY

PKWY

GO
OD

 LIO
N CT

BLAN F O RD

CT

G RANT

LANDSDOWNE

CT

WAY
LN

PINEY RUN

LN

AMESBURY

BLUE
SKY

PATENT PARISH LN

CT
WILEY

SNYDER  RD

CALEB CT

GLEBE

DR

RD

KINGST
OWNE

LN

PINEY WOODS CT

OLDHAM WAY

DR

SUSAN
LN

FREEPORT AVE

STONE WHEAT CT

WIGMORE

PARK
WO O DLAWN   RD

JOHN J  KING MA
N 

  R

D

DR
MORNI NG V IEW

CT
CREEK

CRE S TLEIGH  WAY

CTR

WINDHAM HILL RUN

OL
D 

    
 TE

LE
GR

AP
H  

   R
D

COACH

CASHLAND

ISLAND CREEK

BARKLEY

OLD

TALIAFFERRO

WALKERS

VILLAGE

SUMMER

ASHB
Y

MORNING

VIEW    LN

WAY

GAYFIELDS RD

BR OCKETTS

RACHAEL WHITNEY LN

PARK VILLAGE DR

LEAF  RD

DR

CT

BEULAH  ST TELEGRAPH  RD

Fort Belvoir

´
0 1,500 3,000750

Scale in Feet

1001 01  0016

(25)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(26)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 2 
 
 
Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications (Braddock, Dranesville, 
Hunter Mill, Lee, and Mason Districts) 
  
 
ISSUE: 
Extension of the review periods for specific 2232 Review applications to ensure 
compliance with the review requirements of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board extend the review periods for the 
following applications: applications 2232-L11-1 and FSA-L96-72-2 to June 10, 2011; 
application FS-L11-5 to June 23, 2011; application 2232A-M00-24-1 to July 1, 2011; 
applications FS-B11-8 and FSA-L08-1-1 to July 7, 2011; applications 2232-D11-3 and 
2232-H11-4 to October 2, 2011; and application FS-D09-208 to October 9, 2011.  
 
TIMING: 
Board action is required on March 29, 2011, to extend the review periods of the 
applications noted above before their expirations. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Subsection B of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia states:  “Failure of the 
commission to act within sixty days of a submission, unless the time is extended by the 
governing body, shall be deemed approval.”  Subsection F of Section 15.2-2232 of the 
Code of Virginia states:  “Failure of the commission to act on any such application for a 
telecommunications facility under subsection A submitted on or after July 1, 1998, within 
ninety days of such submission shall be deemed approval of the application by the 
commission unless the governing body has authorized an extension of time for 
consideration or the applicant has agreed to an extension of time.  The governing body 
may extend the time required for action by the local commission by no more than sixty 
additional days.”   
 
The Board should extend the review periods for applications 2232-L11-1, FSA-L96-72-2, 
FS-L11-5, 2232A-M00-24-1, FS-B11-8 and FSA-L08-1-1 which were accepted for review 
by the Department of Planning and Zoning between January 11, 2011 and  
February 7, 2011.  These applications are for telecommunications facilities, and thus are 
subject to the State Code provision that the Board may extend the time required for the 
Planning Commission to act on these applications by no more than sixty additional days.  
 

(27)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
The Board should extend the review periods for applications 2232-D11-3, 2232-H11-4 
and FS-D09-208 which were accepted for review by the Department of Planning and 
Zoning between April 9, 2010 and February 1, 2011.  These applications are for public 
facilities, and thus are not subject to the State Code provision for extending the review 
period by no more than sixty additional days. 
 
The review periods for the following applications should be extended: 
 
2232-D11-3  Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority  
   Train control room relocation 
   Fisher Avenue 
   Dranesville District   
 
2232-H11-4  Dominion Virginia Power 
   Electrical Substation  
   Near Clay Lane and Sunset Hills Road  
   Hunter Mill District  
  
2232-L11-1  T-Mobile Northeast  
   125’ tall monopole (monopine) 
   5419 Oakwood Road 
   Lee District   
 
FS-B11-8  Fibertower  
   Antenna collocation on existing tower  
   9801 Braddock Road  
   Braddock District 
 
FS-D09-208  District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
   Odor control facility 
   Dranesville District  
  
FS-L11-5  Verizon Wireless 
   Rooftop antennas  
   6564 Loisdale Court  
   Lee District  
 
2232A-M00-24-1 AT&T Mobility 
   Antenna collocation on existing monopole 
   6560 Braddock Road  
   Mason District  

(28)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FSA-L96-72-2 AT&T Mobility  
   Antenna collocation on existing tower  
   6209 Rose Hill Drive  
   Lee District  
 
FSA-L08-1-1  Fibertower 
   Antenna collocation on existing monopole 
   6700 Springfield Center  
   Lee District  
 
The need for the full time of these extensions may not be necessary, and is not intended 
to set a date for final action.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Fred R. Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Chris B. Caperton, Planning Division, DPZ 
Sandi M. Beaulieu, Planning Division, DPZ 
 

(29)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(30)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE - 3 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise Public Hearings to Consider Proposed Amendments to the 
Public Facilities Manual Re: Design of Public Streets and Sidewalks 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise public hearings to consider proposed amendments to 
Chapters 7 and 8 of the Public Facilities Manual (PFM) of Fairfax County, Virginia.  The 
proposed amendments address the new State Secondary Street Acceptance 
Requirements and Appendix B(1) Subdivision Street Design Guide  of the Virginia 
Department of Transportation (VDOT) Road Design Manual, and emergency access and 
operations requirements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize the advertisement of the 
proposed amendments to the PFM as set forth in the Staff Report, dated March 29, 2011. 
 
These amendments have been coordinated with the Fairfax County Department of 
Transportation, Fairfax County Fire and Rescue Department, and the Office of the County 
Attorney.  In addition, the proposed PFM amendments have been recommended for 
approval by the Engineering Standards Review Committee (ESRC), except for the 
minimum street widths for streets with parking on both sides.  A letter from the ESRC to 
the Board is provided as Attachment B of the Staff Report (Attachment 1).  The proposed 
minimum street widths for streets with parking on both sides have been recommended by 
the Fire Marshal to comply with the Virginia Fire Prevention Code. 
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board is requested to take action on March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time to 
advertise the proposed public hearings on May 5, 2011, at 8:15 p.m., and June 7, 2011, at 
4:00 p.m.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SECONDARY STREET ACCEPTANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The 2007 Virginia General Assembly added § 33.1-70.3 to the Code of Virginia, which 
requires that the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) develop secondary street 
acceptance requirements.  These new requirements, called the Secondary Street 
Acceptance Requirements (SSAR), must be met before secondary streets constructed by 

(31)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

developers, localities and entities other than VDOT will be accepted into the state highway 
system for maintenance.  The SSAR (24 VAC 30-92) replaces and supersedes the old 
Subdivision Street Requirements (24 VAC 30-91).  The Fairfax County Department of 
Transportation provided comments, on the Board’s behalf, to VDOT on the SSAR prior to 
their adoption in 2008.  The SSAR became effective on March 9, 2009. 
 
Section 33.1-70.3 of the Code of Virginia provides that the new regulations shall include 
provisions that the CTB deems necessary and appropriate to achieve the safe and efficient 
operation of the state’s transportation network and include the following: 
 

• Requirements to ensure the connectivity of road and pedestrian networks with the 
existing and future transportation network; 

• Provisions to minimize stormwater runoff and impervious surface area; and  
• Provisions for performance bonding of new secondary streets and associated cost 

recovery fees. 
 
The major elements of the SSAR that are different from the old Subdivision Street 
Requirements are described below: 
 
Connectivity Requirements 
 
The SSAR increases the number of access points to adjacent properties or developments.  
It is expected that increased connectivity will result in more effective use of the 
transportation infrastructure.  In general, increasing the connectivity of a street network will 
provide for more alternative routes, instead of forcing all traffic in a subdivision to one 
entrance or exit onto an arterial street.  The SSAR establishes three area types in the 
Commonwealth:  compact, suburban, and rural.  The connectivity requirements in the 
SSAR are based on area type.  Currently, Fairfax County is located entirely within a 
compact area type according to U.S decennial census data. 
 
Under the connectivity requirements for all area types, the street layout for a development 
must provide sufficient connections in multiple directions and to multiple properties.  In 
addition, development in compact and suburban area types must meet a certain level of 
connectivity, which is measured using a connectivity index.  The connectivity indices for 
compact and suburban area types are 1.6 and 1.4, respectively.  The proposed PFM 
amendments reference the connectivity requirements in the SSAR rather than restating 
them. 
 
A listing of the connectivity requirements is included in the Staff Report. 
 
Pedestrian Accommodation Requirements 
 
The SSAR provides pedestrian accommodation (e.g. sidewalks) requirements based on 
the median lot size or the floor to area ratio (FAR) of the development, proximity to public 

(32)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

schools, the adjoining developments’ pedestrian network, and the functional classification 
of the street.  The PFM amendments are aligned with the requirements of the SSAR, 
except regarding proximity to schools.  The County’s current requirements are more 
stringent than the SSAR so it is proposed that these requirements remain unchanged. 
 
A listing of the requirements for pedestrian accommodation is included in the Staff Report. 
 
The SSAR indicates that sidewalks and trails that are located entirely within the VDOT 
right-of-way and constructed to VDOT standards will be maintained by VDOT.  Currently, 
VDOT will accept a 10-foot wide asphalt trail for maintenance.  However, VDOT may 
consider accepting an 8-foot wide trail under rare instances where bicycle traffic is 
expected to be low, pedestrian use is expected to be occasional, there will be safe and 
frequent passing opportunities, and the path will not be subject to maintenance loading 
conditions that would cause pavement damage.  The County continues to discuss this 
requirement with VDOT in connection with the County’s pedestrian and bicycle initiatives.  
If narrower or alternative surface trails are constructed to conform to the Comprehensive 
Plan, they must be maintained by an entity other than VDOT.   
 
Stormwater Management 
 
The SSAR allows stormwater facilities to be placed in the right-of-way.  However, VDOT 
will not maintain the facility and an agreement must be executed between the locality and 
VDOT regarding maintenance responsibility.  This may provide some leeway in the future 
regarding the design of low impact development facilities such as bioretention, vegetated 
swales and tree box filters provided an agreement can be developed that does not place 
an undue burden on the County.  Acceptable facilities must be included in VDOT’s 
Drainage Manual, the Department of Conservation and Recreation’s Stormwater 
Handbook, or supplemental directives.  Currently, a limited number of stormwater 
management facility designs are included in these documents.  However, the state is in the 
process of revising the Stormwater Handbook and the revisions may include additional low 
impact development facilities. 
 
Performance Bonding and Cost Recovery Fees 
 
The revisions to the performance bonding process do not affect the County’s current land 
development process.  However, the proposed regulations have established a new cost 
recovery fee structure and increased costs will be incurred on County projects and private 
developments that include public roads or public road improvements. 
 
APPENDIX B(1) - SUBDIVISION STREET DESIGN GUIDE OF THE VDOT ROAD 
DESIGN MANUAL 
 
VDOT revised the Road Design Manual to address the new requirements in the SSAR.  
The new design standards are provided in Appendix B(1) of the VDOT Road Design 

(33)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

Manual.  The proposed amendments to the PFM reference the VDOT manual for design 
standards rather than restating the standards. This is important because, unlike the SSAR, 
changes to the Road Design Manual are not required to go through a public hearing 
process and may be revised more frequently than regulations.  In fact, the VDOT Road 
Design Manual has been revised at least every 6 months.  These amendments would 
allow the PFM to remain current with the VDOT manual in order to facilitate VDOT 
acceptance of streets that are constructed through the land development process.  
Situations where the County design standards are purposely different from the state 
standards will remain in the PFM.   
 
To date, the majority of VDOT revisions has been related to transportation engineering 
standards that are usually based on recommendations from nationally recognized 
organizations such as the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials (AASHTO) and the Federal Highway Administration (FHA).  The majority of the 
revisions has been acceptable to the County.  In the unusual instance where the County 
would desire a stricter standard than VDOT, an amendment to the PFM would have to be 
adopted in order to deviate from the state standards. 
 
For example, it was determined that some of the widths established in the state design 
standards are too narrow to comply with the statewide fire prevention code that calls for an 
unobstructed width of no less than 20 feet on fire apparatus access roads, which include 
public streets.  In addition, the VDOT Road Design Manual provides for different minimum 
street widths based on no parking allowed, parking allowed on one side of the street and 
parking on both sides of the street.  In general, for streets where no parking is allowed on 
one or both sides of the street, it would be difficult to continually enforce those parking 
restrictions.  In addition, restricted parking would be inconvenient for residents when 
accommodating guests or extra cars in the household.  Consequently, the amendment 
requires a minimum street width of no less than 36 feet wide on secondary streets to 
accommodate parking on both sides of the street and the unobstructed width of 20 feet.  In 
order to accommodate context-sensitive solutions, the amendment allows for narrower 
streets or restricted parking conditions that are approved by the Board through a zoning 
action, and urban road design standards that have been established through memoranda 
of understanding between VDOT and the County for specific areas such as Tysons 
Corner.  
 
Where possible, the proposed amendments refer to the SSAR, VDOT Road Design 
Manual or other relevant state manuals rather than restating requirements or design 
standards for sight distance, grade, right-of-way width, and geometric design.  The 
proposed amendments include revisions to the text of Chapter 7 of the PFM as well as 
Plates 1-7, 2-7 and 3-7, and their metric counterparts.  Revisions to the text of Chapter 8 of 
the PFM reflect the pedestrian accommodation requirements established in the SSAR, 
except that the County pedestrian accommodations requirements regarding proximity to 
schools remain unchanged.   

 

(34)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

ESRC RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The ESRC does not recommend approval of provisions of the proposed amendments 
related to street width.  A letter to the Board from the ESRC is included as Attachment B of 
the staff report (Attachment 1).  The ESRC believes that there should be uniformity 
between the County’s public street standards and VDOT’s street standards, and that 
adopting wider street widths runs counter to the County’s environmental initiatives.   

 
Staff agrees that County standards should align with VDOT standards wherever possible.  
However, some of VDOT’s minimum street widths are too narrow to comply with the 
Virginia Fire Prevention Code and public safety is of paramount importance.   Although 
staff recognizes that narrower streets encourage slower speeds, which is safer for 
pedestrians, and minimize impervious area, which is better from an environmental 
perspective, emergency access and operations should not be compromised.   

 
The letter from the ESRC mentions that in many single-family detached developments 
there may not be a lot of on-street parking; therefore narrower streets would be 
acceptable.  Unless the development is signed as having restricted parking and that 
parking restriction is enforced, there can be no assurance that parked vehicles will not 
obstruct emergency access and operations.  Should parking restrictions on public streets 
become widespread, it would put a strain on police resources.  Therefore, this approach is 
not recommended by staff.   
 
Staff presented the issues regarding minimum street widths to the Board at the 
Development Process Committee meeting on November 23, 2010. 
 
 
REGULATORY IMPACT: 
The proposed PFM amendments will assist designers in complying with current VDOT 
standards and will facilitate VDOT acceptance of streets that are constructed through the 
land development process.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The adoption of this amendment will not require additional County staff for site inspection 
or plan review.  Consequently, there are no changes to the County land development fee 
structure proposed with these regulations.  
 
Although some grandfathering provisions were included with adoption of the SSAR (see 
Attachment 2), developers, including the County, will bear the cost of increased VDOT 
fees, and engineering and construction costs on projects that are not grandfathered and 
include public streets.  The new state requirements may cause an increase in the cost of 
engineering for subdivision developments that include public streets because there will be 
more intersections due to increased connectivity and more complex estimates of traffic 

(35)



Board Agenda Item   
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

volumes.  In addition, because of the new state requirements, the developer will  bear the 
cost of constructing sidewalks in more locations.  However, the burden of maintaining the 
sidewalk will be placed on VDOT rather than the County if it is built in accordance with 
VDOT standards and wholly contained within the right-of-way.  The County requirement for 
a wider minimum street width will increase the cost of construction in some situations.   
 
During the public comment period for the SSAR, several land development companies 
commented that the new requirements would raise housing costs, but did not provide 
specifics. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Staff Report Dated March 29, 2011. 
Attachment 2 - VDOT SSAR Grandfathering Provisions 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Michelle Brickner, Director, Land Development Services, DPWES 

(36)



Attachment 1 

 

 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

 PROPOSED COUNTY CODE 
AMENDMENT 
 

X PROPOSED PFM AMENDMENT 
 

 APPEAL OF DECISION 
 

  WAIVER REQUEST 
 

 
 

Proposed Amendments to the PFM Re:  Design of Public Streets and 
Sidewalks 

 
 
Authorization to Advertise March 29, 2011 
  
Planning Commission Hearing May 5, 2011 at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Board of Supervisors Hearing June 7, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 Code Analysis Division 
Prepared by: JAC  (703) 324-1720 
 March 29, 2011 

 
 
 

(37)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
A. Issues: 
 

The proposed amendments to the Public Facilities Manual of Fairfax County, 
Virginia (PFM) address the new State Secondary Street Acceptance 
Requirements and Subdivision Street Design Guide and emergency access 
and operations requirements. 

 
B. Recommended Action: 
 

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the proposed 
amendments. 

 
C. Timing: 
 

Board of Supervisors Authorization to Advertise – March 29, 2011. 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearing –May 5, 2011, at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Board of Supervisors Public Hearing – June 7, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Effective Date – June 8, 2011, at 12:01 a.m.  

 
D. Source: 
 

Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
 
E. Coordination: 
 

The proposed amendments have been prepared by the Fairfax County 
Department of Public Works and Environmental Services and coordinated 
with the Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT), Fairfax 
County Fire and Rescue Department, and the Office of the County Attorney.  
In addition, the proposed PFM amendments have been recommended for 
approval by the Engineering Standards Review Committee (ESRC) except for 
the minimum street widths for streets with parking on both sides.   A letter to 
the Board from the ESRC is included as Attachment B.  The proposed 
minimum street widths for streets with parking on both sides have been 
recommended by the Fire Marshal to comply with the Virginia Fire Prevention 
Code. 

 
F. Background: 

 
SECONDARY STREET ACCEPTANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

(38)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

The 2007 Virginia General Assembly added § 33.1-70.3 to the Code of 
Virginia, which requires that the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) 
develop secondary street acceptance requirements.  These new 
requirements, called the Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements 
(SSAR), must be met before secondary streets constructed by developers, 
localities and entities other than VDOT will be accepted into the secondary 
system of state highways for maintenance.  The SSAR (24 VAC 30-92) 
replaces and supersedes the old Subdivision Street Requirements (24 VAC 
30-91).  The Fairfax County Department of Transportation provided 
comments, on the Board’s behalf, to VDOT on the SSAR prior to their 
adoption in 2008.  The SSAR became effective on March 9, 2009. 

 
Section 33.1-70.3 of the Code of Virginia provides that the new regulations 
shall include provisions that the CTB deems necessary and appropriate to 
achieve the safe and efficient operation of the state’s transportation network 
and include the following: 

 
• Requirements to ensure the connectivity of road and pedestrian networks 

with the existing and future transportation network; 
• Provisions to minimize stormwater runoff and impervious surface area; 

and  
• Provisions for performance bonding of new secondary streets and 

associated cost recovery fees. 
 

The major elements of the SSAR that are different from the old Subdivision 
Street Requirements are described below: 
 
Connectivity Requirements 
 
The SSAR increases the number of access points to adjacent properties or 
developments.  It is expected that increased connectivity will result in more 
effective use of the transportation infrastructure.  In general, increasing the 
connectivity of a street network will provide for more alternative routes, 
instead of forcing all traffic in a subdivision to one entrance or exit onto an 
arterial street.  The SSAR establishes three area types in the Commonwealth:  
compact, suburban, and rural, and the connectivity requirements in the SSAR 
are based on area type.  Currently, Fairfax County is located entirely within a 
compact area type according to U.S decennial census data.   
 
The connectivity requirements include the following: 
 
• The public streets in all area types must be designed and constructed in 

accordance with the SSAR and the VDOT Road Design Manual. 
• The street layout in all area types must provide sufficient connections in 

multiple directions and to multiple properties. 
• A measurement of connectivity, called the connectivity index, must be 

(39)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

equal to or greater than 1.6 in compact area types, and equal to or greater 
than 1.4 in suburban area types. The connectivity index is calculated by 
dividing the number of street segments by the number of intersections and 
cul-de-sacs in the development’s street layout.  A more grid-like street 
layout would have a higher connectivity index, while a street layout 
comprising only cul-de-sac streets and one way in or out would have a 
lower connectivity index.    

• The block layout and other features of the development in compact and 
suburban areas types must be designed to provide reasonably direct 
pedestrian movement throughout the development and to adjoining 
properties. 

 
The connectivity requirements are addressed in the proposed PFM 
amendments by referencing the requirements in the SSAR. 
 
Pedestrian Accommodation Requirements 
 
The SSAR provides pedestrian accommodation (e.g. sidewalks) requirements 
based on the median lot size or the floor to area ratio (FAR) of the 
development, proximity to public schools, the adjoining developments 
pedestrian network, and the functional classification of the street.    
 
Pedestrian accommodations must be provided under the following conditions: 
 
• In developments where the median lot size is one-half acre or less, or the 

FAR is 0.4 or greater, pedestrian accommodations must be provided on 
both sides of the street.  The proposed PFM amendments include these 
requirements.   

• In developments where the median lot size is between one-half acre to 
two acres, pedestrian accommodations must be provided on at least one 
side of the street.  The proposed PFM amendments include this 
requirement. 

• On new streets that are within one-half mile of a public school, pedestrian 
accommodations must be provided on at least one side of the street.  The 
current PFM requirement is stricter than this requirement and no change 
to the PFM requirement is proposed. 

• A new street shall include pedestrian accommodations if a connection is 
proposed to a stub street that has pedestrian accommodations.  The 
proposed PFM amendments refer to the SSAR connectivity requirements 
that address pedestrian movement to adjoining properties and 
consequently, address this particular requirement regarding stub street 
connections. 

• On all new streets that are functionally classified as collectors and arterials 
with two travel lanes, pedestrian accommodations shall be provided on at 
least one side of the street.  The proposed PFM amendments address this 
requirement. 

(40)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

• On all new streets that are functionally classified as collectors and arterials 
with three or more travel lanes, pedestrian accommodations shall be 
provided on both sides of the street.  The proposed PFM amendments 
address this requirement. 

 
The SSAR indicates that sidewalks and trails that are located entirely within 
the VDOT right-of-way and constructed to VDOT standards will be maintained 
by VDOT.  Currently, VDOT will accept a 10-foot wide asphalt trail for 
maintenance.  However, VDOT may consider accepting an 8-foot wide trail 
under rare instances where bicycle traffic is expected to be low, pedestrian 
use is expected to be occasional, there will be safe and frequent passing 
opportunities, and the path will not be subject to maintenance loading 
conditions that would cause pavement damage.  The County continues to 
discuss this requirement with VDOT in connection with the County’s 
pedestrian and bicycle initiatives.  If narrower or alternative surface trails are 
constructed to conform to the Comprehensive Plan, they must be maintained 
by an entity other than VDOT.   
 
Stormwater Management 
 
The SSAR allows stormwater facilities to be placed in the right-of-way.  
However, VDOT will not maintain the facility and an agreement must be 
executed between the locality and VDOT regarding maintenance 
responsibility.  This may provide some leeway in the future regarding the 
design of low impact development facilities such as bioretention, vegetated 
swales and tree box filters provided an agreement can be developed that 
does not place an undue burden on the County.  Acceptable facilities must be 
included in VDOT’s Drainage Manual, the Department of Conservation and 
Recreation’s Stormwater Handbook, or supplemental directives.  Currently, a 
limited number of stormwater management facility designs are included in 
these documents.  However, the state is in the process of revising the 
Stormwater Handbook and the revisions may include additional low impact 
development facilities. 
 
Performance Bonding and Cost Recovery Fees 
 
The revisions to the performance bonding process do not affect the County’s 
current land development process.  However, the proposed regulations have 
established a new cost recovery fee structure and increased costs will be 
incurred on County projects and private developments that include new public 
roads or public road improvements. 
 
APPENDIX B(1) - SUBDIVISION STREET DESIGN GUIDE OF THE VDOT 
ROAD DESIGN MANUAL 
 
VDOT revised the Road Design Manual to address the new requirements in 

(41)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

the SSAR.  The new design standards are provided in Appendix B(1) of the 
VDOT Road Design Manual.  The proposed amendments to the PFM 
reference the VDOT manual for design standards rather than restating the 
standards. This is important because, unlike the SSAR, changes to the Road 
Design Manual are not required to go through a public hearing process and 
may be revised more frequently than regulations.  In fact, the VDOT Road 
Design Manual has been revised at least every 6 months.  These 
amendments would allow the PFM to remain current with the VDOT manual 
in order to facilitate VDOT acceptance of streets that are constructed through 
the land development process.  Situations where the County design 
standards are purposely different from the state standards will remain in the 
PFM.   
 
To date, the majority of VDOT revisions has been related to transportation 
engineering standards that are usually based on recommendations from 
nationally recognized organizations such as the American Association of 
State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHA).  The majority of the revisions have been 
acceptable to the County.  In the unusual instance where the County would 
desire a stricter standard than VDOT, an amendment to the PFM would have 
to be adopted in order to deviate from the state standards. 
 
For example, it was determined that some of the widths established in the 
state design standards are too narrow to comply with the statewide fire 
prevention code that calls for an unobstructed width of no less than 20 feet on 
fire apparatus access roads, which include public streets.  In addition, the 
VDOT Road Design Manual provides for different minimum street widths 
based on no parking allowed, parking allowed on one side of the street and 
parking on both sides of the street.  In general, for streets where no parking is 
allowed on one or both sides of the street, it would be difficult to continually 
enforce those parking restrictions.  In addition, restricted parking would be 
inconvenient for residents when accommodating guests or extra cars in the 
household.  Consequently, the amendment requires a minimum street width 
of no less than 36 feet wide on secondary streets to accommodate parking on 
both sides of the street and the unobstructed width of 20 feet.  In order to 
accommodate context-sensitive solutions, the amendment allows for narrower 
streets or restricted parking conditions that are approved by the Board 
through a zoning action, and urban road design standards that have been 
established through memoranda of understading between VDOT and the 
County for specific areas such as Tysons Corner.    

 
ESRC RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The ESRC does not recommend approval of the proposed amendments 
related to street width.  A letter to the Board from the ESRC is included as 
Attachment B.  The ESRC believes that there should be uniformity between 

(42)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

the County’s public street standards and VDOT’s street standards, and that 
adopting wider street widths runs counter to the County’s environmental 
initiatives.   
 
Staff agrees that County standards should align with VDOT standards 
wherever possible.  However, some of VDOT’s minimum street widths are too 
narrow to comply with the Virginia Fire Prevention Code and public safety is 
of paramount importance.   Although staff recognizes that narrower streets 
encourage slower speeds, which is safer for pedestrians, and minimize 
impervious area, which is better from an environmental perspective, 
emergency access and operations should not be compromised.   
 
The letter from the ESRC mentions that in many single-family detached 
developments there may not be a lot of on-street parking;  therefore, narrower 
streets would be acceptable.  Unless the development is signed as having 
restricted parking and that parking restriction is enforced, there can be no 
assurance that parked vehicles will not obstruct emergency access and 
operations.  Should parking restrictions on public streets become widespread, 
it would put a strain on police resources.  Therefore, this approach is not 
recommended by staff.  
 
Staff presented the issues regarding minimum street widths to the Board at 
the Development Process Committee meeting on November 23, 2010.  
 

G. Summary of Proposed Amendments: 
 
Where possible, the proposed amendments refer to the SSAR, VDOT Road 
Design Manual or other relevant state manuals rather than restating 
requirements or design standards for sight distance, grade, right-of-way 
width, and geometric design.   The proposed amendments include revisions 
to the text of Chapter 7 of the PFM as well as Plates 1-7, 2-7 and 3-7, and 
their metric counterparts. 
 
The amendment deviates from the VDOT Road Design Manual by requiring a 
minimum street width of 36 feet (curb face to curb face) on curb and gutter 
streets, and a minimum total street width (pavement width and gravel 
shoulders) of 36 feet for ditch-section streets (see Attachment C for an 
illustration).  These minimum widths accommodate parking on both sides of 
the street and an unobstructed width of 20 feet for emergency access and 
operations.  In order to accommodate context-sensitive solutions, the 
amendment allows for narrower streets or restricted parking conditions that 
are approved by the Board through a zoning action, and urban road design 
standards that have been established through memoranda of understanding 
between VDOT and the County for specific areas such as Tysons Corner.  
  

(43)



Staff Report   
March 29, 2011   
 

Revisions to Chapter 8 of the PFM reflect the pedestrian accommodation 
requirements established in the SSAR, except that the County pedestrian 
accommodations requirements regarding proximity to schools are more 
extensive (1.0 mile County versus 0.5 mile VDOT) remain unchanged.   

 
H. Attached Documents: 
 

Attachment A- Proposed amendments to Chapters 7 and 8 of the PFM 
Attachment B- ESRC letter, dated November 22, 2010 
Attachment C- Street cross-section with fire truck 

(44)



Attachment A 
 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 7 OF THE PUBLIC FACILITIES MANUAL 
 
Amend Table of Contents Section 7-0200, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions 
are shown as strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0200 PRELIMINARY STREET PLANNING 
7-0201 Public Benefit RequirementsGeneral Requirements 
7-0202 Design Criteria 
7-0203 Information to be Provided on Plans 
7-0204 Trip Generation 
7-02053 Traffic Flow Characteristics 
7-02064 Traffic Counts 
7-02075 Street Cross-Section Determination 
 
Amend Section 7-0101, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
7-0101 Street Design 
 
7-0101.1  Streets shall be provided to give access to adjoining property to the satisfaction of the Director.  
Also, streets shall be provided to connect with appropriate highways and with appropriate streets to ad-
joining developments. 
 
7-0101.2  Public streets shall meet the requirements set forth in the current VDOT Secondary Street Ac-
ceptance Requirements regarding public benefit (24 VAC 30-92-60).  These requirements are based on 
area type and include public service, pedestrian accommodation, and connectivity requirements.  
 
7-0101.32 (99-07-PFM)  All rights-of-way shall conform to the standards set forth in the current VDOT 
Subdivision Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements and Plates 1-7 (1M-7) through 11-7 (11M-7), 
and § 7-0406.14E.  Context-sensitive urban road design standards, including but not limited to minimum 
street width and parking,  that are established by a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Fair-
fax County and VDOT may deviate from the requirements set forth in the VDOT Road Design Manual 
and the PFM, and shall be used only in areas specified in the MOU.  All street construction shall be with-
in the dedicated street right-of-way.  
 
7-0101.3A  Street widths.   Streets widths shall accommodate parking on both sides of the street unless a 
restricted parking condition and/or narrower street width is approved by the Board of Supervisors (Board) 
in conjunction with the approval of a rezoning, proffered condition amendment, special exception, or spe-
cial exception amendment, and signed as approved by VDOT and the Director.  Minimum street widths 
shall be in accordance with Appendix B(1) of the VDOT Road Design Manual except that the following 
minimums also must be met for streets with parking on both sides in order to provide space for emer-
gency access and operations: 
 
7-0101.3A(1)  For ditch section streets with an ADT (average daily traffic count) of 5499 or less,  the 
minimum total roadway width, including pavement and gravel shoulders, for both one-way and two-way 
streets shall be no less than 36 feet (11.0 meters).   

(45)



  
7-0101.3A(2)  For curb and gutter streets with an ADT of 5499 or less, the minimum street width (face of 
curb to face of curb) shall be no less than 36 feet (11.0 meters) for both one-way and two-way streets.   
 
7-0101.43  In subdivisions developed as R-C Clusters, 50' (15m) wide access easements only will be re-
quired to adjoining properties which are otherwise land locked by having access only by means of a right-
of-way less than 50' (15m) wide.  No street construction will be required within the required 50' (15m) 
wide access easement.   
 
7-0101.54  Subdivision blocks shall be spaced so as to provide reasonable traffic circulation within and 
between existing or anticipated subdivisions, except as limited above for R-C Cluster developments. 
 
Amend Section 7-0102.1, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as stri-
keouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0102.1 (99-07-PFM)  The width of the right-of-way shall be established in accordance with the current 
VDOT Subdivision Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements and the current VDOT Road Design Ma-
nual.  The width shall account for all features, which are to be maintained by VDOT. All street construc-
tion shall be within the dedicated right-of-way.  Easements shall not be accepted to make up the minimum 
required right-of-way if any construction is proposed thereon.  Slope construction easements shall be pro-
vided where required. 
 
Amend Section 7-0103, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
7-0103 Curb & Gutter (See Plates 2-7 (2M-7), 3-7 (3M-7), 4-7 (4M-7), 7-7 (7M-7), 9-7 (9M-7), 11-7 
(11M-7), 12-7 (12M-7)) 
 
7-0103.1   Curb and gutter shall be installed on along the side of arterial, collector and local streets which 
provide frontage to lots within new subdivisions in which the average lot size is less than 18,000 ft2 (1672 
m2). 
 
7-0103.2   Header curbs shall be installed for raised medians and service drives for proper channelization 
of traffic as deemed necessary by the Director 
 
7-0103.3 (35-91-PFM)  Curb cuts for commercial and industrial use entrances shall be in accordance with 
the latest edition of the current VDOT  Access Management Regulations.  Publication "Minimum Stan-
dards of Entrances to State Highways". 
 
7-0103.4 (35-91-PFM)   Curb cuts for residential use entrances shall be located so as to provide a safe and 
convenient means of  ingress and egress for motor vehicles to and from paved or otherwise improved 
parts of highways and streets, except that no curb cut on public streets shall be less than 30' (9m) from the 
point of curvature of the curb line/edge of pavement return of the intersecting streets, unless otherwise 
approved by the Director based upon the volume of traffic, angle of intersection, potential of expanded 
use in the future, conflicting turning movements, stacking and sight distance. 
 
Amend Section 7-0200, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 

(46)



7-0200 PRELIMINARY STREET PLANNING 
 
7-0201 Public Benefit Requirements  All public street networks and individual public streets must be 
designed to meet the public benefit requirements established in the current VDOT Secondary Street Ac-
ceptance Requirements.  These requirements are based on area type and include public service, pedestrian 
accommodation and connectivity requirements.   The terms, area type, connectivity index and network 
addition, are defined in the current VDOT Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements. 
 
 
7-02021 Design CriteriaGeneral Requirements.  (99-07-PFM, 89-05-PFM, 62-98-PFM)  All streets, 
which are to be dedicated for public use, shall be designed to comply with the applicable design criteria 
ingeometric standard in accordance with the current VDOT Road Design Manual and Plates 1-7(1M-7) 
through 3-7(3M-7).   
 
7-0203 Information to be Provided on Plans 
 
7-0203.1  The following information shall be provided on all plans, including  preliminary plats, that pro-
pose public streets to show compliance with the public benefit requirements of the current VDOT Secon-
dary Street Acceptance Requirements.   
 
7-0203.1A  The location and configuration, including terminus, of each street and the traffic volume an-
ticipated  when  the land served is fully developed in accordance with the land use proposed within the 
development.  The anticipated traffic volume shall include traffic flow that may be generated from adjoin-
ing properties with connecting streets or stub outs.  For the purposes of the traffic volume calculations, the 
land use on the adjoining property shall be as designated on the Comprehensive Plan, existing zoning, or 
existing conditions, whichever generates the largest traffic volume. 
 
7-0203.1B  The location, area and density or floor area ratio (FAR) of each type of proposed land use 
within the development. 
 
7-0203.1C  The location of any proposed transportation facility including any public transportation facili-
ties as well as bicycle and pedestrian accommodations within the development’s boundary, and the me-
dian lot size used to determine the required pedestrian accommodations, if applicable. 
 
7-0203.1D  The proposed functional classification for each street in the development. 
 
7-0203.1E  The area type and connectivity index of the proposed network addition. 
 
7-0203.1F  The location of stub outs on adjoining property and the existing land use, existing zoning as 
well as the land use designated on the Comprehensive Plan for the adjoining property. 
 
7-0203.1F(1)  The area and type of land use from the adjoining property that will generate traffic on the 
connecting street; and 
 
7-0203.F(2)  The total number of vehicles per day expected to both enter and exit the development over 
the connecting street. 
 
7-0203.1G  The location of stub outs within the development. 
 

(47)



7-0203.1G(1)  The size of the adjoining property and the type of land use shown on the Comprehensive 
Plan for the adjoining property. 
 
7-0203.1G(2)    The total number of vehicles per day expected to both enter and exit the development on 
the connecting street once the adjoining property is developed.   
 
7-0203.1H  Any reductions in the connectivity requirements pursuant to 24 VAC 30-92-60-5a and the as-
sociated calculations.  These reductions do not require a formal request for approval by VDOT. 
 
7-0203.1I  Any reductions, modifications or exceptions to the public service or connectivity requirements 
that require a formal request for approval by VDOT, and the associated VDOT approval letter. 
 
7-0203.1J  The location and type of stormwater facilities that are proposed to be located in the right-of-
way. 
 
7-0203.1K  Any information on the proposed phasing of street construction, if applicable.   
 
7-0203.21.1  In order to determine the proper street cross-section to use to facilitate review and approval 
of preliminary plats, the following information shall be provided for each street intersection: 
 
7-0203.21.1A  The number of vehicles per day entering and leaving the intersection shall be noted on 
each leg of each street in each direction. 
 
7-0203.21.1B  The proposed street right-of-way, together with the proposed width of street (face of curb 
to face of curb, or edge of pavement to edge of pavement and shoulder width) for each block on every 
street in the subdivision, is to be shown. 
 
7-0201.1C  All street construction shall be within the dedicated street right-of-way.  Easements shall not 
be accepted to make up the minimum required right-of-way if any construction is proposed thereon.  
Slope construction easements shall be provided where required. 
 
7-0201.2  The following information shall be shown for all streets which intersect the exterior boundary 
of the subdivision and which will provide access to adjoining undeveloped property: 
 
7-0201.2A  Number of acres (hectares) expected to contribute vehicles to this street; 
 
7-0201.2B  An indication of how the adjoining property is shown on the adopted comprehensive plan to-
gether with the number of units per acre residential density proposed; 
 
7-0201.2C  The total number of units expected to be contributing to the subject street; and 
 
7-0201.2D  The total vehicles per day expected to be using the street. 
 
7-0201.3  For streets which intersect the exterior boundary of the subdivision and connect with existing, 
dedicated or proposed streets in adjoining subdivisions, the following shall be required: 
 
7-0201.3A  The number of lots from the adjoining subdivision from which vehicles will be expected to 
use the subject street; and 
 

(48)



7-0201.3B  The number of vehicles expected to enter the subdivision over the subject street from said 
lots. 
 
7-02042 Trip Generation 
 
7-02042.1 (89-05-PFM, 62-98-PFM)  Trip Generation shall be calculated in accordance with the current 
VDOT Road Design Manual Appendix B. 
 
7-02053 Traffic Flow Characteristics 
 
7-02053.1  In the determination of traffic flow calculations, all preliminary plats shall show traffic di-
vides, in a manner similar to the way in which drainage divides are currently shown, for the traffic which 
will be generated by the subject development and from the adjoining development passing through it or 
from adjoining undeveloped property which will ultimately be subdivided with traffic passing through the 
subject subdivision. 
 
7-02053.2  The following items shall be considered in the calculations of the traffic volumes where ap-
propriate: 
 
7-02053.2A  Will any of the proposed streets serve as principal or secondary access to any school, either 
existing or proposed? 
 
7-02053.2B  Will any of the streets provide access to existing or proposed parks? 
 
7-02053.2C  Will any of the streets provide access to a neighborhood or other shopping area? 
 
7-02053.2D  Will any of the streets provide access to a public or semi-public facility or institutional use, 
such as church, nursing home, lodge hall, community swimming pool, private school, fire station, library, 
etc? 
 
7-02053.2E  Could any street in the subdivision serve as a bypass or shortcut for traffic with both origin 
and destination outside of the subject subdivision or the adjacent subdivision or undeveloped property? 
 
7-02053.3  An allowance for additional traffic volume shall be included when any of the above traffic ge-
nerators could affect the proposed subdivision streets or which reasonably may be expected to at some 
future date. 
 
7-02064 Traffic Counts 
 
7-02064.1 (47-95-PFM)  Peak hour traffic estimates shall be used for intersection analysis.  Twenty four 
hour ADT counts shall be used to determine typical sections. 
 
7-02064.2 (99-07-PFM)  Since this is a relatively new area of study and rapidly changing as new research 
data are compiled, the figures contained herein for traffic estimates may change as new data are made 
available. 
 
7-02064.3 More precise information will be sought for the traffic generation of other impact uses. 
 
7-02075 Street Cross-Section Determination 

(49)



 
7-02075.1 When traffic volume falls off to indicate a reduced cross-section in the middle of the block, no 
reduction shall be permitted in midblock. 
 
7-02075.2 Cross-sections may be reduced at intersections and at entrances contributing high volumes of 
traffic, such as shopping centers and apartments. 
 
7-02075.3 If a through street has a wide cross-section on both ends and traffic volumes would indicate a 
reduction for only several hundred feet in the middle of the development, the full width street section shall 
be continued for its entire length. 
 
7-02075.4 Averaging of traffic volumes (e.g. averaging 6,000 VPD on one end of the street with 2,000 
VPD on the other end to produce a 4,000 VPD volume and thus a lower cross-section) shall not be per-
mitted for the purpose of reducing cross-sections. 
 
7-02075.5 All calculations which indicate the number of vehicles per day for each portion of each street 
in the subdivision shall be shown to expedite the review for conformance of proposed typical sections 
with VDOT standards.  Lacking this information, it shall be assumed that no estimates have been made 
and the plan shall be returned for inclusion of traffic data. 
 
Amend Section 7-0401.1A , where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as 
strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0401.1A  (89-05-PFM) All single-family residential and all multi-family housing developments shall 
provide standard curb-cut ramps located to conform to VDOT standards or County standards. (IIM-LD-
55.7 or subsequent revisions), if in the right-of-way, or Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility 
Guidelines (ADAAG) and VUSBC.  Consideration shall be given to curb cut ramps when establishing 
right-of-way widths.  
 
Amend Section 7-0402.2F, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as 
strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0402.2F  (99-07-PFM, 89-05-PFM)  Sidewalk location in relation to guardrail shall be in accordance 
with the current Appendix B(1) of the VDOT Road Design Manual. 
 
Amend Section 7-0405.1B, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as 
strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0405.1B (89-05-PFM)  Roads within subdivisions, including commercial entrances and pipestem 
driveways or common driveways that serve more than two properties, must meet the intersection sight 
distance requirements and stopping sight distance requirements. 
 
Amend Section 7-0405.5, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as stri-
keouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0405.5  (89-05-PFM)  If the design speed is unknown, it shall be assumed to be 5 MPH (10KPH) above 
the posted speed limit.  The design speed shall be in accordance with VDOT Secondary Street Acceptance 
Requirements, VDOT Access Management Regulations, and the VDOT Road Design Manual. 
 

(50)



Amend Section 7-0406.14D, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as 
strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0406.14D (72-01-PFM, 62-98-PFM)  A sidewalk must be provided as required by § 101-2-2 of the 
Subdivision Ordinance and Zoning Ordinance, § 17-201.  Further, sidewalks shall be constructed in ac-
cordance with the PFM.  VDOT will accept maintenance in accordance with their current Secondary Sub-
division Street Acceptance Requirements.  All Pproposed sidewalks must be constructed in accordance 
with UD-3 standards. 
 
Amend Section 7-0406.14E, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as 
strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
7-0406.14E (99-07-PFM, 89-05-PFM, 72-01-PFM)  When a trail is shown on the adopted comprehensive 
plan in the right-of-way, the right-of-way width shall be wide enough to accommodate the trail as shown 
on the adopted comprehensive plan or a trail shared use path which is constructed to VDOT standards, 
whichever requires more width.  Right-of-way width shall be determined in accordance with the current 
VDOT Road Design Manual.  If the trail is adjacent to slopes greater than 3:1, additional right-of-way 
may be needed shall be provided to accommodate wider trail shoulders and safety features such as hand-
rail. 
 
Amend Section 7-0502.4A, where insertions are shown as underlines, to read as follows: 
 
7-0502.4A  (99-07-PFM, 89-05-PFM) The geometric design shall be in accordance with the current 
VDOT Road Design Manual for curb and gutter section streets and Plates 2-7 (2M-7) and 3-7(3M-7). 
 
 
Amend Section 7-0701, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
7-0701 General Acceptance Policies 
 
7-701.1 (62-98-PFM)  VDOT policy on the acceptance of subdivision streets shall be in accordance 
with the current VDOT Secondary Subdivision Street Acceptance Requirements. 
 
Amend Section 7-0702, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
7-0702 Stub Streets 
 
7-0702.1 Stub streets of a lot depth in length will be accepted into the State Secondary Highway System 
under the following conditions: 
 
7-0702.1A  There is no entrance access from the contiguous lots to the stub streets. 
 
7-0702.1B  The approved preliminary plat of the subdivision delineates the extension of the stub street 
on future sections of the subdivision. 
 
7-0702.1B(1) In this instance the construction plan shall note that the street will be extended as a part of 
subsequent construction plans yet to be submitted, or 

(51)



 
7-0702.1B(2) A preliminary plat of an adjacent parcel has been submitted which shows a connection to 
the stub street, or 
 
7-0702.1B(3) The stub street is the sole access to an adjacent parcel, or 
 
7-0702.1B(4) The stub street is a portion of a future street as delineated on an adopted Comprehensive 
Plan, or 
 
7-0702.1B(5) Stub streets, requested by the Director to facilitate future traffic circulation between a sub-
division being developed and an adjoining undeveloped property when it eventually becomes subdivided, 
and which have the concurrence of VDOT, are acceptable. 
 
7-0702.1  Stub streets shall be located, accounting for on-site and off-site topography, 7-0702.1C 
 Adequate on-site and off-site topography is provided to ensure that the stub streets can be ex-
tended to meet the current standards for street construction.  Temporary construction and grading ease-
ments shall be provided to facilitate the future connection of the street. 
 
7-0702.2 Short dead-end Stub streets that terminate at the subdivision boundary which are proposed for 
future extension beyond the subdivision boundary, and serve 1 or more lots, will be provided with a tem-
porary cul-de-sac, constructed in a temporary easement, located either on-site or off-site.  Funds shall be 
deposited with the Director for removal of the temporary an on-site cul-de-sac when the street is ex-
tended. 
 
Amend Plates 1-7, 1M-7, 2-7, 2M-7, 3-7 and 3M-7 as follows: 

(52)



(53)



(54)



(55)



(56)



(57)



(58)



AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 8 OF THE PUBLIC FACILITIES MANUAL 
 
Amend Table of Contents Section 8-0100, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions 
are shown as strikeouts, to read as follows: 
 
8-0100 SIDEWALKS 
8-0101 General Information 
8-0102 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging Less than 25,001 ft2 (2323 m2)with a Median Lot Size 

of One-Half Acre (2023 m2) or Less  
8-0103 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging 25,001 ft2 (2323 m2) up to 52,000 ft2 (4830 m2) with a 

Median Lot Size Between One-Half Acre (2023 m2) and Two Acres (8094 m2) 
8-0104 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging 52,000 ft2 (4831 m2) with a Median Lot Size of Two 

Acres or Greater  
8-0105 Subdivisions in Proximity of Elementary, Intermediate and High Schools 
8-0106 Sidewalks along Arterial or Collector Streets 
8-0107  Sidewalks in Developments Where the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is 4.0 or greater 
 
Amend Section 8-0102, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
8-0102 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging Less than 25,001 ft2 (2323 m2)with a Median Lot 
Size of One-Half Acre (2023 m2) or Less. (100-07-PFM) (90-05-PFM) A sidewalk shall be constructed 
on both sides of all streets in these subdivisions including all reverse or side frontage lots and open space.  
When the peripheral boundary of the subdivision is contiguous to an existing or planned street, a sidewalk 
shall be constructed on the side of the street abutting the subdivision boundary (see § 8-0105). 
 
Amend Section 8-0103, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 
 
8-0103 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging 25,001 ft2 (2323 m2) up to 52,000 ft2 (4830 m2) 
with a Median Lot Size Between One-Half Acre (2023 m2) and Two Acres (8094 m2). (100-07-PFM) 
(90-05-PFM)  Sidewalks shall be constructed on at least one side of all streets in these subdivisions in-
cluding all reverse or side frontage lots and open space.  When the peripheral boundary of the subdivision 
is contiguous to an existing or planned street, a sidewalk shall be constructed on the side of the street ab-
utting the subdivision boundary (see § 8-0105). 
 
Amend Section 8-0104, where insertions are shown as underlines and deletions are shown as strike-
outs, to read as follows: 

8-0104 Subdivisions Containing Lots Averaging 52,000 ft2 (4831 m2) with a Median Lot Size of 
Two Acres or Greater. (100-07-PFM) (90-05-PFM)  Sidewalks shall be constructed on at least one side 
of all streets in these subdivisions including  all reverse or side frontage lots and open space and on all 
streets of the subdivision boundary when the subdivision is located in proximity to schools in accordance 
with § 8-0105. 

 

Add Section 8-106 to read as follows: 

(59)



8-0106 Sidewalks along Arterial or Collector Streets  Sidewalks shall be constructed along streets 
that are functionally classified as arterials or collectors in accordance with the current VDOT Secondary 
Street Acceptance Requirements.  
 
Add Section 8-107 to read as follows: 
 
8-0107  Sidewalks in Developments Where the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is 4.0 or greater   If a de-
velopment proposes a FAR of 4.0 or greater and proposes the construction of a public street, sidewalk 
shall be constructed on both sides of the street.  If a development proposes a FAR of 4.0 or greater and 
abuts an existing public street, sidewalk shall be constructed on the side abutting the public street.  
 
 
  
 

(60)



 
 
  

 
 
November 22, 2010 
 
 
 
Fairfax County Board of Supervisors 
12000 Government Center Parkway 
Suite 533 
Fairfax, VA 22035-0072 

 
Re:  Amendments to Public Facilities Manual Chapter 7 
 

 
Dear Board Member: 

 
At its regularly scheduled April 8, 2010 meeting, the Fairfax County Engineering 

Standards Review Committee voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of Supervisors 
adoption of amendments to Chapter 7 of the PFM.  The Committee was presented with two 
(2) options that were developed by staff over the course of nearly a year:  “Option A”, 
amends the PFM to use VDOT’s street standards that were implemented in March 2009 as 
part of their new Subdivision Street Acceptance Requirements (SSAR) for all new public 
streets; and, “Option B”, amends the PFM to use VDOT streets but with increased width of 
the proposed public streets where designated parking is provided on one or both sides.  The 
Committee recommended that “Option A” be adopted; and, the County staff supported 
“Option B”.  It is fair to say that, since the introduction of this proposed amendment, the 
Committee has had many long discussions on their scope and content.   

 
As background, VDOT’s new requirements are comprehensive and include, but are not 

limited to, requirements for public street connectivity, minimizing impervious area by 
reducing roadway widths, reducing impervious area and reclassifying some streets.  These 
changes were in response to legislation passed by the Virginia General Assembly and signed 
into Law by the Governor in 2007.  Like most jurisdictions, after VDOT implemented these 
new standards, Fairfax County was then tasked with modifying their standards in response to 
VDOT’s new policy so that new public streets in Fairfax County would meet VDOT’s 
standards and be eligible for acceptance into the VDOT public street network.  

 
When the Committee was initially presented with proposed amendments to Chapter 7 to 

coincide with VDOT’s new SSAR requirements in the summer of 2009, the initial staff 
proposal provided for public street widths that, in many cases, were wider than the street 
widths adopted by VDOT.  As part of the process of reviewing the changes to Chapter 7 
proposed by staff, representatives from the Fire Marshal’s made a presentation to the 
Committee wherein they outlined concerns as to their ability to adequately respond to fires 
and other related emergencies.  Their primary complaint, as presented to the Committee, was 
that their access is impeded by streets where parking is permitted, thereby limiting the 
emergency access aisle.  They stated that it took them longer to respond; and, once at the 

(61)

jcrona
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



Page 2 of 3 

scene of the emergency, their access to the fire or other incident was blocked, sometimes by 
illegally parked vehicles.  They cited examples, accompanied by photos, that showed how 
their access was hampered by narrow streets and parking.  The staff proposal reflected the 
concerns expressed by the Fire Marshal and allowed for wider public streets, especially those 
on which parking was permitted. 

 
With respect to these changes, it was the consensus of the Committee that the overall 

goal was to have the new public street requirements in the PFM mirror the public street 
requirements in Appendix B(1) of VDOT’s Road Design Manual, which achieve uniformity 
of public standards.  And, that the street cross sections remain at a width that was reasonable 
for the corresponding trip generation and did not counter the numerous amendments that 
have been adopted over the years which sought to balance the impact of site developments. 
One of VDOT’s specific goals of the SSAR was to reduce impervious area and stormwater 
runoff by reducing the street pavement sections; and, in the past, the Committee has been 
supportive of other changes to the PFM that would help to reduce the overall amount of 
impervious area resulting from development, as increased impervious area leads to more 
runoff, which in turn creates downstream drainage issues, among other items.  One of the 
biggest differences in the Options is for ditch section streets.  Under staff’s option, the 
section increases to one standard with a pavement width of 29 ft.  This represents a 
significant change especially in those parts of the County where a low volume ditch section 
street would be provided serving large lots with little potential for on-street parking.  The 
Committee believes it counterproductive to adopt new public street requirements that are 
contrary to VDOT’s standards and the goals of the enabling legislation.  In response to 
questions from the Committee, staff presented information that both Loudoun and Prince 
William Counties revised their standards to adopt VDOT’s standards for all new public 
streets and; therefore, the Committee’s recommendation is consistent with other local 
jurisdictions.  It is also noted that Arlington County and the City of Alexandria have similar, 
but different standards; however, except for certain streets, this is within their prerogative, as 
these two jurisdictions maintain their own secondary streets. 

 
No one on the Committee questions the dedication and hard work by all representatives 

of the County’s public safety and fire and rescue department or takes exceptions to their 
concerns.  However nearly all of the examples presented by the Fire Marshal pertained to 
private streets associated with townhouses, multi-family and commercial development, not 
public streets; and, there were few examples presented where there was an access issue with 
a public street of similar impact.   In general, Public streets are provided primarily in 
subdivisions and other types of development where sufficient off street parking in provided.  
For single family detached development, off street parking is required to be provided on the 
lot on which the primary structure is located; and, in those various non-residential 
developments where new public streets are provided, adequate off street parking and loading 
is required to be provided on the same lot as the principle use.   Further, the County has the 
ability to modify their standards for private streets to reflect the concerns expressed by the 
Fire Marshal by amending the PFM standards for private streets, whether or not parking is 
permitted, so that adequate access by fire and rescue equipment and personnel is not 
impeded. 

 

(62)



Page 3 of 3 

Summarizing, the principle difference is that VDOT’s changes dealt solely with public 
streets; and, the Committee believes that uniformity between the County’s and VDOT’s 
standards for public streets is needed.  The Committee does not believe that wider public 
street standards than those adopted by VDOT are warranted and believes that adopting wider 
standards would counter the many initiatives that have been adopted by the County over the 
years to balance development with the environment.  Lastly, the Committee also believes 
that the County is well within their rights to promulgate standards for private streets that 
address the concerns expressed by fire and rescue.  We would be happy to respond to any 
questions regarding this matter.  

 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Chairman 
Engineering Standards Review Committee 
 
 
 
 

Cc: Judy Cronauer 
 Bijan Sistani 
 Engineering Standards Review Committee 
 

 
 

 
 

(63)



 

S
tr

ee
t c

ro
ss

-s
ec

ti
on

 w
it

h 
fi

re
 tr

uc
k

Attachment C 

(64)



Attachment 2

(65)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(66)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 4 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Franklin Street and Pickett Street as Part 
of the Residential Traffic Administration Program (Lee and Mount Vernon Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, April 26, 2011, 
4:30 p.m., for the purpose of endorsing the following roads to be included in the 
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP) for a through truck traffic restriction: 
 

 Franklin Street between Richmond Highway and South Kings Highway; and 
Pickett Street between South Kings Highway and Franklin Street. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing for the purpose of endorsing Franklin Street between Richmond Highway and 
South Kings Highway; and Pickett Street between South Kings Highway and Franklin 
Street to be included in the RTAP for a through truck traffic restriction. 
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board should take action on March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time for 
advertisement of the proposed public hearing scheduled for April 26, 2011, 
4:30 p.m.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In a memorandum dated October 21, 2010, Supervisor McKay requested staff to work 
with the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to implement through truck traffic 
restrictions on Franklin Street and Pickett Street due to continuing safety concerns of 
residents regarding through trucks utilizing Franklin Street and Pickett Street as a 
shortcut between South Kings Highway and Richmond Highway.  The increased truck 
traffic has exacerbated safety concerns for the neighborhood.  A possible alternate 
route is via South Kings Highway to Richmond Highway 
 (Attachment III). 
 
Section 46.2-809, of the Code of Virginia requires a local jurisdiction to hold a duly 
advertised public hearing on any proposal to restrict through truck traffic on a primary or 
secondary road.  Further, a resolution pertaining to prohibiting through truck traffic on a 

(67)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
portion of this road has been prepared for adoption and transmittal to VDOT, which will 
conduct the formal engineering study of the through truck restriction request. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:  Proposed Resolution to Restrict Through Truck Traffic on 
Franklin Street and Pickett Street 
Attachment II:  Area Map of Proposed Through Truck Traffic Restriction 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Thomas P. Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)  
Eric M. Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Selby J. Thannikary, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT 
William P. Harrell, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
Steven K. Knudsen, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
 

(68)



Attachment I 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP) 

THROUGH TRUCK TRAFFIC RESTRICTION 
FRANKLIN STREET AND PICKETT STREET 

LEE AND MOUNT VERNON DISTRICTS 
 

 WHEREAS, the residents who live along Franklin Street and Pickett Street 
have expressed concerns regarding the negative impacts associated with through 
truck traffic on these roads; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a reasonable alternate route has been identified via South 
Kings Highway to Richmond Highway, from the intersection of South Kings 
Highway and Franklin Street to the intersection of Richmond Highway and 
Franklin Street; and from South Kings Highway and Pickett Street to the 
intersection of Richmond Highway and Franklin Street; and 
 

 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to 
ensure that the proposed through truck restriction be enforced by the Fairfax 
County Police Department; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to Section 46.2-809 of the 
Code of Virginia; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors 
of Fairfax County, Virginia, has determined that in order to promote the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Fairfax County, it is beneficial to 
prohibit through truck traffic on Franklin Street and Pickett Street between 
Richmond Highway and South Kings Highway, as part of the County's Residential 
Traffic Administration Program (RTAP). 

 

 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commonwealth Transportation 
Board is hereby formally requested to take necessary steps to enact this prohibition. 
 

 ADOPTED this 26th day of April, 2011. 
 
  
 A Copy Teste: 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Nancy Vehrs 
 Clerk to the Board of Supervisors  

 

(69)



RI
CH

MO
ND

 H
WY

FURMAN LN

SOUTH KINGS HWY

FRANKLIN ST

DAWN DR

POAG ST

HI
LL

SID
E L

N
GENTLE LN

TO
WER

 DR

PIC
KE

TT
 S

T

FAIRVIEW DR

REGAN ST

OUTLET

PARKING LOT

RIC
HM

ON
D H

WY
 SE

RV
ICE

 RD

CHIMNEY WOOD CT

N KINGS HWY

KINGS STATION CT

RI
CH

MO
ND

 H
WY

PARKING LOTPARKING LOT

OU
TL

ET

PA
RK

ING
 LO

T

RI
CH

MO
ND

 H
WY

 SE
RV

IC
E R

D

.

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP)

PROPOSED THROUGH TRUCK RESTRICTION
FRANKLIN STREET & PICKETT STREET

Lee & Mount Vernon Districts03/01/2011

Attachment III

Legend
Route Proposed for Restriction

Proposed Alternate Route

Tax Map: 82-4, 83-3,
92-2, 93-1

0 350 700
Feet

(70)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 5 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Georgetown Pike (Eastern Section) and 
Balls Hill Road (Northern Section) as Part of the Residential Traffic Administration 
Program (Dranesville District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, April 26, 2011, 
4:00 p.m., for the purpose of endorsing the following road to be included in the 
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP) for a through truck traffic restriction: 
 

 Georgetown Pike between Interstate 495 and Dolly Madison Boulevard  
 Balls Hill Road between Georgetown Pike and Old Dominion Drive. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing for the purpose of endorsing Georgetown Pike between Interstate 495 and Dolly 
Madison Boulevard and Balls Hill Road between Georgetown Pike and Old Dominion 
Drive to be included in the RTAP for a through truck traffic restriction. 
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board should take action on March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time for 
advertisement of the proposed public hearing scheduled for April 26, 2011, 
4:00 p.m.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In a memorandum dated December 3, 2009, Supervisor Foust requested staff to work 
with the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to implement through truck traffic 
restrictions on Georgetown Pike and Balls Hill Road due to continuing safety concerns 
of residents regarding through trucks utilizing Georgetown Pike and Balls Hill Road.  
The increased truck traffic has exacerbated safety concerns for the neighborhood.  A 
possible alternate route for Georgetown Pike and Balls Hill Road is via Interstate 495 to 
Dolly Madison Boulevard to Old Dominion Drive and via Interstate 495 to Dolly Madison. 
 
Section 46.2-809, of the Code of Virginia requires a local jurisdiction to hold a duly 
advertised public hearing on any proposal to restrict through truck traffic on a primary or 
secondary road.  Further, a resolution pertaining to prohibiting through truck traffic on a 

(71)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
portion of this road has been prepared for adoption and transmittal to VDOT, which will 
conduct the formal engineering study of the through truck restriction request. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:  Proposed Resolution to Restrict Through Truck Traffic on Georgetown 
Pike (Eastern Section) and Balls Hill Road (Northern Section) 
Attachment II:  Area Map of Proposed Through Truck Traffic Restriction 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Thomas P. Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)  
Eric M. Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Selby J. Thannikary, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT 
William P. Harrell, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
Steven K. Knudsen, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
 

(72)



Attachment I 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP) 

THROUGH TRUCK TRAFFIC RESTRICTION 
GEORGETOWN PIKE (EASTERN SECTION) 
BALLS HILL ROAD (NORTHERN SECTION) 

DRANESVILLE DISTRICT 
 

 WHEREAS, the residents who live along Georgetown Pike and Balls Hill Road 
have expressed concerns regarding the negative impacts associated with through 
truck traffic on this road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a reasonable alternate route has been identified via Interstate 
495 to Dolly Madison Boulevard to Old Dominion Drive and via Interstate 495 to Dolly 
Madison Boulevard, from the intersection of Interstate 495 and Georgetown Pike to 
the intersection of Interstate 495 and Dolly Madison Boulevard, and to the 
intersection of Dolly Madison Boulevard and Old Dominion Drive, and to the 
intersection of Old Dominion Drive and Balls Hill Road, and from the intersection of 
Interstate 495 and Georgetown Pike to the intersection of Interstate 495 and Dolly 
Madison Boulevard, and to the intersection of Dolly Madison Boulevard and 
Georgetown Pike, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to 
ensure that the proposed through truck restriction be enforced by the Fairfax County 
Police Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to Section 46.2-809 of the 
Code of Virginia; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of 
Fairfax County, Virginia, has determined that in order to promote the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the citizens of Fairfax County, it is beneficial to prohibit 
through truck traffic on Georgetown Pike between Interstate 495 and Dolly Madison 
Boulevard and Balls Hill Road between Georgetown Pike and Old Dominion Drive, as 
part of the County's Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP). 

 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commonwealth Transportation Board 
is hereby formally requested to take necessary steps to enact this prohibition. 
 
 ADOPTED this 26th day of April, 2011. 
 
 A Copy Teste: 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Nancy Vehrs 
 Clerk to the Board of Supervisors  

 

(73)



I49
5 S

B

I49
5 N

B

RT267 EB

KIRBY RD

RT267 WB
BALLS HILL RD

GREAT FALLS ST

LIS
LE AVE

OLD DOMINION DR

WESTMORELAND ST

MAGARITY RD

BIR
CH

 RD

CHURCHILL RD

GEORGETOWN PIKE

SW
INK

S M
ILL

 RD

LEWINSVILLE RD

ANDERSON RD

LEESBURG PIKE

DIVINE ST

LINWAY TER

BENJAMIN ST

GRIFFITH RD

FISHER DR

PIMMIT DR

KURTZ RD

HITT AVE

GILSON ST

DULLES ACCESS RD WB

LIV
E O

AK
 DR

IDYLW
OOD RD

ELM ST

TUCKER AVE

OLNEY RD

VIR
GI

NIA
 AV

E

POWHATAN ST

CHAIN BRIDGE RD

BARBEE ST

BALDWIN DR

35T
H ST N

DEAD RUN DR

IVY HILL DR

DO
UG

LA
SS

 D
R

FR
AN

KL
IN 

AV
E

BEVERLY RD

RUPERT ST

LEMON RD

ING
LE

SID
E A

VE

PARK RD

RID
GE

 DR

BA
LL

AN
TR

AE
 LN

HAYCOCK RD

MA
CK

AL
L A

VE

WH
AN

N 
AV

E

DULANY DR

OUTLET

BYRNES DR

LUPINE LN

MORI ST

EVERS DR

SORREL ST

LAWTON ST
ELIZABETH DR CO

LO
NIA

L F
AR

M 
RD

MA
CO

N 
ST

WARE RD

BUCHANAN ST

CO
LA

 D
R

ARBOR LN

BURFORD DR

TENNYSON DR

FA
LS

TA
FF

 R
D

SPORTSMAN DR

NIGH RD

DA
VI

DS
ON

 R
D

BOYLE LN

NOBLE DR

SEA CLIFF RD

CEDAR AVE

BEVERLY AVE

AUDMAR DR

STORM DR

KE
LL

OG
G D

R

RA
MP

WAVERLY WAY
FREEDOM LN

POTOMAC RIVER RD

MILL
 RDG

MACARTH
UR DR

EL
SIN

OR
E A

VE

HELGA PL
DE

LF
 D

R

PIN
E H

ILL
 R

D

PENGUIN PL

CA
RL

IN
 LN

DEAN DR

CA
NA

L D
R

FAIRLAWN DR

WHITTIER AVE
CA

LD
ER

 R
D

PO
OL

E L
N

WR
IG

HT
SO

N 
DR

PAXTO
N RD

OBERON WAY

REYNOLDS ST

JILL CT

DARNALL DR

EAST AVE

JULIA AVE

37TH ST N

VALLEY AVE

DALMATION DRHILEMAN RD

DO
MI

NI
ON

 R
ES

ER
VE

 D
R

MCKAY ST

COLSHIRE DR

PARKING LOT

LO
RR

AIN
E A

VE

PARK AVE

RI
NG

 R
D

BRIGHT AVE

HILLSIDE DR

THRASHER RD

CROSSOVER DR

KIRBY CT

OA
KV

IEW
 D

R

PLACID ST

YATES CT

SENECA AVE

DOGWOOD DR

MERRIMAC DR

ST
RIN

E D
R

SUNNY HILL CT

FELIX ST

ENGEL DR

EVERMAY DR

GE
LS

TO
N C

IR

LANGLEY PL

BYRNS PL

CA
PIT

AL
 ON

E D
R

8TH
 PL

WILSON LN

DUNCRAIG CT

TANNIN PL

HOLLAND ST

DRIVEWAY

DOMINION WAY

CR
AIG

 LN

DU
NA

WA
Y D

R

TINA LN

TIMBERLY CT

MIDHILL PL

OUTLET

OU
TL

ET

PIMMIT DR

OU
TL

ET

OUTLET

EA
ST

 AV
E

OU
TL

ET

RT267 WB

OU
TL

ET

.

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP)

PROPOSED THROUGH TRUCK TRAFFIC RESTRICTION
GEORGETOWN PIKE (EASTERN SECTION) &
BALLS HILL ROAD (NORTHERN SECTION)

Dranesville District 01/26/2011

ATTACHMENT

Legend
Route Proposed for Restriction
Proposed Alternate Route

0 0.4 0.8 1.20.2 Miles

Tax Map:  21-3, 21-4, 22-3,
29-2, 29-4, 30-1, 30-2,

30-3, 31-1 

(74)

rstew5
Typewritten Text

rstew5
Typewritten Text

rstew5
Typewritten Text
II



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 6 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Balls Hill Road (Southern Section) as 
Part of the Residential Traffic Administration Program (Dranesville District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, April 26, 2011, 
4:00 p.m., for the purpose of endorsing the following road to be included in the 
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP) for a through truck traffic restriction: 
 

 Balls Hill Road between Old Dominion Drive and Lewinsville Road. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing for the purpose of endorsing Balls Hill Road between Old Dominion Drive and 
Lewinsville Road to be included in the RTAP for a through truck traffic restriction. 
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board should take action on March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time for 
advertisement of the proposed public hearing scheduled for April 26, 2011, 
4:00 p.m.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In a memorandum dated May 29, 2009, Supervisor Foust requested staff to work with 
the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to implement through truck traffic 
restrictions on Balls Hill Road due to continuing safety concerns of residents regarding 
through trucks utilizing Balls Hill Road as a shortcut between Georgetown Pike and 
Lewinsville Road.  The increased truck traffic has exacerbated safety concerns for the 
neighborhood.  A possible alternate route is via Old Dominion Drive to Dolly Madison 
Boulevard to Lewinsville Road. 
 
Section 46.2-809, of the Code of Virginia requires a local jurisdiction to hold a duly 
advertised public hearing on any proposal to restrict through truck traffic on a primary or 
secondary road.  Further, a resolution pertaining to prohibiting through truck traffic on a 
portion of this road has been prepared for adoption and transmittal to VDOT, which will 
conduct the formal engineering study of the through truck restriction request. 

(75)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:  Proposed Resolution to Restrict Through Truck Traffic on Balls Hill Road 
(Southern Section) 
Attachment II:  Area Map of Proposed Through Truck Traffic Restriction 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Thomas P. Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)  
Eric M. Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Selby J. Thannikary, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT 
William P. Harrell, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
Steven K. Knudsen, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
 
 

(76)



Attachment I 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP) 

THROUGH TRUCK TRAFFIC RESTRICTION 
BALLS HILL ROAD (SOUTHERN SECTION) 

DRANESVILLE DISTRICT 
 

 WHEREAS, the residents who live along Balls Hill Road have expressed 
concerns regarding the negative impacts associated with through truck traffic on 
this road; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a reasonable alternate route has been identified via Old 
Dominion Drive to Dolly Madison Boulevard to Lewinsville Road, from the 
intersection of Old Dominion Drive and Balls Hill Road to the intersection of Old 
Dominion Drive and Dolly Madison Boulevard, and to the intersection of Dolly 
Madison Boulevard and Lewinsville Road; and to the intersection of Lewinsville 
Road and Balls Hill Road, and 
 

 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to 
ensure that the proposed through truck restriction be enforced by the Fairfax 
County Police Department; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to Section 46.2-809 of the 
Code of Virginia; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors 
of Fairfax County, Virginia, has determined that in order to promote the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Fairfax County, it is beneficial to 
prohibit through truck traffic on Balls Hill Road between Old Dominion Drive and 
Lewinsville Road, as part of the County's Residential Traffic Administration 
Program (RTAP). 

 

 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commonwealth Transportation 
Board is hereby formally requested to take necessary steps to enact this prohibition. 
 

 ADOPTED this 26th day of April, 2011. 
 
  
 A Copy Teste: 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Nancy Vehrs 
 Clerk to the Board of Supervisors  

 
 

(77)



OLD DOMINION DR

BALLS HILL RD

CHURCHILL RD

DOLLEY MADISON BLVD

CHAIN BRIDGE RD

RT267 WB

I49
5 N

B

RT267 EB

DULANY DR

ELIZABETH DR

I49
5 S

B

MA
YF

LO
WE

R D
R

ING
LE

SID
E A

VE

CEDAR AVE
CAPITOL VIEW DR

AUDMAR DR

GREAT FALLS ST

PATHFINDER LN

HOOKING RD

RAYMOND AVE

ENTERPRISE AVE

DA
VI

DS
ON

 R
D

MOTTROM DR

WESTERLY LN

PARK AVE

BUENA VISTA AVE

EA
RN

ES
TIN

E S
T

WINDY H
ILL

 RD

LEWINSVILLE RD

SPRING VALE AVEWASP LN

YA
TE

S C
T

DULLES ACCESS RD WB

ELM ST

MERRIMAC DR

HECTOR RD

WESTMORELAND ST

OAK RIDGE AVE

OU
TL

ET

FORESTW
OOD DR

HUNTING AVE

DEWBERRY CT

CHELSEA RD

HO
ME

RI
C 

CT

MARY ELLEN CT

EVERS DR

DE
AD

 RU
N D

R

OZ
KA

N S
T

PR
OV

ID
EN

CE
 TE

R

VIS
TA

S L
N

MATTHEW MILLS RD
DE

LF
 D

R

SE
LW

YN
 DR

HANE ST

ALICENT PL

PINE CREST AVE
STATENDAM CT

FARM MEADOW CT

OLD MAPLE SQ

FERN OAK CT

MELR
OSE DR

ELDORADO ST

HALLCREST DR

VAN NESS CT

CORBIN CT

HICKORY HILL AVE

AYNSLEY LN

MCLEAN VILLAGE CT

MONTCALM DR

CHAIN BRIDGE CT

ADDINGTON DR

CO
AN

 ST

SYMPHONY CT

EVERS DR OUTLET

ELM ST

INGLESIDE AVE

OUTLET
OU

TL
ET

INGLESIDE AVE

OU
TL

ET

.

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP)

PROPOSED THROUGH TRUCK RESTRICTION
BALLS HILL ROAD (SOUTHERN SECTION)

Dranesville District01/24/2011

Attachment III

Legend
Route Proposed for Restriction
Proposed Alternate Route

Tax Map:21-3, 21-4,
30-1, 30-2, 30-3, 30-4

0 0.2 0.4
Miles

(78)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 7 
 
 
Streets into the Secondary System (Hunter Mill, Lee, Mason, and Providence Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of streets to be accepted into the State Secondary System. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the street(s) listed below be added to the State 
Secondary System. 
 
 

Subdivision District Street 

Most Reverend Thomas J. Welsh 
St. John Neumann Church 

Hunter Mill Lawyers Road (Route 673) 
(Additional Right-of-Way (ROW) Only) 

United States of America 
Springfield Metro Center I 
Land Bay B 

Lee Metropolitan Center Drive 
 
Loisdale Road (Route 789) 
(Additional ROW Only) 

Alice B. Walkers Lot 1 
(Lacy Square) Subdivision 

Mason Lacy Boulevard (Route 1026) 
(Additional ROW Only) 

Amerasia Enterprises LLC 
PNC Bank 6950 Braddock Road 

Mason Braddock Road (Route 620) 
(Additional ROW Only) 
 
Backlick Road (Route 617) 
(Additional ROW Only) 

Herring Property Subdivision Providence Buckelew Drive (Route 2356) 
(Additional ROW Only) 

 
 
TIMING: 
Routine. 
 

(79)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Inspection has been made of these streets, and they are recommended for acceptance 
into the State Secondary System. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Street Acceptance Forms 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, DPWES, Land Development Services  

(80)



Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 
SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD 
SYSTEM. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

PLAN NUMBER: 4222-SP-02-3 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME:Most Rev. Thomas J Welsh (St. John Neumann Church) 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Hunter Mill 

^ ^ v p o ^ i M § f e | e f | ^ ^ v p o ^ i M § f e | e f | 

STREET NAME 
LOCATION 

I 
L

E
N

G
T

H
 

M
IL

E
 STREET NAME 

FROM TO 

I 
L

E
N

G
T

H
 

M
IL

E
 

Lawyers Road (Rt. 673) 
(Additional right-of-way only) 

215' S of CL Pegasus Lane, Rt. 4715 798'SWto section line 0.00 

mm^^%iM^mM^%vMi^:A , - .u > ' * v . • - TOTALS: 
0.00 

1) 420'+/- of sidewalk on left (N) side of Lawyers Road (Rt. 673) to be maintained by owner. 

(81)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Print Form 

Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF S U P E R V I S O R S 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - O F F I C E 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST T O THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION O F CERTAIN 

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE O F VIRGINIA SECONDARY R O A D 

SYSTEM. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF S U P E R V I S O R S 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

PLAN NUMBER: 9990-SP-01 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF S U P E R V I S O R S 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: United States of America (Springfield Metro Center I) / 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF S U P E R V I S O R S 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Lee District 

ENGINEERING MANAGER: D.A. Purvis 

BY: A / A / / I <? $ f^k<9f} W 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

>R OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

ON APPROVAL: \"Z- I O ^ V i - o K O 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

S T R E E T NAME 
LOCATION 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 S T R E E T NAME 

FROM TO 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

Metropolitan Center Drive 
CL Loisdale Road (Route 789) - 650' SW CL Spring 
Mall Road (Route 4214) 

590' SE to End of Cul-de-Sac 0.11 

Loisdale Road (Route 789) 
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 

CL Loisdale Road (Route 789) - 685' SW CL 
Spring Mall Road (Route 4214) 

158' SW to Section Line 0.0 

NOTES: TOTALS: 0.11 

Metropolitan Center Drive: 257' of 8' Asphalt Trail and 240' of 4' Concrete Sidewalk on North Side to be maintained by Fairfax County. 

(82)



Print Form I 

Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD 

SYSTEM. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

PLAN NUMBER: 7009-SP-02 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: Alice 8 Walkers Lot 1 (Lacy Square) 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Mason 

E N G I N E E R ^ MANAGER: D.A. Purvis 

B Y f KkUJMi 
FC 

DA1SE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

)R OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

O N A P P R O V A L : & ' 

FC 

DA1SE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

S T R E E T NAME 
LOCATION 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 S T R E E T NAME 

FROM TO 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

Lacy Boulevard (Route 1026) 
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 

55' SE CL Columbia Pike (Route 244) 181'SE to Section Line 0.0 

NOTES: T O T A L S : 0 

200'of 4'Concrete Sidewalk on West Side to be maintained by VDOT. 

(83)



Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
I FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 
SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD 
SYSTEM. 

PLAN NUMBER: 6254-SP-004-1 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: A m e r a s i a
 Enterprises LLC - PNC Bank 6950 Braddock Road 

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Mason 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECT! 

>R OFFICIAL USE ONLY / > 

O N A P P R O V A L ; ^ / u 0 ^ f&Gtl 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECT! 

V 

STREET NAME 
LOCATION 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

V 

STREET NAME 
FROM TO 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

Braddock Road (Route 620) (Additional ROW Only) 44' E CL Backlick Road (Route 617) 219'Eto End of Dedication 0.0 

Backlick Road (Route 617) (Additional ROW Only) 40' N CL Braddock Road (Route 620) 155' N to End of Dedication 0.0 

I N 0 j | ] E S l l i i l I i l M TOTALS: 0.0 
Backlick Road: 62" of 5' Concrete Sidewalk on East Side to be maintained by VDOT. 

(84)



"Print Farm 

Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD 

SYSTEM. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

PLAN NUMBER: 0833-SD-001 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: Herring Property 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Providence 

ENGINEERIM©MANAGER: D.A. Purvis FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

)R OFFICIAL USE ONLY , 

O N A P P R O V A L : • & [ f t 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

STREET NAME 
LOCATION 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 STREET NAME 

FROM TO 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

„ , , • ru. i i f ^ y u j v , . „ „ , „ , , 1Existing Buckelew Dr. Rte 2 3 5 6 - 5 2 0 ' SW of CL Shreve 
Buckelew Drive Rte 2356 (Additional ROW Only) ; ^ | ? Q 3 342' SW to Section Line 0.0 

> . . . 

NOTES: TOTALS: 0 

295' of 4' concrete sidewalk on east side of Buckelew Dr. to be maintained by VDOT 

(85)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(86)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 8 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing for the Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-
Creation of Small and Local Sanitary Districts for Refuse/Recycling and/or Leaf 
Collection Service (Dranesville and Providence Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing for the Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-
Creation of Small and Local Sanitary Districts for refuse/recycling and/or leaf collection 
service.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 26, 2011, to consider the following change to 
small and local sanitary districts for refuse/recycling and/or leaf collection service in 
accordance with the Board of Supervisor’s adopted criteria for the 
Creation/Enlargement/Withdrawal of Small or Local Sanitary Districts. 
 
Sanitary District      Action        Service      Recommendation 
Small District 6   Enlarge Refuse,  Approve 
Within Dranesville District    Recycling 
(Arbor Lane) 
 
Small District 7   Enlarge Refuse,  Approve 
Within Dranesville District    Recycling, Leaf 
(Lily Pond Drive) 
 
Small District 1   De-Create/ Remove  Approve 
Within Providence District   Re-Create From Leaf   
(Timberlane Village Condominiums)    
 
 
TIMING: 
Board of Supervisors’ authorization to advertise on March 29, 2011, is required for a 
public hearing to be held on April 26, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The administrative responsibility for the Creation/Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-Creation 

(87)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
of Small and Local Sanitary Districts in the County of Fairfax for refuse/recycling and/or 
leaf collection is with the Department of Public Works and Environmental Services.  The 
establishment of sanitary districts is accomplished through the action of the Board of 
Supervisors at public hearings.  Prior to any action by the Board of Supervisors on a 
proposed small or local sanitary district, certain relevant standards and criteria must be 
met in accordance with the Board of Supervisors’ adopted criteria for the 
Creation/Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-Creation of Small and Local Sanitary Districts. 
 
The submitted petitions have been reviewed, and it has been determined that the 
petitions meet the Board of Supervisors’ Adopted Criteria.  Staff recommends that the 
authorization to advertise a public hearing for the Enlargement/De-Creation/Re-Creation 
of small and local sanitary districts for refuse/recycling and/or leaf collection be 
approved.  If approved, the modification will become permanent in July 2011. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Advertisement  
Attachment 2:  Summary Sheet 
Attachment 3:  Data Sheets with Proposed Resolutions and Maps 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES)  
 
 
 
 

(88)



Attachment 1 

FAIRFAX COUNTY 
 
DATE:   April 26, 2011 
 
TIME:    4:00 p.m.     
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing before the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, 

to be held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 12000 
Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia. 

 
Proposed alterations to the following small and local sanitary districts for 
refuse/recycling and/or leaf collection service: 
 

1. Enlarge Small District 6 within Dranesville District for the purpose of adding 
County Refuse and Recycling Collection Service to the Arbor Lane area. 

 
2. Enlarge Small District 7 within Dranesville District for the purpose of adding 

County Refuse, Recycling and Vacuum Leaf Collection Service to the Lily Pond 
Drive area. 
 

3. De-Create Small District 1 within Providence District for the purpose of removing 
County Vacuum Leaf Collection Service from the Timberlane Village 
Condominiums. 

 
 
The full text of the proposed alteration is on file in the Office of the Clerk of the County 
Board of Supervisors.  Questions regarding these proposed alterations may be directed 
to the Department of Public Works and Environmental Services, Division of Solid Waste 
Collection and Recycling, (703) 324-5230.    

(89)



Attachment 2 

 

SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Proposed alterations to the following small and local sanitary districts for 
refuse/recycling and/or leaf collection service: 
 

1. Enlarge Small District 6 within Dranesville District for the purpose of adding 
County Refuse and Recycling Collection Service to the Arbor Lane area. 

 
2. Enlarge Small District 7 within Dranesville District for the purpose of adding 

County Refuse, Recycling and Vacuum Leaf Collection Service to the Lily Pond 
Drive area. 
 

3. De-Create Small District 1 within Providence District for the purpose of removing 
County Vacuum Leaf Collection Service from the Timberlane Village 
Condominiums. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(90)



 

.........          Attachment 3 
 
 
 

DATA SHEET 
Enlarge 

Small District 6 
Within Dranesville District 

 
 

Purpose:  To provide County Refuse and Recycling Collection Service to the Arbor 
Lane area.  

 
 Petition requesting service received on February 1, 2011. 

 
 Petition Area: 37 Properties. 

 
 25 Property Owners in favor. 

 
 The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services can provide the 

requested service using existing equipment.   
 

 The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services recommends that 
the proposed action be approved effective July 1, 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

(91)



 
 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO PROPOSE FOR ADOPTION 
A RESOLUTION AND A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 

 
TO ENLARGE 

SMALL DISTRICT 6 
WITHIN DRANESVILLE DISTRICT 

 
TAKE NOTICE that at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 

County of Fairfax, Virginia, held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday the 29th day of 
March, 2011,  it was proposed by said Board to adopt a resolution to enlarge a small 
district known as Small District 6 within Dranesville District to include a portion of Arbor 
Lane for the purpose of providing for refuse/recycling collection to be effective July 1, 
2011, and the Clerk of said Board was directed to cause notice thereof by publication 
once a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper published in or having general 
circulation in said County, together with a notice that at a regular meeting of said Board 
to be held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 12000 Government 
Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on 
 

TUESDAY 
APRIL 26, 2011 

COMMENCING AT 4:00 P.M. 
 

The said Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, will hold a public 
hearing at which time and place any interested parties may appear and be heard.  The 
full text of the resolution to be adopted is in the following words and figures, to-wit: 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, provides for, among 
other things, the enlargement by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, of 
a small sanitary district by resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has been presented with facts and 
information upon consideration of which said Board, finding the property embraced in 
the proposed small sanitary district will be benefited by enlarging the small sanitary 
district for the purpose of providing for refuse/recycling collection for the citizens who 
reside therein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, authorizes the advertisement for the proposed enlargement of a small 
sanitary district, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, to be known 
as Small District 6 within Dranesville District, Fairfax County, Virginia, which said 
enlargement of the small sanitary district shall be described as follows: 

 
-2- 

(92)



 
  
The Enlargement of Small District 6 within Dranesville District to include a portion of 
Arbor Lane located in the County of Fairfax, McLean, Virginia, and as shown on the 
attached map. 
 
 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, declares its intention to implement the purpose for which said Small 
District 6 within Dranesville District is hereby enlarged to wit: 
 
To provide refuse/recycling collection service for the citizens who reside therein. 
 
 
   Given under my hand this        day of April 2011. 
 
 
 

  _____________________ 
  Nancy Vehrs 
  Clerk to the Board 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(93)



 
 

 
 

(94)



         Attachment 3 
 
 

DATA SHEET 
Enlarge 

Small District 7 
Within Dranesville District 

 
 
Purpose:  To provide County Refuse/Recycling and Vacuum Leaf Collection Service to 
the Lily Pond Drive area.  
 

 Petition requesting service received on February 1, 2011.  
 

 Petition Area: 7 Properties. 
 

 6 Property Owners in favor. 
 

 The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services can provide the 
requested service using existing equipment.   

 
 The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services recommends that 

the proposed action be approved effective July 1, 2011, with Vacuum Leaf 
service to start in the fall of 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

(95)



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO PROPOSE FOR ADOPTION 
A RESOLUTION AND A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 

 
TO ENLARGE 

SMALL DISTRICT 7 
WITHIN DRANESVILLE DISTRICT 

 
TAKE NOTICE that at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 

County of Fairfax, Virginia, held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday the 29th day of 
March, 2011,  it was proposed by said Board to adopt a resolution to enlarge a small 
district known as Small District 7 within Dranesville District to include a portion of Lily 
Pond Drive for the purpose of providing for refuse/recycling and vacuum leaf collection 
to be effective July 1, 2011, and the Clerk of said Board was directed to cause notice 
thereof by publication once a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper published 
in or having general circulation in said County, together with a notice that at a regular 
meeting of said Board to be held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on 
 

TUESDAY 
APRIL 26, 2011 

COMMENCING AT 4:00 P.M. 
 

The said Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, will hold a public 
hearing at which time and place any interested parties may appear and be heard.  The 
full text of the resolution to be adopted is in the following words and figures, to-wit: 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, provides for, among 
other things, the enlargement by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, of 
a small sanitary district by resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has been presented with facts and 
information upon consideration of which said Board, finding the property embraced in 
the proposed small sanitary district will be benefited by enlarging the small sanitary 
district for the purpose of providing for refuse/recycling and vacuum leaf collection for 
the citizens who reside therein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, authorizes the advertisement for the proposed enlargement of a small 
sanitary district, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, to be known 
as Small District 7 within Dranesville District, Fairfax County, Virginia, which said 
enlargement of the small sanitary district shall be described as follows: 

 
 

-2- 
 

(96)



 The Enlargement of Small District 7 within Dranesville District to include a portion 
of Lily Pond Drive located in the County of Fairfax, Falls Church, Virginia, and as shown 
on the attached map. 
 
 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, declares its intention to implement the purpose for which said Small 
District 7 within Dranesville District is hereby enlarged to wit: 
 
To provide refuse/recycling and vacuum leaf collection service for the citizens who 
reside therein. 
 
 
   Given under my hand this        day of April 2011. 
 
 
 

  _____________________ 
  Nancy Vehrs 
  Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(97)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(98)



 
 

 Attachment 3 
 
 

DATA SHEET 
De-Create/Re-Create 

Small District 1 
Within Providence District 

 
 

Purpose: To remove Timberlane Village Condominiums from County Vacuum Leaf 
Collection Service.        
 

 Petition requesting removal received on January 13, 2011. 
 

 Petition Area: 368 Properties. 
 

 368 Property Owners in favor. 
 

 The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services recommends that 
the proposed action be approved effective July 1, 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(99)



 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO PROPOSE FOR ADOPTION 

A RESOLUTION AND A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 
 

TO De-CREATE/Re-CREATE 
SMALL DISTRICT 1 

WITHIN PROVIDENCE DISTRICT 
 

TAKE NOTICE that at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Fairfax, Virginia, held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday the 29th day of 
March, 2011, it was proposed by said Board to adopt a resolution to de-create/re-create 
a small district known as Small District 1 within Providence District for the purpose of 
removing Timberlane Village Condominiums from leaf collection service to be effective 
July 1, 2011, and the Clerk of said Board was directed to cause notice thereof by 
publication once a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper published in or 
having general circulation in said County, together with a notice that at a regular 
meeting of said Board to be held in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on 
 

TUESDAY 
APRIL 26, 2011 

COMMENCING AT 4:00 P.M. 
 

The said Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, will hold a public 
hearing at which time and place any interested parties may appear and be heard.  The 
full text of the resolution to be adopted is in the following words and figures, to-wit: 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, provides for, among 
other things, the de-creation/re-creation by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, 
Virginia, of a small sanitary district by resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has been presented with facts and 
information upon consideration of which said Board, finding the property embraced in 
the proposed small sanitary district will be benefited by the de-creation/re-creation of the 
small sanitary district for the purpose of removing curbside vacuum leaf collection 
service from the Timberlane Village Condominiums. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, authorizes the advertisement for the proposed de-creation/re-creation 
of a small sanitary district, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 15.2-858, as amended, to 
be known as Small District 1 within Providence District, Fairfax County, Virginia, which 
said de-creation/re-creation of the small sanitary district shall be described as follows: 
 

-2- 
 
  

(100)



The de-creation/re-creation of Small District 1 within Providence District for the purpose 
of removing Timberlane Village Condominiums from County Vacuum Leaf Collection 
Service, area located in the County of Fairfax, Falls Church, Virginia, and as shown on 
the attached map, and continue to provide Refuse/Recycling and Vacuum Leaf 
Collection Service to the remaining properties within the District. 
 
 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia, declares its intention to implement the purpose for which said Small 
District 1 within Providence District is hereby de-created/re-created to wit: 
 
To provide for refuse/recycling and vacuum leaf collection service for the citizens who 
reside therein. 
 
 
   Given under my hand this        day of April 2011. 
 
 

  _____________________ 
  Nancy Vehrs 
  Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(101)



 
 

 

(102)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 9 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on Amendments to the Code of the County of 
Fairfax, Chapter 41.1, Animal Control and Care 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to consider amending Chapter 41.1, 
Animal Control and Care of the Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia.  This amendment 
would bring the code section providing for the exception of service animals to the County 
Leash law into compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act regulations. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize the advertisement of the 
public hearing. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on March 29, 2011, to provide sufficient time to advertise the 
proposed public hearing on April 26, 2011, at 4:30 p.m.  If approved by the Board after 
the public hearing, these provisions will become effective immediately. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the September 28, 2010 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the Office of the County 
Attorney (OCA) was directed to review the County's leash law and advise whether any 
ordinances should be amended to exempt service animals if the person with a disability is 
unable to use a leash because of a disability.  Currently, Fairfax County Code § 41.1-2-4 
provides that “no dog shall run unrestricted, as defined in Section 41.1 -1 -1, in the 
County.”  Fairfax County Code § 41.1-1-1 defines "unrestricted" as "not under the control 
of the owner or his agent either by leash, cord, chain or primary enclosure when off the 
property or premises of the owner or custodian.  An electronic device does not qualify as 
a leash, cord or chain." 
 
In 1990, Congress enacted the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 
through 12213 (the "Act").  Included in the Act is Title II, Public Services, and Title III, 
Public Accommodations and Commercial Facilities.  The 1991 regulations implementing 
Title II and Title III of the Act did not contain specific provisions addressing service 
animals.  On July 23, 2010, Attorney General Eric Holder signed regulations revising the 
Department of Justice's ADA regulations, including amendments to Title II, 28 CFR Part 
35, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State or Local Government Services, 

(103)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
and to Title III, 28 CFR Part 36, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Public 
Accommodations and Commercial Facilities.  The revised regulations were published in 
the Federal Register on September 15, 2010, and become effective on March 15, 2011. 
Among other amendments is the addition of a "service animals" regulation in Title II and 
Title III. 
 
In particular, the new regulations provide in 28 CFR § 35.136(a)(d) and in 28 CFR § 
36.302(c)(1 and 4), Service Animals: 
 

General.  Generally, a public entity shall modify its policies, practices, or 
procedures to permit the use of a service animal by an individual with a 
disability. 
     . . . 
Animal under handler's control.  A service animal shall be under the control of 
its handler. A service animal shall have a harness, leash or other tether, unless 
either the handler is unable because of a disability to use a harness, leash, or 
other tether, or the use of a harness, leash, or other tether would interfere with 
the service animal's safe, effective performance of work or tasks, in which case 
the service animal must be otherwise under the handler's control (e.g., voice 
control, signals, or other effective means). 

 
Also, the new regulations provide a definition of "service animals" which is the basis of 
amendments to the definition of service animals in the County Code. 
 
As a result of these new regulations pertaining to service animals, OCA has determined 
that Fairfax County Code §§ 41.1-1-1 and 41.1-2-4 will need to be revised to ensure 
compliance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 41.1, “Animal Control and Care” 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Colonel David M. Rohrer, Chief of Police 
Michael Lucas, Director of Animal Control 
Edward E. Rose, Assistant County Attorney 
 

(104)



ATTACHMENT 1 

AMEND AND READOPT SECTIONS 41.1-1-1 AND 41.1-2.4 OF THE 
FAIRFAX COUNTY CODE RELATING TO ANIMAL CONTROL AND CARE 

 
AN ORDINANCE to amend and readopt Sections 41.1-1-1 and 41.1-2-4 of the 

Fairfax County Code relating to definition of service animals and leash 
law. 

 
Draft of March 7, 2011 

 
 
Be it ordained by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County: 
 
1. That Section 41.1-1-1 of the Fairfax County Code is amended and 
readopted: 
 

Section 41.1-1-1. - Definitions 

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases 
have the following meanings unless otherwise defined within this Chapter:  

Adequate feed means access to and the provision of food that is of 
sufficient quantity and nutritive value to maintain each animal in good 
health; is accessible to each animal; is prepared so as to permit ease of 
consumption for the age, species, condition, size and type of each animal; 
is provided in a clean and sanitary manner; is placed so as to minimize 
contamination by excrement and pests; and is provided at suitable 
intervals for the species, age, and condition of the animal, but at least 
once daily, except as prescribed by a veterinarian or as dictated by 
naturally occurring states of hibernation or fasting normal for the species.  

Adequate shelter means provision of and access to shelter that is 
suitable for the species, age, condition, size, and type of each animal; 
provides adequate space for each animal; is safe and protects each 
animal from injury, rain, sleet, snow, hail, direct sunlight, the adverse 
effects of heat or cold, physical suffering, and impairment of health; is 
properly lighted; is properly cleaned; enables each animal to be clean and 
dry, except when detrimental to the species; and, for dogs and cats, 
provides a solid surface, resting platform, pad, floormat, or similar device 
that is large enough for the animal to lie on in a normal manner and can 
be maintained in a sanitary manner. Shelters whose wire, grid, or slat 
floors permit the animals' feet to pass through the openings, sag under the 
animals' weight or otherwise do not protect the animals' feet or toes from 
injury are not adequate shelter.  

Adequate space means sufficient space to allow each animal to (i) 
easily stand, sit, lie, turn about, and make all other normal body 
movements in a comfortable, normal position for the animal and (ii) 

(105)



interact safely with other animals in the enclosure. When an animal is 
tethered, adequate space means a tether that permits the above actions 
and is appropriate to the age and size of the animal; is attached to the 
animal by a properly applied collar, halter, or harness configured so as to 
protect the animal from injury and prevent the animal or tether from 
becoming entangled with other objects or animals, or from extending over 
an object or edge that could result in the strangulation or injury of the 
animal; and is at least three times the length of the animal, as measured 
from the tip of its nose to the base of its tail, except when the animal is 
being walked on a leash or is attached by a tether to a lead line. When 
freedom of movement would endanger the animal, temporarily and 
appropriately restricting movement of the animal according to 
professionally accepted standards for the species is considered provision 
of adequate space.  

Adequate water means provision of and access to clean, fresh, 
potable water of a drinkable temperature that is provided in a suitable 
manner, in sufficient volume, and at suitable intervals, to maintain normal 
hydration for the age, species, condition, size and type of each animal, 
except as prescribed by a veterinarian or as dictated by naturally occurring 
states of hibernation or fasting normal for the species; and is provided in 
clean, durable receptacles that are accessible to each animal and are 
placed so as to minimize contamination of the water by excrement and 
pests or an alternative source of hydration consistent with generally 
accepted husbandry practices.  

Animal means any nonhuman vertebrate species except fish.  

Animal control officer means a person appointed as the animal 
control officer or a deputy animal control officer pursuant to Virginia law to 
enforce the Virginia Comprehensive Animal Laws, this Chapter, and all 
laws for the protection of domestic animals.  

Animal Shelter means the Fairfax County Animal Shelter which is 
operated as a pound as is defined in Virginia Code § 3.2-6500.  

Animal Services Division means the Animal Services Division of the 
Fairfax County Police Department. References to the Commander of the 
Animal Services Division mean the Commander or his or her agent.  

Certified service animal means a monkey that is used or is in 
training to be used solely to assist disabled persons and which use is 
certified by officials of a generally recognized scientific or educational 
institution, provided that such certified service animal has been bred in a 
closed breeding environment located in the United States.  

(106)



Circus means any commercial variety show featuring animal acts 
for public entertainment.  

Companion animal means any domestic or feral dog, domestic or 
feral cat, non-human primate, guinea pig, hamster, rabbit not raised for 
human food or fiber, exotic or native animal, reptile, exotic or native bird, 
or any feral animal or any animal under the care, custody, or ownership of 
a person or any animal that is bought, sold, traded, or bartered by any 
person. Agricultural animals, game species, or any animals regulated 
under federal law as research animals shall not be considered companion 
animals for the purpose of this chapter.  

Director of Health means the Director of the Fairfax County Health 
Department or his or her designee.  

Director of Tax Administration means the Director of the 
Department of Tax Administration or his or her designee. For purposes of 
issuing dog licenses, the Animal Services Division is a designee of the 
Director of Tax Administration.  

Horse means and includes horse, mule, donkey, and ass.  

Kennel means any place in or at which five or more dogs or cats or 
hybrids of either are kept for the purpose of breeding, hunting, training, 
renting, buying, boarding, selling, or showing.  

Livestock includes all domestic or domesticated: bovine animals; 
equine animals; ovine animals; porcine animals; cervidae animals; 
capradae animals; animals of the genus Lama; ratites; fish or shellfish in 
aquaculture facilities, as defined in state law; enclosed domesticated 
rabbits or hares raised for human food or fiber; or any other individual 
animal specifically raised for food or fiber, except companion animals.  

Owner means any person, firm, partnership, corporation, 
association, or other legal entity, who has a right of property in an animal, 
keeps or harbors an animal, has an animal in his, her or its care, or acts 
as a custodian of an animal, including operators or managers of stables, 
kennels, pet shops, or other animal establishments.  

Primary enclosure means any structure used to immediately restrict 
an animal to a limited amount of space, such as a room, tank, pen, cage, 
compartment or hutch. For tethered animals, the term includes the shelter 
and the area within reach of the tether.  

Releasing agency means a pound, animal shelter, humane society, 
animal welfare organization, society for the prevention of cruelty to 
animals, or other similar entity or home-based rescue that releases a 

(107)



companion animal for adoption, including the Fairfax County Animal 
Shelter.  

Rightful owner means a person with a right of property in the 
animal.  

Service animal means any dog or miniature horse that is 
individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of an 
individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, 
intellectual, or other mental disability. Other species of animals, whether 
wild or domestic, trained or untrained, are not service animals for the 
purposes of this definition. The work or tasks performed by a service 
animal must be directly related to the handler’s disability. Examples of 
work or tasks include, but are not limited to, assisting individuals who are 
blind or have low vision with navigation and other tasks, alerting 
individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing to the presence of people or 
sounds, providing non-violent protection or rescue work, pulling a 
wheelchair, assisting an individual during a seizure, alerting individuals to 
the presence of allergens, retrieving items such as medicine or the 
telephone, providing physical support and assistance with balance and 
stability to individuals with mobility disabilities, and helping persons with 
psychiatric and neurological disabilities by preventing or interrupting 
impulsive or destructive behaviors. The crime deterrent effects of an 
animal’s presence and the provision of emotional support, well-being, 
comfort, or companionship do not constitute work or tasks for the 
purposes of this definition. 

Traveling animal exhibition means any spectacle, display, act or 
event, including circuses and carnivals, where animals are maintained, 
whether or not the animals actually perform, the owners or operators of 
which do not have their principal place of business in Fairfax County, 
Virginia, and that are required to obtain a temporary special permit 
pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a horse 
or pony ride is not a traveling animal exhibition.  

Unrestricted means not under the control of the owner or his agent 
either by leash, cord, chain, or primary enclosure when off the property or 
premises of the owner or custodian. An electronic device does not qualify 
as a leash, cord or chain.  

Vicious animal means any animal or animals that constitute a 
physical threat to human beings or other animals, not to include vicious 
dogs, which are addressed separately within this Chapter.  

Wild or exotic animal means any live monkey (non-human primate), 
raccoon, skunk, wolf, squirrel, fox, leopard, panther, tiger, lion, lynx or any 
other warm-blooded animal, poisonous snake or tarantula that can 

(108)



normally be found in the wild state or any other member of a crocodilian, 
including but not limited to alligators, crocodiles, caimans, and gavials. 
Ferrets, non-poisonous snakes, rabbits, and laboratory rats that have 
been bred in captivity and that have never known the wild are excluded 
from this definition. (26-04-41.1; 20-06-41.1; 67-08-41.1.)  

Section 41.1-2-4. – Unrestricted dogs prohibited; leash law 

(a)  No dog shall run unrestricted, as defined in Section 41.1-1-1, in the 
County. Any person who is the owner of a dog found unrestricted in the 
County shall be in violation of this Section. This Section shall not apply 
to any person who uses a dog under his direct supervision while 
lawfully hunting, while engaged in a supervised formal obedience 
training class or show, during formally sanctioned field trials, while a 
dog is in an area owned, leased, controlled, or operated by Fairfax 
County designated by resolution of the Board of Supervisors as an off-
leash dog exercise area, or while a dog is in an area owned, leased, 
controlled, or operated by the Fairfax County Park Authority and 
designated by resolution of the Fairfax County Park Authority as an off-
leash or dog exercise area, or while a dog is in an area, leased, 
controlled, or operated by the Northern Virginia Regional Park 
Authority and designated by resolution of the Northern Virginia 
Regional Park Authority Board as an off-leash or dog exercise area, or 
if a dog is a service animal whose handler is unable because of a 
disability to use a harness, leash, or other tether, or the use of a 
harness, leash, or other tether would interfere with the service animal’s 
safe effective performance of work or tasks, in which case the service 
animal must be otherwise under the handler’s control (e.g., voice 
control, signals, or other effective means). It is a violation of this 
Section for any owner of a dog to place such dog or allow it to be 
placed into custody of any person not physically capable of maintaining 
effective control of restricting such dog.  

 
(b) Any dog found unrestricted in violation of subsection (a) shall be 

impounded, except that if the rightful owner of the dog can be 
immediately ascertained and located, then that owner shall be allowed 
to have custody of the animal, but shall be subject to issuance of a 
summons for violation of this Section. (26-04-41.1.)  

 

(109)



2. That this ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
    GIVEN under my hand this ____ day of April 2011. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Nancy Vehrs 
      Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 

(110)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE – 10 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on the Alternative Plans Submitted to the 
Board by the Citizens Advisory Committee and the Public to Reapportion the Election 
Districts of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing on the reapportionment alternatives 
developed by the Advisory Citizens Committee on the 2011 Reapportionment of the 
Board of Supervisors (“Advisory Committee” or “Committee”) and members of the 
public.  The Advisory Committee has submitted 22 different reapportionment plans, 
members of the public have submitted three alternative reapportionment plans, and staff 
has prepared 25 draft ordinances that could, if adopted, be used to implement any one 
of those alternatives. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize staff to advertise a public 
hearing at 4:00 p.m. on April 12, 2011, to consider the adoption of an ordinance to 
reapportion the Board of Supervisors.  The alternatives to be considered at the hearing 
would be (i) the 25 alternative plans prepared by the Advisory Committee and members 
of the public and (ii) any amendments thereto that the Board deems appropriate to 
consider. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Immediate Board action recommended.  Early consideration and adoption of a 
reapportionment plan will permit the County to complete the several statutory 
requirements and reviews prior to July 9, 2011, when state law requires the County to 
be prepared to mail out absentee ballots upon request for the primary election on 
August 23, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On April 1, 2011, the United States Bureau of the Census conducted the decennial 
census in accordance with federal law, and Virginia’s population data was released in 
early February.  That information will be used for a wide range of purposes in future 
years, but the first and most important use of the 2011 Census data will be for political 
reapportionment at all levels of government.  Virginia’s local governments are required 
to consider reapportionment every ten years, and the data from the 2011 Census 

(111)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

indicates that there have been population changes within the County that will require the 
reapportionment of the election districts of the Board. 
 
More specifically, according to the Bureau of the Census, the total County population 
rose from 969,749 to 1,081,726 during the period from 2000 to 2011.  More important, 
the County population growth was uneven geographically.  After the 2001 County 
reapportionment, the populations of the nine election districts ranged from a low of 
102,504 persons (Lee) to a high of 112,218 persons (Mount Vernon).  The 2011 Census 
indicated that the populations of the nine election districts ranged from a low of 111,430 
(Braddock) to a high of 127,501 (Mount Vernon). 
 
On November 16, 2010, the Board adopted a resolution establishing criteria and 
policies regarding reapportionment and encouraging members of the public to submit 
reapportionment plans for the Board’s consideration.  The Board also established the 
Advisory Committee for the purpose of developing a number of reapportionment options 
for consideration by the Board.  The Board appointed members to the Committee in 
November, December and January.  The Advisory Committee held seven meetings and 
one workshop in January, February, and March 2011.  The members of the Committee 
developed, discussed, withdrew, and revised a number of reapportionment alternatives.  
The members of the Advisory Committee have now proposed 22 reapportionment plans 
for the Board’s consideration.  In early March, the County set up a webpage on the 
County’s website that included all the tools and information necessary for members of 
the public to create and submit reapportionment plans.  Three different plans were 
submitted through the website. 
 
The Committee has issued a Report that includes all 25 plans for the Board’s 
consideration.  The plans include 22 nine-district plans, two ten-district plans, and one 
eleven-district plan.  Each proposed plan in the Report includes a map, a summary data 
sheet, summarized population counts for each district in the proposed plan, a completed 
questionnaire describing whether and how the plan satisfies legal requirements and the 
Board-established criteria and policies, and a proposed ordinance that would effect the 
plan. 
 
Virginia law requires the adoption of reapportionment plans by ordinance.  Staff 
recommends that the Board authorize the advertisement of a public hearing to consider 
the plans proposed in the Report as well as any amendments thereto that the Board 
may deem appropriate, as well as the advertisement of the Board’s intention to propose 
and adopt an ordinance on April 26 that would reapportion the Board. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 

(112)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Report of the Advisory Citizens Committee on the 2011 
Reapportionment of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia (Available 
online at http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/redistricting/report.htm) (Delivered under separate 
cover) (Board Members are requested to retain this report for the public hearing 
scheduled at 4:00 p.m. on April 12, 2011.) 
 
 
STAFF: 
Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive 
David P. Bobzien, County Attorney 
David J. Molchany, Chief Information Officer 
Thomas J. Conry, Chief, Geographic Information Services/Mapping Services Branch, 
Department of Information Technology 
Anne Pickford Cahill, Manager, Economic and Demographic Research, Department of 
Neighborhood and Community Services 
Michael Long, Deputy County Attorney 
Erin C. Ward, Assistant County Attorney 
 
 

(113)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(114)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 1 
 
 
Endorsement of Transportation Funding Policies and Program Allocations for 
Transportation Funding Sources 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of funding strategies, revised project lists, and revised funding allocations 
for several sources of transportation funding. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board take the following actions below, 
which will ensure that major County transportation projects remain fully funded and 
proceeding towards implementation: 
 

1. Approve the proposed transportation funding policies described below which will 
allow the County to utilize available transportation revenues in the most efficient 
and effective manner, and ensure that County transportation projects remain fully 
funded and on schedule to the greatest extent possible. 
 

2. Approve the project list and anticipated funding allocations through FY 2014 
(shown in Attachment 1) for anticipated revenues from: 
 

a. The County’s Commercial and Industrial (C&I) Real Estate Tax for 
Transportation  

b. Planned issuance of $50 million in Fairfax County Economic Development 
Authority (EDA) transportation contract revenue bonds to be paid back 
using C&I tax revenues. 

c. Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) and Regional Surface 
Transportation Program (RSTP) funds through FY 2014.   

 
 
TIMING: 
The Board should act on this item on March 29, 2011, so implementation of projects can 
continue to proceed as expeditiously as possible. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The current nationwide economic downturn has resulted in significant cuts in County 
transportation projects.  In addition, as part of the FY 2011 Appropriation Act, the General 

(115)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Assembly included additional regulations requiring that CMAQ and RSTP funds be 
expended within 24 months and 36 months of obligation by the Commonwealth 
Transportation Board, respectively.   

These circumstances will require staff to further scrutinize the ability of projects to expend 
funds and/or be completed within these new deadlines, while keeping projects fully 
funded and minimizing potential delays.   

Staff attempts to balance the complex, multi-modal transportation needs of the county, 
within the constraints of: 

o Multiple needs for immediate improvements 

o Fluctuation in project scheduling (advancements and delays) 

o Balance in types of projects (road, transit, bike, pedestrian, etc.) 

o Balance in types of funding (federal, state, regional, local) 

o Availability of funding (cost overruns, surplus funds, fiscal year allocations) 

o Eligibility of projects to use certain types of funding 

 
Often it is desirable to entirely fund a project with federal, state, or local funds.  Doing so 
can create efficiencies during the planning, acquisition, review, reporting, and 
construction processes, just to name a few.  Staff attempts to match the best sources of 
transportation funding to each project.  To achieve this, funds must be reallocated 
between projects periodically, to keep federal funding on federal projects, state funding on 
state projects, and local funding on local projects.   
 
For example, regarding the Mulligan Road project, it was imperative that C&I funding be 
allocated to the project originally to meet an established deadline and allow the project to 
proceed into the design phase fully funded.  Once the project was underway, the County 
obtained additional Federal funding that could be used on the project, and reduce the use 
of County C&I funds on the project.  This allowed the C&I funds to be used on another 
locally funded project.  This funding strategy effectively allocated the County’s 
transportation dollars, when and where they were needed most.  By utilizing available 
transportation funding in this manner, the County can ensure the best use of its 
resources.   
 
Currently, staff comes to the Board with a list of projects to be funded by each source of 
revenue, examples include the C&I funds, the CMAQ/RSTP programs, and 
Transportation Bond funds.  Staff also seeks Board approval to reallocate local, regional, 
state and federal funding from one project to another.  Furthermore, staff returns to the 
Board when revenue projections change and more/less funding is available within a 

(116)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
funding program to seek Board approval to allocate the funding to projects that are most 
appropriate.  Board approval is required to apply for newly identified funding programs, for 
permission to accept the funds if received, and for execution of formal funding 
agreements.   
 
In additional to these County approvals, staff must also seek the approval of regional 
bodies to obtain and reallocate regional funding, and state bodies for state and/or federal 
funding. 
 
Due to these steps, the County is not always able to quickly respond to new, small project 
requests because of the lack of available funds, and the multiple steps involved with 
transferring funds between projects.   
 
Proposed Policy Recommendations 
In light of reduced state and federal revenues, the County is occasionally asked to help 
fund projects that would normally be the responsibility of the Federal government or the 
Commonwealth.  In such cases, it is in the County’s best interest to make sure that these 
projects proceed on schedule.  As such, County staff will seek Board approval before 
funding these projects.   
 
The proposed project recommendations (Attachment 1) will ensure that major County 
projects remain fully funded, despite significant cuts in VDOT’s Six-Year Plans, and make 
sure that Federal funding for County projects is allocated in a manner consistent with 
established deadlines for expending these funds.   
 
Staff proposes to compile a list of projects and updates on an annual basis, to seek the 
Boards’ endorsement of the project list, to keep the Board informed of funding related 
issues, and to obtain Board approval of any changes to the list.  The project list will 
ultimately include funding allocations for the current fiscal year plus planned allocations 
for the next five fiscal years (six years total).  Initially, the first project lists will cover three 
to four fiscal years, building up to a total of six fiscal years consistent with the County’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and the VDOT Six-Year Improvement Program.  This 
will allow staff to plan project expenditures consistent with projected revenue availability.   
 
Staff is also seeking the Board’s approval for staff to pursue, allocate, and utilize all 
available transportation funding sources, to implement the projects on the project list, as 
expeditiously as possible.    
 
With the Board’s support, maintaining a single list of identified priority projects, will give 
staff the flexibility it needs to use all available sources of funding in the best way possible 
to achieve the goal of developing a balanced transportation program.  It will also help staff 

(117)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
to plan for future project needs and future revenue sources in the context of an overall list 
of priority transportation projects for the County. 
 
In addition to the specific projects include in the attached list, staff suggests providing 
funding for the following special categories of projects to meet the demand for new, small 
projects as they are needed: 
 

– Bicycle Projects 
– Bus Stop Projects 
– Pedestrian Projects 
– Spot Projects 
– Planning, Studies and Advanced Design 

 
Under the special category projects, the County would be able to respond to new, small 
project requests more quickly.  Staff proposes that projects within these categories be 
under $250,000, and that the Board be notified via memo whenever a new project within 
these categories has been identified.    
 
Summary 

There are a number of issues that still require staff to return to the Board for approval.  
These include:  

 

• Adoption of annual project list including updates, overall project allocations, and 
new projects. 

• The addition of any new projects to the list, other than the special category 
projects.  

• Any reallocation of funding that would cause a delay to one or more of the projects 
on the list.   

• Approval of formal agreements needed to secure funding sources. 

• Approval of proposed transportation bond referenda and associated projects to be 
added to the County’s program. 

• Authorization for new land acquisition or land rights funding. 

• Authorization to aid the Federal Government and/or Commonwealth of Virginia in 
funding projects that would normally be their responsibility.  

 

The proposed policies will require staff to notify the Board when certain actions take 
place.  The actions below would require a memo to the Board from the Department 
Director: 

(118)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

• Notification of significant changes in the scope, cost, or schedule of a project 
outside of the annual update.  Changes in the scope and cost of the project would 
be handled in the following manner : 

 Actions ≤ $250,000 – Director is authorized to execute the change.  

 $250,000 - $1,000,000 – Memo from Director notifying the Board of planned 
action, unless otherwise directed or an objection is raised.   

 Over $1,000,000 – Formal Board consideration and approval is required.   

• Reallocation of savings from completed projects to other projects on the list. 

• Implementation of special category projects within established guidelines.   

 
The policy recommendations outlined above, if approved, will streamline the project 
funding process, and allow the County to save time on project implementation by 
eliminating the need to return to the Board for: 

 

• Reallocation of funds between two or more projects where there is no negative 
impact to any project, but reallocation has benefits to one or more projects.   

• Allocations of individual funding sources, except initial allocation of new bond 
referenda. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Recommended changes to the funding policies and project list for identified revenues 
have no impact to the General Fund.  The projects funded by C&I revenue are 
appropriated in Fund 124, County and Regional Transportation Projects.  The majority of 
funding is appropriated to a capital projects reserve.  As projects progress towards 
implementation and require payments, funding will be appropriated from the reserve to 
individual projects.  CMAQ and RSTP funds are federal and state funds and do not 
impact the General Fund.  Projects funded through the County’s transportation bond 
program are appropriated in Fund 304, Transportation Improvements.   
 
Any funds to be transferred under the new transportation policies would be processed 
according to the type of funding, and as part of future quarterly budget reviews where 
required.  Staff is proposing no changes to the current Quarterly Budget processes that 
the County currently uses for project funding allocation.   
 
 

(119)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014 
Attachment 2:  Projects Considered for Inclusion in this Transportation Funding Program 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Tom Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Todd Wigglesworth, Acting Chief, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT 
Jay Guy, Senior Transportation Planner, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT 
Otto Clemente, Senior Transportation Planner, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT 

(120)



Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014
Page 1 of 5

Revenue Forecasts Through FY 2014 ($ thousands)

Funding Source

Anticipated 

Revenue                               

through FY 

2014

Local Funding Sources
Commercial and Industrial Tax Revenue, C&I EDA Bonds, Transportation 

Bonds, Proffers

449,011$           

Federal Funding Sources
CMAQ, RSTP, Federal Appropriations, other Federal Grant Programs

121,188$           

Total Revenue 570,199$           

Recommended Project Allocations Through FY 2014 ($ thousands) $570,199

Project

 Planned 

allocations 

through FY 

2014

($ thousands)  Supervisor District 

 Recommended 

Project 

Implementation 

Phase Project Comments

Roadway Projects

Braddock Road - Route 123 to Roanoke Drive 3,232$                 Braddock 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Cinder Bed Road Improvements 5,000$                 Mount Vernon 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Eskridge Road Extension to Williams Drive 3,000$                 Providence 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Fairfax County Pkwy Safety Improvements 2,600$                 Mount Vernon, Springfield 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
New project request.

Giles Run Park Access Roadway 2,800$                 Mount Vernon 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
New project request.

Georgetown Pike / Walker Road - Right Turn Lane 253$                    Dranesville 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Project is complete. Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Lorton Road Widening - Route 123 to Silverbrook Rd 61,511$              Mount Vernon 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum and July 13, 2009 Board 

action for C&I funding.

Poplar Tree Road Improvements 5,000$                 Sully 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Route 7 Widening - Rolling Holly Dr to Reston Ave 8,000$                 Dranesville, Hunter Mill 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

(121)



Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014
Page 2 of 5

Project

 Planned 

allocations 

through FY 

2014

($ thousands)  Supervisor District 

 Recommended 

Project 

Implementation 

Phase Project Comments

Route 29 at Gallows Road 28,372$              Providence 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Route 29 Widening - Centreville to Fairfax City 7,000$                 Springfield, Sully 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum and July 13, 2009 Board 

action for C&I funding.

Stringfellow Road Widening - Fair Lakes Pkwy to Route 50 43,000$              Springfield, Sully 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Approved as part of 2004 and 2007 transportation bond referenda and July 13, 2009 

Board action for C&I funding.

Walney Road at Dallas Drive 1,100$                 Sully 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Transit Projects

Countywide Transit Projects 10,500$              Countywide 
 Design, Land Acqusition, 

Construction 

Includes Vienna Metro Staircase, Solar Lighting at Bus Stops, Fairfax Connector Herndon 

Facility, Transit Centers at George Mason and NVCC.

Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Seven Corners Transit Center 200$                    Mason  Construction Previously approved project for CMAQ funds. Completes funding for project.

Springfield CBD Surface Lot Park and Ride 5,669$                 Lee 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Old Keene Mill Park-and-Ride lot, project is substantially complete.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Stringfellow Road Park-and-Ride 5,500$                 Springfield, Sully 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Vienna Ramp - I-66/Vienna Metrorail Station Access 26,046$              Providence 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Previously approved project for CMAQ and RSTP funds, Federal appropriations, and 

VDOT audit funding requests.

VRE Lorton Platform Extension 1,500$                 Mount Vernon 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Previously approved project for CMAQ and RSTP funds.

VRE Rolling Road Platform Extension 2,000$                 Springfield 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Previously approved project for CMAQ and RSTP funds.

West Ox Bus Facility - Bus Parking Expansion 2,500$                
 Countywide, located in 

Springfield 

 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Countywide Transit Stores 1,900$                 Countywide  Ongoing operating support 
Ongoing operating support.

Previously approved project for CMAQ funds.

Fairfax Connector Buses for Service Expansions 16,650$              Countywide  Capital equipment purchase 
Capital purchase.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Fairfax Connector Service Expansions 97,835$              Countywide  Ongoing operating support 
Ongoing operating support.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

(122)



Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014
Page 3 of 5

Project

 Planned 

allocations 

through FY 

2014

($ thousands)  Supervisor District 

 Recommended 

Project 

Implementation 

Phase Project Comments

Pedestrian, Bike, Bus Stop, and Spot Intersection 

Bike and Pedestrian Connection to HOT Lanes 4,500$                
 Braddock, Mason, 

Providence 

 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Previously approved project for CMAQ funds.

Birch Street West Sidewalk 200$                    Dranesville 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
New project request.

Dead Run Sidewalk 430$                    Dranesville 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
New project request.

Gallows Road Bike Lanes 3,000$                 Providence  Design, Construction Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Westmoreland Road Pedestrian Improvements 79$                      Dranesville 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
New project request.

Board of Supervisors Priority Spot Projects 1,000$                 Countywide  Project reserve Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Bicycle Facilities Projects 1,000$                 Countywide  Project reserve Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Bus Stop Projects 7,750$                 Countywide  Project reserve Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum.

Pedestrian Projects 25,780$              Countywide  Project reserve 
Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum and July 13, 2009 Board 

action for C&I funding.

Spot Improvement Projects 14,240$              Countywide  Project reserve 
Approved as part of 2007 transportation bond referendum and July 13, 2009 Board 

action for C&I funding.

Reserve for New Pedestrian, Bike, Bus Stop, and Spot 

Interesection Improvement Requests
4,500$                 Countywide  Project reserve Reserve for new project requests within guidelines.

Dulles Rail and Tysons Corner Related Projects

Reston Metrorail Access Group (RMAG) Recommendations 11,000$              Hunter Mill 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Planned allocation of future CMAQ and RSTP funds. Project also previously approved for 

Federal appropriations and VDOT audit funding requests.

Tysons Metrorail Station Access Management Study 

(TMSAMS) including Neighborhood Access Improvements
11,350$             

 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 

 Planning, Design, Land 

Acquisition, Construction 

Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers), CMAQ, RSTP, Federal 

appropriations and VDOT audit funding requests.

Wiehle Avenue Station Parking Garage 8,600$                 Hunter Mill 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Jones Branch Drive Extension Preliminary Engineering 912$                    Providence  Design 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding. Project also approved for 

Federal appropriations request.

Tysons Corner Connections to Dulles Toll Road 2,300$                
 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Design Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

(123)



Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014
Page 4 of 5

Project

 Planned 

allocations 

through FY 

2014

($ thousands)  Supervisor District 

 Recommended 

Project 

Implementation 

Phase Project Comments

Boone Boulevard and Greensboro Drive - Conceptual 

Engineering and Design
800$                    Providence  Design Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers).

Route 7 Widening - Dulles Toll Road to Reston Avenue - 

Conceptual Engineering and Design
500$                    Dranesville, Hunter Mill  Design Previously approved for VDOT audit funding requests.

Route 7 Widening - Route 123 to I-495 - Conceptual 

Engineering and Design
1,000$                 Providence  Design Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers).

Tysons Corner Street Grid - Conceptual Design and 

Engineering
2,500$                

 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Design Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers).

Tysons Corner Circulator Feasibility Study 500$                   
 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Planning Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers).

Tysons Corner Transportation and Urban Design Study 300$                   
 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Planning Previously approved for Tysons Transportation Fund (proffers).

Reserve for Tysons Corner Roadway Improvements - Excludes 

Tysons Corner Street Grid
22,600$             

 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Project reserve 

Funding accrual for the following projects: Route 7 Widening - Rt 123 to I-495, Route 7 

Widening - Dulles Toll Road to Reston Ave, Boone Blvd Extension, Jones Branch Drive 

Extension, Greensboro Drive Extension, and Tysons Corner Connections to Dulles Toll 

Road

Reserve for Dulles Rail Support 8,000$                
 Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 

Providence 
 Project reserve 

Reserve for contingency costs.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

BRAC Related Projects

Mulligan Road (Old Mill Replacement) and Telegraph Rd 

Widening - Beulah St to Leaf Rd
14,020$              Lee, Mount Vernon 

 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding. Also includes previously 

approved RSTP funds.

Telegraph Rd Widening - S Kings Hwy to S Van Dorn St 10,500$              Lee 
 Design, Land Acquisition, 

Construction 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Richmond Highway Widening through Fort Belvoir - Mulligan 

Rd to Fairfax County Pkwy
3,000$                 Mount Vernon  Design, Land Acquisition 

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding and Federal 

appropriations.

Rolling Road Loop Ramp 9,000$                 Springfield  Design, Land Acquisition Previously approved for RSTP and VDOT audit funding requests.

Rolling Road Widening - Fullerton Road to Delong Drive 1,302$                 Mount Vernon  Design Previously approved for OEA Grant funds.

Braddock Road - Burke Lake Road to Guinea Road 1,000$                 Braddock  Design New project request.

Lorton VRE Park and Ride Expansion 250$                    Mount Vernon  Design New project request.

Rolling Road Widening - Old Keene Mill Rd to Fairfax County 

Pkwy
2,000$                 Springfield  Design New project request. Project previously removed from VDOT Secondary Road Program

Advanced Planning, Design, Land Acquisition for Future Projects and Project Reserves

(124)



Attachment 1: Transportation Project List and Funding Allocations through FY 2014
Page 5 of 5

Project

 Planned 

allocations 

through FY 

2014

($ thousands)  Supervisor District 

 Recommended 

Project 

Implementation 

Phase Project Comments

Soapstone Dr Sidewalk west side - Glade Dr to S Lakes Dr 100$                    Hunter Mill  Design New project request.

Springfield Multi-Use Community Transit Hub 10,398$              Lee  Design, Land Acquisition 
Previously approved for CMAQ funds, Federal appropriations and VDOT audit funding 

requests.

West Ox Bus Facility - Phase II Expansion 3,000$                
 Countywide, located in 

Springfield 
 Design New project request.

Annandale McWhorter Place 1,681$                 Braddock  Land Acquisition 
Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding. Acquisition was 

completed in FY 2010.

Braddock Road / Route 123 Interchange Study 576$                    Braddock  Planning Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding. Study is complete.

Columbia Pike Streetcar 12,100$              Mason  Planning Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Davis Drive Extension Study 85$                      Dranesville, Hunter Mill  Planning Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Route 1 Transit Study 1,500$                 Lee, Mount Vernon  Planning Previously approved for VDOT audit funding requests.

Reserve for EDA bond debt service 2,000$                 Countywide  Project reserve 
For future debt service.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Reserve for Local Cash Matches 3,000$                 Countywide  Project reserve 
For matching grant funds.

Approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I funding.

Reserve for Planning, Design, and Land Acquisition Project 

Opportunities and Project Implementation Support
20,678$              Countywide  Project reserve 

Reserve for advanced project planning, design, and land acquisitions within guidelines. 

Project implementation support approved as part of July 13, 2009 Board action for C&I 

funding.

(125)



Attachment 2

Projects Considered for Inclusion in the Transportation Funding Program

In preparing the proposed transportation project list, staff primarily considered projects included in the Board of Supervisors’ Four 

Year Transportation Program, the TransAction 2030 Plan, the VDOT Six-Year Program, and other program requests that the Board 

has previously endorsed.  Below is a list of projects that were considered, but ultimately it was determined that sufficient funding 

was not available to have them included in the initial program.  Should additional revenues become available, these projects will be 

considered for inclusion based on their eligibility for the source of funding, and their ability to be advanced.  Any future decisions 

regarding inclusion of funding for these projects will require Board of Supervisors action.    

BRAC Related Projects

Additional improvements to Fairfax County Parkway (FCP) required due to BRAC

Reconstruction of the I-95/FCP Interchange at Newington Road

Additional and improved ramps to and from I-95 for the EPG

A grade separated interchange at FCP/Neuman Street 

Improvements to FCP between I-95 and Kingman Road

Interchange at FCP and Kingman Road

Transit center and ridesharing facility(s)

Implementation of expanded bus service and circulator service

Additional crossings over U.S. Route 1 between the North and South posts

Improvements to Beulah, Telegraph, Backlick, Loisdale and Newington Roads

Interchange at U.S. Route 1 and FCP

Interchange at Telegraph Road and U.S. Route 1

Completion of Van Dorn Street/Franconia Road Interchange

Additional intersection and interim improvements in the impacted areas.

Improvements identified by Belvoir Resolution Team (Army, VDOT and Fairfax Co.)

Richmond Highway Public Transportation Initiative

Enhancements to the Franconia-Springfield Parkway between I-95 and Rolling Road

Route 236 (Little River Turnpike)/Beauregard Street Intersection Improvements

Designated Revitalization Area Transportation Improvements

Springfield 

Bailey's Crossroads

Annandale

Richmond Highway

McLean

Lake Anne

Seven Corners

Other Projects previously approved by the Board for funding requests.

I-66 Active Traffic Management*

I-66 - Route 28 Interchange - Study & Design

Pedestrian Access Bridge Over Dulles Airport Access & Toll Road

*The Northern Virginia Transportation Authority's (NVTA) Jurisdiction and Agency Coordinating Committee is recommending that 

$5.4 million is CMAQ funds be allocated to this project for design. The NVTA will consider this recommendation on April 14, 2011.

Other Projects Requests.

Old Dominion and Spring Hill Road Intersection Redesign

Route 123 / Lewinsville / Great Falls intersection improvements proposed by Neighborhood Impact Study

Braddock Road / Route 123 Bypass at George Mason University

(126)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION - 2 
 
 
Approval of Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11133 and Approval of a 
Standard Project Administration Agreement for the Department of Transportation to 
Accept Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program Funding for the Dulles Corridor 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements (Dranesville, Hunter Mill, and Providence 
Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11133 for the Department 
of Transportation to accept funding in the amount of $8,640,000, and for the 
Department of Transportation to execute a Standard Project Administration Agreement 
with the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to administer the design and 
construction of the Dulles corridor bicycle and pedestrian improvements project.  The 
total project cost is estimated to be $8,640,000, and this amount is currently available in 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funding.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board approve the Standard Project 
Administration Agreement (Attachment 1), in substantial form, between the Department 
of Transportation and VDOT and Supplemental Appropriation Resolution 11133 for the 
Department of Transportation to accept $8,640,000, in CMAQ funding to administer the 
Dulles corridor bicycle and pedestrian improvements project.  No Local Cash Match is 
required.  
 
 
TIMING: 
Board approval is requested on March 29, 2011, so that the project can proceed. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of prior CMAQ allocation programs, the Board has approved the application of 
funds for bicycle and pedestrian safety, and access improvements along the Dulles Rail 
corridor.  In December 2009, VDOT approved the administration of these improvements 
by Fairfax County.  Staff has identified the top priority improvements needed along the 
corridor based on safety concerns, missing links, and access to activity generators 
along the corridor.   
 

(127)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
In order to participate in the CMAQ program, a Standard Project Administration 
Agreement for the development and administration of the proposed projects must be 
executed with VDOT before work on the projects can be initiated.  This agreement 
(Attachment 1) stipulates the guidelines and requirements that the County must adhere 
to during the design, land acquisition, and construction of the proposed project.  As part 
of the FY 2011 Appropriation Act, the General Assembly included additional regulations 
in concurrence with Federal guidelines, requiring that CMAQ funds be expended within 
48 months of obligation by the Commonwealth Transportation Board.  These time 
requirements are reflected in the agreement.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Board of Supervisors previously endorsed submitting this project for the CMAQ 
program, and in December 2009, VDOT approved the administration of this project by 
the County.  The total amount of this award is $8,640,000, and the total project cost is 
estimated to be $8,640,000.  No Local Cash Match is required.  Upon approval, budget 
appropriation will be requested in Fund 102, Federal/State Grant Fund, as part of a 
quarterly review.  This grant does not allow for the recovery of indirect costs. 
 
 
CREATION OF POSITIONS: 
No positions will be created through this grant award.   
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Project Agreement for Dulles Corridor Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
Attachment 2 - Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11133 
Attachment 3 - Resolution to Execute Agreement 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Ellen F. M. Posner, Assistant County Attorney  
Tom Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Eric Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Todd Minnix, Chief, Transportation Design Division, FCDOT  
Todd Wigglesworth, Acting Chief, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT 
Chris Wells, Pedestrian Program Manager, FCDOT  
Jay Guy, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT 

(128)



 

Attachment 1 
 
 

STANDARD PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 
Federal-aid Projects 

 
 

 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed in triplicate this ____ day of 
_______________, 2011, by and between the County of Fairfax, Virginia, hereinafter 
referred to as the LOCALITY and the Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the DEPARTMENT.  
 
 WHEREAS, the LOCALITY has expressed its desire to administer the work 
described in Appendix A, and such work for each improvement shown is hereinafter 
referred to as the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the funds shown in Appendix A have been allocated to finance each 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the LOCALITY is committed to the development and delivery of 
each Project described in Appendix A in an expeditious manner; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, both parties have concurred in the LOCALITY's administration of 
the phase(s) of work for the respective Project(s) listed in Appendix A in accordance with 
applicable federal, state, and local law and regulations. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, 
the parties hereto agree as follows:  

1.  The LOCALITY shall: 
 

a. Be responsible for all activities necessary to complete the noted phase(s) of 
each Project shown in Appendix A, except for activities, decisions, and 
approvals which are the responsibility of the DEPARTMENT, as required by 
federal or state laws and regulations or as otherwise agreed to, in writing, 
between the parties.  Each Project will be designed and constructed to meet or 
exceed current American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials standards or supplementary standards approved by the 
DEPARTMENT 

 
b. Meet all funding obligation and expenditure timeline requirements in accordance 

with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations, and Commonwealth 
Transportation Board and DEPARTMENT policies and as identified in Appendix 
A to this Agreement. Noncompliance with this requirement can result in 
deallocation of the funding, rescinding of state funding match and/or termination 
of this Agreement. 

Project Number UPC Local Government 
0828-029-847 P101, R201, C501 93146 Fairfax County 

(129)



 
 
c. Receive prior written authorization from the DEPARTMENT to proceed with 

preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition and utility relocation, and 
construction phases of each Project. 

 
d. Administer the project(s) in accordance with guidelines applicable to Locally 

Administered Projects as published by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
e. Maintain accurate and complete records of each Project’s development and 

documentation of all expenditures and make such information available for 
inspection or auditing by the DEPARTMENT.  Records and documentation 
for items for which reimbursement will be requested shall be maintained for 
no less than three (3) years following acceptance of the final voucher on each 
Project. 

 
f. No more frequently than monthly, submit invoices with supporting 

documentation to the DEPARTMENT in the form prescribed by the 
DEPARTMENT.  The supporting documentation shall include copies of 
related vendor invoices paid by the LOCALITY and an up-to-date project 
summary and schedule tracking payment requests and adjustments.  A request 
for reimbursement shall be made within 90 days after any eligible project 
expenses are incurred by the Locality.  For federally funded projects and 
pursuant to the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49, Section 18.43, 
violations of the provision may result in the imposition of sanctions including 
but not limited to possible denial or delay of payment of all or a part of the 
costs associated with the activity or action not in compliance. 

 
g. Reimburse the DEPARTMENT all Project expenses incurred by the 

DEPARTMENT if, due to action or inaction solely by the LOCALITY, 
federally funded Project expenditures incurred are not reimbursed by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), or reimbursements are required to 
be returned to the FHWA, or in the event the reimbursement provisions of 
Section 33.1-44 or Section 33.1-70.01 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, or other applicable provisions of federal, state, or local law or 
regulations require such reimbursement. 

 
h. On Projects that the LOCALITY is providing the required match to state or 

federal funds, pay the DEPARTMENT the LOCALITY’s match for eligible 
Project expenses incurred by the DEPARTMENT in the performance of 
activities set forth in paragraph 2.a. 

 
i. Administer the Project in accordance with all applicable federal, state, or local 

laws and regulations. Failure to fulfill legal obligations associated with the 
project may result in forfeiture of federal or state-aid reimbursements  

 
j. Provide certification by a LOCALITY official that all LOCALITY 

administered Project activities have been performed in accordance with all 
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.  If the locality expends over 

(130)



$500,000 annually in federal funding, such certification shall include a copy 
of the LOCALITY’s single program audit in accordance with Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133. 

 
k.  If legal services other than that provided by staff counsel are required in 

connection with condemnation proceedings associated with the acquisition of 
Right-of-Way, the LOCALITY will consult the DEPARTMENT to obtain an 
attorney from the list of outside counsel approved by the Office of the 
Attorney General.  Costs associated with outside counsel services shall be 
reimbursable expenses of the project. 

 
l. For Projects on facilities not maintained by the DEPARTMENT, provide, or 

have others provide, maintenance of the Project upon completion, unless 
otherwise agreed to by the DEPARTMENT. 

 
m. Ensure compliance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, regulations of the United States Department of Transportation 
(USDOT), Presidential Executive Orders and the Code of Virginia relative to 
nondiscrimination.   

 
2.  The DEPARTMENT shall: 
 

a. Perform any actions and provide any decisions and approvals which are the 
responsibility of the DEPARTMENT, as required by federal and state laws 
and regulations or as otherwise agreed to, in writing, between the parties and 
provide necessary coordination with the FHWA as determined to be necessary 
by the DEPARTMENT.    

 
b. Upon receipt of the LOCALITY's invoices pursuant to paragraph1.f., 

reimburse the LOCALITY the cost of eligible Project expenses, as described 
in Appendix A.  Such reimbursements shall be payable by the 
DEPARTMENT within 30 days of an acceptable submission by the 
LOCALITY.  

 
c. If appropriate, submit invoices to the LOCALITY for the LOCALITY’s share 

of eligible project expenses incurred by the DEPARTMENT in the 
performance of activities pursuant to paragraph 2.a.  

 
d. Audit the LOCALITY’s Project records and documentation as may be 

required to verify LOCALITY compliance with federal and state laws and 
regulations. 

e. Make available to the LOCALITY guidelines to assist the parties in carrying 
out responsibilities under this Agreement. 

3. Appendix A identifies the funding sources for the project, phases of work to be 
administered by the LOCALITY, and additional project-specific requirements 
agreed to by the parties.  There may be additional elements that, once identified, 

(131)



shall be addressed by the parties hereto in writing, which may require an 
amendment to this Agreement. 

 
4. If designated by the DEPARTMENT, the LOCALITY is authorized to act as the 

DEPARTMENT’s agent for the purpose of conducting survey work pursuant to 
Section 33.1-94 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

 
5. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate the parties hereto to expend or provide 

any funds in excess of funds agreed upon in this Agreement or as shall have been 
included in an annual or other lawful appropriation.  In the event the cost of a 
Project is anticipated to exceed the allocation shown for such respective Project 
on Appendix A, both parties agree to cooperate in providing additional funding 
for the Project or to terminate the Project before its costs exceed the allocated 
amount, however the DEPARTMENT and the LOCALITY shall not be obligated 
to provide additional funds beyond those appropriated pursuant to an annual or 
other lawful appropriation.    

   
6. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of the LOCALITY’s or 

the Commonwealth of Virginia’s sovereign immunity. 
 
7. The Parties mutually agree and acknowledge, in entering this Agreement, that the 

individuals acting on behalf of the Parties are acting within the scope of their 
official authority and the Parties agree that neither Party will bring a suit or assert 
a claim against any official, officer, or employee of either party, in their 
individual or personal capacity for a breach or violation of the terms of this 
Agreement or to otherwise enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement  
The foregoing notwithstanding, nothing in this subparagraph shall prevent the 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by or against either 
Party in a competent court of law. 

 
8. The Parties mutually agree that no provision of this Agreement shall create in the 

public, or in any person or entity other than parties, rights as a third party 
beneficiary hereunder, or authorize any person or entity, not a party hereto, to 
maintain any action for, without limitation, personal injury, property damage, 
breach of contract, or return of money, or property, deposit(s), cancellation or 
forfeiture of bonds, financial instruments, pursuant to the terms of this of this 
Agreement or otherwise.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement 
to the contrary, unless otherwise provided, the Parties agree that the LOCALITY 
or the DEPARTMENT shall not be bound by any agreements between the either 
party and other persons or entities concerning any matter which is the subject of 
this Agreement, unless and until the LOCALITY or the DEPARTMENT has, in 
writing, receive a true copy of such agreement(s) and has affirmatively agreed, in 
writing, to be bound by such Agreement. 

 
9 This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 30 days advance written 

notice.  Eligible Project expenses incurred through the date of termination shall be 
reimbursed in accordance with paragraphs 1.f, 1.g., and 2.b, subject to the 
limitations established in this Agreement and Appendix A.  Upon termination, the 
DEPARTMENT shall retain ownership of plans, specifications, and right of way, 

(132)



unless all state and federal funds provided for the Project have been reimbursed to 
the DEPARTMENT by the LOCALITY, in which case the LOCALITY will have 
ownership of the plans, specifications, and right of way, unless otherwise 
mutually agreed upon in writing. 

 
10. Prior to any action pursuant to paragraphs 1.b or 1.g of this Agreement, the 

DEPARTMENT shall provide notice to the LOCALITY with a specific 
description of the breach of agreement provisions.  Upon receipt of a notice of 
breach, the LOCALITY will be provided the opportunity to cure such breach or to 
provide a plan to cure to the satisfaction to the DEPARTMENT.   If, within sixty 
(60) days after receipt of the written notice of breach, the LOCALITY has neither 
cured the breach, nor is diligently pursuing a cure of the breach to the satisfaction 
of the DEPARTMENT, then upon receipt by the LOCALITY of a written notice 
from the DEPARTMENT stating that the breach has neither been cured, nor is the 
LOCALITY diligently pursuing a cure, the DEPARTMENT may exercise any 
remedies it may have under this Agreement.   

 
 THE LOCALITY and DEPARTMENT acknowledge and agree that this 
Agreement has been prepared jointly by the parties and shall be construed simply and in 
accordance with its fair meaning and not strictly for or against any party. 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, when properly executed, shall be binding upon both 
parties, their successors, and assigns. 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT may be modified in writing by mutual agreement of both 
parties. 
  

(133)



 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the day, month, and year first herein written. 
 
 
__________ OF __________, VIRGINIA: 
 
_____________________________________  
 
_____________________________________ 
Typed or printed name of signatory 
 

      Date 
Title 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Witness     Date 
 
NOTE: The official signing for the LOCALITY must attach a certified copy of his or her 
authority to execute this Agreement. 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner  Date 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
Department of Transportation 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Witness     Date 
 
Attachments 
 Appendix A (UPC 93146) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(134)



Appendix A 
 

Project Number: 0828-029-847 P101, R201, C501  (UPC 93146)  Locality:  Fairfax County 
  

Project Narrative 

Scope: Dulles Corridor Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 

From: Route 123 

To: Wiehle Avenue 
 

Locality Project Manager Contact Info: Chris Wells ;  Chris.Wells@fairfaxcounty.gov ; 703-877-5772 

Department Project Coordinator Contact Info: Hamid Misaghian ; H.Misaghian@VDOT.Virginia.gov ; 703-259-1795 

    

Project Costs and Reimbursement 

Phase Estimated Project 
Costs 

Estimated Eligible 
Project Costs 

Estimated Eligible VDOT 
Project Expenses 

Estimated Reimbursement to 
Locality 

Preliminary Engineering $1,290,000 $1,290,000 $10,000 $1,280,000 

Right-of-Way & Utilities $1,720,000 $1,720,000                       $5,000 $1,715,000 

Construction $5,630,000 $5,630,000 $10,000 $5,620,000 

Total Estimated Cost $8,640,000 $8,640,000 $25,000 $8,615,000 
  

Total Maximum Reimbursement by Locality to VDOT $0 

Total Maximum Reimbursement by VDOT to Locality $8,640,000 
 

Project Financing 
A 
 

B C D E 

CMAQ  CMAQ Match CMAQ CMAQ Match 
Aggregate Allocations

(A+B+C+D)

$3,200,000 $800,000 
$3,712,000 

( from UPC 85016) 

$928,000 
(from UPC 85016) 

$8,640,000

 

Specific Funding Notes 
This project shall be administered in accordance with VDOT’s Locally Administered Projects Manual 
 This project is funded with federal-aid Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds. By Appropriations Act, these 
       funds must be obligated within 24 months of CTB allocation and expended within 48 months of the obligation. 

 FY Previous year- $8,640,000 (CMAQ); Allocation by CTB Previous year, Obligation Deadline 7/1/2010, 
Expenditure Deadline 7/1/2016 

 
 

This attachment is certified and made an official attachment to this document by the parties of this agreement 

   

Authorized Locality Official and date 
 
 

____________________________________________________ 
Typed or printed name of person signing 

 Residency Administrator/PE Manager/District Construction Engineer 
Recommendation and date 

 
_______________________________________________________

Typed or printed name of person signing 

  
 
 
 
 

(135)



Appendix B 
 

Project Number: 0828-029-847 P101, R201, C501 (UPC 93146)  Locality:  Fairfax County 

Project Scope 

Work 
Description: 

Design and construct sidewalks, crossings, and other pedestrian and bicycle 
improvements along the Dulles Rail corridor.  

 

From: Route 123  

To: Wiehle Avenue 
 

Locality Project Manager Contact Info: Chris Wells;  Chris.Wells@fairfaxcounty.gov ; 703-877-572 

Department Project Coordinator Contact Info: Hamid Misaghian ; H.Misaghian@VDOT.Virginia.gov ; 703-259-1795 

 

Detailed Scope of Services 
Project Description  

 

Tysons East Station 
 Route 123, add multi-use trail on south side under Dulles Airport Highway Interchange -- 2,400 feet 
 
Tysons Central 123 Station 
 Route 123 and International Drive, add signalized crosswalks, signalize dual RT 
 International Drive and Greensboro Drive, add signalized crosswalk, ramps 
 Tysons Boulevard. and Galleria Drive, add signalized crosswalks  
 
Tysons Central 7 Station 
 Route 7, add sidewalk on north side under Route 123 Interchange -- 1,100 feet  
 Route 7, add sidewalk on south side under Route 123 Interchange -- 800 feet  
 Gosnell Road and Old Courthouse Road, add signalized crosswalks, sidewalk  
 Gosnell Road, add sidewalk on east side north of Route 123 -- 100 feet  
 
Wiehle Avenue Station 
 Sunrise Valley Drive, add curb-abutted sidewalk on south side from Soapstone Drive to South Lakes 

Drive -- 5,000 feet  
 Sunrise Valley Drive, upgrade asphalt sidewalk on north side from Soapstone Drive to South Lakes 

Drive -- 4,500 feet  
 Wiehle Avenue, upgrade to curb-abutted sidewalk on west side from Sunrise Valley Drive to Station 

Entrance --  500 feet  
 Wiehle Avenue and Isaac Newton Square South, add signalized crosswalks, median  
 Isaac Newton Square West and W&OD Trail, upgrade and add asphalt sidewalk on west side to Sunset 

Hills Road 
 
 
 

This attachment is certified and made an official attachment to this document by the parties of this agreement 

   

Authorized Locality Official and date 
 
 

____________________________________________________ 
Typed or printed name of person signing 

 Residency Administrator/PE Manager/District Construction Engineer 
Recommendation and date 

 
_______________________________________________________

Typed or printed name of person signing 

 

(136)



Attachment 2 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION AS 11133 
 

 
At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in the 
Board Auditorium in the Government Center at 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax Virginia on March 29, 2011, at which a quorum was present and voting, the 
following resolution was adopted: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, that in 
addition to appropriations made previously for FY 2011, the following supplemental 
appropriation is authorized and the Fiscal Planning Resolution is amended accordingly: 
 

Appropriate to: 
 

Agency: 40, Department of Transportation $8,640,000 
Fund:  102, Federal/State Grant Fund 

 
Grant: 40029G, Dulles Corridor Bike & Ped Improvements 

 
Reduce Appropriation to: 

 
Agency: 87, Unclassified Administrative Expenses $8,640,000 
Fund:  102, Federal/State Grant Fund 

 
Grant: 87107G, Unclassified Administrative Expenses 

 
 
Source of Funds: Virginia Department of Transportation  $8,640,000 

   
   
    
    
 
 
 
 
A Copy - Teste: 
 
 
 
________________________________                                                   
Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

(137)



Attachment 3 
 
 
 
At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in the 
Board Auditorium in the Fairfax County Government Center of Fairfax, Virginia on 
Tuesday, March 29, 2011, at which meeting a quorum was present and voting, the 
following resolution was adopted. 
 
 

AGREEMENT EXECUTION RESOLUTION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Virginia Department of Transportation project 
agreement procedures, it is necessary that a resolution be received from the local 
government authorizing execution of an agreement.    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of 
Fairfax County, Virginia, authorizes County staff to execute on behalf of the County of 
Fairfax a Project Administration Agreement with the Virginia Department of 
Transportation for the Dulles Corridor Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements by the 
County of Fairfax. 
 
  
Adopted this_____day of_____________________, 2011, Fairfax, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST ______________________ 
   Nancy Vehrs 
   Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 

(138)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 3 
 
 
Approval of Dulles Corridor Metrorail Project Station Names (Dranesville, Hunter Mill, 
and Providence Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of the recommended Metrorail station names for the eight stations that 
will be constructed in Fairfax County as part of the Dulles Corridor Metrorail extension. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the 
proposed Metrorail station names for the eight stations that will be constructed in Fairfax 
County as part of the Dulles Corridor Metrorail extension, and authorize the Chairman to 
forward the recommended station names to the WMATA Board of Directors, per the 
attached letter (Attachment I). 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on March 29, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The Dulles Corridor Metrorail Project (DCMP) is an extension of Metrorail from just east 
of the West Falls Church Metrorail Station along the Dulles Connector Road (DCR), 
through Tysons Corner, onto the Dulles International Airport Access Highway (DIAAH), 
through Reston, Herndon, and Dulles International Airport, and into Loudoun County.  
The entire extension is 23 miles in length, and is comprised of 11 stations of which eight 
will be located in Fairfax County.  No official names have been given to the stations.  
Placeholder names have been provided since the Final Environmental Impact 
Statement was prepared in 2004.  Based on the project’s construction schedule, all 
station signage will be procured beginning in the fall of 2011 and will be installed as 
station finishes are completed in 2013.   

Fairfax County has the opportunity to provide a final set of names for the eight stations 
located in the County and to provide a recommendation to the WMATA Board of 
Directors who must approve the station names.  WMATA has a policy that details the 
procedures to name stations on the Metrorail system.  That policy, entitled “Metro 
System Station Names,” details the procedure for establishing or changing station 
names.  The WMATA policy indicates that station names should: 

(139)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 Identify the station location by geographical features or centers of activity; 
 Geographical names may be derived from those of cities, communities; 

neighborhoods, squares, circles, Metro-intersecting streets, etc.; 
 Centers of activity may be derived from schools, stadiums, parks, hospitals, 

airports, depots, shopping centers, galleries, museums, government installations, 
etc.; 

 Names should be distinctive and evoke imagery; and 
 Names should be relatively brief and be no longer than 19 characters. 

The WMATA Office of Engineering and Architecture will review the proposed names 
and provide a recommendation to the WMATA Board of Directors for approval.  
WMATA would then inform Fairfax County of the decision, and if positive, the County 
would provide the DCMP with names for the eight stations located in Fairfax County for 
inclusion in the procurement of station signage. 

The Department of Transportation began the station naming process in the fall of 2010 
by assembling about four alternative names that met the WMATA criteria for each of the 
eight stations in the County (five stations in Phase 1 and three stations in Phase 2).  
The listing of the names were circulated to the Chairman and members of the Board of 
Supervisors in whose district the stations reside or abut, stakeholders in Tysons Corner, 
Reston, and Herndon, and citizens who requested the information.  In all, this process 
generated 11 additional station names besides the 30 names proposed originally by 
staff.  All 41 names where then reviewed with the four members of the Board of 
Supervisors to refine the listing into a set of station names to bring before the Board of 
Supervisors as a recommendation to the WMATA Board of Directors. 

The recommended stations names are as follows: 

Placeholder Station Name    Recommended Station Name 

Tysons East      Tysons-McLean 

Tysons Central 123     Tysons I&II 

Tysons Central 7     Tysons Central 

Tysons West      Tysons-Spring Hill Rd 

Wiehle Avenue     Reston-Wiehle Ave 

Reston Parkway     Reston Town Center 

Herndon-Monroe     Herndon-Reston West  

Route 28      Herndon-Dulles East 

(140)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Each proposed station name connotes a community:  Tysons, Reston, Herndon, or 
McLean; some include street names, while others include the name of shopping malls 
and a town center.  Some of the names, however, exceed the WMATA standard for the 
number of characters, 19, but in those cases an exception will be sought as in the 
instance of Vienna/Fairfax/GMU. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The cost of the station names is contained within the total cost of the Dulles Corridor 
Metrorail Project and is funded as part of DCMP financing plan. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:  Draft letter recommending station names to the WMATA Board of 
Directors 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Tom Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Mark Canale, FCDOT 
Richard Stevens, FCDOT 

(141)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(142)



Attachment I 
 
Date 
 
The Honorable Catherine Hudgins 
Chairman, WMATA Board of Directors 
Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 
600 Fifth Street, NW 
Washington, D.C.  20005 
 
Dear Chairman. Hudgins: 

The Fairfax County Board of Supervisors recently approved the name of the line 
extension from West Falls Church to Loudoun County and the names of eight new 
Fairfax County stations for the Dulles Corridor Metrorail Extension. 

The County went through an exhaustive process of soliciting input from public and 
private stakeholders throughout the corridor in order to determine the names of the 
stations, and utilized the WMATA guidelines entitled “Metro System Station Names.”  
The names that have been selected connote a combination of communities, town 
center, street names, and shopping malls in accordance with the WMATA guidelines.  
Further, most of the names fall within the number of characters identified in the 
guidelines, but a few narrowly exceed the limit, but are well within the number of 
characters of some of WMATA’s longer station names. 

The County has chosen to continue to call the line the Silver Line which was first 
proposed by WMATA in 1999.  The station names the County has selected are as 
follows: 

 Placeholder Station Name    Recommended Station Name 

Tysons East      Tysons-McLean 

Tysons Central 123     Tysons I&II 

Tysons Central 7     Tysons Central 

Tysons West      Tysons-Spring Hill Rd 

Wiehle Avenue     Reston-Wiehle Ave 

Reston Parkway     Reston Town Center 

Herndon-Monroe     Herndon-Reston West  

Route 28      Herndon-Dulles East 

(143)



 

The Honorable Catherine Hudgins 
Date 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
The County believes these names best represent the communities and geographic 
areas served by the stations and requests WMATA Board of Directors approval of the 
station names.  If you require further information, please contact Richard Stevens at 
(703) 877-5687 or Mark Canale at (703) 877-5688. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sharon S. Bulova 
Chairman 
 
cc: Members, Board of Supervisors 

Anthony Griffin, County Executive 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Richard Sarles, WMATA General Manager & CEO 
Lynn Hampton, MWAA President &CEO 
Patrick Nowakowski, MWAA Dulles Rail Executive Director 
Richard Stevens, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Mark Canale, FCDOT 

(144)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION - 4 
 
 
Approval of Calendar Year 2011 Forest Pest Management Suppression Program 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of the Calendar Year 2011 Forest Pest Management Suppression 
Program. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to take the 
following actions concerning Fairfax County's Calendar Year 2011 Forest Pest 
Management Suppression Program: 
 

Gypsy Moth Suppression 
 
 a. Conduct a ground treatment program that treats tree damaging gypsy 

moth infestations identified after the annual program is adopted.  
Infestations eligible for treatment must meet the regular program criterion 
of a minimum of 250 egg masses per acre. This ground treatment 
program will use Bt according to biological criteria. This program will be 
limited to a total maximum of 75 acres. 

   
 Fall Cankerworm Suppression 

 
a. Conduct a ground treatment program that controls tree-damaging fall 

cankerworm infestations identified after the annual program is adopted. 
Infestations eligible for fall cankerworm treatment must average greater 
than 90 captured female moths per barrier band.  This ground treatment 
program will use Bt according to biological criteria. This program will be 
limited to a total maximum of 75 acres. 

 
 Emerald Ash Borer 
 

a. Continue a monitoring program for life stages of the emerald ash borer in 
areas of the County that have been identified as high risk by the Virginia 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (VDACS).   Authorize 
staff to execute a Cooperative Agreement with VDACS in order to obtain  

Federal funding should it become available.  In addition, program staff will 
continue to inventory the County for ash resources as well as investigate 

(145)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

new control methods for EAB, including the use of biological control. 
 
 b. Develop and implement an ash tree management plan that will be used in 

order to determine the feasibility of protecting specimen ash trees situated 
on County owned properties. 

 
 Hemlock Woolly Adelgid 
 

a. Conduct a control program for hemlock wooly adelgid.  This program will 
be implemented on native stands of eastern hemlock (Tsuga canadensis) 
and will involve monitoring for the pest, releasing parasites and 
inventorying the County in order to locate native eastern hemlock stands.  
Staff will explore the use of insecticides for use against this pest.   

 
 Thousand Canker Disease of Walnut 
 
 a. Explore the potential impact of this disease that is threatening black 

walnut (Juglans nigra).  Develop an outreach effort to inform citizens on 
methods for protecting black walnut trees on their property. 

 
 Sudden Oak Death Disease 
  

a. Petition VDACS to include this disease to the list of insects and diseases 
that may be included in local forest pest service districts in the state of 
Virginia. 

 
b. Pending State approval, staff will conduct a monitoring program in order 

to determine if Sudden Oak Death Disease is present in Fairfax County.   
 
 Asian Longhorned Beetle 
 
 a. Petition VDACS to include this insect to the list of insects and diseases 

that may be included in local forest pest service districts in the state of 
Virginia. 

 
b. Pending State approval, develop a long term management plan for the 

asian longhorned beetle (Anoplophora glabripennis). 
 
c. Pending State approval, conduct an outreach program in order to educate 

the public on the potential impacts of this pest. 
 
 

(146)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on March 29, 2011 in order to provide sufficient notice to 
citizens of the forthcoming treatments. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia requires the submission of the annual 
Integrated Pest Management Program proposal for Board of Supervisors' approval. 
 
Gypsy Moth 
Based on egg mass surveys conducted during the fall of 2010, staff has determined that 
gypsy moth populations have remained low.  The Forest Pest Program found no 
infestations of gypsy moth that warrant treatment in calendar year 2011.   
 
Gypsy moth populations, like all insect populations, are cyclical in nature.  Periods of 
high pest levels are followed by periods of low pest levels.  There are many factors 
which influence the timing and duration of pest outbreaks and declines.  Staff believes 
that the current low gypsy moth pest levels are the result of effective treatment 
programs in the past and abundant rainfall during the spring of calendar years 2009 and 
2010.  Gypsy moth caterpillars are very susceptible to a moisture dependent fungal 
disease called Entomaphaga maimaiga.  This disease is naturally occurring in the 
environment and can potentially have a dramatic effect on gypsy moth populations if 
there is sufficient rainfall during the spring when caterpillars are small.  It should be 
noted that all areas that have gypsy moth in the United States have experienced similar 
population decreases.  Fairfax County experienced similar population crashes due to E. 
maimaiga in the mid 1990’s and in 2004.  Each of these declines were followed by 
outbreaks in following years.  Should undetected populations appear in the spring, staff 
will have the ability to provide limited ground treatment for these infestations. 
 
Attachment I portrays the cumulative gypsy moth defoliation in Virginia since 1984.  This 
map clearly shows that Fairfax County’s gypsy moth suppression program continues to 
meet its program goals by keeping gypsy moths populations below defoliation levels.  
Without a diligent program, Fairfax County would have experienced drastic tree 
mortality and caterpillar nuisance issues. 
 
Fall Cankerworm 
Fall cankerworm populations were monitored this winter in those areas of the County 
that have experienced outbreaks in the past.  The method used for this monitoring is a  
United States Forest Service approved technique that involves trapping female moths 
as they emerge in the winter.  Results of fall cankerworm monitoring indicate that fall 
cankerworm populations have remained low and no treatment will be necessary for 
spring 2011.  Staff noted that fall cankerworm populations in some areas have 

(147)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
increased since previous years but continue to be below population levels that meet 
treatment criteria.  Staff will pay close attention to this pest in the near future.  Should 
undetected populations appear in the spring, staff will have the ability to provide limited 
ground treatment for these infestations.  
 
Emerald Ash Borer 
Emerald ash borer was first identified in Fairfax County in 2003.  Due to the extremely 
destructive nature of this pest, VDACS and the United States Department of Agriculture, 
Animal Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) ordered all ash trees within a ½ mile 
radius of the introduction site be removed and destroyed.  Staff of the Forest Pest 
Program carried out this project during the spring of 2004 and immediately set in place 
a monitoring program for EAB.   
 
In July of 2008, three new infestations of EAB were discovered in Fairfax County.  
These new infestations are in the Town of Herndon, Bailey’s Crossroads and in the 
Newington area.  Based on the wide scale of severity of these infestations it was 
determined that eradication was not feasible.  This decision was made by the National 
EAB Science Advisory Council.  On July 11, 2008, a federal order quarantined Fairfax 
County for emerald ash borer.  All interstate movement of infested ash wood and wood 
products from Fairfax County is now regulated, including firewood of all hardwood 
species, nursery stock, green lumber, waste, compost and chips from ash trees. On 
July 14, 2008, VDACS put in place a similar quarantine for Fairfax County.  On July 21, 
2008, VDACS expanded the quarantine area to include the counties of Arlington, 
Fauquier, Loudoun and Prince William and the cities of Alexandria, Fairfax City, Falls 
Church, Manassas and Manassas Park.  In 2010, the quarantine was expanded to 
include the counties of Clarke and Frederick and the city of Winchester.   
 
VDACS is responsible for enforcement of the state quarantine within the 
Commonwealth.  Violations of the state quarantine constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor.  
Violations of the federal quarantine governing interstate movement of regulated articles 
will be enforced by USDA-APHIS and are subject to federal penalties. 
 
VDACS and APHIS have recommended that monitoring continue in Fairfax County. 
Forest Pest Program staff will assist state and federal personnel in this monitoring effort 
(See attachment II).  Monitoring is conducted by placing large purple traps in 
predetermined areas.  Trap placement is determined by known insect populations, 
probable avenues of insect movement, and by known ash tree density.  The information 
obtained by this monitoring effort will be used to plan future treatment options and to 
identify areas that may be suitable for parasite release.  Staff conducted similar 
monitoring efforts in calendar years 2009 and 2010.  Attachment II shows where the 
know EAB infestations have been detected in Fairfax County.  
 

(148)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Staff will continue to expand and improve our outreach effort in relation to emerald ash 
borer.  Staff will begin developing and implementing an ash tree management plan that 
will be used in order to determine the feasibility of protecting specimen ash trees 
situated on County owned properties. 
 
This insect has the potential to eliminate all ash trees in Fairfax County and will have 
huge economic impacts to homeowners, parks and private business.  Researchers are 
developing new control options for emerald ash borer and staff will continue to be 
diligent in monitoring these advances in order to pass them on to the public when 
appropriate.   
 
It is important to note that Fairfax County may be eligible for substantial reimbursement 
of costs associated with this monitoring program in 2011 through cost share 
arrangements with APHIS and VDACS. 
 
Hemlock Woolly Adelgid 
Hemlock woolly adelgid is an insect that attacks and kills eastern hemlock (Tsuga 
canadensis) trees (see attachment III).   Native eastern hemlock is relatively rare in 
Fairfax County.  The rarity of this species and the natural beauty that they impart make 
them worthy of protection. Staff has been working with researchers at Virginia Tech to 
release and monitor parasitic beetles that feed and control the adelgid insect.   Staff will 
continue to inventory the County in order to identify the natural stands of eastern 
hemlock and determine control options as appropriate.  
 
There are a number of methods for providing chemical control to combat HWA.  Staff 
will evaluate the various techniques and may propose treatment in native hemlock 
stands in the future if appropriate.  Any control activities (other than parasite release) 
will be presented to the Board for approval at a later time. 
 
Thousand Cankers Disease of Black Walnut 
Black walnut (Juglans nigra) is a native tree to Fairfax County.  Foresters have 
observed a disease called thousand cankers disease (TCD) that affects black walnut 
trees in the western United States in recent years, and have identified a beetle that 
spreads the disease.  In the summer of 2010, black walnut trees were observed to be 
declining near Knoxville, Tennessee.  Foresters confirmed that the beetle/disease had 
been artificially introduced to the eastern United States (see attachment IV). 
 
TCD has not been found in Virginia.  It is probable that it will reach Virginia in the near 
future due to the proximity of the infestation in Tennessee.  VDACS has recognized the 
importance of early detection of this pest and is in the process of developing a 
management plan for its detection and control.  Staff recommends that resources in the 
form of an outreach program be developed in order to monitor for this disease.  Key 

(149)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
targets of the outreach effort will include homeowners and private tree care companies. 
According to researchers, detecting the beetle and disease is very difficult.  Often the 
tops of the trees are first affected and branch samples must be examined by peeling 
bark back and looking for cankers.  Tree care companies routinely remove or prune 
trees for multiple reasons.  Staff would like to explore the possibility of partnering with 
tree care companies in order assist us in monitoring for this disease.  
 
Sudden Oak Death 
In 1995, a disease was found to be killing oak trees in California.  Scientist determined 
that the disease was caused by a fungus called Phytophthora ramorum or sudden oak 
death (SOD).  This disease has caused wide scale tree mortality in the western United 
States (see Attachment V).  Fortunately, SOD has only been found in a number of 
isolated locations in the eastern United States and officials feel that these infestations 
have been contained. 
 
Like other invasive insects and disease, diligent monitoring is critical in slowing the 
spread of SOD.  Recent testing methods have been developed that are simple and cost 
effective.  Staff can implement these monitoring methods as well as develop a 
management plan that will address what should happen should SOD be found in Fairfax 
County.  Part of this management plan will include an outreach component that will 
educate private and public groups on this disease and its control. 
 
In order to utilize Fund 116 resources for this pest, staff must petition VDACS to add the 
disease to the list of insects and diseases that can be controlled by service districts in 
Virginia. 
 
Asian Longhorned Beetle 
Asian longhorned beetle (Anoplophora glabripennis) is an invasive insect that is thought 
to have been brought to the United States via wood packing material used in shipping 
(see Attachment VI).  Since the mid 1990’s, ALB infestations in Chicago, Illinois, New 
York City and near Boston, Massachusetts have been discovered. Asian longhorned 
beetle (ALB) will infest many hardwood species but seems to prefer maple species.  
According to recent analysis conducted by Fairfax County Urban Forest Management, 
maple species are one of the predominant trees in our urban forest ecosystem.  ALB 
larvae will infest and kill trees by boring into the heartwood of the tree and disrupting its 
nutrient flow causing eventual tree death. 
 
Wood boring beetles such as EAB and ALB are difficult to detect.  Most ALB 
infestations in the United States have been established for a number of years before 
being detected.  This fact makes eradication particularly difficult since the population 
becomes established and has spread.  ALB has the potential to have drastic economic 
and social impacts should it be introduced in Fairfax County.  It is critical that private 

(150)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
and public tree care experts remain vigilant in monitoring for this pest.  According to the 
United States Forest Service, most of the infestations found in the United States have 
been identified by tree care professionals and informed homeowners.  Staff 
recommends that a management plan be developed that will address issues such as 
monitoring and outreach.  In order to utilize Fund 116 resources for this pest, staff must 
petition VDACS to include ALB to the list of insects and diseases that can be controlled 
by service districts in Virginia. 
 
It should be noted that there are many invasive forest insect pests and diseases that are 
potential threats to the forests of Fairfax County.  Staff will continue to keep informed of 
developing invasive forest pest issues.  Past experience with new insects and diseases 
has proven that diligent monitoring, detection and prevention are much more cost 
effective and accepted by the public than control.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Currently, the Forest Pest Program is funded through the Special Service District for the 
Control of Forest Pests. The total cost to conduct the possible ground treatment for 
gypsy moth and fall cankerworm is $19,000.  The total amount budgeted for FY 2011 for 
aerial and ground treatments is sufficient for this suppression program. 
 
It is important to note that Fairfax County may be eligible to receive an undetermined 
portion of the personnel cost associated with emerald ash borer monitoring from the 
Federal Government.  In FY 2011, Fairfax County will receive $65,000 in 
reimbursement for EAB costs. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I – Gypsy Moth Cumulative Defoliation in Virginia (1984-2009)  
Attachment II – Fairfax County – 2011 Emerald Ash Borer Trapping Program 
Attachment III – United States Forest Service Pest Alert, Hemlock Woolly Adelgid 
Attachment IV – United States Forest Service Pest Alert, Thousand Cankers Disease 
Attachment V– United States Forest Service Pest Alert, Sudden Oak Death 
Attachment VI– United States Forest Service Pest Alert, Asian longhorned Beetle 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive  
James A. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, Land Development Services, DPWES 

(151)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(152)



A
tt

ac
hm

en
t 

I

(153)



!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

Campgrounds
(Additional traps will be

 placed at all campgrounds)

This area will be a high priority trapping area in 2011. 
Area surveyed will be a 2 mile radius around from initial
known Baileys Crossroads EAB infestation

Lake Barcroft
Citizens Association

§̈¦I-95

§̈¦I-95

§̈¦I-95

This map was created by the Fairfax County Forest Pest Section and GIS office

§̈¦I-66

§̈¦I-66

§̈¦I-66

§̈¦I-395
§̈¦I-495

§̈¦I-495

§̈¦I-495

Areas of Fairfax County outside
 of the 1 mile corridor of the major highways,
 will have EAB traps placed approximately

 every 1.75 miles apart

EAB traps that are within 1/2 mile
 of major county highways will be placed
 between 3/4 to 1 mile from each other. 

Since positive traps were found in this area 
for the last 3 years, its apparent that EAB is 

established here.

No Trapping Area

Fairfax County 2011 EAB Trapping Program

!( Positive Emerald Ash Borer Sites 2008-2010
High density trapping sites along major travel corridors
Lower density trapping sites through entire county
Federal Land (Aphis and/or other Federal govt. trap areas)

µ
0 3 61.5 Miles

Dulles Toll Road

Attachment II

(154)



United States
Department of 

Agriculture

Forest Service

Northeastern Area
State and Private Forestry 

NA–PR–09–05

August 2005

Hemlock Woolly Adelgid
Native to Asia, the hemlock woolly adelgid (Adelges Native to Asia, the hemlock woolly adelgid (Adelges Native to Asia, the hemlock woolly adelgid (
tsugae) is a small, aphidlike insect that threatens the health 
and sustainability of eastern hemlock (Tsuga canadensis) 
and Carolina hemlock (Tsuga caroliniana) in the Eastern 
United States. Hemlock woolly adelgid was fi rst reported in 
the Eastern United States in 1951 near Richmond, Virginia. 
By 2005, it was established in portions of 16 States from 
Maine to Georgia, where infestations covered about half 
of the range of hemlock. Areas of extensive tree mortality 
and decline are found throughout the infested region, but 
the impact has been most severe in some areas of Virginia, 
New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and Connecticut.
Hemlock decline and mortality typically occur within 4 
to 10 years of infestation in the insect’s northern range, 
but can occur in as little as 3 to 6 years in its southern 
range. Other hemlock stressors, including drought, poor 
site conditions, and insect and disease pests such as 
elongate hemlock scale (Fiorinia externaelongate hemlock scale (Fiorinia externaelongate hemlock scale ( ), hemlock looper 
(Lambdina fi scellaria fi scellaria(Lambdina fi scellaria fi scellaria( ), spruce spider mite 
(Oligonychus ununguis), hemlock borer (Melanophila 
fulvogutta), root rot disease (Armillaria mellea), root rot disease (Armillaria mellea), root rot disease ( ), and 
needlerust (Melampsora parlowii), accelerate the rate and 
extent of hemlock mortality.

Hosts
The hemlock woolly adelgid develops and reproduces 
on all species of hemlock, but only eastern and Carolina 
hemlock are vulnerable when attacked. The range of 
eastern hemlock stretches from Nova Scotia to northern 
Alabama and west to northeastern Minnesota and eastern 
Kentucky. Carolina hemlock occurs on dry mountain 
slopes in the southern Appalachians of western Virginia, 
North and South Carolina, Georgia, and Tennessee. Eastern 
hemlock is also commonly planted as a tree, shrub, or 
hedge in ornamental landscapes. At least 274 cultivars of 
eastern hemlock are known to exist.

Description
The hemlock woolly adelgid is tiny, less than 1/16-inch 
(1.5-mm) long, and varies from dark reddish-brown 
to purplish-black in color. As it matures, it produces a 
covering of wool-like wax fi laments to protect itself and its 
eggs from natural enemies and prevent them from drying 
out. This “wool” (ovisac) is most conspicuous when the 
adelgid is mature and laying eggs. Ovisacs can be readily 

FIGURE 1.—Hemlock woolly adelgid ovisacs.

observed from late fall to early summer on the underside of 
the outermost branch tips of hemlock trees (fi gure 1).

Life History
The hemlock woolly adelgid is parthenogenetic (all 
individuals are female with asexual reproduction) and has 
six stages of development: the egg, four nymphal instars, 
and the adult. The adelgid completes two generations a year 
on hemlock. The winter generation, the  sistens, develops 
from early summer to midspring of the following year 
(June–March). The spring generation, the progrediens, 
develops from spring to early summer (March–June). The 
generations overlap in mid to late spring. 
The hemlock woolly adelgid is unusual in that it enters a 
period of dormancy during the hot summer months. The 
nymphs during this time period have a tiny halo of woolly 
wax surrounding their bodies (fi gure 2). The adelgids 
begin to feed once cooler temperatures prevail, usually in 
October, and continue throughout the winter months. 
The ovisacs of the winter generation contain up to 300 
eggs, while the spring generation ovisacs contain between 
20 and 75 eggs. When hatched, the fi rst instar nymphs, 
called crawlers, search for suitable feeding sites on the 
twigs at the base of hemlock needles. Once settled, the 
nymphs begin feeding on the young twig tissue and 
remain at that location throughout the remainder of their 
development. Unlike closely related insects that feed on 
nutrients in sap, the hemlock woolly adelgid feeds on 
stored starches. These starch reserves are critical to the 
tree’s growth and long-term survival.

(155)

tshaw0
Typewritten Text

tshaw0
Typewritten Text
Attachment III



USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Pesticide Precautionary Statement
Pesticides used improperly can be injurious to humans, animals, and plants. Follow the directions and heed all precautions on the labels.

Note: Some States have restrictions on the use of certain pesticides. Check your State and local regulations. Also, because 
registrations of pesticides are under constant review by the Federal Environmental Protection Agency, consult your county agricultural 
agent or State extension specialist to be sure the intended use is still registered.

CAUTION 
PESTICIDES

USDA Forest Service
Northeastern Area
State and Private Forestry
11 Campus Blvd., Suite 200
Newtown Square, PA 19073
www.na.fs.fed.us

FIGURE 4.—Predators introduced for control in the Eastern United      States, 
left to right (origin): Sasajiscymnus tsugae (Japan), Sasajiscymnus tsugae (Japan), Sasajiscymnus tsugae Scymnus 
sinuanodulus (China), and sinuanodulus (China), and sinuanodulus Laricobius nigrinus (Western North America).bius nigrinus (Western North America).bius nigrinus

FIGURE 2.—Hemlock woolly adelgid nymphs in dormancy.

FIGURE 3.—Chemical treatment using the soil injection method.

Dispersal and movement of hemlock woolly adelgid occur 
primarily during the fi rst instar crawler stage as a result 
of wind and by birds, deer, and other forest-dwelling 
mammals that come in contact with the sticky ovisacs and 
crawlers. Isolated infestations and long-distance movement 
of hemlock woolly adelgid, though, most often occur as the 
result of people transporting infested nursery stock.

Control
Cultural, regulatory, chemical, and biological controls 
can reduce the hemlock woolly adelgid’s rate of spread 
and protect individual trees. Actions such as moving 
bird feeders away from hemlocks and removing isolated 
infested trees from a woodlot can help prevent further 
infestations. State quarantines help prevent the movement 
of infested materials into noninfested areas.
Chemical control options, such as foliar sprays using 
horticultural oils and insecticidal soaps, are effective when 
trees can be saturated to ensure that the insecticide comes in 
contact with the adelgid. Several systemic insecticides have 
also proven effective on large trees when applied to the 
soil around the base of the tree or injected directly into the 
stem (fi gure 3). Chemical control is limited to individual 
tree treatments in readily accessible, nonenvironmentally 
sensitive areas; it is not feasible  in forests, particularly 
when large numbers of trees are infested. Chemical 
treatments offer a short-term solution, and applications may 
need to be repeated in subsequent years.
The best option for managing hemlock woolly adelgid in 
forests is biological control. Although there are natural 
enemies native to Eastern North America that feed on 
hemlock woolly adelgid, they are not effective at reducing 
populations enough to prevent tree mortality. Therefore, 
biological control opportunities using natural enemies 
(predators and pathogens) from the adelgid’s native 
environment are currently being investigated. Several 
predators known to feed exclusively on adelgids have 
been imported from China, Japan, and Western North 
America and are slowly becoming established throughout 
the infested region (fi gure 4). It will likely take a complex 
of natural enemies to maintain hemlock woolly adelgid 
populations below damaging levels. Efforts to locate, 
evaluate, and establish other natural enemies continue.

For additional information or copies of this publication, visit http://www.na.fs.fed.us/fhp/hwa.

(156)



Thousand Cankers Disease

United States
Department of Agriculture

Forest Service
Northeastern Area 

State and Private Forestry
NA–PR–02–10

Revised August 2010

Dieback and mortality of eastern black walnut (Juglans 
nigra) in several Western States have become more 
common and severe during the last decade. A tiny 
bark beetle is creating numerous galleries beneath the 
bark of affected branches, resulting in fungal infection 
and canker formation. The large numbers of cankers 
associated with dead branches suggest the disease’s 
name—thousand cankers disease. 

The principal agents involved in this disease are a newly 
identified fungus (Geosmithia sp. with a proposed name 
of Geosmithia morbida) and the walnut twig beetle 
(Pityophthorus juglandis). Both the fungus and the beetle 
only occur on walnut species. An infested tree usually 
dies within 3 years of initial symptoms.

Thousand cankers disease has been found in many 
Western States (figure 1). The first confirmation of the 
beetle and fungus within the native range of black walnut 
was in Tennessee (July 2010). The potential damage of 
this disease to eastern forests could be great because of 
the widespread distribution of eastern black walnut, the 
susceptibility of this tree species to the disease, and the 
capacity of the fungus and beetle to invade new areas 
and survive under a wide range of climatic conditions in 
the west.

Disease Symptoms
The three major symptoms of this disease are branch 
mortality, numerous small cankers on branches and the 
bole, and evidence of tiny bark beetles. The earliest 
symptom is yellowing foliage that progresses rapidly to 
brown wilted foliage, then finally branch mortality 
(figure 2). The fungus causes distinctive circular to 
oblong cankers in the phloem under the bark, which 
eventually kill the cambium (figure 3). The bark surface 
may have no symptoms, or a dark amber stain or 
cracking of the bark may occur directly above a canker. 
Numerous tiny bark beetle entrance and exit holes are 
visible on dead and dying branches (figure 4), and bark 
beetle galleries are often found within the cankers. In the 
final stages of disease, even the main stem has beetle 
attacks and cankers. 

Geosmithia sp.
Members of the genus Geosmithia have not been 
considered to be important plant pathogens, but 

Figure 1. Thousand cankers disease occurs in eight western states 
(outlined in red) and in the east was first confirmed in Knoxville, TN 
in July 2010 (see *). In the west the year when symptoms were first 
noted is given. Native distributions of four species of western walnuts 
(blue) and eastern black walnut (green) are also shown. Eastern black 
walnut is widely planted in the West, but not depicted on this map.

Figure 2. Wilting black walnut in the last stages of thousand cankers 
disease.

Figure 3.  Small branch cankers caused by Geosmithia morbida.

*

(157)

tshaw0
Typewritten Text
Attachment IV



Published by: 
USDA Forest Service  
Northeastern Area  
State and Private Forestry 
11 Campus Boulevard 
Newtown Square, PA 19073 
www.na.fs.fed.us 

Federal Recycling Program
Printed on recycled paper.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Geosmithia morbida appears to be more virulent than 
related species. Aside from causing cankers, the fungus 
is inconspicuous. Culturing on agar media is required 
to confirm its identity. Adult bark beetles carry fungal 
spores that are then introduced into the phloem when 
they construct galleries. Small cankers develop around 
the galleries; these cankers may enlarge and coalesce 
to completely girdle the branch. Trees die as a result 
of these canker infections at each of the thousands of 
beetle attack sites. 

Walnut Twig Beetle
The walnut twig beetle is native to Arizona, California, 
and New Mexico. It has invaded Colorado, Idaho, 
Oregon, Utah, and Washington where walnuts have 
been widely planted. The beetle has not caused 
significant branch mortality by itself. Through its 
association with this newly identified fungus, it appears 
to have greatly increased in abundance. Adult beetles 
are very small (1.5 to 2.0 mm long or about 1/16 in) and 
are reddish brown in color (figure 5). This species is a 
typical-looking bark beetle that is characterized by its 
very small size and four to six concentric ridges on the 
upper surface of the pronotum (the shield-like cover 
behind and over the head) (figure 5A). Like most bark 
beetles, the larvae are white, C shaped, and found in the 
phloem. For this species, the egg galleries created by 
the adults are horizontal (across the grain) and the larval 
galleries tend to be vertical (along the grain) (figure 6).

Survey and Samples
Visually inspecting walnut trees for dieback is currently 
the best survey tool for the Eastern United States.  
Look for declining trees with the symptoms described 
above. If you suspect that your walnut trees have 
thousand cankers disease, collect a branch 2 to 4 inches 

Figure 4. Exit holes made by adult walnut twig beetles.

in diameter and 6 to 12 inches long that has visible 
symptoms. Please submit branch samples to your State’s 
plant diagnostic clinic. Each State has a clinic that is 
part of the National Plant Diagnostic Network (NPDN). 
They can be found at the NPDN Web site (www.npdn.
org). You may also contact your State Department of 
Agriculture, State Forester, or Cooperative Extension 
Office for assistance.

Prepared by:  
Steven Seybold, Research Entomologist, U.S. Forest Service, 
Pacific Southwest Research Station
Dennis Haugen, Forest Entomologist, and Joseph O’Brien, 
Plant Pathologist, U.S. Forest Service, Northeastern Area State 
and Private Forestry
Andrew Graves, Postdoctoral Research Associate, UC-Davis, 
Department of Plant Pathology

Photographs:  
Figure 1:  Andrew Graves
Figure 2: Manfred Mielke, U.S. Forest Service 
Figures 3, 4, 6: Whitney Cranshaw, Colorado State University, 
www.forestryimages.org 
Figure 5: Steve Valley, Oregon Department of Agriculture

Figure 6. Walnut twig beetle galleries under the bark of a large 
branch.

Figure 5. Walnut 
twig beetle: top view 
(A) and side view (B).

1.8 mm

A

B

(158)

http://www.npdn.org
http://www.npdn.org
http://www.forestryimages.org


United States 
Department of Agriculture 

Forest Service 
State and Private Forestry 

Northeastern Area 

NA-PR-02-02 
January 2002 

Sudden Oak Death 

Oak mortality is caused by a new pathogen, 
Phytophthora ramorum 

A phenomenon known 
as Sudden Oak Death 
was first reported in 
1995 in central coastal 
California. Since then, 
tens of thousands of 
tanoaks (Lithocarpus 
densiflorus), coast live 
oaks (Quercus agrifolia), 
and California black 

In California Phytophthora ramorumoaks (Quercus kelloggii) 
causes crown symptoms and treehave been killed by a mortality.

newly identifi ed fungus, 
Phytophthora ramorum. On these hosts, the fungus causes 
a bleeding canker on the stem. The pathogen also infects 
Rhododendron spp., huckleberry (Vaccinium ovatum), bay 
laurel (Umbellularia californica), madrone (Arbutus menziesii), 
bigleaf maple (Acer macrophyllum), manzanita (Arctostaphylos 
manzanita), and California buckeye (Aesculus californica). On 
these hosts the fungus causes leaf spot and twig dieback. 

As of January 2002, the disease was known to occur only 
in California and southwestern Oregon; however, transporting 
infected hosts may spread the disease. The pathogen has the 
potential to infect oaks and other trees and shrubs elsewhere 
in the United States. Limited tests show that many oaks are 
susceptible to the fungus, including northern red oak and pin 
oak, which are highly susceptible. 

On oaks and tanoak, cankers are formed on the stems. 
Cankered trees may survive for one to several years, but once 
crown dieback begins, leaves turn from green to pale yellow 
to brown within a few weeks. A black or reddish ooze often 

bleeds from the cankers, staining the surface of the bark and 
the lichens that grow on it. Bleeding ooze may be diffi cult to 
see if it has dried or has been washed off by rain, although 
remnant dark staining is usually present. 

Necrotic bark tissues surrounded by black zone lines are 
usually present under affected bark. Because these symptoms 
can also be caused by other Phytophthora species, laboratory 
tests must be done to confirm pathogen identity. 

In the Eastern United States, other disorders of oaks have 
similar symptoms. See the reverse of this sheet for descriptions. 
If unusual oak mortality occurs and symptoms do not 
match these regional disorders, evaluate affected trees for 
Phytophthora ramorum. 

In the United States, sudden oak death is known to occur 
only along the west coast. However, the fact that widely 
traded rhododendron ornamentals can be infected with 
the pathogen and the demonstrated susceptibility of some 
important eastern oaks make introduction to eastern hardwood 
forests a significant risk. Early detection will be important for 
successful eradication. Oaks defoliated early in the growing 
season by insects or pathogens may appear dead, but leaves 
usually reflush later in the season. Canker rots, slime fl ux, leaf 
scorch, root diseases, freeze damage, herbicide injury, and 
other ailments may cause symptoms similar to those caused 
by P. ramorum. Oak wilt, oak decline, and red oak borer 
damage are potentially the most confusing. See the reverse of 
this sheet for comparisons with sudden oak death symptoms. 

To report infected trees or to receive additional information, please 
contact your State or Federal forest health specialist. On the 
Internet, visit the SOD home page at www.suddenoakdeath.org. 
To distinguish this new disease from diseases with similar 
appearance, visit www.na.fs.fed.us/SOD.

Ooze bleeds from a canker on an infected oak. Black zone lines are found under diseased bark in oak. 
(159)

tshaw0
Typewritten Text
Attachment V



Eastern Oak Disorders That Resemble Sudden Oak Death 
In eastern hardwood forests, sudden oak death can be confused, in particular, with oak wilt, oak decline, and red oak borer damage. 
Descriptions of these disorders and comparisons with sudden oak death follow. 

Oak Wilt 

Oak wilt is an aggressive fungus disease caused 
by Ceratocystis fagacearum. It is one of the most 
serious diseases in the Eastern United States, killing 
thousands of oak trees in forests, woodlots, and 
home landscapes. Susceptible hosts include most 
oaks in the red oak group and Texas live oak. 
Symptoms include wilting and discoloration of the 
foliage, premature leaf drop, and rapid death of the 
tree within days or weeks of the fi rst symptoms. 
Trees become infected with oak wilt in two ways: 
through connections between root systems of 
adjacent trees, and through insects that carry the 
fungus to other trees that have been wounded. 

Oak Decline 

Similarities: Oak wilt can also kill trees very quickly, 
especially if infection begins through root grafts. 
Differences: The oak wilt pathogen does not cause 
cankers on the stems, and no bleeding is associated 
with this disease. Dark staining may be evident 
under the bark of trees with oak wilt, but there 
are no conspicuous zone lines. Oak wilt typically 
causes red oak leaves to turn brown around the 
edges while the veins remain green. Leaves are 
rapidly shed as the tree dies. Conversely, in live oak 
with the sudden oak death pathogen, the veins first 
turn yellow and eventually turn brown. Leaves are 
often retained on the tree after it dies. 

Oak wilt quickly kills most infected trees. 
Wilting leaves turn brown at the margins 

(inset) and fall as the tree dies. 

Oak decline is a slow-acting disease complex 
that can kill physiologically mature trees in the 
upper canopy.  Decline results from interactions 
of multiple stresses, such as prolonged drought 
and spring defoliation by late frost or insects, 
opportunistic root disease fungi such as Armillaria 
mellea, and inner-bark-boring insects such as 
the twolined chestnut borer and red oak borer. 
Progressive dieback of the crown is the main 
symptom of oak decline and is an expression 
of an impaired root system. This disease can kill 
susceptible oaks within 3-5 years of the onset of 
crown symptoms. Oak decline occurs throughout 
the range of eastern hardwood forests, but is 
particularly common in the Southern Appalachian 
Mountains in North Carolina, Tennessee, and 
Virginia, as well as the Ozark Mountains in Arkansas 
and Missouri. 

Red Oak Borer 

Similarities:  Oak decline can cause death of many 
oaks on a landscape scale. Moist, dark stains may be 
present on the trunk of trees affected by oak decline. 
Differences: Oak decline shows evidence that 
dieback has occurred over several years from 
the top down and outside inward. Newly killed 
branches with twigs attached are usually found 
in the same crown as those in a more advanced 
state of deterioration killed years before. Dieback 
associated with sudden oak death occurs over a 
growing season or two. The inner bark beneath 
the dark stain associated with stem-boring-insect 
attacks has a discrete margin with no zone lines or 
evidence of canker development beyond the attack 
site. 

Oak decline can take years 
to kill an entire tree. 

Red oak borer (Enaphalodes rufulus (Haldeman)) 
attacks oaks of both red and white groups 
throughout the eastern United States, but prefers 
members of the red oak group; however, it does not 
kill trees. Outbreaks are associated with stressed 
trees that eventually die from oak decline. The 
complete life cycle takes 2 years. Adults are 1-1.5 
inches long with antennae one to two times as long 
as the body. Larvae are the damaging life stage. 
Adult females lay eggs in mid-summer in refuges 
in the crevices of the bark. Newly hatched larvae 
bore into the phloem, where they mine an irregular 
burrow 0.5-1 inch in diameter before fall. In spring 
and summer of the second year, dark, moist stains 
and fine, granular frass may be seen on the trunk. 
Exposure of the inner bark reveals the frass-packed 

burrow and the larva, if it has not bored more 
deeply into the wood to complete development. 
Mature larvae are stout, round-headed grubs about 
2 inches long before they pupate deep in the 
wood. 

Similarities: Moist, dark stains and fine frass may 
be present at sites of red oak borer attack. 
Differences: With red oak borer the inner bark 
beneath the dark stain contains a frass-packed burrow 
and has a discrete margin with no zone lines or 
evidence of canker development beyond it. 

Tunnels in the inner bark indicate 
the presence of red oak borer. 

For further information on related disorders: 

Oak Wilt: http://www.na.fs.fed.us/spfo/pubs/howtos/ht_oakwilt/toc.htm 
Oak Decline: http://www.na.fs.fed.us/spfo/pubs/fidls/oakdecline/oakdecline.htm 
Red Oak Borer: http://www.na.fs.fed.us/spfo/pubs/fidls/Red%20Oak%20Borer/redoak.htm 
Other Pest Publications: http://www.na.fs.fed.us/spfo/fth_pub.htm 

Prepared by: 

Joseph G. O’Brien, USDA Forest Service, Northeastern Area 
Manfred E. Mielke, USDA Forest Service, Northeastern Area 
Steve Oak, USDA Forest Service, Southern Region 
Bruce Moltzan, Missouri Department of Conservation

(160)



The Asian longhorned beetle (ALB) has been 
discovered attacking trees in the United States. 
Tunneling by beetle larvae girdles tree stems and 
branches. Repeated attacks lead to dieback of  the  
tree crown and, eventually, death of  the tree. ALB 
probably travelled to the United States inside solid 
wood packing material from China. The beetle has been 
intercepted at ports and found in warehouses throughout 
the United States. 

This beetle is a serious pest in China, where it kills 
hardwood trees in roadside plantings, shelterbelts, and 
plantations. In the United States the beetle prefers maple 
species (Acer spp.), including boxelder, Norway, red, 
silver, and sugar maples. Other preferred hosts are 
birches, Ohio buckeye, elms, horsechestnut, 
and willows. Occasional to rare hosts include ashes, 
European mountain ash, London planetree, 
mimosa, and poplars. A complete list of  host trees in 
the United States has not been determined.

Currently, the only effective means to eliminate ALB is 
to remove infested trees and destroy them by chipping 
or burning. To prevent further spread of  the insect, 
quarantines are established to avoid transporting infested 

United States  
Department of Agriculture

Forest Service

Animal and Plant 
Health Inspection Service

NA-PR-01-99GEN
Revised August 2008

trees and branches from the area. Early detection of  
infestations and rapid treatment response are crucial to 
successful eradication of  the beetle.

The ALB has one generation per year. Adult beetles 
are usually present from July to October, but can be 
found later in the fall if  temperatures are warm. Adults 
usually stay on the trees from which they emerged or they 
may disperse short distances to a new host to feed and 
reproduce. Each female usually lays 35-90 eggs during 
her lifetime. Some are capable of  laying more than that. 
The eggs hatch in 10-15 days. The larvae feed under the 
bark in the living tissue of  the tree for a period of  time 
and then bore deep into the wood where they pupate. The 
adults emerge from pupation sites by boring a tunnel in 
the wood and creating a round exit hole in the tree.  

For more information about Asian longhorned beetle 
in the United States, visit these U.S. Department of  
Agriculture Web sites: 

www.na.fs.fed.us/fhp/alb/

www.aphis.usda.gov/plant_health/plant_
pest_info/asian_lhb/index.shtml

Asian Longhorned Beetle (Anoplophora glabripennis):
A New Introduction

If  you suspect an Asian longhorned beetle infestation, please collect an adult beetle  
in a jar, place the jar in the freezer, and immediately notify any of  these officials or 
offices in your State: 

 State Department of Agriculture:   
	 	 •	State	Plant	Regulatory	Official	
	 	 •	State	Entomologist
 U.S. Department of Agriculture:  
	 	 •	Animal	and	Plant	Health	Inspection	Service,	
	 	 	 Plant	Protection	and	Quarantine
	 	 •	Forest	Service
	 County	Cooperative	Extension	Office
	 State	Forester	or	Department	of	Natural	Resources

(161)

tshaw0
Typewritten Text
Attachment VI



WHAT TO LOOK FOR:

2. Oval to round pits in the bark. These egg-laying 
sites or niches are chewed out by the female beetle, and a 
single egg is deposited in each niche.

3. Oozing sap.  In the summer, sap may flow from egg 
niches, especially on maple trees, as the larvae feed inside 
the tree.

4.  Accumulation of coarse sawdust around the 
base of infested trees, where branches meet the main stem, 
and where branches meet other branches. This sawdust is 
created by the beetle larvae as they bore into the main tree 
stem and branches.

1. Adult beetles.  Individuals are ¾ to 1¼ inches long, 
with jet black body and mottled white spots on the back.  
The long antennae are 1½ to 2½ times the body length with 
distinctive black and white bands on each segment.  The feet 
have a bluish tinge.

5. Round holes, 3/8 inch in diameter or larger, on the 
trunk and on branches.  These exit holes are made by adult 
beetles as they emerge from the tree.

Published by: 
USDA Forest Service  
Northeastern Area  
State and Private Forestry
Newtown Square, PA 19073
www.na.fs.fed.us  

Federal Recycling Program
Printed on recycled paper.

Photo Sources:

USDA Forest Service

USDA Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Asian Longhorned Beetle

(162)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 5 
 
 
Requesting the Issuance of Fairfax County Economic Development Authority 
Transportation District Improvement Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project), Series 
2011 and Approving Necessary Documents for the Purpose of Providing up to $225 Million 
for the Construction of the Metropolitan Washington Airport Authority (MWAA) for the Rail 
to Dulles, Phase I, (Silver Line) 
 
    
ISSUE: 
Board approval of a resolution (Attachment I) to request the issuance of Fairfax County 
Economic Development Authority Transportation District Improvement Revenue Bonds 
(Silver Line Phase I Project), Series 2011 and approve necessary documents and actions. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends approval of a resolution which:  

 
1. Requests the Fairfax County Economic Development Authority (“EDA”) to issue its 

Transportation District Improvement Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project), 
Series 2011(the “Bonds”); 

2. Approves the form of a First Supplemental Trust Agreement between the EDA and 
a trustee, a preliminary official statement and a final official statement;  

3. Approves the form of a Bond Purchase Agreement and authorizes the approval of 
the County to such agreement;  

4. Approves the making of a continuing disclosure undertaking; and  
5. Authorizes the execution and delivery of such offer documents and agreements 

relating to such transactions as may be necessary or required.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on March 29, 2011 in order to conduct the financing to enable 
the County to make payments for a portion of the County’s share of the construction costs 
of the extension of WMATA’s Metrorail system of approximately 11 miles from the Orange 
Line between East and West Falls Church station to Wiehle Avenue in Reston, including 
four stations in Tysons Corner (the “Phase I Project”).   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In accordance with the funding agreement between Metropolitan Washington Airports 
Authority, Loudoun County and the County, through the Phase I Dulles Rail Transportation 
Improvement District (the “District”), the County has made $94 million in cash payments for 
the County’s share of the Phase I Project.  The County is committed to pay up to $400 

(163)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
million of capital construction costs for the Phase I Project.  The attached financing 
documents, along with the documents approved at the Board’s June 22, 2009 meeting, will 
provide for the financing of up to $225 million in order to continue to pay the County’s 
funding share of the Phase I Project.  
 
It should be noted that in July 2009, the EDA, joined by the County and the District, filed 
suit to validate the proposed issuance of bonds to finance the County's share of the cost of 
the Phase I Project and the accompanying plan of finance.  In August 2009, the Fairfax 
County Circuit Court ruled that the financing was legal and constitutional and validated the 
bond issuance.  That ruling was appealed to the Supreme Court of Virginia on various 
grounds, including claims that the District's special tax was unconstitutional and that the 
process of creating the District was flawed.  On November 4, 2010, the Court unanimously 
affirmed the Circuit Court's ruling validating the bond issuance, and thereafter refused a 
petition to rehear the matter.  Thus, the bonds are valid under Virginia law and are not 
subject to further legal challenge in its courts. 
 
The preliminary plan of finance (attached) contemplates the use of approximately $220 
million of long term debt to be issued in 2011; additional short term variable rate debt of 
$70 million to be issued in 2012; and approximately $110 million in equity to provide the 
authorized $400 million of tax district revenues for construction and bonds.  Staff and the 
financial advisor have conducted an analysis of the financing impact on the tax district tax 
rate and have concluded that this financing plan meets the requirement of the original 
petition in that the tax rate is not expected to exceed 29 cents per $100 of assessed value 
assuming a modest growth rate of 1.5 percent of District assessed value.  The assessed 
value for the tax district equals $10.2 billion for tax year 2011.  Both the District Advisory 
Board and District Commission have reviewed and approved this plan of financing.   
 
Also in preparation for this bond sale, the County conducted its selection process for 
underwriting firms.  On November 16, 2010, the Board approved J.P. Morgan Securities 
LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to serve as joint book-running senior managing 
underwriters for the Bonds. The Board also approved several co-managers to broaden the 
investor base for this transaction.  Co-managers do not take an active role in the bond sale 
process until the bond marketing and pricing phase.  The co-managers for this transaction 
are Edward Jones, Morgan Keegan, Morgan Stanley, and Piper Jaffrey Investment 
Banking.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Sufficient appropriation exists in Fund 121, Dulles Rail Phase I Transportation 
Improvement District to support anticipated debt service payments.  The cash balance in 
the fund as of March 8, 2011 is $65.2 million. 
 
 

(164)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Board resolution requesting the issuance of the Bonds 
Attachment 2:  Preliminary Plan of Finance 
Attachment 3:  Bond Sale Schedule 
Attachment 4:  Form of First Supplemental Trust Agreement  
Attachment 5:  Form of Bond Purchase Agreement 
Attachment 6:  Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
Attachment 7:  Form of Preliminary Official Statement (Distributed to Board Members 
under separate cover.  Copy also available in the Office of the Clerk to the Board.) 
 
 
STAFF: 
Edward L. Long, Jr., Deputy County Executive 
Thomas Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation 
James V. McGettrick, Assistant County Attorney 
 

(165)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(166)



 
Attachment 1 

 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THAT THE FAIRFAX COUNTY 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ISSUE ITS 
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS 
(SILVER LINE PHASE I PROJECT) SERIES 2011, APPROVING A 
FORM OF A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY AND A TRUSTEE, A PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND A FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT; 
APPROVING THE FORM OF A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF THE COUNTY TO SUCH 
AGREEMENT; MAKING A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
UNDERTAKING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF SUCH OTHER DOCUMENTS AND AGREEMENTS 
RELATING TO SUCH TRANSACTIONS AS MAY BE NECESSARY OR 
REQUIRED 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of Fairfax County (the “County”) 
approved and established on February 23, 2004, following a public hearing and petition filed 
with the Board (the “Petition”), the Phase I Dulles Rail Transportation Improvement District (the 
“District”) for the purpose of providing transportation improvements to the Washington 
Metropolitan Area Transit Authority’s (“WMATA”) transportation system, known as Metrorail, 
in the District; and 

WHEREAS, the County has made a $400,000,000 financial commitment (the 
“Commitment”) for a portion of the cost of an extension of WMATA’s Metrorail of 
approximately 11 miles, from the Orange Line between East and West Falls Church stations to 
Wiehle Avenue in Reston, including four stations in Tysons Corner (the “Phase I Project”) 
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement to Fund the Capital Cost of Construction of Metrorail in 
the Dulles Corridor entered into as of July 19, 2007 (the “Funding Agreement”), by and among 
the County, Loudoun County, Virginia (“Loudoun County”), and the Metropolitan Washington 
Airports Authority (“MWAA”); and  

WHEREAS, the County intends to fulfill its Commitment under the Funding Agreement 
from special tax revenues (the “Special Tax Revenues”) that result from a levy of a special 
improvement tax in the District (the “Special Improvements Tax”) and proceeds of the County’s 
Economic Development Authority (“EDA”) Transportation District Improvement Revenue 
Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project) (the “Bonds”) secured by the Special Tax Revenues; and   

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2009 the Board passed a resolution (the “2009 Resolution”) 
which approved a form of a Project Agreement -- Phase I Dulles Rail by and among the Board, 
the District and EDA, which sets forth, among other things, the agreement and respective 
responsibilities of the County, EDA and the District regarding the method of financing a portion 
of the cost of the Phase I Project, including (a) the request by the District to the County to levy 
the Special Improvements Tax and collect the Special Tax Revenues in an amount sufficient for 
the District or the County, as the agent of the District, to make debt service payments on the 
Bonds, (b) the request by the District and the County to EDA to issue the Bonds for the purpose 
of providing financing for a portion of the cost of the Phase I Project, (c) EDA’s agreement to 
make available the proceeds of Bonds for financing a portion of the cost of the Phase I Project 
and (d) the District’s undertaking to request the Board to make payments from the Special Tax 

 (167)



 

2 
DC1 1953412v.5 

Revenues collected, in an amount sufficient to pay debt service on EDA’s Bonds, directly to the 
Trustee (as defined below) for the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2009 Resolution, the Board approved the form of a Trust 
Agreement by and between EDA and a qualified bank and trust company to be selected by EDA 
to act as trustee (the “Trustee”), which provides for, among other things, initial Bonds to be 
issued from time to time, in one or more series, as senior lien or subordinate lien bonds, bearing 
interest at fixed or variable interest rates, in an aggregate amount that, together with other 
District funds, will finance the Phase I Project capital costs, as set forth in the Petition, in an 
amount not to exceed the sum of $400,000,000 plus the amount of any debt service reserves 
(including a revenue stabilization fund); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2009 Resolution the Board authorized the initiation of the 
judicial determination of the validity of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, on August 28, 2009, the Fairfax County Circuit Court validated the Bonds, 
the Trust Agreement and the Project Agreement and held the imposition and levy of the Special 
Improvements Tax were authorized by applicable Commonwealth of Virginia law (the “Final 
Order”); and 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court of Virginia on November 4, 2010, upheld the Final 
Order and on January 21, 2011, denied a petition for rehearing; and 

WHEREAS, the County is requesting EDA to consider a resolution authorizing the 
issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds (defined below) to provide financing for the Phase I Project; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Petition, the District is not to enter into any agreement for 
the purpose of making Special Tax Revenues available to be used to pay for costs of the Phase I 
Project, unless and until the District concludes in good faith, assuming no more than 1.5% 
average annual growth rate on the assessed value of the commercial or industrial use property 
taxed in the District, that the Special Tax Revenues already collected and placed in the rate 
stabilization fund plus Special Tax Revenues reasonably anticipated to be collected in the future 
at rates not to exceed a maximum rate of twenty-nine (29) cents per one hundred dollars ($100) 
of the tax base of the district, will be sufficient to (a) pay amounts reasonably anticipated to be 
due pursuant to the commitments being made in such agreement for the Phase I Project and (b) 
maintain reserves for the commitments being made and anticipated to be made in such agreement 
at levels deemed reasonable and prudent by the District Commission (the “Petition Tax 
Restriction”); and      

WHEREAS, the County reaffirms its expectation that the EDA will not issue the Series 
2011 Bonds unless it can demonstrate compliance with the Petition Tax Restriction; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to approve the form of a first supplemental trust 
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) between EDA and the Trustee, that will set forth 
details of bonds, to be designated “Fairfax County Economic Development Authority 
Transportation District Improvement Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project) Series 2011” 
(the “Series 2011 Bonds”); and 

(168)



 

3 
DC1 1953412v.5 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed form of a bond purchase 
agreement (including a letter of representation of the County), between EDA and the 
underwriters for the Series 2011 Bonds (the “Underwriters”) and approved by the County, which 
provides for the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds to the Underwriters (the “Bond Purchase 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed Preliminary Official 
Statement describing the Series 2011 Bonds, EDA, the County, the District and the Phase I 
Project (the “Preliminary Official Statement”); and 

WHEREAS, the County will undertake primary responsibility on behalf of itself EDA 
and the District for any annual and other reports, notices or disclosures that may be required 
under Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and make a continuing disclosure undertaking in the form of 
the continuing disclosure agreement presented to the Board (the “Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly reviewed and considered the forms of the Supplemental 
Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement and has determined that each is in acceptable form; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to delegate to the Chairman 
and Vice Chairman of the Board, the County Executive and the Deputy County Executive/Chief 
Financial Officer of the County (each, a “Delegate”) the power to approve the sale of the Series 
2011 Bonds and the details of these transactions but subject to the guidelines and standards 
established hereby; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board as follows: 

 SECTION 1.  EDA is hereby requested to authorize and issue the Series 2011 Bonds in 
an aggregate principal amount that will provide construction funds in an amount that will not 
exceed the sum of $225,000,000 for the purpose of financing the Phase I Project, as provided in 
the Trust Agreement and Supplemental Agreement on a date no later than December 31, 2011;  
such Series 2011 Bonds are requested to be sold to the Underwriters pursuant to the terms of the 
Bond Purchase Agreement.  

SECTION 2.  The form of the Supplemental Trust Agreement presented to this meeting, 
providing details for the custody, investment and disbursement of the proceeds of the Series 
2011 Bonds, is hereby approved in such form and containing substantially the terms and 
provisions therein set forth with such additions and modifications as shall be approved by a 
Delegate. 

SECTION 3.  The form of Bond Purchase Agreement presented to this meeting 
providing for the purchase of the Series 2011 Bonds, is hereby approved and a Delegate, as 
appropriate, be, and the same is hereby authorized, directed and empowered to execute an 
approval to such Bond Purchase Agreement and the related letter of representation with such 
additions and modifications as shall be approved by a Delegate, such execution thereof being 
conclusive evidence of such approval.      

(169)



 

4 
DC1 1953412v.5 

SECTION 4.  The form of the Preliminary Official Statement is hereby approved and 
deemed “final” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, with such additions and modifications as shall be approved by a Delegate.  The 
distribution and use by the Underwriters of the Series 2011 Bonds of a final Official Statement 
relating to the Series 2011 Bonds (the “Official Statement”) is hereby approved.  The Official 
Statement shall be completed with the pricing and other information in substantially the form of 
the Preliminary Official Statement approved this day with such minor changes, insertions and 
omissions as may be approved by a Delegate. 

SECTION 5.  The form of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement presented to this 
meeting be, and the same hereby is, approved, and a Delegate, as appropriate, be, and the same is 
hereby authorized, directed and empowered to execute and deliver, under seal, in the name and 
on behalf of the County, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement in such form and containing 
substantially the terms and provisions therein contained, with such additions and modifications 
as shall be approved by the person executing the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, such 
execution thereof being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

SECTION 6.  The execution and delivery by a Delegate of the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement and the Bond Purchase Agreement and any other agreements, documents, closing 
papers and certificates executed and delivered pursuant to this Resolution shall be conclusive 
evidence of their approval of the changes, if any, in the forms thereof and of their authority to 
execute and deliver such agreements, documents, certificates and closing papers on behalf of the 
Board. 

SECTION 7.  The members, officers, legal counsel, agents and employees of the Board, 
the County and the Commission, and the officers and agents of EDA, the District and the Trustee 
are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of 
the Series 2011 Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the Supplemental Agreement, the Project 
Agreement and the Bond Purchase Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance 
of all the terms, covenants, provisions and agreements of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the 
Supplemental Agreement, the Project Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Official 
Statement, and, also, to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of this 
Resolution. 

SECTION 8.  Each Delegate is authorized to execute one or more certificates, 
evidencing the determinations made or other actions carried out pursuant to the authority granted 
in this Resolution, and any such certificates, documents or agreements shall be conclusive 
evidence of the actions or determinations as stated therein. 

SECTION 9.  All actions taken by the Board and the members, officers and employees 
of the Board in connection with this Resolution and the 2009 Resolution, and the authorization, 
execution and delivery of the agreements, certificates and other documents to be executed by the 
Board and delivered in connection with this Resolution are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

SECTION 10.  Any and all resolutions of the Board or portions thereof in conflict with 
the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. All 
capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings as set forth in the Trust Agreement.   

SECTION 11.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

(170)



Attachment II 
Fairfax County, Virginia 

Dulles Metrorail Phase I, Transportation Improvement District 
Summary Preliminary Plan of Finance 

 

  As of March 7, 2011 

I. Cash Flow  
 
a. Preliminary schedules from MWAA indicate that Fairfax County’s $400 million contribution to the 

project will be payable as follows: 
 
Projected Source of Payment $ in Millions 
Paid Cash in FY2009 25.0 
Paid Cash in FY2010 22.0 
Paid Cash in FY2011 47.0 
Paid from Series 2011 Bonds 220.0 
Paid Cash in FY2012 16.0 
Paid from Series 2012 Bonds 70.0 
Total $400.0 

 
b. The $160 million of tax revenue collected will be used to a) fund payments to MWAA b) fund the 

Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Revenue Stabilization Fund and c) pay debt service on the 
bonds. 
 
Projected Use of Tax Revenue $ in Millions 
Tax Revenue Collected as of Feb 2011 160.0 
Paid to MWAA  (94.0) 
Paid Legal and Miscellaneous Fees (0.5) 
Deposit to Series 2011 Debt Service Reserve Fund (16.0) 
Deposit to Series 2011 Revenue Stabilization Fund (16.0) 
Projected FY2012 Tax Collection 22.0 
Paid to MWAA in FY2012 (16.0) 
FY2012 Debt Service for the Series 2011 Bonds (14.0) 
Deposit to the Series 2012 Revenue Stabilization Fund (4.5) 
Projected Cash Balance as of June 30, 2012 $21.0 

 
II. Bond Security 

 
a. The Fairfax County Economic Development Authority (“EDA”) will issue bonds secured by the 

revenue collected by the Transportation Improvement District (the “District”) 
b. The bonds will be additionally secured by  

i. A Debt Service Reserve Fund, approximately equal to maximum annual debt service on the 
bonds. 

ii. A Revenue Stabilization Fund, funded in an amount up to the maximum annual debt service on 
the bonds. At the time each of the bonds are issued, the Revenue Stabilization Fund will be 
funded up to the maximum amount.   

 
III. Bond Structure 

 
a. The EDA will issue the following series of bonds to fund the cash flow requirements: 

i. $220 million in May, 2011 (fixed rate) 
ii. $70 million in Fall, 2011 (variable rate) 

b. A portion of the bonds will be issued in variable rate mode. Variable rate bonds may be redeemed at 
any time with 30 days notice, meaning, the debt could be retired early with any excess cash flow. 

c. Minimum debt service coverage requirement of 1.2 times senior lien debt and 1.0 times subordinate 
lien debt.  

d. All bonds are amortized over 25 years with level debt service payments 
e. No capitalized interest during construction.  

(171)



Critical Path Events  
Fairfax County Economic Development Authority 

Transportation Revenue Bonds (Dulles Metrorail Project), Series 2011 
Attachment III 

 
 

    
     

    

Prepared by Public Financial Management  3/10/11 9:05 AM 

Jan-11

S M T W T F S

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

Feb-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28

Mar-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

Apr-11

S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

May-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

Week of Activity & Event 
Responsible 

Party 

January 3rd   
 
Working group kickoff call 
 

All 

January 10th  
 
First draft of Bond Documents distributed 
 

SA 

January 17th  

 
Monday, January 17

th
 – Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

Comments due on first draft of Bond Documents 
 

-- 
All 

January 24th  
 

 
RFP for Trustee Services distributed  
Second draft of Bond Documents distributed 
 

PFM  
SA 

January 31st   
 
Comments due on second draft of Bond Documents 
 

All 

February 7th 
 
Third draft of Bond Documents distributed  
 

SA 

February 14th  

 
Proposals for Trustee Services due  
Comments due on third draft of Bond Documents 
 

-- 
All 

February 21st  

 
Monday, February 21

st
 – Presidents’  Day 

Trustee Selection 
Finalize Rating Agency Presentation 
Information to Rating Agencies 
TBD – Tax Assessment Info available 
 

-- 
PFM, FX 
PFM, FX 

PFM 
FX 

February 28th 
 
Rating Agency Meetings 
 

FX, PFM, UW 

March 7th   
 
Friday March 11

th – Receive Bond Ratings 
 

-- 

March 28th  Tuesday, March 29
th

 – County Board considers Bond 
Documents FX 

April 4th 

 
TBD – District Advisory Board Meeting 
TBD – District Commission Meeting 
 

FX 
FX 

(172)



Critical Path Events  
Fairfax County Economic Development Authority 

Transportation Revenue Bonds (Dulles Metrorail Project), Series 2011 
Attachment III 

 
 

    
     

    

Prepared by Public Financial Management  3/10/11 9:05 AM 

Jan-11

S M T W T F S

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

Feb-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28

Mar-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

Apr-11

S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

May-11

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

Week of Activity & Event 
Responsible 

Party 

April 11th Due Diligence Call UWC 

April 18th 

 
Finalize POS 
Tuesday, April 19

th
 – Fairfax County EDA Board Meeting 

 

SA 
FX 

April 25th  Tuesday,  April 26
th – Mail POS SA 

May 2nd  Market Bonds UW 

May 9th 

 
Tuesday, May 10

th
 – Bond Pricing and Signing of BPA 

Wednesday, May 11
th – Fairfax County Golf Tournament 

 

UW, PFM, FX 
-- 

May 16th  Finalize and mail Official Statement 
Finalize Closing Documents 

SA 
All 

May 23rd   
 
Thursday, May 26

th
  – Closing 

  
All 

 
 
 

Legend: 
FX = Fairfax County 

SA = Sidley Austin, Bond Counsel 
PFM = Public Financial Management, Financial Advisor 

UW = Underwriters, Citi and JP Morgan 
UWC = Underwriter’s Counsel, Hunton & Williams 

 
 

(173)



 

DC1 1895334v.3 

Attachment 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 

to 
 
 
 

____________________, 

Trustee 
 
 
 

                                       

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT 

                                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated as of _______, 2011 
 
 
 
 

(174)



 i 
DC1 1895334v.3 

Table of Contents 

 
 Page 
Parties and Preamble ........................................................................................................................1 

Section 1.  Terms of the Series 2011 Bonds ....................................................................................2 

Section 2.  Redemption Provisions of the Series 2011 Bonds. ........................................................4 

Section 3.  Authentication of Series 2011 Bonds ............................................................................5 

Section 4.  Sale and Application of Proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds .........................................5 

Section 5.  Tax Covenants ...............................................................................................................5 

Section 6.  Recitals, Statements and Representations made by Authority, not Trustee ..................7 

Section 7.  First Supplemental Trust Agreement as supplemental agreement .................................7 

Section 8.  Authority, County, Trustee and Bondholders Alone to Have Rights ............................7 

Section 9.  Trustee to Perform Duties of Bond Registrar ................................................................7 

Section 10.  Identifying Information ................................................................................................7 

Section 11.  Headings Not Part of Agreement; Certain Definitions ................................................7 

Section 12.  Covenants to Bind Successors .....................................................................................7 

 
 

(175)



 

1 
DC1 1895334v.3 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT 

This FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT, dated as of ________, 2011, 
by and between FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a 
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”), and ______________, 
a banking corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of 
America, and having a corporate trust office in ________, Virginia, which is authorized under 
such laws to exercise corporate trust powers and is subject to examination by state authority, 
trustee under the Trust Agreement hereinafter mentioned (the “Trustee”): 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Authority has executed and delivered a Trust Agreement, dated as of 
_________, 2011 (the “Trust Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Trustee, for 
the purpose of fixing and declaring the conditions upon which bonds are to be issued, 
authenticated, delivered, secured and accepted by all persons who shall from time to time be or 
become holders thereof, and in order to secure the payment of all bonds at any time issued and 
outstanding thereunder, and the interest thereon, according to their tenor, purport and effect; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Section 208 of Trust Agreement, the 
Authority by resolution, adopted on June 24, 2009 (the “2009 authorizing resolution”), 
authorized the issuance in one or more series of Transportation District Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, as senior lien or subordinate lien bonds, bearing interest at fixed or variable interest rates, 
in an aggregate amount that, together with other Phase I Dulles Rail Transportation District  
funds, to finance the costs of the extension of the existing Washington Metropolitan Area 
Transportation Authority’s Metrorail transportation system by approximately 11 miles, from the 
Metrorail Orange Line between East and West Falls Church stations to Wiehle Avenue in 
Reston, including four stations in Tyson’s Corner (the “Phase I Project”), in an amount to 
provide proceeds in an amount not to exceed the sum of $400,000,000 plus the amount of any 
debt service reserves (including a revenue stabilization fund); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Section 208 of the Trust Agreement, 
the Authority has by resolution, adopted on ________, 2011 (the “2011 authorizing resolution”) 
determined to authorize the issuance of the Authority’s Transportation District Improvement 
Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project) Series 2011 (the “Series 2011 Bonds”) in aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed ________ to finance a portion of the costs of the Phase I Project; 
and   

WHEREAS, Section 1101(e) of the Trust Agreement provides that the Authority may 
enter into a supplement to the Trust Agreement, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, as shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement, to provide for the issuance 
and to fix the details of the initial series of bonds to be issued under Section 208 of the Trust 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this First Supplemental Trust Agreement have 
been duly authorized by the 2011 authorizing resolution, and the Authority has requested the 
Trustee to join with it in the execution of this First Supplemental Trust Agreement; and 

(176)



 

2 
DC1 1895334v.3 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia and by the resolutions of the Authority to happen, exist and be 
performed precedent to and in the execution of this First Supplemental Trust Agreement have 
happened, exist and have been performed as so required; and 

WHEREAS, the Trustee has accepted the trusts created by this First Supplemental Trust 
Agreement and in evidence thereof has joined in the execution hereof; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT 
WITNESSETH, that in consideration of the premises and of the acceptance by the Trustee of 
the trusts created hereby and by the Trust Agreement, and also for and in consideration of the 
sum of One Dollar to the Authority in hand paid by the Trustee at or before the execution and 
delivery of this First Supplemental Trust Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, it is mutually agreed and covenanted by and between the parties hereto, as 
follows: 

Section 1. Terms of the Series 2011 Bonds.  The Series 2011 Bonds shall be 
designated “Fairfax County Economic Development Authority Transportation District 
Improvement Revenue Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project) Series 2011”.  The Series 2011 
Bonds shall be issued in registered form without coupons, registered in the name of CEDE & 
Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, and numbered R-1 and upward.  The 
definitive Series 2011 Bonds issued under the provisions of the Trust Agreement as 
supplemented this First Supplemental Agreement shall be in substantially the form set forth in 
the Trust Agreement.  The Series 2011 Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $______, shall be dated the date of their delivery and shall be issued in denominations of 
$5,000 or any multiple thereof.  All of the Series 2011 Bonds shall be Current Interest Bonds.  
$_______ of the Series 2011 Bonds shall be Serial Bonds maturing in the years, in the principal 
amounts and bearing interest at the rates per annum (based upon a 360-day year of twelve 30 day 
months), as follows: 

Year 
______ 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

20__ $ % 
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   

(177)



 

3 
DC1 1895334v.3 

20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   
20__   

 

$________ of the Series 2011 Bonds shall be Term Bonds maturing on _______, 20__  
bearing interest at the rate of ___% per annum and on ______, 20___ bearing interest at the rate 
of ____% per annum.  Interest on the Series 2011 Bonds shall be payable semiannually on the 
1st day of _____ and ______ in each year to maturity, commencing __________.  The record 
date for the Series 2011 Bonds shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the 
calendar month next preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date. 

The Sinking Fund Requirements, defined and referred to in Sections 101 and 301 of the 
Trust Agreement, for the Term Bonds maturing _______, 20__  and _______, herein authorized, 
shall be the following amounts on _____st of the following years: 

Year Principal Amount 

20__         $ 
20__*            

__________________ 
* Final maturity 

Year Principal Amount 

20__         $ 
20__*            

__________________ 
* Final maturity 

At its option, to be exercised not less than forty-five (45) days prior to each such 
applicable Interest Payment Date on which Series 2011 Bonds are subject to call for redemption 
under the provisions of the Trust Agreement except from monies other than monies set aside or 
deposited for the redemption of the Series 2011 Bonds, the Authority may (a) deposit monies 
with the Trustee to be used to purchase Series 2011 Bonds, or direct the Trustee to cause monies 
in the Debt Service Subfund (only to the extent said moneys are in excess of the amount required 
for payment of the Series 2011 Bonds theretofore matured or called for redemption and the total 
amount of interest and principal scheduled to become due on the next succeeding Interest 
Payment Date or Principal Payment Date) to be used for such purchases, at a price not exceeding 
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to such applicable Interest Payment Date, or 
(b) receive a credit against the Sinking Fund Requirements for Series 2011 Bonds which prior to 
such date have been purchased by the Authority and presented to the Trustee for cancellation or 
redeemed (otherwise than in satisfaction of prior Sinking Fund Requirements) and canceled by 
the Trustee and, in either case, not theretofore applied as a credit against any Sinking Fund 
Requirement.  Each such Series 2011 Term Bond so purchased, delivered or previously 

(178)



 

4 
DC1 1895334v.3 

redeemed will be credited by the Trustee at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the 
current Sinking Fund Requirement with respect to Series 2011 Bonds due on the same date as the 
Term Bond so purchased, delivered or previously redeemed and canceled.  Any excess over such 
current Sinking Fund Requirement will be credited against the future Sinking Fund 
Requirements of Term Bonds with the same maturity date in such manner as the Authority shall 
determine, and the principal amount of such Series 2011 Bonds with such maturity date to be 
redeemed by mandatory sinking fund redemption will be reduced accordingly. 

Section 2. Redemption Provisions of the Series 2011 Bonds.  

Mandatory Redemption.  The Series 2011 Term Bonds stated to mature on _____, 20__ 
shall be called for redemption, in the manner and under the terms and conditions provided in the 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement and in this Section 2 hereof, in part, on each ______  in 
the principal amounts equal to the respective Sinking Fund Requirements for said Term Bonds 
set forth in Section 1 (less the principal amount of any such Term Bonds retired by purchase and 
otherwise subject to adjustment as provided in the Trust Agreement) from moneys in the Debt 
Service Subfund at a Redemption Price equal to par plus accrued interest thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption. 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2011 Bonds maturing on or before ________, 20__, 
are not subject to redemption prior to their stated date of maturity.  The Series 2011 Bonds 
maturing after _______, 20__, are subject to redemption at the option of the Authority, as 
directed by the County and the District, in whole or in part, at any time on or after ______, 20__, 
at a Redemption Price equal to ____% of the principal amount of the Series 2011 Bonds to be 
redeemed plus interest accrued thereon to the Redemption Date. 

Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 but not more than 90 days before the redemption date 
of any Series 2011 Bonds, whether in whole or in part, the Trustee will cause notice of any such 
redemption to be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to all holders of Series 2011 
Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Any defect in such notice or the failure to mail such 
notice, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other Series 
2011 Bonds.  While the Series 2011 Bonds are held in the name of DTC or its nominee, such 
redemption notices will be sent to Cede & Co., not to the beneficial owners of the Series 2011 
Bonds. 

Any notice of optional redemption of the Series 2011 Bonds may state that it is 
conditioned upon there being available on the redemption date an amount of money sufficient to 
pay the Redemption Price plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, and any 
conditional notice so given may be rescinded at any time before the payment of the redemption 
price if any such condition so specified is not satisfied.  If a redemption does not occur after a 
conditional notice is given due to an insufficient amount of funds on deposit by the Authority, 
the corresponding notice of redemption shall be deemed to be revoked. 

If the Authority gives an unconditional notice of redemption, then on the redemption date 
the Series 2011 Bonds called for redemption will become due and payable.  If the Authority 
gives a conditional notice of redemption and if on the redemption date money to pay the 
Redemption Price of the affected Series 2011 Bonds shall have been set aside in escrow with the 
Trustee or a depositary (either, a “depositary”) for the purpose of paying such Series 2011 
Bonds, then on the redemption date the Series 2011 Bonds will become due and payable.  In 

(179)



 

5 
DC1 1895334v.3 

either case, if on the redemption date Authority holds money to pay the Series 2011 Bonds called 
for redemption, thereafter, no interest will accrue on those Series 2011 Bonds, and a 
bondholder’s only right will be to receive payment of the redemption price upon surrender of 
those Series 2011 Bonds. 

Section 3. Authentication of Series 2011 Bonds.  Upon their execution in the form 
and manner set forth in the Trust Agreement and this First Supplemental Trust Agreement, the 
Series 2011 Bonds shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar for authentication, and the Bond 
Registrar is hereby authorized and directed to authenticate and the Trustee shall cause the Bond 
Registrar to deliver the Series 2011 Bonds for the account of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and 
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (collectively, the “Underwriters”), at The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York, against payment therefor in accordance with and subject to the 
provisions of Sections 208 of the Trust Agreement and Section 4 hereof. 

Section 4. Sale and Application of Proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds.   

(a) The negotiated sale of the Series 2011 Bonds to the Underwriters pursuant to the 
terms set forth in a Bond Purchase Agreement dated ________, 2011 between the Authority and 
the Underwriters is hereby confirmed. 

(b) The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds in the amount of $_______, together with 
$_______ [provided by the County] shall be deposited by the Authority in accordance with the 
District Project Contract and the Trust Agreement, simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 
2011 Bonds as follows: 

(1) with the Trustee, to the credit of the Reserve Subfund, the amount of $________; 
and 

(2) with the Trustee, to the credit of the Costs of Issuance Account in the 
Construction Subfund the amount of $_______; and  

(3) with the Trustee, to the credit of the Construction Account in the Construction 
Subfund, the amount of $___________.  

Section 5. Tax Covenants.  The Authority covenants that it will not take any action 
which will, or fail to take any action which failure will, cause interest on the Series 2011 Bonds 
to become includable in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax 
purposes pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(a) As of a date not later than five years after the issue date of the Series 2011 
Bonds (the “Initial Installment Computation Date”), and at least once every five years thereafter, 
the Authority shall cause the Rebate Liability to be computed by a Rebate Analyst and will 
deliver a copy of the applicable Rebate Liability calculation to the Trustee (the “Rebate Liability 
Certificate”).  Amounts paid for the purpose of funding the Rebate Liability, or otherwise made 
available therefor, shall be deposited by the Trustee in the Rebate Subfund. 

(1) not later than sixty (60) days after each Initial Installment 
Computation Date, the Authority shall pay, or direct the Trustee to pay from amounts in 

(180)



 

6 
DC1 1895334v.3 

the Rebate Subfund, to the United States of America at least ninety percent (90%) of the 
Rebate Liability as set forth in the Rebate Liability Certificate prepared with respect to 
such installment computation date; 

(2) no later than sixty (60) days after the installment computation date 
that is the fifth anniversary of the Initial Installment Computation Date and no later than 
sixty (60) days after every fifth anniversary date thereafter until final payment of the 
applicable Series of Bonds, the Authority shall direct the Trustee to pay from amounts in 
the Rebate Subfund (such amounts constituting Excess Earnings as consistent with the 
tax certificate delivered in connection with the issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds (as 
supplemented and amended from time to time, the “Authority Tax Certificate”), 
transferred from the Construction Subfund, Reserve Subfund and Revenue Stabilization 
Subfund and any of their applicable accounts) to the United States of America not less 
than the amount, if any, by which ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Liability set forth in 
the most recent Rebate Liability Certificate exceeds the aggregate of all such payments 
theretofore made to the United States of America with respect to the applicable Series of 
Bonds; 

(3) no later than sixty (60) days after final payment of a Series of 
Bonds, the Authority shall pay, or direct the Trustee to pay from amounts in the Rebate 
Subfund, to the United States of America the amount, if any, by which 100% of the 
Rebate Liability set forth in the Rebate Liability Certificate with respect to the date of 
final payment of the applicable Series of Bonds exceeds the aggregate of all payments 
theretofore made pursuant to this Section. 

(b)  The Authority represents that it will instruct the Trustee as to the final 
application of the amounts in the Rebate Subfund to the make payments to the United 
States of America of all or a portion of the Rebate Liability on such dates or amounts in 
order for the Authority to comply with the conditions in this section of the First 
Supplemental Trust Agreement and the Authority Tax Certificate. 

All such payments shall be made by, or at the direction of, an Authority 
Representative from any legally available source, including moneys in the Rebate Subfund. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, (i) no such Rebate 
Liability payment need be made if the Authority receives and delivers to the Trustee an Opinion 
of Bond Counsel to the effect that such payment (1) is not required under the Code to prevent the 
Series 2011 Bonds from becoming “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the 
Code, or (2) may or should be calculated and paid on some alternative basis under the Code, and 
the Authority complies with such alternative basis and (ii) an EDA Representative may direct the 
Trustee to transfer all or any portion of the moneys held for the credit of the Rebate Subfund to 
any other Subfund or account under the Trust Agreement to which such a transfer may be made 
under the terms of the Authority Tax Certificate. 

The Trustee shall provide the Authority within ten (10) days after each _____, or 
other computation date selected by the Authority, and within ten (10) days after the final 
payment of a Series of Bonds with such reports and information with respect to earnings of 
amounts held under the Trust Agreement and this First Supplemental Trust Agreement as may be 
requested by the Authority to comply with the provisions of this Section. 

(181)



 

7 
DC1 1895334v.3 

Section 6. Recitals, Statements and Representations made by Authority, not 
Trustee.  The recitals, statements and representations contained herein shall be taken and 
construed as made by and on the part of the Authority and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee 
assumes and shall be under no responsibility for the correctness of the same. 

Section 7. First Supplemental Trust Agreement as Supplemental Agreement.  
This First Supplemental Trust Agreement is executed and shall be construed as an agreement 
supplemental to the Trust Agreement and shall form a part thereof, and the Trust Agreement as 
hereby and heretofore supplemented is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 8. Authority, County, Trustee and Bondholders Alone to Have Rights.  
Nothing in this First Supplemental Trust Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to give to any person other than the Authority, the County, the Trustee and the holders 
of the Series 2011 Bonds issued under the Trust Agreement any legal or equitable right, remedy 
or claim under or in respect of the Trust Agreement, or this First Supplemental Trust Agreement, 
or under any covenant, condition or provisions therein or herein or in said Series 2011 Bonds 
contained; and all such covenants, conditions and provisions are and shall be held to be for the 
sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the County, the Trustee and the holders of said Series 
2011 Bonds issued under the Trust Agreement. 

Section 9. Trustee to Perform Duties of Bond Registrar.  The Trustee accepts and 
agrees to execute the trusts imposed upon it as Bond Registrar under this First Supplemental 
Trust Agreement, but only upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Trust Agreement and 
subject to the provisions of the Trust Agreement, to all of which the parties hereto and the 
owners of the Series 2011 Bonds agree. 

Section 10. Identifying Information.  To help the government fight the funding of 
terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires the Trustee to obtain, verify and 
record information that identifies each person who opens an account.  The Authority agrees to 
provide documentation to verify its formation and existence as a legal entity if requested by the 
Trustee.  The Trustee may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, and identification and 
authorization documents from the Authority or other relevant documentation. 

Section 11. Headings Not Part of Agreement; Certain Definitions.  (a)  The title of 
Sections and any wording on the cover of this First Supplemental Trust Agreement are inserted 
for convenience only and are not a part hereof. 

(b)  All terms not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Trust 
Agreement. 

Section 12. Covenants to Bind Successors.  All the covenants, stipulations, promises 
and agreements in this First Supplemental Trust Agreement contained made by or on behalf of 
the Authority or for the Trustee shall inure to and bind their respective successors and assigns. 

(182)



 

8 
DC1 1895334v.3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Fairfax County Economic Development Authority has 
caused this First Supplemental Trust Agreement to be executed by its Chairman and its official 
seal to be impressed hereon and attested by its Secretary, and _______ has caused this First 
Supplemental Trust Agreement to be executed in its behalf by an authorized officer, all as of the 
day and year first above written. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 
     By ________________________________ 

     Chairman 
 
[SEAL] 

Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
Secretary 

     ___________________________, 
     Trustee 
 
 
     By ________________________________ 
      Name:   
      Title:   
 
 

(183)



 

DC1 1953416v.1 

Attachment 5 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

$[AMOUNT] 
FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS  
(SILVER LINE PHASE I PROJECT) 

SERIES 2011 
 

_______, 2011 

 
Fairfax County Economic Development Authority 
8300 Boone Boulevard, Suite 450 
Vienna, Virginia 22182 
 

The undersigned, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, jointly and 
severally, as underwriters (the “Underwriters”), hereby agree to purchase the above-captioned bonds (the 
“Series 2011 Bonds”) from the Fairfax County Economic Development Authority (the “Authority”) 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Bond Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”). 

The Series 2011 Bonds are to be authorized and issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commonwealth”), including Chapter 643 of the 1964 Acts of the 
General Assembly of Virginia, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and resolutions duly adopted by the 
Authority on June 24, 2009 and _______, 2011 (the “Resolutions”). 

 
This offer is made subject to (i) the acceptance hereof by the Authority and the approval hereof by 

Fairfax County, Virginia (the “County”), evidenced by each party’s execution and delivery (manually or 
by facsimile or electronic (PDF) transmission) of this Agreement (or the signature page) to the 
Underwriters or their counsel, at or prior to 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, today, and (ii) receipt by the 
Underwriters at or prior to 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, today, of the Letter of Representation of the County 
(the “Letter of Representation”) substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, which must be 
duly executed and delivered by an authorized official of the County, evidenced as in the case of the 
execution and delivery of the Agreement.  If not so accepted, this offer shall expire upon written notice 
sent by the Underwriters to the Authority or the County at any time prior to acceptance. 

Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in the Preliminary Official Statement (as defined herein). 

Section 1. Offer and Sale of Series 2011 Bonds; Good Faith Deposit 

(a) On the basis of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement (including the Letter of Representation), and in the other agreements referred to herein, and 
subject to the terms and conditions described in this Agreement, the Underwriters agree to purchase all 
the Series 2011 Bonds for the sum of $________, representing the par amount of the Series 2011 Bonds, 
plus net original issue premium of $________, less an underwriting discount of $________, less a Good 
Faith Deposit (as defined herein) of $________.   

The Series 2011 Bonds shall be dated their date of issuance and shall be payable as to principal and 
interest in years and amounts and at rates as shown on Exhibit A. 

(184)



 2 
DC1 1953416v.1 

(b) The Underwriters acknowledge that neither the County nor the Authority has authorized or 
consented to any of the following: 

(i) the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds to any purchaser in connection with the initial public offering 
of the Series 2011 Bonds unless a copy of the Official Statement (as defined herein) is delivered to 
such purchaser not later than the settlement of such transaction; 

(ii) the offer or sale of Series 2011 Bonds in any jurisdiction where any such offer or sale would 
be in violation of the jurisdiction’s securities laws; 

(iii) making any representations or providing any information to prospective purchasers of the 
Series 2011 Bonds in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2011 Bonds other than 
the information set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement (as defined herein), the Official 
Statement and any amendment thereto approved in writing by the County and the Authority; or 

(iv) any actions in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2011 Bonds in 
violation of applicable requirements of federal and state securities laws and any applicable 
requirements of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority.  The Underwriters agree that in their offering of the Series 2011 Bonds it will comply with 
the applicable rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

[(c) On the date hereof, the sum of $________, being payment in good faith on account of the 
purchase price of the Series 2011 Bonds (the “Good Faith Deposit”), shall be delivered by wire transfer 
from the Underwriters to the account identified by the Authority.  In the event the Authority does not 
accept this offer, such Good Faith Deposit shall be immediately returned to the Underwriters by wire 
transfer to the account designated by the Underwriters.  In the event that the Underwriters fail (other than 
for a reason permitted herein) to accept and pay for the Series 2011 Bonds on the Closing Date (as 
defined herein) as herein provided, the amount of such Good Faith Deposit plus any interest earned 
thereon shall be retained by the Authority as and for liquidated damages for such failure and for any 
defaults hereunder on the part of the Underwriters, and such retention shall constitute a full release and 
discharge of all claims by the Authority and the County against the Underwriters arising out of the 
transactions contemplated hereby.  In the event of the Authority’s failure to deliver the Series 2011 Bonds 
on the Closing Date, or if the Authority or the County shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the 
obligations of the Underwriters contained herein (unless such conditions are waived by the Underwriters), 
or if the obligations of the Underwriters shall be terminated for any reason permitted herein, the Authority 
shall immediately return to the Underwriters the Good Faith Deposit, plus any interest earned by the 
Authority on said sum from the date hereof to the date of return of the Good Faith Deposit, by wire 
transfer of immediately available funds.] 

Section 2. Official Statement 

Concurrently with its acceptance of this Agreement, the Authority shall deliver to the Underwriters 
(or their counsel) two copies of the Preliminary Official Statement dated ________, 2011, related to the 
Series 2011 Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), marked to include such changes as have been 
accepted by the Underwriters and the County and as are necessary or desirable to reflect the terms of the 
Series 2011 Bonds and this Agreement and to complete the document as an Official Statement in final 
form (together with any amendment or supplement thereto, the “Official Statement,” except that, if the 
Official Statement has been amended between the date thereof and the Closing Date, the term “Official 
Statement” shall refer to the Official Statement as so amended).  Such copies shall be manually executed 
on the Authority’s behalf by an authorized officer. 

The Authority hereby deems the Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date within the 
meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), except for the 

(185)



 3 
DC1 1953416v.1 

omission of pricing and other information allowed to be omitted pursuant to such Rule 15c2-12.  The 
Authority will take all proper steps to prepare the Official Statement in final form, including the 
completion of all information required pursuant to such Rule 15c2-12.  The execution of the Official 
Statement in final form by the Authority’s [Chairman/Vice Chairman] shall be conclusive evidence that 
the Authority has deemed it final as of its date.  The Authority shall arrange for the delivery within seven 
business days of today of a reasonable number of printed copies of the Official Statement in final form 
(which need not be manually executed) to the Underwriters for delivery to each potential investor 
requesting a copy of the Official Statement and to each purchaser to which the Underwriters initially sells 
Series 2011 Bonds. 

The Underwriters represent that a copy of the Official Statement will be deposited before the “end of 
the underwriting period” (as defined herein) with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Section 3. Authority’s Representations, Warranties, Covenants and  Agreements 

The Authority hereby represents, warrants, covenants and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Authority is, and will be at the Closing Time (as defined herein), (i) a political subdivision of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia created by the Enabling Act and (ii) authorized to enter into and adopt and 
perform its obligations under the Resolutions, the Series 2011 Bonds, the Trust Agreement and First 
Supplemental Trust Agreement, each between the Authority and ______, as Trustee, and each dated as of 
________, 2011 (collectively, the “Trust Agreement”), the Project Agreement, dated as of ____, 2011, by 
and among the Authority, the County and the Phase I Dulles Rail Transportation Improvement District 
(the “District”) (the “Project Agreement”) and this Agreement (collectively, the “Documents”). 

(b) The Authority has complied with all provisions of the Commonwealth’s constitution and laws 
pertaining to the Authority’s issuing, adopting or entering into the Documents and has full power and 
authority to consummate all transactions contemplated by the Documents and the Official Statement and 
any and all other agreements relating thereto to which the Authority is a party. 

(c) At the time of the Authority’s acceptance of this Agreement and (unless an event occurs of the 
nature described in Section 3(i) below) at all subsequent times up to and including the Closing Time, the 
information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement (except for the 
information contained under the headings “THE COUNTY”, “THE SERIES 2011 BONDS – Book-
Entry Only System” and “TAX MATTERS” and Appendices A, B and C) and in any amendment or 
supplement thereto that the Authority may authorize for use with respect to the Series 2011 Bonds is and 
will be true and correct and does not contain and will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact 
and does not omit and will not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements in such 
document, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  If the Official 
Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to Section 3(i) below, at the time of each supplement or 
amendment thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such Section 
3(i)) at all times subsequent thereto up to and including the Closing Time, the Authority shall take all 
steps necessary to ensure that the Official Statement (under the headings “THE COUNTY”, “THE 
SERIES 2011 BONDS – Book-Entry Only System” and “TAX MATTERS” and Appendices A, B 
and C) as so supplemented or amended does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. 

(d) The Authority has duly adopted and authorized, at one or more public meetings duly called and 
held at which quorums were present and acting throughout, (i) the distribution and use of the Official 
Statement; (ii) the adoption or the execution, delivery and due performance of the Documents and any 
and all such other agreements and documents as may be required to be executed and delivered by the 
Authority in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated by the 

(186)



 4 
DC1 1953416v.1 

Documents and by the Official Statement; and (iii) the carrying out, giving effect to and consummation of 
the transactions contemplated by the Documents and the Official Statement.  Upon the Closing Date, the 
Authority shall have duly adopted or authorized, executed and delivered each Document and the Official 
Statement. 

(e) Except as and to the extent described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, there is no action, proceeding or investigation before or by any court or other public body 
pending or, to the Authority’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Authority or any Authority 
officer or employee in an official capacity (or, to the Authority’s knowledge, any basis therefor), wherein 
an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect (i) the transactions 
contemplated or described herein or in the Official Statement, or the validity of the Documents or of any 
other agreement or instrument to which the Authority is or is expected to be a party and which is used or 
contemplated for use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated or described herein or in or 
by the Official Statement, or (ii) the condition of the Authority or the County, financial or otherwise. 

(f) The Authority’s adoption or execution and delivery of the Documents and other agreements 
contemplated by the Documents and by the Official Statement, and compliance with the provisions 
thereof, will not constitute on the Authority’s part a breach of or a default under any existing law, court or 
administrative regulation, decree or order or any contract, agreement, loan or other instrument to which 
the Authority is subject or by which the Authority is or may be bound. No event has occurred or is 
continuing that, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute an event of 
default under any such agreement, including the Documents. 

(g) The Authority will not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which will in any 
way cause the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds to be applied in a manner other than as 
described in the Official Statement and as permitted by the Resolution which would cause the interest on 
the Series 2011 Bonds to be includable in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal or 
Commonwealth income tax purposes. 

(h) If between the date of this Agreement and the date that is 25 days after the “end of the 
underwriting period,” as defined below, any event shall occur that might or would cause the Official 
Statement, as then supplemented or amended (except for the information related to book-entry only), to 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the 
Authority shall promptly notify the Underwriters and the County.  If, in the opinion of the Underwriters, 
such event requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official 
Statement, the Authority shall at its expense supplement or amend the Official Statement in a form and in 
a manner approved by the Underwriters. 

The “end of the underwriting period” is the time that is the later of (i) the Closing Time (as defined 
herein) and (ii) the time the Underwriters does not retain, directly or as a member of an underwriting 
syndicate, an unsold balance of the Series 2011 Bonds for sale to the public.  Unless the Underwriters 
shall otherwise advise the Authority in writing prior to the Closing Date, the Authority may assume that 
the end of the underwriting period is the Closing Time. 

(i) The Authority is not required to obtain any further consent, approval, authorization or order of 
any governmental or regulatory authority as a condition precedent to its adoption or authorization, 
execution and delivery of the Documents or the Official Statement, or the Authority’s performance 
hereunder and thereunder (provided no representation or warranty is expressed as to any action required 
under federal or state securities or Blue Sky laws in connection with the Underwriters’ offers or sales of 
the Series 2011 Bonds). 

(187)



 5 
DC1 1953416v.1 

(j) Any certificate signed by any Authority officer and delivered to the Underwriters shall be deemed 
a representation and warranty by the Authority to the Underwriters as to the statements made therein. 

(k) The Authority agrees to take all reasonable steps as requested to cooperate with the Underwriters 
and their counsel in order to qualify the Series 2011 Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or 
“Blue Sky” laws of such jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriters may request, provided that 
the Authority need not consent to jurisdiction or service of process in any state other than the 
Commonwealth. 

(l) The Authority has never defaulted in the payment of principal or interest on any  indebtedness, 
has not exercised any rights of nonappropriation or similar rights, and has not borrowed for general fund 
cash-flow purposes.   No proceedings have ever been taken, are being taken, or are contemplated by the 
Authority under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under any similar law or statute of the United 
States or the Commonwealth. 

(m) Other than as described in the Official Statement, the Authority has not entered into any contract 
or arrangement of any kind that might give rise to any lien or encumbrance on the payments to be 
received by the Authority from the County pursuant to the Project Agreement. 

Section 4.  Delivery of Series 2011 Bonds 

The Series 2011 Bonds shall be delivered through The Depository Trust Company in New York, New 
York, by 12:00 noon, Eastern Time, on _______, 2011, or such other place, time or date as shall be 
mutually agreed on in writing by the Authority and the Underwriters. Simultaneously, the Underwriters 
shall make the payment required pursuant to Section 1 above, in immediately available funds, to the 
County or at its direction.  In this Agreement, the date of such delivery and payment is called the “Closing 
Date” and the hour and date of such delivery and payment is called the “Closing Time.” 

The Series 2011 Bonds shall be delivered in fully registered form, in the form of one Series 2011 
Bond for each maturity, bearing CUSIP numbers (provided neither the inclusion of a wrong number on 
any Series 2011 Bond nor the failure to include a number thereon shall constitute cause to refuse delivery 
of any Series 2011 Bond). 

Section 5.  Conditions to Underwriters’ Obligations 

The Underwriters’ obligations hereunder are subject to the following conditions: 

(a) The Documents, the County Documents (as defined in the Letter of Representation) and the 
Official Statement shall have been duly authorized or adopted and, if applicable, executed and delivered 
in the forms heretofore approved by the Underwriters with only such changes as are mutually agreed on 
by the Authority or the County, as applicable, and the Underwriters. 

(b) The performance by the Authority of its obligations and adherence to its covenants hereunder and 
the performance by the County of its obligations and adherence to its covenants under the Letter of 
Representation, to have been performed at or prior to the Closing Time. 

(c) The representations and warranties contained in this Agreement by the Authority, and the 
representations and warranties contained in the Letter of Representation by the County, are true, complete 
and correct today and as of the Closing Time as if made at the Closing Time. 

(d) There is no material change in the County’s or the Authority’s condition (financial or otherwise) 
between the most recent dates as to which information is given in the Official Statement and the Closing 
Time, other than as reflected in or contemplated by the Official Statement, and there is at the Closing 
Time no material transactions or obligations (not in the ordinary course of business) entered into by the 

(188)



 6 
DC1 1953416v.1 

Authority or the County subsequent to the date of the Official Statement, other than as reflected in or 
contemplated by the Official Statement. 

(e) All necessary approvals, whether legal or administrative, have been obtained from such federal, 
state and local entities or agencies as are appropriate and are required in connection with the financing. 

(f)  At the Closing Time, the Underwriters must receive: 

(i) Opinions dated the Closing Date of (A) Sidley Austin LLP, Bond Counsel, in substantially the 
form of Appendix F to the Official Statement, and (B) Hunton & Williams LLP, counsel to the 
Underwriters, in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriters. 

(ii) An opinion of David P. Bobzien, Esq., County Attorney dated the Closing Date and addressed 
to the Underwriters, to the effect that (A) the County is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth, 
duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth and vested 
with all the rights, powers and privileges conferred upon it by the Constitution and laws of the 
Commonwealth, (B) the County Resolutions (as defined herein) were duly adopted by the Board of  
Supervisors of the County and are in full force and effect, (C) the County has all necessary power and 
authority (1) to execute and deliver, if applicable, the County Documents and (2) to consummate all 
of the actions contemplated by the County Documents, (D) the County Documents have been duly 
authorized and, if applicable, executed and delivered by the County and constitute valid and legally 
binding obligations of the County, enforceable (subject to customary exceptions) against the County 
in accordance with their terms, (E) no further approval, consent of withholding of objection on the 
part of any regulatory body, federal, state or local, is required for the County to execute and deliver 
and perform its obligations under the County Documents, (F) the adoption by the Board of 
Supervisors of the County Resolutions and the execution and delivery by the County of the other 
County Documents and the consummation by the County of the transactions contemplated by them 
are not prohibited by, and do not violate any provision of and will not result in the breach of any law, 
rule, regulation, judgment, decree, order or other requirement applicable to the County, any ordinance 
or resolution of the County, or any material contract, indenture or agreement to which the County is a 
party or by which the County is bound, and have not resulted, and will not result, in the creation or 
imposition of any lien, encumbrance, mortgage or other similar conflicting ownership or security 
interest in favor of any third person in or to the County’s revenues, assets, properties or funds except 
as contemplated in the County Documents, and (G) there is no legal action or other proceeding, or any 
investigation or inquiry (before any court, agency, arbitrator or otherwise), pending or threatened 
against the County or any of its officials, in their respective capacities, (1) to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2011 Bonds or the application of proceeds of the Series 2011 
Bonds as provided in the Official Statement or (2) which may reasonably be expected to have a 
material and adverse effect upon the due performance by the County of the transactions contemplated 
by the County Documents and the Official Statement or the validity or enforceability of the Series 
2011 Bonds or the County Documents.  

(iii) An opinion of Thomas O. Lawson, Esq., PLC, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the 
Underwriters, to the effect that (A) the Authority is a body politic and corporate, duly organized and 
validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth and vested with all the rights, 
powers and privileges conferred upon it by the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth, (B) the 
Resolutions were duly adopted by the Authority and are in full force and effect, (C) the Authority has 
all necessary power and authority (1) to execute and deliver, if applicable, the Documents and (2) to 
consummate all of the actions contemplated by the Documents, (D) the Documents have been duly 
authorized and, if applicable, executed and delivered by the Authority and constitute valid and legally 
binding obligations of the Authority, enforceable (subject to customary exceptions) against the 
Authority in accordance with their terms, (E) no further approval, consent of withholding of objection 
on the part of any regulatory body, federal, state or local, is required for the Authority to execute and 

(189)



 7 
DC1 1953416v.1 

deliver and perform its obligations under the Documents, (F) the adoption by the Authority of the 
Resolutions and the execution and delivery by the Authority of the other Documents and the 
consummation by the Authority of the transactions contemplated by them are not prohibited by, and 
do not violate any provision of and will not result in the breach of any law, rule, regulation, judgment, 
decree, order or other requirement applicable to the Authority, any ordinance or resolution of the 
Authority, or any material contract, indenture or agreement to which the Authority is a party or by 
which the Authority is bound, and have not resulted, and will not result, in the creation or imposition 
of any lien, encumbrance, mortgage or other similar conflicting ownership or security interest in favor 
of any third person in or to the Authority’s revenues, assets, properties or funds except as 
contemplated in the Documents, and (G) there is no legal action or other proceeding, or any 
investigation or inquiry (before any court, agency, arbitrator or otherwise), pending or threatened 
against the Authority or any of its officials, in their respective capacities, (1) to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2011 Bonds or the application of proceeds of the Series 2011 
Bonds as provided in the Official Statement or (2) which may reasonably be expected to have a 
material and adverse effect upon the due performance by the Authority of the transactions 
contemplated by the Documents and the Official Statement or the validity or enforceability of the 
Documents. 

(iv) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date and in form and substance 
acceptable to the Underwriters to the effect that 

(A) the information contained in those portions of the Official Statement entitled  
[“ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS,” “THE SERIES 2011 BONDS, 
(excluding Book-Entry Only System)”  “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR 
THE SERIES 2011 BONDS”,  “VALIDATION,” “CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS,” “TAX 
MATTERS” and “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING,”] insofar as such 
information summarizes provisions of the Documents or the County Documents or is a 
description of opinions rendered by Bond Counsel, is a fair and accurate summary of the 
information purported to be summarized. 

(B)  the Series 2011 Bonds do not require registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (the “Securities Act”); and 

(C) the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “Trust Indenture Act”), does not require 
the qualification of the Resolution thereunder. 

(v) A certificate signed by the Authority Chairman/Vice Chairman, dated the Closing Date and in 
form and substance acceptable to the Underwriters, stating that (A) such officer has reviewed the 
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and that, as of the dates of such documents 
and as of the Closing Date, such documents do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements in such documents, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and (B) such officer has reviewed the 
Authority’s covenants, agreements, representations and warranties hereunder, and further confirming 
the Authority’s compliance with such covenants and agreements and the accuracy of such 
representations and warranties. 

(vi) Evidence satisfactory to the Underwriters that the Series 2011 Bonds have received a rating of 
“___” from Fitch, Inc.,  “__” from Moody’s Investors Service and “__” Standard & Poor’s Rating 
Services, a division of McGraw Hill Corporation Inc. (“S&P”) that such rating is in effect at the 
Closing Time. 

(vii) Certified copies of all relevant proceedings of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority,  
the Board of Supervisors of the County and the District Commission of the District.  

(190)



 8 
DC1 1953416v.1 

(viii) Original executed or certified copies of the Documents and the County Documents. 

(ix) Evidence satisfactory to the Underwriters that the Authority’s issuance of the Series 2011 
Bonds has received the County’s required approval, and that such approval remains in effect. 

(x) Signed copies of a certificate or certificates, dated the Closing Date, signed by the Authority 
Chairman or Vice Chairman to the effect that (1) the representations and warranties of the Authority 
contained herein are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date as if made 
on the Closing Date; (2) to the best of the knowledge of such officer, the information in the Official 
Statement, excluding the information under the captions THE COUNTY, THE SERIES 2011 
BONDS – Book-Entry Only System and TAX MATTERS and Appendices A,  B and C (the 
“Authority Information”), does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit any 
statement of a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading; (3) no litigation is pending against the Authority or, to 
the knowledge of such officer pending against any other entity or person or threatened in any court in 
any way adversely affecting the legal existence of the Authority or seeking to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Series 2011 Bonds, or materially and adversely affecting 
the right of the Authority to collect revenues and other moneys  pledged or to pledged to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2011 Bonds, or the pledge thereof, or in any way materially and 
adversely contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Documents or this Agreement, or 
contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official 
Statement, or contesting the power of the Authority or its authority with respect to the Documents or 
this Agreement; (4) to the best of the knowledge of such officer, no event materially and adversely 
affecting the Authority or the transactions contemplated by the Official Statement has occurred since 
the date of the Official Statement which, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, is required to be 
set forth in an amendment or supplement to the Official Statement (whether or not the Official 
Statement shall have been amended or supplemented to set forth such event); (5) the Authority has the 
full legal right, power and authority to carry out and consummate the transactions contemplated to be 
carried out by the Authority by the Official Statement; and (6) the Authority has complied with all the 
requirements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the 
Closing Date. 

(xi) Signed copies of a certificate or certificates, dated the Closing Date, signed by the County 
Executive to the effect that (1) the representations and warranties of the County contained herein are 
true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date as if made on the Closing Date; 
(2) to the best of the knowledge of such officer, the information in the Official Statement, excluding 
the Authority Information and Appendices D, E and F (the “County Information”), does not contain 
any untrue statement of material fact or omit any statement of a material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (3) no 
litigation is pending against the County or, to the knowledge of such officer pending against any other 
entity or person or threatened in any court in any way adversely affecting the legal existence of the 
County or seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Series 2011 
Bonds, or materially and adversely affecting the ability of the County to make payments under the 
Project Agreement, or in any way materially and adversely contesting or affecting the validity or 
enforceability of the Series 2011 Bonds, the resolutions duly adopted by the Fairfax County Board of 
Supervisors on  June 22, 2009 and March 29, 2011 (the “County Resolutions”), this Agreement or the 
Letter of Representation, or contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Official Statement, or contesting the power of the County or its authority with 
respect to the County Documents or the Letter of Representation; (4) to the best of the knowledge of 
such officer, no event materially and adversely affecting the County or the transactions contemplated 
by the Official Statement has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which, in the 
reasonable opinion of the County, is required to be set forth in an amendment or supplement to the 
Official Statement (whether or not the Official Statement shall have been amended or supplemented 

(191)



 9 
DC1 1953416v.1 

to set forth such event); (5) the County has the full legal right, power and authority to carry out and 
consummate the transactions contemplated to be carried out by the County by the Official Statement; 
and (6) the County has complied with all the requirements and satisfied all the conditions on its part 
to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the Closing Date. 

 (xii) Such additional certificates and other documents in such form and substance as the 
Underwriters, their counsel or Bond Counsel may request to evidence performance of or compliance 
with the provisions of the Documents or the Official Statement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby and thereby, the truth and accuracy as of the Closing Time of the Authority’s and the County’s 
representations herein and in the Official Statement, and the Authority’s and the County’s due 
performance at or prior to the Closing Time of all agreements then to be performed by the Authority 
or the County, as applicable. 

The delivery of the above documents shall be made on the Closing Date, at or prior to the Closing 
Time, at _________________, or at such other place as the Authority and the Underwriters may hereafter 
determine. 

The Authority and the County shall exercise their reasonable best efforts to fulfill such of the 
foregoing conditions as may be under their control or direction.  In no event shall the failure of any such 
condition to be met constitute a default on the part of any party (except any party who had such condition 
under its control or direction). The provisions of Section l(c) shall apply whether or not the failure of any 
such condition to be met constitutes a default on the part of any party. 

Section 6.  Underwriters’ Right to Cancel 

The Underwriters have the right to cancel their obligations hereunder by notifying the Authority or 
the County in writing of their election to do so between today and the Closing Time, if at any time before 
the Closing Time: 

(a) legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress of the United States, or a decision shall have 
been rendered by a court of the United States or the Commonwealth or the Tax Court of the United States, 
or a ruling, resolution, regulation, or temporary regulation, release, or announcement shall have been 
made or shall have been proposed to be made by the Treasury Department of the United States or the 
Internal Revenue Service, or other federal or Commonwealth authority, with respect to federal or 
Commonwealth taxation upon revenues or other income of the general character of that to be derived by 
the Authority or the County from its operations, or upon interest received on obligations of the general 
character of the Series 2011 Bonds that, in the Underwriters’ reasonable judgment, materially adversely 
affects the market for the Series 2011 Bonds, or the market price generally of obligations of the general 
character of the Series 2011 Bonds; or 

(b) there shall exist any event or circumstance that in the Underwriters’ reasonable judgment either 
makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect any statement or information in the Official Statement 
or is not reflected in the Official Statement but should be reflected therein in order to make any statement 
of material fact therein not misleading in any material respect; or 

(c)  there shall have occurred (a) an outbreak or escalation of hostilities involving the United States or 
the declaration by the United States of a national emergency or war occurs; or (b) the occurrence of any 
other calamity or crisis or any change in the financial, political, or economic conditions in the United 
States or elsewhere, if the effect of any such event specified in clause (a) or (b), in the judgment of the 
Underwriters, materially adversely affects the market for the Series 2011 Bonds; or 

(d) there shall be in force a general suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange, or 
minimum or maximum prices for trading shall have been fixed and be in force, or maximum ranges for 

(192)



 10 
DC1 1953416v.1 

prices for securities shall have been required and be in force on the New York Stock Exchange, whether 
by virtue of a determination by that Exchange or by an order of the SEC or any other governmental 
authority having jurisdiction that, in the Underwriters’ reasonable judgment, materially adversely affects 
the market for the Series 2011 Bonds; or 

(e) a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal or state authorities having 
jurisdiction and be in force that, in the Underwriters’ reasonable judgment, materially adversely affects 
the market for the Series 2011 Bonds; or 

(f) legislation shall be enacted or be proposed or actively considered for enactment, or a decision by 
a court of the United States shall be rendered, or a ruling, regulation, proposed regulation, or statement by 
or on behalf of the SEC or other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be 
made, to the effect that the Series 2011 Bonds or any comparable securities of the Authority, or any 
obligations of the general character of the Series 2011 Bonds are not exempt from the registration, 
qualification or other requirements of the Securities Act, or otherwise, or would be in violation of any 
provision of the federal securities laws; or 

(g) there shall be established any new restriction on transactions in securities materially affecting the 
free market for securities (including the imposition of any limitation on interest rates) or the extension of 
credit by, or a change to the net capital requirements of, the Underwriters established by the New York 
Stock Exchange, the SEC, any other federal or state agency or the Congress of the United States, or by 
Executive Order; or 

(h) a stop order, release, regulation, or no-action letter by or on behalf of the SEC or any other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall have been issued or made to the effect 
that the issuance, offering or sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, including all underlying obligations as 
contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement, or any Documents, County Documents or other 
documents relating to the issuance, offering or sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, is or would be in violation 
of any provision of the federal securities laws; or 

(i) there shall have been any material adverse change in the affairs of the Authority or the County 
that in the Underwriters’ reasonable judgment will materially adversely affect the market for the Series 
2011 Bonds; or 

(j) there shall have occurred, after the signing hereof, either a financial crisis or a default with 
respect to the debt obligations of the Authority, the County or the Commonwealth (which, in the case of a 
financial crisis or default of the Commonwealth, causes a material adverse change in the affairs of the 
Authority or the County) or proceedings under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or of the 
Commonwealth shall have been instituted by the Authority, the County or the Commonwealth (which, in 
the case of a bankruptcy proceeding with respect to the Commonwealth, causes a material adverse change 
in the affairs of the Authority or the County), in either case the effect of which, in the reasonable 
judgment of the Underwriters, is such as to materially and adversely affect the market price or the 
marketability of the Series 2011 Bonds; or 

(k) [any downgrading or withdrawal of a rating of the Series 2011 Bonds or of general obligation 
bonds of the County by a nationally recognized rating service, which downgrading or withdrawal, in the 
reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, materially adversely affects the marketability of the Series 2011 
Bonds.] 

 Section 7. Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements to Survive Delivery 

All of the Authority’s representations, warranties, covenants and agreements in this Agreement shall 
remain operative and in effect, regardless of any investigation made by the Underwriters on their own 

(193)



 11 
DC1 1953416v.1 

behalf, after delivery of and payment for any Series 2011 Bonds or of termination or cancellation of this 
Agreement. 

Section 8. Expenses 

The Authority acknowledges that the underwriting fee provided for in Section 1 represents 
compensation and reimbursement to the Underwriters for their professional services and direct expenses 
(for such items as travel and postage); provided, however, that nothing in this acknowledgement shall be 
deemed to make the Underwriters an agent of the Authority. 

The Underwriters shall pay their out-of-pocket expenses, including the fees and expenses of 
Underwriters’ counsel (including the cost of performing any blue sky and legal investment surveys), 
including advertising expenses in connection with a public offering of the Series 2011 Bonds, fees of the 
CUSIP Bureau and any fees of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or the Securities Industry and 
Financial Markets Association. 

The Authority shall pay all expenses and costs to effect the authorization, preparation, execution, 
delivery and sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, including, without limitation, the County’s fees and expenses 
(at or prior to closing), the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel, rating agency fees and expenses, the fees 
and expenses of the bond registrar and paying agent, any registration or similar fees for qualifying the 
Series 2011 Bonds for sale in various jurisdictions chosen by the Underwriters and the expenses and costs 
for the preparation, printing, photocopying, execution and delivery of the Series 2011 Bonds and the 
Official Statement and all other agreements and documents contemplated by this Agreement. 

Section 9. Use of Official Statement 

The Authority hereby ratifies and confirms the use of the Preliminary Official Statement by the 
Underwriters.  The Authority authorizes the use of, and will make available, the Official Statement for 
use by the Underwriters in connection with the offer and sale of the Series 2011 Bonds. 

Section 10. Miscellaneous 

(a)  Any notice or other communication to be given hereunder may be given by mailing or delivering 
the same in writing as follows: 

If to the Underwriters:  
 
 

If to the Authority:  
 
 

If to the County:  
 

 
(b) The Authority represents and warrants that there are no fees payable by it or on its behalf, other 

than as described in this Agreement, to any person or party for brokering or arranging (or providing any 
similar services related to) the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

(c) The parties intend that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, without regard to conflict of law principles. 

(d) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (including separate counterparts), each 
of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 

(194)



 12 
DC1 1953416v.1 

(e) This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the Authority, the Underwriters and 
the County and their respective successors and assigns, but will not confer any rights on any other person, 
partnership, association or corporation other than persons, if any, controlling the Authority and the 
Underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.  The terms “successors” and “assigns” shall not include any purchaser of any Series 2011 Bond 
from the Underwriters merely because of such purchase. 

(f) No covenant, condition or agreement contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, 
agreement or obligation of a present or future member, officer, employee or agent of the Authority or the 
County in such person’s individual capacity, and no officer, member, employee or agent of the Authority 
or the County shall be liable personally for the performance of any obligation under this Agreement.  No 
recourse shall be had by the Underwriters for any claim based on this Agreement or otherwise against any 
officer, member, employee or agent of the Authority or the County in his or her individual capacity, 
provided such person acts in good faith, all such liabilities, if any, being hereby expressly waived and 
released by the Underwriters. 

(g) Section headings in this Agreement are a matter of convenience of reference only, and such 
section headings are not part of this Agreement and shall not be used in the interpretation of any 
provisions of this Agreement. Terms of any gender used herein shall include the masculine, feminine and 
neuter. 

(h) Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Underwriters, in their sole discretion, 
may waive the performance of any and all obligations of the Authority hereunder and the performance of 
any and all conditions contained herein for the Underwriters’ benefit, and the Underwriters’ approval 
when required hereunder or the determination of their satisfaction as to any document referred to herein 
shall be in writing signed by an appropriate officer or officers of the Underwriters, on the Underwriters’ 
behalf, and delivered to the Authority. 

(i) This Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties, superseding all prior agreements, and may 
not be modified except in writing signed by the parties hereto. 

(j) This Agreement is effective on its acceptance by the Authority and approval by the County. 

(195)



 

DC1 1953416v.1 

[Counterpart Signature Page to Bond Purchase Agreement] 

 
 
 
CITIGROUP  GLOBAL MARKETS INC. 
 

By ___________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signatures Continued on Following Pages]

(196)



 

DC1 1953416v.1 

 
[Counterpart Signature Page to Bond Purchase Agreement] 

 
 
 
J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC 
 

By ___________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signatures Continued on Following Pages]

(197)



 

DC1 1953416v.1 

[Counterpart Signature Page to Bond Purchase Agreement] 

Accepted and agreed to: 

FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 

By:____________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

[Signatures Continued on Following Pages] 

(198)



 

DC1 1953416v.1 

[Counterpart Signature Page to Bond Purchase Agreement] 

Approved by: 
 
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

By:____________________________________ 

(199)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

A-1

EXHIBIT A 

RATE AND MATURITY SCHEDULE 

(200)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 

(201)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

B-1

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

 I am an authorized official of Fairfax County, Virginia (the “County”), and am hereby executing and 
delivering this Letter of Representation as required under the terms of that certain Bond Purchase 
Agreement of even date herewith (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) between Citigroup Global Markets 
Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (the “Underwriters”) and Fairfax County Economic Development 
Authority (the “Authority”), and approved by the County.  Terms not otherwise defined in this Letter of 
Representation shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Bond Purchase Agreement.  

Section 1.   County’s Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements 
 

 The County hereby represents, warrants, covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

(a) The County is, and will be at the Closing Time, (i) duly organized in the county executive form of 
government, is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commonwealth”) and has 
all power and authority granted to counties so organized under the Constitution and laws of the 
Commonwealth, and (ii) authorized to enter into and adopt and perform its obligations under resolutions 
duly adopted by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors on June 22, 2009, and March 29, 2011 (the 
“County Resolutions”), the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Project Agreement, a Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement delivered by the County, dated the Closing Date (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), 
and this Letter of Representation (collectively, the “County Documents”) to have been performed at or 
prior to the Closing Time. 

(b) The County has complied with all provisions of the Commonwealth’s constitution and laws 
pertaining to the County’s adopting or entering into the County Documents and has full power and 
authority to consummate all transactions contemplated by the County Documents and the Official 
Statement and any and all other agreements relating thereto to which the County is a party. 

(c) At the time of the County’s delivery of this Letter of Representation and (unless an event occurs 
of the nature described in Section 1(i) below) at all subsequent times up to and including the Closing 
Time, the County Information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement 
and in any amendment or supplement thereto that the County may authorize for use with respect to the 
Series 2011 Bonds is and will be true and correct and does not contain and will not contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact and does not omit and will not omit to state a material fact necessary to make 
the statements in such document, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading.  If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to Section 1(i) below, at the 
time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended 
pursuant to Section 1(i) below) at all times subsequent thereto up to and including the Closing Time, the 
County shall take all steps necessary to ensure that the County Information in the Official Statement as so 
supplemented or amended does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they 
were made, not misleading. 

(d) The County has duly adopted and authorized, at one or more public meetings duly called and held 
at which quorums were present and acting throughout, (i) the distribution and use of the Official 
Statement; (ii) the adoption, execution, delivery and due performance of the County Documents and any 
and all such other agreements and documents as may be required to be executed and delivered by the 
County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated by the County 
Documents and by the Official Statement; and (iii) the carrying out, giving effect to and consummation of 

(202)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

B-2

the transactions contemplated by the County Documents and the Official Statement.  Upon the Closing 
Date, the County shall have duly adopted or authorized, executed and delivered each County Document 
and the Official Statement. 

(e) Except as and to the extent described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, there is no action, proceeding or investigation before or by any court or other public body 
pending or, to the County’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting the County or any County officer 
or employee in an official capacity (or, to the County’s knowledge, any basis therefor), wherein an 
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect (i) the transactions contemplated 
or described herein or in the Official Statement, or the validity of the County Documents or of any other 
agreement or instrument to which the County is or is expected to be a party and which is used or 
contemplated for use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated or described herein or in or 
by the Official Statement, or (ii) the condition of the County or the Authority, financial or otherwise. 

(f) The County’s adoption or execution and delivery of the County Documents and other agreements 
contemplated by the County Documents and by the Official Statement, and compliance with the 
provisions thereof, will not constitute on the County’s part a breach of or a default under any existing law, 
court or administrative regulation, decree or order or any contract, agreement, loan or other instrument to 
which the County is subject or by which the County is or may be bound. No event has occurred or is 
continuing that, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute an event of 
default under any such agreement, including the County Documents. 

(g) The County will not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which will in any 
way cause the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds to be applied in a manner other than as 
described in the Official Statement and as permitted by the Resolution and the County Resolution and 
which would cause the interest on the Series 2011 Bonds to be includable in the gross income of the 
recipients thereof for federal or Commonwealth income tax purposes. 

(h) The audited financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, set forth 
as Appendix B to the Official Statement, present fairly the County’s financial position as of June 30, 
2010, and such statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles applied on a consistent basis.  The County Information included in the Official Statement 
presents fairly the financial information purported to be shown as of the indicated dates. There has been 
no material adverse change in the financial condition of the County as a whole since June 30, 2010.  The 
County is not a party to any contract or agreement or subject to any statutory or other restriction not 
disclosed in the Official Statement, the performance of or compliance with which may have a material, 
adverse effect on the County’s or the Authority’s financial condition or operations. 

(i) If between the date of this Agreement and the date that is 25 days after the “end of the 
underwriting period,” as defined below, any event shall occur that might or would cause the County 
Information included in the Official Statement, as then supplemented or amended, to contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in 
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the County shall promptly 
notify the Underwriters.  If, in the opinion of the Underwriters, such event requires the preparation and 
publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the County will cooperate with the 
Authority and at the County’s expense supplement or amend the Official Statement in a form and in a 
manner approved by the Underwriters.  

The “end of the underwriting period” is the time that is the later of (i) the Closing Time or (ii) the 
time the Underwriters do not retain, directly or as a member of an underwriting syndicate, an unsold 
balance of the Series 2011 Bonds for sale to the public.  Unless the Underwriters shall otherwise advise 

(203)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

B-3

the County in writing prior to the Closing Date, the County may assume that the end of the underwriting 
period is the Closing Time. 

(j) The County is not required to obtain any further consent, approval, authorization or order of any 
governmental or regulatory authority as a condition precedent to its adoption or authorization, execution 
and delivery of the County Documents or the Official Statement, or the County’s performance hereunder 
and thereunder (provided no representation or warranty is expressed as to any action required under 
federal or state securities or Blue Sky laws in connection with the Underwriters’ offers or sales of the 
Series 2011 Bonds). 

(k) Any certificate signed by any County officer and delivered to the Underwriters shall be deemed a 
representation and warranty by the County to the Underwriters as to the statements made therein. 

(l) The County agrees to take all reasonable steps as requested to cooperate with the Underwriters 
and their counsel in order to qualify the Series 2011 Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or 
“Blue Sky” laws of such jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriters may request, provided that 
the County need not consent to jurisdiction or service of process in any state other than the 
Commonwealth. 

(m) The County has never defaulted in the payment of principal or interest on any indebtedness, has 
not exercised any rights of nonappropriation or similar rights, and has not borrowed for general fund 
cash-flow purposes.   No proceedings have ever been taken, are being taken, or are contemplated by the 
County under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under any similar law or statute of the United States 
or the Commonwealth. 

(n) The County will comply with the information reporting requirements adopted by the SEC or the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board with respect to tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2011 
Bonds as provided in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  

Section 2.  Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements to Survive Delivery 
 
 All of the County’s representations, warranties, covenants and agreements in this Letter of 
Representation shall remain operative and in effect, regardless of any investigation made by the 
Underwriters on their own behalf, after delivery of and payment for any Series 2011 Bonds or of 
termination or cancellation of the Bond Purchase Agreement or this Letter of Representation. 
 
Section 3.  Official Statement 
 
 The County authorizes the use and distribution of, and will cooperate with the Authority to make 
available, the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement for the use and distribution by the 
Underwriters in connection with the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds. 
 
 The County shall cooperate with the Authority to deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the 
Underwriters copies of the Preliminary Official Statement in sufficient quantity in order for the 
Underwriters to comply with Rule 15c2-12(b)(2) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended. 
  
Section 4.  Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 
 
 The County will undertake, pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, to provide annual 
reports and notices to certain events. 

(204)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

B-4

 

(205)



 
DC1 1953416v.1 

B-5

Section 5.  Notice 
 
 Any notice or other communication to be given to the County under the Bond Purchase Agreement or 
this Letter of Representation may be given by mailing or delivering the same in writing to 12000 
Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia 22035-0064, Attention: ________. 

 This Letter of Representation is delivered this _____ day of ______, 2011. 

 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

By:____________________________________ 
  

 

(206)



 

1 
DC1 1956106v.2 

Attachment 6 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and delivered 
by Fairfax County, Virginia (the “County”) in connection with the issuance by the Fairfax Economic 
Development Authority (the “Authority”) of its $______ Transportation District Improvement Revenue 
Bonds (Silver Line Phase I Project) Series 2011 (the “Series 2011 Bonds”) pursuant to the provisions of 
resolutions (the “Authorizing Resolutions”) adopted by the Authority on June 24, 2009 and _____, 2011 
and under a Trust Agreement, dated as of _______, 2011, and as supplemented by a First Supplemental 
Trust Agreement dated as of _______, 2011 (collectively the “Trust Agreement”), each between the 
Authority and ________, as trustee (the “Trustee”). 

 SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is being 
executed and delivered by the County acting on behalf of itself, the Authority, and the Phase I Dulles Rail 
Transportation Improvement District, for the benefit of the holders of the Series 2011 Bonds and in order 
to assist the Participating Underwriters (defined below) in complying with the Rule (defined below).  
Under the Rule, the County is an “obligated person”.  The County acknowledges that it is undertaking 
primary responsibility for any reports, notices or disclosures that may be required under this Disclosure 
Agreement. 

SECTION 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which 
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in this Section, 
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the County pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the County, acting in its capacity as Dissemination Agent 
hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the County and which has filed 
with the County a written acceptance of such designation. 

“Filing Date” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 3(a) hereof. 

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the twelve month period at the end of which financial position and 
results of operations are determined.  Currently, the County’s Fiscal Year begins July 1 and continues 
through June 30 of the next calendar year. 

“Holder” or “holder” shall mean, for purposes of this Disclosure Agreement, any person who is a 
record owner or beneficial owner of the Series 2011 Bonds. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in subsection (b)(5)(i)(C) of the Rule, which 
are as follows: 

(a) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(b) non-payment related defaults; if material; 

(c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(207)



 2 
DC1 1956106v.2 

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 570-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to  or events affecting the tax status of the Series 2011 Bonds; 

modifications to rights of holders, if material; 

bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

defeasances; 

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 2011 Bonds, if material; 

rating changes; 

bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the County; 

the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the County or the sale of 
all or substantially all of the assets of the County, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement 
relating any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

appointment of a successor or additional paying agent or the change of name of a paying agent, if 
material.  

“Participating Underwriters” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Series 2011 
Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of such Series 2011 Bonds. 

“Repository” shall mean The Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system 
administered by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  EMMA is recognized as a National 
Repository for purposes of the Rule. 

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

A. The County shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, provide to the Repository an 
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  
Such Annual Report shall be filed on a date (the “Filing Date”) that is not later than March 31 after the 
end of any Fiscal Year (commencing with its Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2011).  Not later than ten (10) 
days prior to the Filing Date, the County shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if 
applicable).  In such case, the Annual Report (i) may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package, (ii) may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of 
this Disclosure Agreement, and (iii) shall include the County’s audited financial statements or, if audited 
financial statements are not available, such unaudited financial statements as may be required by the Rule.  
In any event, audited financial statements of the County must be submitted, if and when available, 
together with or separately from the Annual Report. 

(208)



 3 
DC1 1956106v.2 

B. The annual financial statements of the County shall be prepared on the basis of generally 
accepted accounting principles and will be audited.  Copies of the audited annual financial statements, 
which may be filed separately from the Annual Report, will be filed with the Repository when they 
become publicly available. 

C. If the County fails to provide an Annual Report to the Repository by the date required in 
subsection (A) hereto or to file its audited annual financial statements with the Repository when they 
become publicly available, the County shall send a notice to the Repository in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports.  Except as otherwise agreed, any Annual Report 
required to be filed hereunder shall contain or incorporate by reference, at a minimum the following: (i) 
audited financial statements of the County; (ii)  updated operating data, as described in Exhibit A and (iii) 
updates of the information in the Official Statement dated ______, 2011 relating to the Series 2011 Bonds 
under the heading “THE DISTRICT – District Tax Base Data” all with a view toward assisting 
Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule. 

Any or all of such information may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including 
official statements of securities issues with respect to which the County is an “obligated person” (within 
the meaning of the Rule), which have been filed with the Repository or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  If the document incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available 
from EMMA.  The County shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Listed Events.  The County will provide within 10 business days to 
the Repository notice of any of the Listed Events. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The County’s obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier to occur of the legal defeasance or final retirement 
of all the Series 2011 Bonds. 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent.  The County may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement and may 
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  If 
at any time there is not any other designated Dissemination Agent, the County shall be the Dissemination 
Agent. 

SECTION 8. Amendment.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, 
the County may amend this Disclosure Agreement, if such amendment is supported by an opinion of 
independent counsel with expertise in Federal securities laws, to the effect that such amendment is 
permitted or required by the Rule. 

SECTION 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed 
to prevent the County from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set 
forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is 
required by this Disclosure Agreement.  If the County chooses to include any information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically required by this 
Disclosure Agreement, the County shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update 
such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

(209)



 4 
DC1 1956106v.2 

SECTION 10. Default.  Any person referred to in Section 11 (other than the County) may take 
such action as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by 
court order, to cause the County to file its Annual Report or to give notice of a Listed Event.  The holders 
of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Series 2011 Bonds outstanding may take such 
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court 
order, to challenge the adequacy of any information provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, or to 
enforce any other obligation of the County hereunder.  A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall 
not be deemed an event of default under the Authorizing Resolutions, the Trust Agreement or the Series 
2011 Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of the 
County to comply herewith shall be an action to compel performance.  Nothing in this provision shall be 
deemed to restrict the rights or remedies of any holder pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or other applicable laws. 

SECTION 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
County, the Participating Underwriters, and holders from time to time of the County’s bonds and notes, 
and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

 

Date:  _________, 2011 

 

 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

By:  _______________________________________ 
        Edward L. Long, Jr. 
Deputy County Executive/Chief Financial Officer 

(210)



 

5 
DC1 1956106v.2 

EXHIBIT A 

CONTENT OF ANNUAL REPORT 

Respecting Fairfax County, Virginia  

(a) [Economic Information.  Updated economic information respecting the County 
such as income, employment, unemployment, building permits and taxable sales data.] 

 In general, the foregoing will include information as of the end of the most recent fiscal year or as 
of the most recent practicable date.  Where information for the fiscal year just ended is provided, it may 
be preliminary and unaudited.  Where information has historically been provided for more than a single 
period, comparable information will in general be provided for the same number of periods where valid 
and available.  Where comparative demographic or economic information for the County and the United 
States as a whole is contemporaneously available and, in the judgment of the County, informative, such 
information may be included.  Where, in the judgment of the County, an accompanying narrative is 
required to make data presented not misleading, such narrative will be provided. 

(211)



 

6 
DC1 1956106v.2 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 
[AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS] 

Re: FAIRFAX COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS 

(SILVER LINE PHASE I PROJECT ) 
SERIES 2011 

CUSIP NOS.   ___-___ 

Dated: _________ __, 20__ 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Fairfax County, Virginia has not provided an Annual Report 
[Audited Annual Financial Statements] as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, 
which was entered into in connection with the above-named bonds, the proceeds of which were to pay a 
portion of the principal amount of an outstanding note.  [The County anticipates that the Annual Report 
[Audited Annual Financial Statements] will be filed by ___________.] 

Dated: ________________ 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

     By: _______________________________ 

(212)



Board Agenda Item  
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 6 
 
Approving the Issuance of Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
(FCRHA) Refinancing, Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 
2011A 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of a resolution (Attachment I) to request and approve the issuance of 
Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority (FCRHA) Refinancing, Bond 
Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2011A in order to achieve 
financing savings. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends approval of the attached resolution (Attachment 1) 
relating to the issuance of Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
(FCRHA) Refinancing, Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 
2011A which authorizes the following: 
 

1. Requests FCRHA to issue the refinancing BANs; 
2. Approves the form of the BANs; 
3. Approves the draft Notice of Sale; 
4. Approves the form of a payment agreement between FCRHA and the Board of 

Supervisors; 
5. Approves the form of the lease agreement; 
6. Approves the form of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement;  
7. Approves the form of the Preliminary Official Statement; and 
8. Authorizes the execution and delivery of the payment agreement, lease 

agreement, and continuing disclosure agreement.  
 
 
TIMING: 
Approval by the Board is requested on March 29, 2011.  Attachment 2 provides the 
Bond Sale Schedule of Events. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Fairfax County purchased the Crescent Apartments complex, a 16.5 acre site with 180 
units located at 1527 Cameron Crescent Drive in Reston, Virginia on February 16, 
2006.  This property is adjacent to the Lake Anne Revitalization District.   The property 
is leased to the FCRHA.  The first interim financing, which totaled $40.6 million, was 
obtained through a competitive private placement bidding process, with Wachovia Bank 

(213)



Board Agenda Item  
March 29, 2011 
 
 
being the lowest responsive bidder.  The interest rate on this interim financing was fixed 
at a taxable rate of 4.92%.  The original note was taxable pending completion of a tax 
due diligence process.  Upon maturity of the initial financing, Fairfax County 
competitively sold a one-year BAN in the amount of $40,465,000 to Lehman Brothers at 
the interest rate of 3.66%.  This note repayment was due on February 12, 2008.  On 
February 5, 2008, FCRHA sold a 5-year BAN for Affordable Housing Acquisition Series 
2008 A in the amount of $37.615 million to UBS Securities LLC at the interest rate of 
3.31%, maturing on March 1, 2013.  The 5-year interim financing was issued to enable 
FCRHA to begin repayment of principal, allow FCRHA to work on a development plan 
for the property, and to determine the permanent plan of financing.   Due to favorable 
current market conditions, a refinancing of the remaining two years of payments via a 
competitive sale is possible and staff recommends pursuing this option.  The refinancing 
will be considered by the FCRHA for approval at its April 28, 2011 meeting.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Assuming market conditions as of March 14th, refinancing of the 2012 and 2013 
maturities of the 5-Series 2008 A Note generates approximately $1.1 million of net 
present value savings (or 3.65% of refunded par). If rates increase by approximately 
0.20%, net present value savings will decrease to $997,000 or 3.3% of refunded par.  If 
rates increase by more than 0.40%, the County will not meet the 3% minimum savings 
target and may choose not to pursue this refinancing at this time.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  County Resolution 
Attachment 2:  Refinancing Bond Sale Schedule of Events  
Attachment 3:  Form of Notes 
Attachment 4:  Notice of Sale 
Attachment 5:  Payment Agreement 
Attachment 6:  Lease Agreement 
Attachment 7:  Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
Attachment 8:  Draft of the Preliminary Official Statement (Distributed to Board 
Members under separate cover.  Copy also available in the Office of the Clerk to the 
Board) 
 
 
STAFF: 
Edward L. Long, Jr., Deputy County Executive  
Victor L. Garcia, Director, Department of Finance 
Paula C. Sampson, Director, Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
Aseem K. Nigam, Director, Real Estate Finance and Grants Management Division, HCD 
Alan Weiss, Assistant County Attorney 

(214)



 
 
 

Attachment 1 
 

County Resolution 
 

 At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, 
held in the Board Auditorium in the Fairfax County Government Center at Fairfax, 
Virginia, on March 29, 2011, at which meeting a quorum was present and voting, the 
following resolution was adopted: 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE BY THE FAIRFAX 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ITS 
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES (AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
ACQUISITION) SERIES 2011A IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT UP TO $32 MILLION AND APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
PAYMENT AGREEMENT WITH FCRHA, ALL FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF PROVIDING INTERIM FINANCING FOR THE REFINANCING 
OF NOTES PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FOR THE REPAYMENT OF A 
PORTION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF A NOTE 
PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING A 
PORTION OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF A MULTI-FAMILY 
RENTAL HOUSING COMPLEX LOCATED IN FAIRFAX COUNTY; 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A GROUND LEASE WITH FCRHA FOR THE LEASE 
OF THE PROPERTY TO FCRHA; APPROVING THE FORM OF THE 
FCRHA NOTES, APPROVING A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT AND A FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATING 
TO SUCH NOTES, AND A NOTICE CALLING FOR BIDS TO 
PURCHASE THE NOTES; APPROVING THE MAKING OF A 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING; GRANTING THE 
AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER SUCH OTHER 
DOCUMENTS AND AGREEMENTS RELATING TO SUCH 
TRANSACTIONS AND TO DETERMINE CERTAIN DETAILS OF 
SUCH TRANSACTION 

WHEREAS, the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority (“FCRHA”), in 
furtherance of its goal to preserve existing affordable housing in Fairfax County, requested that 
the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the County of Fairfax, Virginia (the “County”), 
contract for the purchase of the 180 unit Crescent Apartments multi-family rental housing 
complex, including the approximately 16.5 acre site thereof, located at 1527 Cameron Crescent 
Drive in Reston, Virginia (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2006, the Board entered into an Agreement of Purchase and 
Sale (the “Purchase Contract”) for the purchase of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, upon entering into the Purchase Contract, requested that 
FCRHA provide interim financing for a portion of the purchase price of the Property and related 
costs and offered to enter into a payment agreement pursuant to which the County agreed to 
make payments, to or for the account of FCRHA, in amounts sufficient, with the proceeds of any 
permanent financing and renewal notes financing (as herein provided) and any other sources of 

(215)



 2 
DC1 1936749v.3 

funds available for the purpose, for FCRHA to pay timely the interest on and the principal of 
notes to be issued for such interim financing; and 

WHEREAS, FCRHA, pursuant to the Board’s request, issued on February 16, 2006, a 
bond anticipation note (the “Original Note”), the proceeds of which were used to pay a portion of 
the purchase price of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, FCRHA, pursuant to the Board’s request and the terms of a payment 
agreement issued on February 13, 2007, a bond anticipation note (the “2007 Note”) the proceeds 
of which were used to pay the principal of the Original Note; and 

WHEREAS, FCRHA, pursuant to the Board’s request and the terms of a payment 
agreement issued on February 11, 2008, bond anticipation notes (the “Outstanding Notes”) the 
proceeds of which were used to pay the principal of the 2007 Note; and 

WHEREAS, the Outstanding Notes are available to be redeemed on and after March 1, 
2011, and FCRHA desires to issue new notes as to refinance the Outstanding Notes; and 

WHEREAS, FCRHA proposes to issue its Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable 
Housing Acquisition), Series 2011A, in an aggregate principal amount of up to $32 million (the 
“Notes”) pursuant to Virginia Housing Authorities Law, Chapter 1, Title 36, Code of Virginia of 
1950, as amended (the “Act”), to refinance the Outstanding Notes; and 

WHEREAS, the County and FCRHA anticipate providing further interim financing or 
long term permanent financing for the Property, including, in either case, provision for payment 
of the Notes not later than the stated maturity of the Notes in Fiscal Year 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the County proposes to enter into a payment agreement with FCRHA (the 
“Payment Agreement”) by the terms of which the County will agree to make payments to 
FCRHA in sufficient amounts for FCRHA to pay timely the interest and, if and to the extent that 
provision for payment is not made from other sources, the principal of the Notes; and 

WHEREAS, the Board proposes to enter into a ground lease with FCRHA (the “Ground 
Lease”) by the terms of which the Board has leased the Property to FCRHA; and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed  form of the notice calling 
for bids for the purchase of the Notes (the “Notice of Sale”); and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed Preliminary Official 
Statement describing the Notes, FCRHA, the County and the Property (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”); and 

WHEREAS, the County will undertake primary responsibility for any annual and other 
reports, notices or disclosures that may be required under Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be 
amended from time to time, and make a continuing disclosure undertaking; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly reviewed and considered the forms of the Payment 
Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Notes, the Notice of Sale, the Preliminary Official Statement 
and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and has determined that each is in acceptable form; 
and 

(216)



 3 
DC1 1936749v.3 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to delegate to appropriate 
County officials authority to approve the sale of the Notes and the details of the transaction but 
subject to the guidelines and standards established hereby; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  FCRHA is hereby requested to issue the Notes to the winning bidder in a 
competitive sale in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $32 million sufficient to 
refinance the Outstanding Notes and certain costs of issuance of the Notes. 

SECTION 2.  The form of the Notes presented to this meeting is approved. 

SECTION 3. The form of the Payment Agreement presented to this meeting is 
approved, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board or the County Executive or the 
Deputy County Executive/Chief Financial Officer of the County (each a “Delegate”), as 
appropriate, is authorized and directed to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the 
County, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk is authorized and directed to impress the County’s 
seal upon, the Payment Agreement in substantially such form, with such additions and 
modifications as shall be approved by the Delegate executing the Payment Agreement, such 
execution being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

SECTION 4. The form of the Ground Lease presented to this meeting is approved, and a 
Delegate, as appropriate, is authorized and directed to execute and deliver, in the name and on 
behalf of the County, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk is authorized and directed to impress the 
County’s seal upon, the Ground Lease in substantially such form, with such additions and 
modifications as shall be approved by the Delegate executing the Ground Lease, such execution 
being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

SECTION 5.  The form of the Notice of Sale presented to this meeting is hereby approved, 
and the distribution, publication and use of the Notice of Sale for purposes of the sale of the Notes is 
hereby approved.  Such notice shall be substantially in the form of the Notice of Sale annexed to 
this resolution.  Alternatively, there may be distributed a summary of the principal terms of the 
notice.  Bids shall be received electronically via the PARITY Competitive Bidding System.   

SECTION 6.  The form of the Preliminary Official Statement is hereby approved and 
deemed “final” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.  The distribution and use by the winning bidders of a final Official Statement relating 
to the Notes (the “Official Statement”) is hereby approved.  The Official Statement shall be 
completed with the pricing and other information in substantially the form of the Preliminary 
Official Statement approved this day with such minor changes, insertions and omissions as may 
be approved by a Delegate. 

SECTION 7.  The form of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement presented to this 
meeting is approved, and a Delegate, as appropriate, is authorized, directed and empowered to 
execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of the County the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement in such form and containing substantially the terms and provisions therein contained, 
with such additions and modifications as shall be approved by the person executing the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, such execution thereof being conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 

(217)



 4 
DC1 1936749v.3 

 SECTION 8.  The execution and delivery by any Delegate of the Payment Agreement, 
the Ground Lease, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and any other agreements, documents, 
closing papers and certificates executed and delivered pursuant to this Resolution shall be 
conclusive evidence of the Delegate’s approval, on behalf of the County, of the changes, if any, 
in the form and content of the Payment Agreement, the Ground Lease and the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement. 

SECTION 9.  The Delegates and other members, officers and employees of the Board of 
Supervisors and the County are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required 
of them by the provisions of the Notes, the Ground Lease, the Payment Agreement and the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the 
terms, covenants, provisions and agreements of the Notes, the Ground Lease, the Payment 
Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and also to do all acts and things required 
of them by the provisions of this Resolution. 

SECTION 10.  Each of the Delegates is authorized to execute one or more certificates 
evidencing the determinations made or other actions carried out pursuant to the authority granted 
in this Resolution, and any such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the actions or 
determinations as stated therein. 

SECTION 11.  All actions taken by any of the Delegates and other members, officers 
and employees of the County in connection with the transactions authorized and approved 
hereby are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

SECTION 12.  Any and all resolutions of the Board of Supervisors or portions thereof in 
conflict with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 13.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

(Seal)  A Copy Teste: 

 

  _____________________________ 
  Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

(218)



Attachment II 
Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2011 
(Crescent Apartments, Affordable Housing Project) 

 

 
    

Prepared by Public Financial Management  3/15/11 

Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
27 28 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

Week of Activity & Event Responsible Party 

February 28th   First draft of Resolutions and Note Documents* distributed SA 

March 7th     
Comments due on Note Documents 
Draft of POS and NOS distributed 

All 
SA 

March 14th   
Second draft of Note Documents distributed 
Comments due on POS and NOS 

SA 
All 

March 21st    Comments due on Note Documents All 

March 28th     
Tuesday, March 29th – County Board meeting 
Documents to Rating Agencies 

FX 
PFM 

April 4th  Rating Agency calls FX, RHA, PFM 

April 11th  Friday, April 15th – RHA Board Meeting package needed RHA 

April 18th  
Wednesday, April 20th – RHA Finance Committee Meeting 
Ratings due 
Final comments due on POS and NOS  

RHA 
-- 
All 

April 25th  
Pre-market Note 
Thursday, April 28th – RHA Board Meeting (to approve financing) 
Friday, April 29th – POS and NOS finalized and mailed 

PFM 
RHA 
SA 

May 2nd  Thursday, May 5th – Note Sale FX, RHA, PFM 

May 9th  
Finalize and mail OS 
Finalize closing documents 

SA 
All 

May 16th  Thursday, May 19th – Closing  All 

 
Key 

FX = Fairfax County, Virginia 
RHA = Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

SA = Sidley Austin, Bond Counsel 
PFM = Public Financial Management, Financial Advisor 

 
 
 
 

* Note Documents includes Lease Agreement, Payment Agreement, Assignment Agreement & Escrow 
Agreement. 

(219)



 

DC1 1939728v.2 

 

Attachment 3 

 

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK 
CORPORATION (“DTC”), TO FCRHA OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF 
TRANSFER, EXCHANGE, OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS 
REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS 
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY 
PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS 
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, 
PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY 
PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, 
CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN. 

R-1  $____________ 
 

United States of America 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE (AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACQUISITION) 

SERIES 2011A 
 

INTEREST RATE  MATURITY DATE  DATED DATE    CUSIP  
        ________%  ________, 201_  ________, 2011    303835 ___ 

 
HOLDER: CEDE & CO.  

 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ________________ DOLLARS ($____________) 

FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
(“FCRHA”), for value received, promises to pay solely from the sources specifically identified 
herein (“Pledged Funds”) to the Holder named above, the Principal Amount stated above on the 
Maturity Date and to pay solely from such sources interest on such Principal Amount on each 
[March 1 and September 1, commencing September 1, 2011], at the rate per annum specified 
above.  This note bears interest from its Dated Date.  The principal and interest so payable will 
be paid to the Holder, at the office of the Director of the Department of Finance of Fairfax 
County, Virginia (the “Bond Registrar”), in Fairfax County, Virginia (the “County”).  Both the 
principal of and the interest on this Note is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months, shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America 

(220)



 

 2 
DC1 1939728v.2 

which is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts on the respective dates of 
payment thereof. 

(221)



 

DC1 1939728v.2 

 

This Note is a limited obligation of FCRHA and payable from payments made under a 
Payment Agreement, dated as of __________, 2011, between FCRHA and the County (the 
“Payment Agreement”) pursuant to which the County has agreed to make payments in amounts 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Notes (the “County Payments”).  The 
Payment Agreement also allows for the payment of the principal and interest on the Notes to be 
made from proceeds of bonds authorized by resolution of FCRHA on February 2, 2006, in 
anticipation of the issuance of which the Notes are issued, if the issuance of such bonds is 
requested by the County or from the proceeds of any renewal note or notes issued by FCRHA for 
the purpose of providing for the payment of the Notes, if the issuance of such bonds or notes is 
requested by the County.  The County’s obligation to make payments under the Payment 
Agreement in any fiscal year of the County is subject to and contingent upon the annual 
appropriation of funds the Board of Supervisors of the County for such purpose but is otherwise 
unconditional.  In an Assignment Agreement, dated as of _________, 2011, FCRHA has 
assigned to the Bond Registrar its rights under the Payment Agreement, including its rights to 
receive County Payments and its right to enforce the provisions of the Payment Agreement. 

THE NOTES AND THE INTEREST THEREON ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF FCRHA, 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM REVENUES, RECEIPTS AND SECURITY PLEDGED THEREFOR 
UNDER THE PAYMENT AGREEMENT.  NEITHER THE COMMISSIONERS OF FCRHA NOR 
ANY PERSON EXECUTING THE NOTES SHALL BE LIABLE PERSONALLY ON THE NOTES BY 
REASON OF THE ISSUANCE THEREOF.  THE NOTES SHALL NOT BE A DEBT OF THE 
COUNTY, THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA (THE “COMMONWEALTH”) OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN FCRHA), AND NEITHER THE COUNTY 
NOR THE COMMONWEALTH OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN 
FCRHA) SHALL BE LIABLE THEREON, NOR IN ANY EVENT SHALL THE NOTES BE 
PAYABLE OUT OF ANY FUNDS OR PROPERTIES OTHER THAN THOSE OF FCRHA PLEDGED 
THEREFOR PURSUANT TO THE RESOLUTION AND THE PAYMENT AGREEMENT.  THE 
NOTES SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY 
CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.  FCRHA HAS NO 
TAXING POWER. 

[This Note is one of a series of Notes (collectively, the “Notes”) duly authorized and 
issued by FCRHA pursuant to the Housing Authorities Law, Chapter 1, Title 36, of the Code of 
Virginia of 1950, as amended, and other applicable law, and a resolution duly adopted by 
FCRHA on _______, 2011 (the “Resolution”) to provide funds sufficient to refinance the 
outstanding Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bond Anticipation Notes 
(Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2008A (the “Outstanding Notes”) the proceeds of 
which were used to pay a portion of the principal amount of another bond anticipation note 
issued in February 2007, the proceeds of which were used to pay a portion of the principal 
amount of another bond anticipation note issued in February 2006 to pay a portion of the 
purchase price of the 180 unit Crescent Apartments multi-family rental housing facility, 
including the approximately 16.5 acre site thereof, located at 1527 Cameron Crescent Drive in 
Reston, Virginia.] 

The Bond Registrar shall keep at its office the books of the County for the registration of 
transfer of this note.  The transfer of this Note may be registered only upon such books and upon 
the surrender hereof to the Bond Registrar together with an assignment duly executed by the 
registered owner hereof or his attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be 

(222)



 

 2 
DC1 1939728v.2 

satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon any such registration of transfer, the Bond Registrar 
shall deliver in exchange for this Note a new note or notes, registered in the name of the 
transferee, of authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed principal amount of this Note, of the same series and maturity and bearing interest at 
the same rate. 

[The Notes may not be redeemed prior to maturity.] 

Modifications or alterations of the Payment Agreement may be made only to the extent 
and in the circumstances permitted therein. 

This Note is issued with the intent that the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia shall 
govern its construction. 

All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to 
and in the issuance of this Note have happened, exist and have been performed as so required. 

This Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
benefit or security under the Resolution or Payment Agreement until it shall have been 
authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed 
hereon. 

 

(223)



 

 3 
DC1 1939728v.2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
has caused this Note to be executed by the facsimile signature of its Chairman, Vice-Chairman, 
Director or Deputy Director, its seal to be affixed on this Note and attested by the facsimile 
signature of its Secretary or Assistant Secretary. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

By:   
Chairman,                      
Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority 

 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

By:    
Assistant Secretary, 
Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

(224)



 

 4 
DC1 1939728v.2 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Note is one of the notes issued pursuant to the within-mentioned Resolution. 

 

    Director of the Department of Finance of  
     Fairfax County, Virginia as Bond Registrar 

 

      
      By_________________________________ 
         Authorized Signature 

Date of authentication: 
 
 
 
__________, 2011 

(225)



 

5 
DC1 1939728v.2 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned registered owner hereby sells, assigns and 
transfers unto 

Please insert social security or 
other identifying number of assignee 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

   (Please Print or Typewrite Name and Address of Transferee) 

the within note, and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
_______________________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:________________________     ________________________ 
 

NOTICE:  The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears 
upon the face of the within note in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

Signature Guaranteed* by:                 

*Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an “eligible guarantor institution” meeting the requirements 
of the Trustee which requirements will include membership or participation in STAMP or 
such other “signature guarantee program” as may be determined by the Bond Registrar in 
addition to, or in substitution for, STAMP, all in accordance with the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended. 

(226)



 

DC1 1937412v.1 

 INFORMATION 
ITEMS 

 

         
Attachment 4 

 
[Ratings:  Moody’s…………..____ 

           S&P……………….______ 
         (See “Ratings”)] 
 

NOTICE OF SALE 

$____________* 

FAIRFAX COUNTY (VIRGINIA) REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition)  
Series 2011A 

 

 Electronic Bids, BiDCOMP/Parity Competitive Bidding System (“BiDCOMP/Parity”) only, will 
be received by the Board of Commissioners of the Fairfax County (Virginia) Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority (the “Authority”), until 11 o’clock a.m., Fairfax, Virginia Time on,  

________, 2011* 

for the purchase of the Authority’s $_________* Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2011A (the “Notes”), dated the date of 
their delivery, bearing interest payable [September 1, 2011] and semi-annually thereafter each [March 1] 
and [September 1], and maturing, as hereinafter set forth, on the 1st day of [March] in the following years 
and in the following amounts, respectively: 

Initial Maturity Schedule* 

Maturity 
Date 

([March] 1) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

2012 $  

2013     

Interest will be calculated on the 30/360 day basis. 

 The Authority reserves the right to change the date for receipt of bids (the “Scheduled Bid Date”) 
in accordance with the section of this Notice of Sale entitled “Change of Bid Date and Closing Date; 
Other Changes to Notice of Sale.” 

Changes to Initial Bid Estimate 

 The estimated principal amount set forth above represents an estimate of the principal amount of 
Notes to be sold (the “Initial Bid Estimate”).  The Authority hereby reserves the right to change the Initial 

                                                 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

(227)



 2 
DC1 1937412v.1 

Bid Estimate, based on market conditions immediately prior to the sale, by announcing any such change 
not later than 10:00 a.m., Fairfax, Virginia Time, on the date for receipt of bids via TM3 (www.tm3.com).  
The resulting estimate will become the “Bid Principal Amount.”   
 

Changes to Bid Principal Amount 

 The Authority hereby further reserves the right to change the Bid Principal Amount after the 
determination of the winning bidder, by increasing or decreasing the aggregate principal amount of the 
Notes, subject to the limitation of no more than a 10% increase or decrease in the principal amount of the 
Notes. 

 THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER MAY NOT WITHDRAW ITS BID OR CHANGE THE 
INTEREST RATES BID OR THE INITIAL REOFFERING TERMS (AS HEREAFTER DEFINED) AS 
A RESULT OF ANY CHANGES MADE TO THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS WITHIN THESE LIMITS.  
The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in the final 
aggregate principal amount of the Notes.  Such adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar 
amount of the underwriter’s discount and original issue discount/premium, if any, but will not change the 
selling compensation per $1,000 of par amount of Notes from the selling compensation that would have 
been received based on the purchase price in the winning bid and the Initial Reoffering Terms.  The 
interest rates specified by the successful bidder for each maturity at the Initial Reoffering Terms will not 
change.  The Authority anticipates that the final annual principal amounts and the final aggregate 
principal amount of the Notes will be communicated to the successful bidder within twenty-four hours of 
the Authority’s receipt of the initial public offering prices and yields of the Notes (the “Initial Reoffering 
Terms”). 

Book-Entry System 

 The Notes will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of 
certificates made to the public.  One certificate for each maturity will be issued to The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and immobilized in its custody.  The book-entry system will 
evidence beneficial ownership interests of the Notes in the principal amounts of $5,000 and any multiple 
thereof, with transfers of beneficial ownership interests effected on the records of DTC participants and, if 
necessary, in turn by DTC pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC and its participants.  The 
successful bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Notes, shall be required to deposit the certificates with 
DTC, registered in the name of Cede & Co., nominee of DTC.  Interest on the Notes will be payable 
[September 1, 2011] and semiannually thereafter on March 1 and September 1 and principal of the Notes 
will be payable at maturity to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Notes.  Transfer of principal 
and interest to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC, and transfer of principal and interest 
payments to beneficial owners of the Notes by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such 
participants and other nominees of beneficial owners.  The Authority will not be responsible or liable for 
such transfers of payments or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, 
its participants or persons acting through such participants. 

 In the event that (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Notes 
or (b) the Authority determines that continuation of the book-entry system of evidence and transfer of 
ownership of the Notes would adversely affect the interests of the beneficial owners of the Notes, the 
Authority will discontinue the book-entry system with DTC.  If the Authority fails to select another 
qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the Authority will deliver replacement Notes in the form 
of fully registered certificates. 

(228)



 3 
DC1 1937412v.1 

The Notes 

The Notes are limited obligations of the Authority and payable from payments made under a 
Payment Agreement, dated as of ______, 2011, between the Authority and Fairfax County, Virginia (the 
“County”) pursuant to which the County has agreed to make payments in amounts sufficient to pay the 
principal and interest on the Notes.  The Payment Agreement also allows for the payment of the principal 
and interest on the Notes to be made from proceeds of bonds authorized by resolution of the Authority on 
February 2, 2006, in anticipation of the issuance of which the Notes are issued, if the issuance of such 
bonds is requested by the County, and the proceeds of any renewal note or notes issued by the Authority 
for the purpose of providing for the payment of the Notes, if the issuance of such bonds or notes is 
requested by the County.  The County’s obligation to make payments under the Payment Agreement in 
any fiscal year of the County is subject to and contingent upon the annual appropriation of funds by the 
Board of Supervisors of the County for such purpose but is otherwise unconditional.  Neither the faith and 
credit of the Commonwealth of Virginia, nor any political subdivision thereof (including the Authority 
and the County), are pledged to the payment of the principal of or the interest on the Notes. 

The Notes are being issued to provide funds sufficient to refinance the outstanding  principal 
amount of the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bond Anticipation Notes 
(Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2008A, maturing after March 1, 2011 (the “Outstanding 
Notes”), and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2011A Notes.  The proceeds of the Outstanding 
Notes were applied in February 2008 to pay the principal amount of a previously issued bond anticipation 
note issued in February 2007 (the “2007 Note”), which was issued to pay the principal amount of a 
previously issued bond anticipation note issued in February 2006 (the “Original Note”), for purposes of 
providing a portion of the purchase price of, and enabling the County to acquire title to, the 180 unit 
Crescent Apartments multi-family rental housing complex, including the approximately 16.5 acre site 
thereof, located at 1527 Cameron Crescent Drive in Reston, Virginia. 

Redemption 

 [The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.  – Need to verify or change]  

Ratings 

 The Notes have been rated “___” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”), and “___” by 
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“Standard & 
Poor’s”).  Please refer to the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Notes (the “Preliminary 
Official Statement”) for more information on the ratings. 

Electronic Bidding and Bidding Procedures 

Registration to Bid 

 All prospective bidders must be contracted customers of i-Deal LLC’s BiDCOMP/Parity 
Competitive Bidding System.  If you do not have a contract with BiDCOMP/Parity, call (212) 404-8102 
to become a customer.  By submitting a bid for the Notes, a prospective bidder represents and warrants to 
the Authority that such bidder’s bid for the purchase of the Notes (if a bid is submitted in connection with 
the sale) is submitted for and on behalf of such prospective bidder by an officer or agent who is duly 
authorized to bind the prospective bidder to a legal, valid and enforceable contract for the purchase of the 
Notes.  By contracting with BiDCOMP/Parity a prospective bidder is not obligated to submit a bid in 
connection with the sale. 

(229)



 4 
DC1 1937412v.1 

 IF ANY PROVISIONS OF THIS NOTICE OF SALE SHALL CONFLICT WITH 
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY BiDCOMP/Parity AS APPROVED PROVIDER OF 
ELECTRONIC BIDDING SERVICES, THIS NOTICE OF SALE, AS IT MAY BE AMENDED 
BY THE AUTHORITY AS DESCRIBED WITHIN, SHALL CONTROL.  Further information about 
BiDCOMP/Parity, including any fee charged, may be obtained from BiDCOMP/Parity at (212) 404-8102. 

Disclaimer 

 Each prospective bidder shall be solely responsible to register to bid via BiDCOMP/Parity.  Each 
qualified prospective bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements to access 
BiDCOMP/Parity for purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the 
requirements of the Notice of Sale.  Neither the Authority nor BiDCOMP/Parity shall have any duty or 
obligation to undertake such registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to provide or assure such 
access to any qualified prospective bidder, and neither the Authority nor BiDCOMP/Parity shall be 
responsible for a bidder’s failure to register to bid or for proper operation of, or have any liability for any 
delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by, BiDCOMP/Parity.  The Authority is using 
BiDCOMP/Parity as a communication mechanism, and not as the Authority’s agent, to conduct the 
electronic bidding for the Notes.  The Authority is not bound by any advice and determination of 
BiDCOMP/Parity to the effect that any particular bid complies with the terms of this Notice of Sale and 
in particular the “Bid Specifications” hereinafter set forth.  All costs and expenses incurred by prospective 
bidders in connection with their registration and submission of bids via BiDCOMP/Parity are the sole 
responsibility of the bidders; and the Authority is not responsible, directly or indirectly, for any of such 
costs or expenses.  If a prospective bidder encounters any difficulty in registering to bid or submitting, 
modifying or withdrawing a bid for the Notes, it should telephone BiDCOMP/Parity and notify Public 
Financial Management, Inc., the County’s financial advisor, by telephone at (703) 741-0175.  After 
receipt of bids is closed, the Authority through BiDCOMP/Parity will indicate the apparent successful 
bidder.  Such message is a courtesy only for viewers, and does not constitute the award of the Notes.  
Each bid will remain subject to review by the Authority to determine its interest cost and compliance with 
the terms of this Notice of Sale. 

Bidding Procedures 

 Bids must be submitted electronically for the purchase of the Notes (all or none) by means of the 
Fairfax County (Virginia) Redevelopment and Housing Authority AON Bid Form (the “Bid Form”) via 
the BiDCOMP/Parity.  Bids must be communicated electronically to BiDCOMP/Parity by 11:00 a.m., 
Fairfax, Virginia Time on the Scheduled Bid Date unless postponed as described herein (see “Change of 
Bid Date and Closing Date”).  Prior to that time, a prospective bidder may input and save the proposed 
terms of its bid in BiDCOMP/Parity.  Once the final bid has been saved in BiDCOMP/Parity, the bidder 
may select the final bid button in BiDCOMP/Parity to submit the bid to BiDCOMP/Parity.  Once the bids 
are released electronically via BiDCOMP/Parity to the Authority, each bid will constitute an irrevocable 
offer to purchase the Notes on the terms therein provided.  For purposes of the electronic bidding process, 
the time as maintained on BiDCOMP/Parity shall constitute the official Fairfax, Virginia Time.  For 
information purposes only, bidders are requested to state in their bids the [net] interest cost to the 
Authority, as described under “Award of the Notes” below, represented by the rate or rates of interest and 
the bid price specified in their respective bids. 

 No bids will be accepted in written form, by facsimile transmission or in any other medium or on 
any system other than by means of the Bid Form via BiDCOMP/Parity.  No bid will be received after the 
time for receiving such bids specified above.   

(230)



 5 
DC1 1937412v.1 

Bid Specifications 

 Bidders are requested to name the interest rate or rates in multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%.  Each 
bidder must specify in its bid a rate for each maturity of the Notes.  

 Any number of interest rates may be named, provided that (a) any interest rate may not exceed 
____%, and (b) the price bid for the Notes may not be less than ___% or exceed ___% of the principal 
amount thereof.  No bid for less than all of the Notes offered will be entertained. 

 After receipt of bids is closed and prior to the award, the apparent successful bidder indicated on 
BidCOMP/Parity must submit a good faith deposit (Deposit) for $_______ to the [County/Authority?] 
by wire transfer.  The award to the apparent successful bidder is contingent upon receipt of the Deposit 
and the Notes will not be awarded to such bidder until the [County/Authority?] has confirmation of 
receipt of the Deposit.   

 Wire instructions for the Deposit are as follows: 

  [Bank Name:  Bank of America VA/Rich 
  ABA:  026 009 593 
  Account Name:  County of Fairfax 
  Account Number:  0000 7902 5799 
  Attention:  Tammy Kennedy-Nichols, 410-547-4320 

Reference your company, company contact, phone number or other helpful 
identification.] 

 

Award of Notes 

 Award or rejection of bids will be made by the Authority, with the approval of the County prior 
to [4:00 p.m]., Fairfax, Virginia Time on the date of receipt of bids.  ALL BIDS SHALL REMAIN FIRM 
UNTIL [4:00 P.M.], FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA TIME, ON THE DATE OF RECEIPT OF BIDS.  An award 
of the Notes, if made, will be made by the Authority within such five-hour period of time [(11:00 a.m. – 
4:00 p.m.)]. 

 [The Notes will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest net interest cost, that being the rate 
of interest which will produce the least interest over the life of the Notes, after accounting for the 
premium offered, if any.  In the event bids offering the same lowest net interest cost are received, an 
award will be made by lot from among such lowest bids.  In any event, the award of the Notes will be 
made on the basis of the bid offering to purchase the Notes on terms most favorable to the Authority.  The 
Authority reserves the right to reject any and all bids, and any bid not complying with this Notice of Sale 
will be rejected.]  

Change of Bid Date and Closing Date; Other Changes to Notice of Sale 

 The Authority reserves the right to postpone, from time to time, the date established for the 
receipt of bids and will undertake to announce any such change via TM3 (www.tm3.com).   

 Any postponement of the bid date will be announced via TM3 not later than one hour prior to the 
scheduled sale time on the announced date for receipt of the bids.  An alternative bid date and time will be 
announced via TM3 18 hours prior to such alternative bid date. 

(231)



 6 
DC1 1937412v.1 

 On such alternative bid date and time, the Authority will accept bids for the purchase of the 
Notes, such bids to conform in all respects to the provisions of this Notice of Sale, except for the changes 
in the date and time for bidding and any other changes announced via TM3 at the time the bid date and 
time are announced. 

 The Authority may change the scheduled delivery date for the Notes by notice given in the same 
manner as set forth for a change in the date for the receipt of bids. 

 The Authority reserves the right to otherwise change this Notice of Sale.  The Authority 
anticipates that it would communicate any such changes via TM3 by 4:00 p.m., Fairfax, Virginia time on 
the date prior to the scheduled date for receipt of bids but no later than one hour prior to the sale time on 
the scheduled date for receipt of bids. 

Conflict Waiver 

 Sidley Austin LLP is serving as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance and sale of the 
Notes.  By placing a bid, each bidder represents that it understands that Sidley Austin LLP, in its capacity 
as Bond Counsel, represents the County and the Authority, and the successful bidder agrees to waive any 
conflict of interest that Sidley Austin LLP’s involvement in connection with the issuance and sale of the 
Notes to such successful bidder presents. 

Undertakings of the Successful Bidder 

 The successful bidder shall make a bona fide public offering of all of the Notes to the general 
public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or 
wholesalers who are not purchasing for their own account as ultimate purchasers without a view to resell) 
and will, within 30 minutes after being notified of the award of the Notes, advise the Authority in writing 
(via facsimile transmission) of the Initial Reoffering Terms.  Prior to the delivery of the Notes, the 
successful bidder will furnish a certificate acceptable to Bond Counsel as to the “issue price” of the Notes.  
It will be the responsibility of the successful bidder to institute such syndicate reporting requirements, to 
make such investigation, or otherwise to ascertain the facts necessary to enable it to make such 
certification with reasonable certainty. 

Delivery 

 The Notes will be delivered on or about ______, 2011 in New York, New York, at DTC against 
payment of the purchase price therefor (less the amount of the Deposit) in Federal Reserve funds. 

 The approving opinion of Sidley Austin LLP, Washington, D.C., in substantially the form 
appearing in the Preliminary Official Statement, will be furnished without cost to the successful bidder.  
There will also be furnished the usual closing papers, including certifications as to the Official Statement 
and no litigation. 

CUSIP Numbers 

 CUSIP numbers are to be applied for by the successful bidder with respect to the Notes.  The 
Authority will assume no obligation for the assignment of such numbers or for the correctness of such 
numbers, and no error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for failure or refusal by the successful 
bidder to accept delivery or make payment for the Notes. 

(232)



 7 
DC1 1937412v.1 

Official Statements 

 Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained without cost via the Internet at 
www.i-dealprospectus.com.  The Preliminary Official Statement at its date was “deemed final” by the 
Authority and the County for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 but is subject to revision, amendment and 
completion. 

 After the award of the Notes, the Authority will prepare copies of the Official Statement relating 
to the Notes (the “Official Statement”) (no more than 300) and will include therein such additional 
information concerning the reoffering of the Notes as the successful bidder may reasonably request; 
provided, however, that the Authority will not include in the Official Statement a “NRO” (“not 
reoffered”) designation with respect to any maturity of the Notes.  The successful bidder will be 
responsible to the Authority in all respects for the accuracy and completeness of information provided by 
such successful bidder with respect to such reoffering.  The Authority expects the successful bidder to 
deliver copies of such Official Statement to persons to whom such bidder initially sells the Notes and to 
The Electronic Municipal Market Access System (“EMMA”), administered by the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).  The successful bidder will be required to acknowledge receipt of such 
Official Statement, to certify that it has made delivery of the Official Statement to EMMA and to 
acknowledge that the Authority expects the successful bidder to deliver copies of such Official Statement 
to persons to whom such bidder initially sells the Notes and to certify that the Notes will only be offered 
pursuant to such Official Statement and only in states where the offer is legal.  The successful bidder will 
be responsible to the Authority in all respects for the accuracy and completeness of information provided 
by such successful bidder with respect to such reoffering. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission adopted Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”).  In general, the Rule prohibits an underwriter from purchasing or 
selling municipal securities, such as the Notes, unless it has determined that the issuer of such securities 
has committed to provide annually certain information, including audited financial information, and 
notice of various events described in the Rule, if material.  The County will provide to EMMA annual 
information respecting the County, including audited financial statements.  In addition, the County will 
provide to EMMA notice of the occurrence of any events described in the Rule if material.  

 Official Statements will be provided within seven (7) business days after the date of the award of 
the Notes in such quantities as may be necessary for the successful bidder’s regulatory compliance. 

 Further information will be furnished upon application to Public Financial Management, Inc., at 
(703) 741-0175. 

Reservation of Rights 

 The right to reject any or all bids and to waive any irregularity or informality in any bid is 
reserved. 

 

 

Dated:  ________, 2011    
 
   FAIRFAX COUNTY (VIRGINIA)  
   REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

(233)



 8 
DC1 1937412v.1 

 

   By:     Ronald F. Christian, Chairman  
 

(234)



 
 

Attachment 5 

County & FCRHA 

PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Payment Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of ____________, 2011, by and 
between the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority (“FCRHA”) and the County 
of Fairfax, Virginia (the “County”). 
 

SECTION I. DEFINITIONS 
 
 For purposes of this Agreement, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the words 
and terms defined in this Section I have the respective meanings given to them herein: 
 
 “Assignment Agreement” means the Assignment Agreement dated as of ____________, 
2011, pursuant to which FCRHA assigns to the bond registrar and paying agent of the Notes all 
of FCRHA’s rights under the Payment Agreement, including FCRHA’s rights to receive County 
Payments under and to enforce the terms and provisions of this Payment Agreement.  
 

“Bonds” means the bonds authorized by FCRHA by resolution adopted on February 2, 
2006, in a principal amount of up to $45,000,000 and in anticipation of which the Notes are 
issued. 

 
“County Payments” means the payments made or to be made by the County, to or for the 

account of FCRHA, in respect of scheduled interest and principal payments on the Notes. 
 
 “County Payment Date” means a Notes Payment Date. 
 

“Holder of the Notes” means the registered owners and if the registered owners are a 
nominee, the beneficial owner of the Notes. 

 
“Notes” means the $____________ Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition), Series 2011A, dated 
____________, 2011, payable to Holder of the Notes. 

 
“Notes Payment Date” means a date when interest or interest and principal are scheduled 

to become due and payable on the Notes. 
 
“Payment Agreement” means this Payment Agreement as the same may be amended by 

written agreement of the parties with the consent of the Holders of the Notes as provided in 
Section 4.02 hereof. 

 

(235)



 

 2 
DC1 1935855v.2 

“Property” means the 180 unit Crescent Apartments multi-family rental housing 
complex, including the approximately 16.5 acre site thereof, located at 1527 Cameron Crescent 
Drive in Reston, Virginia (the “Property”), identified in the Purchase Contract, that the County 
acquired from the seller in part with the proceeds of the 2006 Note and in part with a cash 
payment provided by the County to further the County and FCRHA’s mutual goal of preserving 
existing affordable housing in Fairfax County.   

 
“Purchase Contract” means the Agreement of Purchase and Sale made and entered into as 

of the 6th day of February, 2006, between the Board of Supervisors of the County, as purchaser, 
and the seller, pursuant to which the County purchased from the seller the Property. 

 
 “Purchaser” means the underwriter or underwriters that shall have been awarded the 
Notes pursuant to competitive bidding and shall purchase the Notes from FCRHA on the date 
hereof. 

 
“2006 Note” means the $40,600,000 Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority Bond Anticipation Note (Affordable Housing Acquisition), Series 2006, dated 
February 16, 2006, issued for the purpose of providing a portion of the purchase price of the 
Property.  

 
“2007 Note” means the $40,465,000 Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority Bond Anticipation Note (Affordable Housing Acquisition), Series 2007, dated 
February 13, 2007, issued for the purpose of paying the principal of the 2006 Note. 

 
“2008A Notes” means the $37,615,000 Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority Bond Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition), Series 2008A, dated 
February 11, 2008, issued for the purpose of paying a portion of the principal of the 2007 Note. 
 

 
SECTION II.  ISSUANCE OF THE  NOTES BY FCRHA 

 
Section 2.01. Issuance of the Notes.  FCRHA agrees to issue the Notes on or before 

____________, 2011.  The Purchaser has agreed to buy the Notes from FCRHA on 
____________, 2011.   

 
Section 2.02. Purpose for the Issuance of the Notes. FCRHA agrees to apply the 

proceeds of the Notes to refund the outstanding 2008A Notes, all as approved by the County, and 
for no other purpose.    
 
 

SECTION III. PAYMENT UNDERTAKING BY THE COUNTY 
 

Section 3.01. County Payments. (a)  The County hereby agrees to make County 
Payments on each Notes Payment Date subject to Sections 3.02 and 3.03 hereof.  

(236)



 

 3 
DC1 1935855v.2 

 
(b) Subject to the provisions of Sections 3.02 and 3.04 below, the County hereby 

agrees to make debt service payments on the Bonds coming due in each fiscal year the Bonds are 
outstanding to the extent that such debt service payments are not made from other sources of 
revenue. 

 
(c) [add prepayment provision if decided upon] 
 
Section 3.02. County Payments Subject to Appropriation. The obligation of the County 

to make the County Payments or debt service payments on the Bonds under this Payment 
Agreement is contingent upon the appropriation for the applicable fiscal year by the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of funds from which such County Payments can be made.  The 
County shall not be liable for any County Payments or debt service payments on the Bonds 
which may be payable pursuant to this Payment Agreement unless and until such funds have 
been appropriated for payment and then only to the extent thereof.  This Payment Agreement 
shall not constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit of the County or a bond or debt of the 
County in violation of Section 10 of Article VII of the Constitution of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. 

Section 3.03. County Executive to Request Appropriations.   

The Board of Supervisors of the County covenants that it will cause the County 
Executive in preparing the County’s operating budget for each fiscal year subsequent to fiscal 
year 2011 so long as the Notes or any renewal notes remains outstanding under the FCRHA 
Notes Resolution passed by FCRHA on ____________, 2011 (the “FCRHA Notes Resolution”), 
to include as a separate line item therein the debt service on the Notes that is scheduled to 
become due and payable during such fiscal year for which the budget is proposed and so long as 
any Bonds are outstanding to include as a separate line item therein the debt service on the 
Bonds that is scheduled to become due and payable during such fiscal year for which the budget 
is proposed, to the extent debt service payments on such Bonds are not made from other sources 
of revenue.   

Section 3.04. Renewal Notes.  (a)  In the event that the Notes shall not have been paid in 
full at maturity or the payment in full thereof provided for in accordance with the FCRHA Notes 
Resolution and either the County shall so request or funds are not otherwise available for the 
payment of the unpaid principal of and interest accrued thereon at the maturity of the Notes, 
FCRHA covenants that it shall use its best efforts to issue a bond anticipation notes in a principal 
amount sufficient to provide for the payment of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes and the 
interest thereon due at maturity, the terms thereof to be approved by the County Executive or the 
Deputy County Executive/Chief Financial Official of the County, such terms to include a 
principal amount not in excess of the authorized and unissued principal amount of the Bonds, the 
interest rate or rates not to exceed any applicable statutory limitation, the buyer or buyers to be 
an institution or institutions capable of assessing the creditworthiness of the renewal notes, the 
County to have made prior or simultaneous appropriation for any debt service coming due in the 

(237)



 

 4 
DC1 1935855v.2 

current fiscal year and the applicable provisions of this Payment Agreement to apply mutatis 
mutandis to such renewal notes and to the Bonds described in paragraph (b) of this Section 3.04. 

 
(b) FCRHA hereby agrees to use its best efforts to issue Bonds or arrange other long 

term permanent financing, at one time or from time to time, the proceeds of which shall be 
sufficient to provide for the payment of the Notes or any renewal notes prior to the maturity date 
of the Notes or any renewal notes, respectively.  Such Bonds or other long term financing shall 
be limited obligations of FCHRA and may be made payable from such sources, including 
without limitation, in the case of Bonds, payments made by the County pursuant to prior or 
simultaneous County appropriations for debt service coming due in each fiscal year such Bonds 
are outstanding, to the extent such debt service is not paid from other sources (which sources 
may include income derived from the Property). 

 
 Section 3.05. Consent to Assignment.  The County hereby agrees that FCRHA shall 
assign to the bond registrar and paying agent of the Notes FCRHA’s rights under this Payment 
Agreement, including FCRHA’s rights to receive County Payments under and to enforce the 
terms and provisions of this Payment Agreement.  

 
 
SECTION IV. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 4.01. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 

FCRHA, the County and the Holder of the Notes, and no other persons shall be deemed third 
party beneficiaries of this Payment Agreement. 
 

Section 4.02. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or any of its terms 
modified only by a written document authorized, executed and delivered by FCRHA and the 
County with the prior written consent of the Holder of the Notes. 

 
Section 4.03.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall take effect immediately upon its 

execution and delivery.  
 
Section 4.04. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate upon the later of the 

retirement or defeasance of the Notes or, if any renewal notes shall be issued pursuant to Section 
3.04 hereof, upon the final payment or defeasance of such renewal notes. 
 

Section 4.05. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts and when each party hereto has executed at least one counterpart, this Agreement 
shall become binding on both parties and such counterparts shall be deemed to be one and the 
same document. 
 

Section 4.06. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

 

(238)



 

 5 
DC1 1935855v.2 

 
 

(239)



 

 6 
DC1 1935855v.2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FCRHA and the County have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective duly authorized officers, all as of the date and year first written 
above. 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT 
 AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
 
 
 

 By:____________________________ 
      Ronald F. Christian 
  Chairman 

 
 

[SEAL] 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

By: _________________________ 
Paula C. Sampson 
Assistant Secretary 

 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
 
 
 

 By:____________________________ 
  Anthony H. Griffin 
  County Executive 

 
 

[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
By: ______________________________ 

Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

(240)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

 

Attachment 6 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Between 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
       Landlord, 

and 

FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

       Tenant 

relating to 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACQUISITION 

_______________________________ 

 

Dated as of __________, 2011 

 

(241)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, dated as of ________, 2011 (“Lease”), by and 
between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia having its principal office at 12000 Government 
Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia (the “County”), and the FAIRFAX COUNTY 
REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia having its principal office at 3700 Pender Drive, Suite 300, Fairfax, 
Virginia (“FCRHA”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Lease, 
FCRHA has issued its $________ Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bond 
Anticipation Notes (Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2011A (the “Notes”) to refinance 
the outstanding Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bond Anticipation Notes 
(Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2008 (the “Outstanding Notes”), the proceeds of which 
were used to provide funds sufficient to pay a portion of the principal amount of the $40,465,000 
Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bond Anticipation Note (Affordable 
Housing Acquisition) Series 2007 due on February 12, 2008, the proceeds of which were used to 
pay the principal of another bond anticipation note previously issued for the purpose of paying a 
portion of the purchase price of the 180 unit Crescent Apartments multi-family rental housing 
facility, including the approximately 16.5 acre site thereof, located at 1527 Cameron Crescent 
Drive in Reston, Virginia (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Lease, 
FCRHA has partially prepaid the rent due under this Lease by making available the proceeds of 
the Notes, and has caused the proceeds to be applied to the payment of the principal amount of 
the Outstanding Notes; and 

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Lease, the 
parties will also enter into a Payment Agreement of even date (the “Payment Agreement”) by the 
terms of which the County will agree to make payments to FCRHA in amounts sufficient for 
FCRHA to pay timely debt service on the Notes (if provision for payment is not made from the 
proceeds of additional interim or long-term financing or other sources), and FCRHA, with the 
consent of the County, will assign its rights under the Payment Agreement to the holder of the 
Notes;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein 
and the sum of Ten Dollars ($10) paid by FCRHA to the County and receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged by the County, the County hereby leases to FCRHA the Property which is 
hereinafter identified generally and includes the parcel of land described in Exhibit A to this 
Lease and all improvements thereon, as the same may at any time exist, subject to encumbrances 
specified in Exhibit B to this lease and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. Term of Lease.  The term of this Lease commences on _______, 2011 
(“Effective Date”) and expires on [March 1, 2013]. 

(242)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

2. Rent.  The County agrees to rent the Property to FCRHA for a rental 
equal to the proceeds of the Notes payable on the Effective Date and an annual amount of 
[$900,000 payable by FCRHA to the County from income derived from the operation of the 
Property fifteen business days prior to each March 1, commencing on March 1, 2012, and ending 
on March 1, 2013, or on any earlier date agreed to by the County and FCRHA if this lease is 
terminated pursuant to Section 6 hereof.]     

3. Purposes for which Property May Be Used.  The Property which is 
subject to this Lease may be used and occupied, and shall be operated and managed by FCRHA, 
solely for purposes authorized by and in accordance with the provisions of the Housing 
Authorities Law, Chapter 1, Title 36, of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the 
“Enabling Act”).  To that end, FCRHA hereby covenants to implement and comply with the 
terms of the resolution adopted by the Commissioners of FCRHA on July 27, 2006, with respect 
to the income limits applicable to tenants of the Property and the requirement that the Property 
be operated and maintained as a “residential building” within the meaning of the Enabling Act. 

4. Compliance with All Laws, Rules and Regulations.  The parties hereto 
represent that each will comply with all applicable, binding laws, rules and regulations, whether 
federal, Commonwealth of Virginia or County, relating to the use and occupancy of the Property. 

5. Nonassignability.  This Lease shall not be assigned by either party 
without the prior written approval of the other party. 

6. Termination.  This Lease may be terminated by the County, at its option, 
at any time prior to the expiration date after payment, or provision for payment, in full of the 
principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Notes. 

7. Surrender  of  Property.  On the expiration date or upon earlier 
termination of this Lease, FCRHA shall quietly and peaceably surrender the Property.  The 
County waives any right to recover from FCRHA for any unrepaired damage to the Property 
upon such surrender. 

8. Release of a Portion of the Property.  Notwithstanding any other 
provisions of this Lease, the parties hereto reserve the right at any time and from time to time to 
amend this Lease and the leasehold estate created hereby of (i) any portion of the Property 
provided the Director of Public Works of the County or any person holding the highest rated 
engineering position held by the County or an independent engineer or engineering firm if so 
designated by the Board of Supervisors of the County provides a certificate not more than sixty 
(60) days prior to the date of the proposed release which states such release will not adversely 
affect the utility of the Property as a multi-family rental housing facility, (ii) any unimproved 
part of the Property or (iii) any part of the Property with respect to which the County proposes to 
grant an easement or convey fee title to a public utility or public body in order that utility 
services or roads or other services may be provided for the Property; provided that if at the time 
such amendment is made any portion of the Notes is outstanding and unpaid there shall be 
deposited with the bond registrar and paying agent of the Notes the following: 

(a) A copy of the said amendment as executed; 

(243)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

(b) A resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County (i) stating that the 
County is not in default under any of the provisions of this Lease or the Payment Agreement and 
FCRHA is not to the knowledge of the County in default under any provisions of this Lease or 
the Payment Agreement, (ii) giving an adequate legal description of that portion of the Property 
to be released and (iii) stating the purpose for which the County desires the release; and 

(c) A certificate showing that FCRHA has approved such amendment and 
stating FCRHA is not in default under any provisions of this Lease or the Payment Agreement. 

9. Limitation of Liability of FCRHA.  The obligations of FCRHA 
hereunder are not general obligations of FCRHA but are limited obligations payable solely from 
the proceeds of the Notes and certain income derived from the operation of the Property. 

10. Limitation of Personal Liability.  No covenant, condition or agreement 
contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, agreement or obligation of any present or 
future supervisor, commissioner, officer, employee or agent of the County or FCRHA in his or 
her individual capacity, nor shall any supervisor, commissioner, officer, employee or agent of the 
County or FCRHA incur any personal liability with respect to any other action pursuant to this  
Lease, provided such supervisor, commissioner, officer, employee or agent acts in good faith. 

11. Insurance.  Insurance will be provided by the parties in accordance with 
Exhibit C. 

12. Governing Law.  The laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia govern the 
validity, interpretation, construction, and performance of this Lease. 

13. Amendments.  This Lease shall not be amended, changed or modified 
except by a written instrument duly executed by the parties hereto.   

14. Severability.  If any provision of this Lease is declared to be invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

[The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally]

(244)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease under Seal as of the 
day and year first written above. 

 

 

[SEAL]     BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
      FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  By: ________________________ 

 Nancy Vehrs                Anthony H. Griffin 
  Clerk                County Executive 
       
 
 
 
 
[SEAL]     FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT 
      AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  By: ________________________ 

     Paula C. Sampson                      Ronald F. Christian 
    Assistant Secretary             Chairman 

(245)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

Exhibit A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Property To Be Leased By 

 

Board of Supervisors of 
Fairfax County, Virginia 

to 

Fairfax County Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority 

 

(246)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

Exhibit B 

 

PERMITTED ENCUMBRANCES 

 

 “Permitted Encumbrances” shall mean, as of any particular time: 

(247)



 

DC1 1936265v.2 

Exhibit C 

 

INSURANCE 

(248)



1 
DC1 1939623v.1 

Attachment 7 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and delivered 
by Fairfax County, Virginia (the “County”) in connection with the issuance by the Fairfax County 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority (“FCRHA”) of its $________ Bond Anticipation Notes 
(Affordable Housing Acquisition) Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A Notes”) issued pursuant to the 
provisions of a resolution adopted on ______, 2011 by FCRHA (the “Resolution”).  The proceeds of the 
Series 2011A Notes are being used to provide funds sufficient to refinance outstanding notes that were 
issued to pay a portion of the principal amount of an outstanding note the proceeds of which were used to 
pay the principal amount of another bond anticipation note issued in February 2006 to pay a portion of the 
payment price of a multi-family rental housing facility.  The County hereby covenants and agrees as 
follows: 

 SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is being 
executed and delivered by the County for the benefit of the holders of the Series 2011A Notes and in 
order to assist the Participating Underwriters (defined below) in complying with the Rule (defined 
below).  Under the Rule, the County is an “obligated person”.  The County acknowledges that it is 
undertaking primary responsibility for any reports, notices or disclosures that may be required under this 
Disclosure Agreement. 

SECTION 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the County pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the County, acting in its capacity as Dissemination Agent 
hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the County and which has filed 
with the County a written acceptance of such designation. 

“Filing Date” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 3(a) hereof. 

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the twelve month period at the end of which financial position and 
results of operations are determined.  Currently, the County’s Fiscal Year begins July 1 and continues 
through June 30 of the next calendar year. 

“Holder” or “holder” shall mean, for purposes of this Disclosure Agreement, any person who is a 
record owner or beneficial owner of the Series 2011A Notes. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in subsection (b)(5)(i)(C) of the Rule, which 
are as follows: 

principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

non-payment related defaults; if material; 

unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(249)



 2 
DC1 1939623v.1 

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 570-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to  or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Series 2011A Notes; 

modifications to rights of holders, if material; 

bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

defeasances; 

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 2011A Notes, if 
material; 

rating changes; 

bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the County; which event is  considered to 
occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for 
the County in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or 
federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of 
the assets of business of the County, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing 
governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court 
of governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or 
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all 
of the assets or business of the County; 

the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the County or the sale of 
all or substantially all of the assets of the County, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement 
relating any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

appointment of a successor or additional paying agent or the change of name of a paying agent, if 
material.  

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Series 2011A 
Notes required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of such Series 2011A Notes. 

“Repository” shall mean The Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system 
administered by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  EMMA is recognized as a National 
Repository for purposes of the Rule. 

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

A. The County shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, provide to the Repository an 
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  

(250)



 3 
DC1 1939623v.1 

Such Annual Report shall be filed on a date (the “Filing Date”) that is not later than March 31 after the 
end of any Fiscal Year (commencing with its Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2011).  Not later than ten (10) 
days prior to the Filing Date, the County shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if 
applicable).  In such case, the Annual Report (i) may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package, (ii) may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of 
this Disclosure Agreement, and (iii) shall include the County’s audited financial statements or, if audited 
financial statements are not available, such unaudited financial statements as may be required by the Rule.  
In any event, audited financial statements of the County must be submitted, if and when available, 
together with or separately from the Annual Report. 

B. The annual financial statements of the County shall be prepared on the basis of generally 
accepted accounting principles and will be audited.  Copies of the audited annual financial statements, 
which may be filed separately from the Annual Report, will be filed with the Repositories when they 
become publicly available. 

C. If the County fails to provide an Annual Report to the Repository by the date required in 
subsection (A) hereto or to file its audited annual financial statements with the Repository when they 
become publicly available, the County shall send a notice to the Repository in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports.  Except as otherwise agreed, any Annual Report 
required to be filed hereunder shall contain or incorporate by reference, at a minimum, annual financial 
information relating to the County, including operating data, updating such information relating to the 
County as described in Exhibit A, all with a view toward assisting Participating Underwriters in 
complying with the Rule. 

Any or all of such information may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including 
official statements of securities issues with respect to which the County is an “obligated person” (within 
the meaning of the Rule), which have been filed with the Repository or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  If the document incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available 
from EMMA.  The County shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Listed Events.  The County will provide within 10 business days to 
the Repository notice of any of the Listed Events. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The County’s obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier to occur of the legal defeasance or final retirement 
of all the Series 2011A Notes. 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent.  The County may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement and may 
discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  If at any time 
there is not any other designated Dissemination Agent, the County shall be the Dissemination Agent. 

SECTION 8. Amendment.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, 
the County may amend this Disclosure Agreement, if such amendment is supported by an opinion of 
independent counsel with expertise in Federal securities laws, to the effect that such amendment is 
permitted or required by the Rule. 

SECTION 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed 
to prevent the County from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set 

(251)



 4 
DC1 1939623v.1 

forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is 
required by this Disclosure Agreement.  If the County chooses to include any information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically required by this 
Disclosure Agreement, the County shall have no obligation under this Agreement to update such 
information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10. Default.  Any person referred to in Section 11 (other than the County) may take 
such action as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by 
court order, to cause the County to file its Annual Report or to give notice of a Listed Event.  The holders 
of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Series 2011A Notes outstanding may take 
such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by 
court order, to challenge the adequacy of any information provided pursuant to this Disclosure 
Agreement, or to enforce any other obligation of the County hereunder.  A default under this Disclosure 
Agreement shall not be deemed an event of default under the Resolution or the Series 2011A Notes, and 
the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of the County to comply 
herewith shall be an action to compel performance.  Nothing in this provision shall be deemed to restrict 
the rights or remedies of any holder pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rules and 
regulations promulgated thereunder, or other applicable laws. 

SECTION 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
County, the Participating Underwriters, and holders from time to time of the County’s bonds and notes, 
and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

 

Date:  _________, 2011 

 

 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

By:  _______________________________________ 
        Edward L. Long, Jr. 
Deputy County Executive/Chief Financial Officer 

(252)



5 
DC1 1939623v.1 

EXHIBIT A 

CONTENT OF ANNUAL REPORT 

Respecting Fairfax County, Virginia  

(a) Financial Information.  Updated information concerning General Fund 
revenues, expenditures, categories of expenditures, fund balances, assessed value of taxable 
property, tax rates, major taxpayers, and tax levies and collections. 

(b) Debt Information.  Updated information concerning general obligation bonds 
indebtedness, including bonds authorized and unissued, bonds outstanding, the ratios of debt to 
the market value of taxable property, debt per capita, and debt service as a percentage of General 
Fund disbursements. 

(c) Demographic Information.  Updated demographic information respecting the 
County, such as its population, public school enrollment and per pupil expenditure. 

(d) Economic Information.  Updated economic information respecting the County 
such as income, employment, unemployment, building permits and taxable sales data. 

(e) Retirement Plans.  Updated information respecting pension and retirement plans 
for County employees, including a summary of membership, revenues, expenses and actuarial 
valuation(s) of such plans. 

(f) Contingent Liabilities.  A summary of material litigation and other material 
contingent liabilities pending against the County. 

 In general, the foregoing will include information as of the end of the most recent fiscal year or as 
of the most recent practicable date.  Where information for the fiscal year just ended is provided, it may 
be preliminary and unaudited.  Where information has historically been provided for more than a single 
period, comparable information will in general be provided for the same number of periods where valid 
and available.  Where comparative demographic or economic information for the County and the United 
States as a whole is contemporaneously available and, in the judgment of the County, informative, such 
information may be included.  Where, in the judgment of the County, an accompanying narrative is 
required to make data presented not misleading, such narrative will be provided. 

(253)



6 
DC1 1939623v.1 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 
[AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS] 

Re: FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES 

(AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACQUISITION ) 
SERIES 2011A 

CUSIP NOS. 303835  ___-___ 

Dated: _________ __, 20__ 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Fairfax County, Virginia has not provided an Annual Report 
[Audited Annual Financial Statements] as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, 
which was entered into in connection with the above-named bonds, the proceeds of which were to pay a 
portion of the principal amount of an outstanding note.  [The County anticipates that the Annual Report 
[Audited Annual Financial Statements] will be filed by ___________.] 

Dated: ________________ 

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

     By: _______________________________ 

(254)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 7 
 
 
Approval to Establish an Independent Review Process for the Police Department 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Creating an independent review process for the Police Department. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve creating an 
independent review process for the Police Department to be carried out by the Internal 
Auditor under the supervision of the County Executive.  If approved, the County 
Executive will report back to the Board within sixty days with the details of the process. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on March 29, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The ultimate goals of any police department, including the Fairfax County Police 
Department, are to build and maintain public trust and to perform their core mission of 
public safety effectively and efficiently.  The Police Department is committed to serving 
the community with integrity and has a legacy of excellence and broad community 
support.    
 
Yet policing is inherently challenging and police officers often have to make decisions or 
take actions that may give rise to complaints or allegations of misconduct.  Even absent 
a specific complaint or allegation from the public, some police officer actions, such as 
the use of force in some instances, are routinely investigated to ensure compliance with 
policy.  The Police Department has longstanding policies and procedures in place to 
conduct fair, thorough, comprehensive, and accurate investigations.  The purpose of 
these investigations is to not only determine whether an officer’s actions were 
appropriate or not, but to also identify any concerning trends or patterns, research best 
practices, and review and recommend training protocol and/or policy revisions as 
warranted.   
 
Although the Commonwealth’s Attorney’s Office, the County Attorney’s Office, and the 
courts are independent reviewers of fact in some cases, particularly significant ones 
such as officer-involved shootings, the current review of the majority of public 
complaints or incidents involving a police officer is only conducted by the Police 

(255)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Department.  While the Board of Supervisors is briefed in closed session, there is no 
independent third party review or appeal process which can allay possible perceptions 
that the Police Department is not fairly reviewing and disciplining itself where 
appropriate. 
 
A review of the literature concerning public review of police departments indicates that 
most police agencies with more than 100 officers generally do not have civilian 
complaint review boards.  The 1997 Law Enforcement Management and Administrative 
Statistics report (LEMAS) of the Bureau of Justice Statistics indicated that only 98 out of 
651 eligible agencies had public review; however, other review models were not 
identified as options as part of the survey. 
 
There are essentially four models for outside review of police conduct with two options 
being very similar. 
 

 Citizen Review Board.  Public complaints about the police are independently 
reviewed and investigated, and recommendations for disciplinary and/or policy 
changes are made by an appointed public board. 

 Police Investigation with Citizen Oversight.  Normal police process is reviewed by 
a public board. 

 Police Investigation with a Citizen Appeal Board.  Complaints are investigated by 
police, and complainants who are not satisfied with the police review may make 
an appeal to a public body which assures that the process was appropriate. 

 Independent Auditor.  An auditor, which could be a member of the public, reviews 
the police process on a complaint basis to assure that investigations are 
thorough and unbiased. 

 
The option of an Independent Auditor is recommended for several reasons. 
 

 The Internal Auditor, who is supervised by the County Executive, currently 
manages and investigates complaints reported on both the fraud and ethics 
telephone lines.  Additionally, the Internal Auditor  investigates  alleged 
inappropriate behavior and business practices and is routinely utilized by 
management to improve organizational performance.  As a consequence, the 
Internal Auditor is often assisting or is assisted by the Police Department and is 
familiar with police procedure and investigatory practices. 

 The Internal Auditor, as noted above, is outside of the Police Department and 
reports directly to the County Executive who also supervises the Police 
Department through the Deputy County Executive for Public Safety, thus 
satisfying the independent third party review requirement. 

 This is a prudent approach that should further enhance public trust without 
compromising or adding significant burden in terms of time and expense to a 

(256)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

thorough investigation and review of significant incidences involving police 
officers.  It does not complicate or interfere with the rights of police officers (the 
Procedural Guarantee Act), and the head of the police union has been briefed 
and is supportive of this option. 

 There is no strong evidence that a citizen review board provides additional value 
to a review process, however, this remains an option, if over the long term there 
is dissatisfaction with the effectiveness of the proposed auditor model.  Public 
review boards have the same issues as any publicly appointed group and the 
“Monday morning quarterbacking” of the appropriateness of a review.  Inevitably 
there will be injured parties who will never agree with the ultimate findings of any 
review process, including the courts. 

 
Implementation of an Internal Auditor review of complaints would allow complainants 
who are dissatisfied with the Police Department’s investigation and findings to submit a 
request for further review through the County Executive.  Similar to the grievability 
review process for employee complaints, these requests would be reviewed for 
appropriateness for follow-up by the Internal Auditor.  If determined to be appropriate, 
the Internal Auditor would then proceed to review the investigation that had been 
conducted by the Police Department to determine that policy and procedure was 
followed and that all evidence and testimony of witnesses were appropriately 
considered. 
 
It is not proposed that the Internal Auditor will do an independent investigation separate 
from police.  There may be instances, however, when the Internal Auditor will need to 
contract for consultants to aid in a review to compensate for a lack of a particularized 
expertise in a specific area. 
 
The written results of a review by the Internal Auditor will be delivered to the County 
Executive who will have the responsibility for any follow up relating to potential changes 
in policy and procedure coming from conclusions and recommendations by the Internal 
Auditor.  The County Executive also will be responsible for communicating in writing 
with the complainant the results of the review and any actions taken by the County 
Executive as a result of the review. 
 
In summary, an independent auditor review is a recognized model and option to provide 
an independent look at significant responses by police and alleged police misconduct.  
It allows the public to initiate reviews of Police Department actions, and coupled with the 
Board’s anticipated approval of the acquisition and installation of digital cameras in 
police patrol vehicles, which the Police Department has long sought, the public’s trust of 
police should be enhanced.   
 
The Department has fostered a culture of integrity which is the cornerstone of its 
effectiveness.  It has not and does not tolerate misconduct or inappropriate behavior 

(257)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
and practice by its officers; however, the public is not fully aware of personnel actions, 
particularly those involving discipline, taken by the Police Department as some 
information is not disclosed because of confidentiality and privacy.  Consequently, the 
Chief of Police and the Police Department support accountability and the auditor model 
for an independent review process. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No immediate impact.  However not having any baseline data and finalized guidelines 
on the specifics of the review process, it is possible that the Internal Auditor will need an 
additional staff position and funds for consultant resources.  Carryover will be an 
opportunity to make adjustments if required. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None 
 
 
STAFF: 
Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Christopher Pietsch, Internal Auditor 
David Rohrer, Chief of Police 

(258)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 1 
 
 
Consolidated Plan Certification for the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 
2011  
 
 
On March 3, 2011, the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority (FCRHA) 
approved the submission of its Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher Annual 
Plan for FY 2011 (FCHRA Fiscal Year 2012) to the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD). This plan update is required by the Quality Housing and 
Work Responsibility Act (QHWRA) of 1998, and submission to HUD is a requirement for 
receipt of federal Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher funds. Certification that 
the plan is consistent with the Fairfax County Consolidated Plan is part of the required 
submission due to HUD by April 15, 2011. County policy requires that the Board be 
informed of Consolidated Plan certifications.  
 
The Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher Annual Plan articulates the FCRHA’s 
mission for serving the housing needs of low-income and very low-income households, 
and the FCRHA’s strategy for addressing those needs. The plan is presented in a HUD-
mandated format, and has had extensive review by the FCRHA, the public, and the 
FCRHA’s Resident Advisory Council (RAC), which represents Public Housing and 
Housing Choice Voucher participants. The Fairfax County Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) received comments from the RAC on December 14, 
2010; the RAC’s comments and HCD’s responses have been included in the Plan. The 
FCRHA made the plan available for public comment from November 1, 2010 through 
December 15, 2010. No comments were received during the public comment period or 
during the public hearing, which was held January 20, 2011.  
 
Copies of the Plan are available for review in the Office of the Clerk to the Board. 
 
Unless directed otherwise by the Board, the County Executive will sign the Consolidated 
Plan certification and provide it to the FCRHA for inclusion in the Public Housing and 
Housing Choice Voucher Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2011 to be submitted to HUD. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the 
Consolidated Plan (HUD Form)  
 
 

(259)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Patricia Harrison, Deputy County Executive 
Paula C. Sampson, Director, Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
David Ellis, Interim Deputy Director, HCD 
Carol Erhard, Director, Rental Services Division, HCD 
Vincent Rogers, Senior Program Manager, Rental Services Division, HCD 

(260)



Attachment 1 

Certification by State or Local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Official of P H A Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housingl 

with the Consolidated Plan Expires 4/30/2011; 

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the 
Consolidated Plan 

I , Anthony H. Griffin the County Executive certify that the Five Year-and 

Annual PHA Plan of the F a l r f a x
 C o u n t y ^ d e v e l o p m e n t a n d H ° " s i " g A u t h o r i t y is consistent with the Consolidated Plan of 

Fairfax County prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91. 

Signed / Dated by Appropriate State or Local Official 

form HUD-50077-SL (1/2009) 
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226 

(261)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(262)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 2 
 
 
Planning Commission Action on Application 2232-P10-10, NewPath Networks, LLC and 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, Nodes 6 and 7, (Providence District) 
 
On Thursday, February 24, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 
(Commissioner Sargeant abstaining; Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Murphy absent from 
the meeting) to approve Nodes 6 and 7 of the Distributive Antenna System in the Oakton 
area. 
 
The Commission noted that this section of the application also met the criteria of 
character, location and extent, and was in conformance with Section 15.2-2232 of the 
Code of Virginia.     
 
This part of application 2232-P10-10 sought approval to construct Node 6 on Hunter Mill 
Road and Node 7 on Chain Bridge Road in Oakton as components of a Distributed 
Antenna System in the Oakton area in the public rights of way owned by the 
Commonwealth of Virginia/Department of Transportation.  Tax Map 47-2. (Note: Decision 
was deferred on Nodes 5, 8 and 9 until April 28, 2011 to allow additional time for the 
applicant to work with affected neighborhoods.) 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Verbatim  
Attachment 2: Vicinity map 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Fred R. Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Chris Caperton, Public Facilities Branch Chief, Planning Division, DPZ 
Barbara J. Lippa, Executive Director, Planning Commission Office 

(263)



Planning Commission Meeting           Attachment 1 
February 24, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
2232-P10-10 – NEWPATH NETWORKS, LLC & NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC  
 
Decision Only During Commission Matters  
(Public Hearing held on December 9, 2010) 
 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. These are in reference to the 2232 case  
that we’re considering in Providence. That’s 2232-P10-10, in which Crown Castle is working  
the installation of a DAS, Distributed Antenna System network. The first thing I’d like to do  
for all those people from the neighborhoods who are viewing this tonight, is to thank you very 
much for the continuing correspondence that we’re receiving on this application. It’s giving a 
very good picture of where things stand. Please keep them coming. Secondly, I see the agent’s 
representative in the audience and I’d like to call him up to ask him a question on the record. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Please.  
 
Frank Stearns, Esquire, Donohue and Stearns, PLC: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, members of 
the Commission. Frank Stearns, with Donohue and Stearns. I’m here on behalf of - - Mr. 
Donohue was unable to be here this evening, but I have full authority to act on his behalf.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Welcome. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: I see you don’t part your hair the same way that Mr. Donohue does. 
 
Mr. Stearns: That’s correct. I’m a little taller also. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: I consider you to be interchangeable for this purpose. I have a question 
for you. There is concern that the approval of Nodes 6 and 7 will have an undue influence on 
options for the nodes in the Oak Valley and Lake Vale neighborhoods. As we saw at the public 
hearing, a network of nodes must be arranged to mesh together and that is a determinant for your 
client’s designs. However, your letter – excuse me – asking for a time extension refers to 
continuing the work you are doing with the neighborhoods. I read that to mean you are 
affirmatively seeking to satisfy another determinant here, namely that those nodes in the 
neighborhoods will be acceptable to them. Are we agreed on that? 
 
Mr. Stearns: Yes, Commissioner Lawrence, we are agreed on that.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Thank you very much, Mr. Stearns.  
 
Mr. Stearns: Thank you. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: With that, Mr. Chairman, I have a couple of motions to make.  
 

(264)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 24, 2011 
2232-P10-10 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: First, I want to move for approval on Nodes 6 and 7 on Chain Bridge 
and Hunter Mill Roads.  
 
Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman, I’m sorry to interrupt Commissioner – 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes, Mr. Sargeant. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant: I need to - - as you know, as an employee of Dominion Virginia Power, 
this involves Dominion utility poles. So, I didn’t know we were going to do this. I’d like to 
recuse myself and leave during this discussion. Thank you. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes, please. This is - - this is not on the printed agenda.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Must have been something I said. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Before you go on, Commissioner Lawrence – is there any objection to 
moving forward with this? This is not on the printed agenda at this point. We don’t have any 
procedural problem, I believe, with doing that. Is that correct? 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: We’re going to have a partial approval and a partial deferral. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes; right. Parliamentarian, there’s no problem with that, is there? 
 
Commissioner de la Fe: There’s no problem. We were scheduled to have the entire decision 
tonight, so we can make a partial one tonight.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, all right. So let us move forward, Mr. Lawrence.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Let me begin again, Mr. Chairman. I want to move for approval on 
Nodes 6 and 7 on Chain Bridge and Hunter Mill Roads. These nodes are like those already in 
place along Hunter Mill and other major roads. They will support in-vehicle wireless coverage 
on those roadways. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION FIND THAT NODES 6 AND 7 SATISFY THE CRITERIA OF LOCATION, 
CHARACTER, AND EXTENT, AND ARE SUBSTANTIALLY IN ACCORD WITH THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF VIRGINIA CODE 15.2-2232, AS 
AMENDED; FURTHER, THAT APPROVAL OF NODES 6 AND 7, WILL NOT AFFECT 
THE LOCATION, CONFIGURATION, APPROVAL, OR DISAPPROVAL OF NODES, 5, 8, 
AND 9. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Second. 
 

(265)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 24, 2011 
2232-P10-10 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioner Flanagan. Any discussion on that motion? 
Okay, all those in favor of approval of Nodes 6 and 7, as articulated by Commissioner Lawrence, 
please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Lawrence.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: The second motion – 
 
Commissioner Donahue: Mr. Chairman, one thing, if I could ask – 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Commissioner Donahue. 
 
Commissioner Donahue: Did we identify the application number for that? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: In his motion. 
 
Commissioner Donahue: It is there? Okay, thank you. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: It’s on the agenda. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: It’s on the agenda as a deferral –  
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Yes. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: – but not for a partial approval. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Right, right.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes, Commissioner Lawrence.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Mr. Chairman, the applicant has met and continues to meet with the 
community on the remaining wireless nodes proposed by them. I believe they have recognized 
that, while optimizing their network is important, community acceptance of the nodes is of equal 
importance. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE AS FOLLOWS: THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION NOTES THAT THE APPLICANT ASKS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME TO 
WORK WITH STAFF AND THE COMMUNITY ON THE PROPOSED NODES 5, 8, AND 9. 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION NOTES ALSO THAT APPROVAL OF NODES 6 AND 7 
DOES NOT PREDETERMINE OR PREDISPOSE THE LOCATION OR CONFIGURATION 
OF NODE 5, NOR OF ANY NODES PROPOSED FOR THE OAK VALLEY AND THE 
LAKE VALE NEIGHBORHOODS. THE PLANNING COMMISSION WILL DEFER ITS 
DECISION AND EXPAND ITS 2232 REVIEW ON NODES 5, 8, AND 9 UNTIL APRIL 30TH 
(sic), AS REQUESTED.  
 

(266)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 
February 24, 2011 
2232-P10-10 
 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioner Flanagan. Any discussion on that motion? 
Commissioner Hart. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I thought it was May, the something, and I 
was confused about the dates. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Yes. If I may, there is a small - - the letter asks for April 30th. The 
nearest business day for us is May the 5th, so that’s the first date we could move on it. But I only 
have the letter to work from. I would not be at all surprised if this did not change some more. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Well, are we meeting April 30th?  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: No, it’s a Saturday. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Well, then how can we defer our decision to then? 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: All right. Mr. Chairman – 
 
Commissioner Hart: It seems to me we have to - - let me ask, can we do that? I mean, don’t we 
have to defer it to a night that we’re meeting? Because otherwise it’s automatically approved. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: I can amend the motion. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Let’s pick a meeting date before it runs out. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Well, I think the nearest date we meet is May the 5th. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe: The 5th. 
 
Commissioner Hart: But it has to be before that. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Well, I don’t think so, but – or if you will we can take it to the date in 
April. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Well, I don’t mean to belabor this. My point was that if the time runs out 
before we voted, it seems to me it’s automatically approved. So the deferral date needs to be 
before the expiration in the letter, which was the 30th. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: How about, let’s check. Ms. Hardy (sic), is that correct? 
 
 
 

(267)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 5 
February 24, 2011 
2232-P10-10 
 
 
Robin Ransom, Assistant Director, Planning Commission Office: Can you hear me? No? Is this 
better? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: There you go. 
 
Ms. Ransom: Thanks. I would – yes, you’re correct and it does need to be deferred to a date that 
the Planning Commission is meeting. The extension that the applicant has asked for is to the end 
of the month. I would recommend that you DEFER IT TO APRIL 28th. And if it needs to go 
further than that, and if Commissioner Lawrence is out of town, then perhaps a colleague would 
defer it to a further date if another extension is received from the applicant. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT, I’LL ACCEPT IT. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, and accepted by the seconder –  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: – who went away. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: – who ran away. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe: I’ll accept it.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, accepted.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence: So that makes it April the 28th. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, so let me repeat the motion. All those in favor of deferring 
decision only on 22 - - on Nodes 5, 8, and 9 of 2232-P10-10 to a date certain, for now, of April 
28th, 2011, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. And I presume by the seconder saying 
aye that he has no objection to that change in the motion. Anything else, Mr. Lawrence? 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have one more point to make. Mr. Stearns, there 
is some confusion still in the communities concerning a tower at Madison High School and 
whether or not that tower would provide adequate coverage and/or capacity, or both, for Lake 
Vale and Oak Valley. I wonder if you, please, could work on that with the engineers and have 
them do something definitive about that question. And if you’ll provide me with the information, 
I’ll announce it at the next Planning Commission meeting. If you could also send it to the 
community leaders in those two communities, it would be very useful. By the emails that I’m 
getting, there still seems to be a fair amount of confusion. 
 

(268)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 6 
February 24, 2011 
2232-P10-10 
 
 
Mr. Stearns: I’d be happy to do so, Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Thank you very much. 

 
// 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with Commissioner Sargeant recusing himself from the votes; 
Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Murphy absent from the meeting.) 
 
JN 
 
 
 

(269)



PLANNING DETERMINATION
Section 15.2 -2232 of the Code of Virginia

Number: 2232-P10-10 Acreage : N/A District : Providence

Subject Property : VDOT Right-of-Way on Pts. Tax Maps 37-4, 38-3, 47-2

Planned Use: Public Right of Way (Pts. of Chain Bridge Rd., Hunter Mill Rd., Oak Valley Dr., Vale Rd.)

Applicant: NewPath Networks, LLC & New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC

Proposed Use: Telecommunications Distributed Antenna System

PREPARED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING
USING FAIRFAX COUNTY GIS

(270)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 3 
 
 
Planning Commission Action on Application 2232-Y10-22, Upper Occoquan Sewage 
Authority (Sully District) 
 
 
On Thursday, March 2, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 8-0-1 (Commissioner 
Murphy abstaining; Commissioner Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall 
and Harsel absent from the meeting) to approve 
2232-Y10-22. 
 
The Commission noted that the application met the criteria of character, location and 
extent, and was in conformance with Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia.  
 
Application 2232-Y10-22 sought approval to replace 3,500 linear feet of existing 
interceptor sewer line with new, larger, corrosion resistant piping in the Centreville area 
on portions of Tax Maps 43-4 ((3)) Q; 43-4 ((7)) 9, 10, 11, 12, 13,14; 43-4 ((1)) 9; and 
43-4 ((8)) 6, 7, located east of Cub Run Stream Valley between Braddock Road to the 
north and Cub Run Park Drive to the southeast. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Verbatim  
Attachment 2: Vicinity map 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Fred R. Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Chris Caperton, Public Facilities Branch Chief, Planning Division, DPZ 
Barbara J. Lippa, Executive Director, Planning Commission Office 
 

(271)



Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
March 2, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
2232-Y10-22 – UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY (UOSA)  
 
Decision Only During Commission Matters 
(Public Hearing held on February 24, 2011) 
 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  I have a decision only tonight, but I'd like Ms. Beaulieu and  
Mr. Caperton to come down along with the UOSA folks.  Last week we had a hearing on a 
proposed sewer line replacement in the Sully District and there were four areas of concern.  The 
first area was making sure endangered species, a wood turtle, was taken care of.  Secondly was 
an issue about protecting trees.  Thirdly was a concern over erosion.  And the fourth issue was - - 
let me think - -  
 
Sandi Beaulieu, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Zoning:  Easement realignment. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  Oh that's right.  Moving the easement.  Thank you.  Thank you.  
And Ms. Beaulieu, could you tell us what you - - what your research revealed? 
 
Ms. Beaulieu:  Oh yes.  Sandi Beaulieu, Planning and Zoning.  UOSA has committed to 
reconstruction survey of the project to identify and relocate species such as freshwater mussels, 
purple milkweed, and the wood turtle.  UOSA will continue to work with property owners to 
provide tree preservation, restoration as well as tree planting and other mitigation measures.  The 
plans are currently under review by DPWES staff who will review UOSA's plans for erosion and 
sediment control.  These plans will also be reviewed by the Northern Virginia Soil and Water 
Conservation District.  And as far as the easement realignment goes, the UOSA has - - UOSA 
made a statement that they will not realign the sewer pipeline.  In addition to time and cost 
constraints, the sewerline that has been located within rock beds would require blasting, which 
would be even more damaging to the surrounding properties. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  Thank you, Ms. Beaulieu.  Mr. Reach, do you concur with all these 
new agreements? 
 
Michael Reach, Deputy Executive Director, UOSA:  Yes, sir. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  Okay.  Thank you very much. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Do you mind coming up to the microphone, identifying yourself for the 
record, and affirming what you just said? 
 
Mr. Reach:  Yes, sir.  I'm Mike Reach.  I'm the Deputy Executive Director for UOSA. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Thank you.  And you - -? 
 
Mr. Reach:  Absolutely confirm with what Ms. Beaulieu has said. 

(272)



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
March 2, 2011 
2232-Y10-22 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Thank you very much. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  Thank you, Mr. Reach.  With that, Mr. Chairman, I'll go ahead 
with the motion. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  All right. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  I concur with staff's conclusion that the replacement sewerline 
proposed in the Sully district along the eastern side of Cub Run and south of Braddock Road 
satisfies the criteria of location, character, and extend specified in Virginia Code Section 15 - - 
excuse me - - 15.2-2232, as amended.  Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION FIND THE REPLACEMENT SEWERLINE PROPOSED BY 
THE UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY ON THEIR APPLICATION 2232-Y10-
22, SUBSTANTIALLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE ADOPTED 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Flanagan.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those 
in favor of the motion to approve 2232-Y10-22, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  The Chair abstains; not present for the public 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I want to thank the staff, particularly 
Mr. Caperton and Ms. Beaulieu for their fine work on this project.  I also want to thank  
Mr. Brough and Mr. Reach for reaching out to the community and taking care of all those 
citizens.  Thank you very much. 
 
// 
 
(The motion carried by a vote of 8-0-1 with Commissioner Murphy abstaining; Commissioner 
Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 
 
 

(273)



PLANNING DETERMINATIOIN 
Section 15.2 -2232 of the Code of Virginia 

Number: 2232-Y10-22 Acreage: N/A District: SUlly 

Subject Property: 43-4 «3» Q; 43-4 «7» 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14; 43-4 «1» 9,12: 43-4 «8» 6,7 

Planned Use: Public Park and Residential Applicant: Upper OCcoqan S.wage Authority (UQSA) 

Proposed U..: Replacement of approximately 3500 linear feet of existing lnter~ptor sewer with new, 
larger corrosion resistant piping 

4 

lD 

9 

\ 1M;
\" 8 THEIN 

01 
CEN 

2Z 

Location in 
Fairfax County. 

Virginia 

• 

• 

500 FEET PREPARED BY TI-E DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING 
USING FAIRFAX COUNTY GIS o 

(274)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011  
 
 
INFORMATION - 4 
 
 
Contract Award - Contract for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Design Services for the 
Bailey’s Crossroads Volunteer Fire Station (Mason District) 
 
 
Consultant services are required to provide A/E design and construction administration 
services for the new replacement facility for Project 009051, Bailey’s Crossroads 
Volunteer Fire Station, Fund 312, Public Safety Construction.  This project is included in 
the FY 2012-FY 2016 Advertised Capital Improvement Program.  This project will 
include demolition of the existing structure, a new replacement fire station 
(approximately 16,700 square feet) and related site improvements.  An off site 
temporary facility will be required during construction; design of the temporary facility 
will be performed under a separate A/E contract.  The new fire station will be designed 
and constructed in accordance with Fairfax County’s Sustainable Design Policy utilizing 
the U.S. Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design 
(LEED) guidelines. 
 
In accordance with the Fairfax County Purchasing Resolution, the architectural firm of 
LeMay, Erickson, Willcox Architects was selected based on the firm’s technical 
expertise and relevant experience in fire and rescue station projects.  This contract is for 
the full design and construction administration services for this project.  The Department 
of Tax Administration has verified that LeMay, Erickson, Willcox Architects has the 
appropriate Fairfax County Business, Professional and Occupational License. 
 
The architectural and engineering design services and the construction administration 
services contract amount is $741,000. 
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Supervisors, the Department of Public Works 
and Environmental Services will proceed to award this contract to LeMay, Erickson, 
Willcox Architects in the amount of $741,000.        
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $741,000 is necessary to award this contract.  Funding is 
currently available in Project 009051, Bailey’s Crossroads Volunteer Fire Station, Fund 
312, Public Safety Construction to fund design of the fire and rescue station project.  
Funds will be required at a future budget cycle to complete both the temporary fire 
station and construction of the replacement fire station.  Construction funding is being 
considered as part of the fall 2012 public safety bond referendum. 

(275)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - List of awardee and other firms interviewed  
(Copy of contract is available in the Office of the Clerk to the Board) 
 
 
STAFF:   
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities  
 
 
 
 

(276)



Attachment 1 
Awardee: 
LeMay, Erickson, Willcox Architects  
11250 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 16 
Reston, VA 20190 
Mr. Paul R. Erickson, AIA  
Senior Principal Architect 
 
Other Firms Interviewed: 
Zivic and Hurdle Architects, PC 
4031 University Drive, Suite 120 
Fairfax, VA 22030 
Mr. Bruce Zivic, AIA, LEED AP 
Principal 
 
Hughes Group Architecture 
2260 Davis Drive, Suite 175  
Sterling, VA 20142 
Mr. Wayne L. Hughes, AIA 
 
Lukmire Partnership, Inc. 
2700 Quincy Street, Suite 300 
Arlington, VA  22206 
Gregory S. Lukmire, AIA 
President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(277)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(278)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 5 
 
 
Contract Award – Contract for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Design Services for the 
Herndon Fire Station (Dranesville District) 
 
 
Consultant services are required to provide A/E design services for the Project 009215, 
Herndon Fire Station, in Fund 312, Public Safety Construction.  This project is included 
in the FY 2011 – FY 2015 Adopted Capital Improvement Program.  The new fire station 
will be constructed on the site of the existing fire station.  A temporary facility will be 
required during construction; design of the temporary station is included in this contract.  
 
The project will consist of approximately 14,500 square feet of new construction, an 
approximately 20 space underground parking garage, and related site improvements.  
The project also includes the design and construction of an approximately 6,500 
square-foot temporary facility.  The permanent facility will be designed and constructed 
in accordance with the U.S. Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design (LEED) guidelines. 
 
In accordance with the Fairfax County Purchasing Resolution, the architectural firm of 
Zivic and Hurdle Architects was selected to provide full A/E design and construction 
administration services for the Herndon Fire Station project and temporary facility.  Zivic 
and Hurdle Architects was selected based on the firm’s technical expertise and relevant 
experience in fire station design.  The services will be performed in two parts.  This 
initial Part I authorization includes program verification, schematic design, design 
development, value engineering, and construction documents for both the permanent 
and temporary facilities.  Part II services may be separately authorized for a future date, 
and will include bidding, construction administration, and post construction for both the 
permanent and temporary facilities.  
 
The Department of Tax Administration has verified that Zivic and Hurdle does not have, 
and is not required to have, a Fairfax County Business, Professional and Occupational 
License (BPOL) since they are located in the City of Fairfax. 
 
The Part I A/E design services contract amount is $815,000.  Part II services will be 
subject to future appropriations. 
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Supervisors, the Department of Public Works 
and Environmental Services will proceed to award this contract for Part I services to 
Zivic and Hurdle Architects in the amount of $815,000.  
 

(279)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $815,000 is necessary to award this contract and fund the 
associated contingency. Funding is currently available in Project 009215, Herndon Fire 
Station, Fund 312, Public Safety Construction, to fund design. Funds will be required at 
a future budget cycle to fund construction and are being considered as part of a fall 
2012 public safety bond referendum.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – List of awardee and other firms interviewed  
(Copy of contract is available in the Office of the Clerk to the Board) 
 
 
STAFF:   
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 

(280)



Attachment 1 
Awardee: 
Zivic and Hurdle Architects 
4031 University Drive, Suite 120 
Fairfax, VA 22030 
Bruce Zivic, AIA 
 
Other Firms Interviewed: 
LeMay Erickson Architects 
11250 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 16 
Reston, VA  20190 
Paul Erickson, AIA 
 
Grimm + Parker Architects 
1355 Beverly Road, Suite 105 
McLean, VA 22101 
John Hill, AIA 
 
Bignell Watkins Hasser Architects, P.C. 
8500 Leesburg Pike, Suite 530 
Vienna, VA 22182 
Gregory Gilbert, AIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(281)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(282)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 6 
 
 
Agreement with Chadsworth Homes to Provide a Walkway at an Alternate Location 
Along Spring Hill Road (Dranesville District) 
 
The approved subdivision plan designated as the Marshall Property, County Plan No. 
467-SD-01-02, owned by Chadsworth Homes, includes 280 linear feet (LF) of four-foot 
wide concrete sidewalk located along the west side of the site frontage to Spring Hill 
Road, Route 684 (Attachment I).  However, the sidewalk as required by the approved 
subdivision plan will not physically connect to an existing walkway facility at either the 
northern or southern boundary of the site development.  Chadsworth Homes and 
County staff are in agreement that providing a walkway at an alternate location would 
provide a greater overall public benefit.         
 
County staff has identified a critical missing trail segment along Spring Hill Road, Route 
684, as an alternate walkway location.  Specifically, the alternate walkway location 
consists of the installation of approximately 530 LF of six-foot wide asphalt trail along 
the west side of Spring Hill Road, Route 684, from Summerwood Drive, Route 6620, 
extending in a southerly direction to an existing trail/crosswalk located at the 
intersection of Spring Hill Road, Route 684, and Lewinsville Road, Route 694 
(Attachment II).  This alternate walkway will be constructed within the existing right-of-
way and no additional land rights are required.  
 
Chadsworth Homes is agreeable to signing an agreement stipulating the terms and 
conditions to provide the six-foot wide asphalt trail at the alternate location instead of 
the four-foot wide concrete sidewalk depicted on the approved subdivision plans 
(Attachment A).  Included in this Agreement is a provision that the County will provide 
Chadsworth Homes a lump sum payment of $14,000 to address the costs in excess of 
those that would have been incurred to provide the four-foot wide sidewalk as depicted 
on the approved subdivision plans.  County staff concurs with calculated cost 
differential.  This payment to Chadsworth Homes will be made after the alternate 
walkway is constructed and accepted by the County.   
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Supervisors, the County Executive will 
execute the Agreement with Chadsworth Homes to provide a walkway at an alternate 
location along Spring Hill Road, Route 684.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funds for the County’s payment to Chadsworth Homes are currently available in Project 
W00200, Dranesville District Walkways, Fund 307, Pedestrian Walkway Improvements. 

(283)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment A - Agreement with Chadsworth Homes with attachments 
 
 
STAFF:   
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Tom Biesiadny, Acting Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation  
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, Capital Facilities, DPWES,  
 
 

(284)



         Attachment A 
AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day of __________, 
2011, by and between the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, a body politic (“the 
Board of Supervisors”), and Chadsworth Homes, Inc. (“Chadsworth Homes”).   
 
 WHEREAS Chadsworth Homes is the owner of the property located on Tax Map 
Number 020-4-31, designated as the Marshall Property (“the subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS the subject property has been approved for a subdivision; 
 
 WHEREAS the subdivision development plan designated as the Marshall Property, 
County Plan No. 467-SD-01-02 and approved by the County (“approved subdivision plan”) 
includes a four-foot wide concrete sidewalk located on the west side of Spring Hill Road, Route 
684, along frontage of the subject property as depicted on Attachment I (attached hereto and 
made part of this agreement);  
 
 WHEREAS, the four-foot concrete sidewalk required by the approved subdivision plan 
will not physically connect to an existing walkway facility at either the northern or southern 
boundary of the subject property; 
 
 WHEREAS, County Staff and Chadsworth Homes have been in discussions on the 
relative benefit that will be achieved by providing the 280 linear feet (LF) of four-foot concrete 
sidewalk required by the approved subdivision plan, and if the overall public benefit could be 
better achieved by providing a walkway at an alternate location; 
 
 WHEREAS, County Staff has identified a critical missing trail segment along Spring Hill 
Road, Route 684, located on County Tax Map 29-1-09 as an alternate walkway location; 
 

WHEREAS, the alternate walkway location consists of the installation of approximately 
530 linear feet (LF) six foot wide asphalt trail along the west side of Spring Hill Road, Route 
684, from Summerwood Drive, Route 6630, and then extending 530 LF in a southerly direction 
to an existing trail /crosswalk located at the intersection of Spring Hill Road, Route 684, and 
Lewinsville Road, Route 694, as depicted on Attachment II and Attachment III (attached hereto 
and made part of the agreement);   
 
 WHEREAS, Chadsworth Homes is agreeable to providing the providing the six-foot 
asphalt trail (PFM Standard Plate 4-8 Type I) at the alternate location instead of the four-foot 
concrete sidewalk depicted on the approved subdivision plan, contingent upon any costs in 
excess of those that would have been incurred to provide the four-foot sidewalk as depicted on 
the approved subdivision plan be provided by the County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, Chadsworth Homes, and County Staff are all in 
agreement that it would be more prudent and provide a greater public benefit to proceed with the 
alternate walkway improvements as depicted in Attachment II in lieu of the four foot concrete 
sidewalk as depicted on the approved subdivision plan. 

(285)



 NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual promises exchanged herein and for other good and 
valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows:   
 
1. Chadsworth Homes shall submit to the County a revision to current approved subdivision 

plan to delete the four-foot concrete sidewalk, and to include as part of the revision a 
design for the alternate walkway improvements described above and in accordance with 
the scope of work depicted on Attachment II and Attachment III.  Chadsworth Homes 
shall be responsible for providing strip topographic information for the design as 
necessary.   

 
2. Chadsworth Homes shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and 

approvals, including payment of all fees, associated with the construction of the proposed 
alternate walkway improvements.   The proposed alternate walkway improvements shall 
be included in the overall bond for the approved subdivision plan and the bond adjusted if 
necessary in accordance with current Environmental and Site Review Division (ESRD) 
practices.` 

 
3. The Board of Supervisors shall direct County staff to waive any and all fees and charges 

associated with Chadsworth Homes' submission of a revision to the approved subdivision 
plan to provide the alternate walkway improvements.   

 
4. Upon submission to the County of the revised plan for the alternate walkway 

improvements, the County shall process the revised plan within thirty (30) days in order 
to provide approval or review comments that must be addressed.  Any subsequent re-
submission(s) of the revision shall also include a waiver of the submission fees as agreed 
along with a two-week maximum review time by the County (i.e. ESRD).   

 
5. Subsequent to the receipt of County approval of the alternate walkway improvement 

plan, the proposed walkway improvements shall be completed on an expedited basis, 
weather permitting.  Chadsworth Homes acknowledges that time is of the essence to 
complete the alternate walkway improvements. 

 
6. The Board of Supervisors agrees to pay Chadsworth Homes $14,000 for it’s agreed to 

proportionate share of the cost to provide the alternate walkway improvements as 
stipulated on Attachment II and Attachment III.  Chadsworth Homes acknowledges, 
agrees, and understands that this payment, with the exception of a possible adjustment to 
the asphalt price, shall be lump sum, and under no circumstances shall the County be 
under any obligation to provide any additional payments in excess of the agreed to lump 
sum amount nor shall the County be responsible for any liens on the property and/or any 
unpaid costs to subcontractors, bills, etc., that may result from Chadsworth Homes' 
construction of the alternate walkway improvements.  Payment shall be made subsequent 
to the completion of construction and the acceptance of the completed trail by the County 
for maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(286)



7. If the asphalt price increases between March 2011 and the time the trail paving work is 
performed, the County agrees to provide, upon request by Chadsworth Homes, an 
increase to the agreed to $14,000 lump sum payment based on the VDOT Asphalt Index.  
Such an adjustment shall be based on VDOT methodology and the following parameters:  
Estimated asphalt quantity 50 tons; a March 2011 VDOT Asphalt Index of $503.00 per 
ton; and, the percent liquid asphalt utilized as the per actual asphalt mix design to be 
provided by Chadsworth Homes.  

 
8. Funds to address the County’s agreed to share of the cost to provide the alternate 

walkway improvements have been specifically designated for such purpose in Project 
W00200 (W2190) Spring Hill Road Trail Improvements, Fund 307, Pedestrian Walkway 
Improvements.  

 
9. The request for payment shall be submitted by Chadsworth Homes to the County as 

follows: 
 

Fairfax County Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
Planning and Design Division  
12000 Government Center Parkway 
Suite 449 
Fairfax, VA 22035 
 
Attention:  Carey F. Needham, Acting Director  
 

Included with this request for payment shall be a fully executed Federal Form W-9.  
Every effort will be made by the County to provide the requested payment within 30 
days.  

  
10. Each party agrees and acknowledges that this agreement is made and is to be performed 

in Fairfax County, Virginia, and hereby voluntarily submits to and consents to the 
jurisdiction and venue of the courts of Fairfax County, Virginia, in connection with any 
action, suite, or other proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, and hereby 
waives preferred or more convenient venues, if any.  

 
11. In the event that any provision or clause of this Agreement conflicts with applicable law, 

such conflict shall not affect other provisions of this Agreement that can be given effect 
without the conflicting provision.  To this end, the provisions of this Agreement are 
declared severable. 

 
12. This Agreement constitutes the final, entire, and exclusive Agreement between the 

parties, and no representation, inducements, or agreements, oral or otherwise, not 
contained herein will have any force or effect.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(287)



 IN WITNESS WHERE Of the parties have executed this Agreement on the date written  
below.   
 
 
_________________________________    ________________  
Patrick Byrne         Date  
General Manager         
Eaton Drive, LLC 
Webb Property, LLC 
 
 
Board of Supervisors of  
Fairfax County, Virginia 
 
 
 
By:  _________________________________   ________________  
       Anthony H. Griffin       Date  
       County Executive  

(288)



73 


8ge 

ill 

G) 

Attachment I 
Required PFM 4' Sidewalk Location 

Marshall Property 
(Plan No. 467-SD-01-2) 

Tax Map 20-4 
Dranesville District 

December 2010 

t 

(289)



29 31 32 

48 

Proposed Handicap Ramps 

Attachment II 
Alternate 6' Trail Location 

Tax Map 29-1 
Dranesville District 

December 2010 

o 40 80 160 240 320 
- _ Feet 

t 

(290)



 
 
 

Attachment III 
Scope of work  

6 Foot Asphalt Trail (Alternate Walkway Location) 
February 2011 

 
 
The Scope of Work for the implementation of the 6-foot asphalt trail (Alternate Walkway 
Location Spring Hill Road) will include, but shall not be limited to, the following items:   
 
Engineering: 
 

 Survey Project Site (Strip Topography) 
 Subdivision Revision Plan Design  

 
Construction: 
 

 Erosion and siltation (E&S) controls 
 Clear and grub (strip grass only) 
 12-inch concrete pipe to replace metal culvert  

(at south corner of Summerwood Drive and Spring Hill Road) 
 6-foot wide asphalt trail ((PFM Standard Plate 4-8 Type I):  530 LF (see Note 1) 
 Truncated domes / handicapped ramps:  2 
 Land restoration / seeding 
 Maintenance of Traffic  

 
 
Notes: 
 
1. The final length of 6-foot wide asphalt trail required to provide the trail segment as 

proposed will be based on actual site conditions and the alignment in the approved 
Subdivision Revision Plan Design.   

 
2. A cost for as-built plans at the Alternate Walkway Location is not included.  As-built 

plans are required by code whether for the sidewalk at the Marshall Property or for the 
trail at the Alternate Walkway Location. 

(291)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(292)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION – 7 
 
 
Contract Award – Poplar Tree Road Improvements (Sully District) 
 
 
Eight sealed bids were received and opened on March 15, 2011, for the construction of 
Poplar Tree Road Improvements Project No. 4YP210, Fund 304, Transportation 
Improvements.  This project provides for the widening of Poplar Tree Road from a two- 
lane roadway to a four-lane divided roadway for approximately 3,500 LF, from Sully 
Station Drive to Braddock Ridge Drive.  Construction includes grading, installing storm 
pipes, storm structures, asphalt paving, pavement marking, asphalt trail, concrete 
sidewalk, and related items.  This project is included in the Adopted FY2011 - FY2015 
Capital Improvement Program.  
 
The lowest responsive and responsible bidder is Tavares Concrete Co., Inc.  The firm’s 
bid of $2,451,427.55 is $240,375.45 or 9% lower than the Engineer’s Estimate of 
$2,691,803.  The second lowest bid of $2,992,313.53 is $540,885.98 or 22% above the 
low bid.  The highest bid of $3,498,400 is $1,046,972.45 or 43% above the low bid. 
 
The firm of Tavares Concrete Co., Inc. has satisfactorily completed several County 
projects and is considered a responsible contractor.  The Department of Tax 
Administration has verified that Tavares Concrete Co., Inc. has the appropriate Fairfax 
County Business, Professional and Occupational License.  Tavares Concrete Co., Inc. 
is a small and minority owned business.  
 
This bid may be withdrawn after May 13, 2011.  
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Supervisors, the Department of Public Works 
and Environmental Services will proceed to award this contract to Tavares Concrete 
Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,451,427.55. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $3,152,262 is necessary to award this contract and fund the 
associated contingency and other project costs including, testing, contract 
administration, and inspection.  Funding is currently available in Project 4YP210, Fund 
304, Transportation Improvements. 
 
 
 

(293)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Order of Bidders 
Attachment 2 – Vicinity Map 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES)  
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 
 

(294)



 ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS COUNTY OF FAIRFAX 
& ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES       VIRGINIA 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
DATE OF BID OPENING: March 15, 2011 
NO AWARD OF CONTRACT YET MADE 
 

  POPLAR TREE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 
ORDER OF BIDDERS  

CONTRACT NO. CN10304009 
PROJECT NO. 4YP210 

 
 

 
 

1. Tavares Concrete Co., Inc.. ............................................................. $2,451,427.55 
8000 Cinder Bed Road 

 Lorton, Virginia 22079 
 
2. Martin & Gass Inc................. ........................................................... $2,992,313.53 
 6433 General Green Way 
           Alexandria, Virginia, 22312 
 
3. General Excavation, Inc.. ................................................................ $3,122,756.00 
 9757 Rider Road 
           Warrenton, Virginia 20187 
 
4. Ashburn Contracting Corp ................ .............................................. $3,134,366.00 

20666 Coppersmith Drive 
           Ashburn, Virginia 20147 
 
5. Anderson Company, LLC ................ ............................................... $3,347,243.00 

12150 TAC  Court 
           Manassas, Virginia 20109 
 
6. Jeffrey Stack, Inc. ................ ........................................................... $3,387,117.50 

P. O. Box 280 
           Jersey, Virginia 22481 
 
7. A & W Contracting Corp. ................ ................................................ $3,393,318.50 

P. O. Box 248 
           Lorton, Virginia 22199 
 
 

(295)



8. Ardent Company, LLC ................ .................................................... $3,498,400.00 
P. O. Box 879 

           McLean Viginia, 22101 
 
 
ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE .......................................................................... $2,691,803.00 
 
Contract Time:  365 Calendar Days 
 
 
 

(296)



(297)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(298)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
10:45 a.m. 
 
 
Matters Presented by Board Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(299)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(300)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
11:35 a.m. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
 
(a) Discussion or consideration of personnel matters pursuant to Virginia Code  
 § 2.2-3711(A) (1). 
 
(b) Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, 

or of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open 
meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of 
the public body, pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3711(A) (3). 

 
(c) Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants 

pertaining to actual or probable litigation, and consultation with legal counsel 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such 
counsel pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3711(A) (7). 

  
 

1. Application of Washington Gas Light Company, PUE-2010-00139 (Va. 
State Corp. Comm’n) (County-wide) 

 
2. Property Damage Claim of Douglas and Penny Murphy (Lee District) 
 
3. Eugenia B. White v. Fairfax County Government, Case No. 09A1091 (U.S. 

Sup. Ct.) (White III) 
 
4. Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority v. James C. Riekse, 

Rajesh Kapani, Rajinder P. Kapani, and Wells Fargo Bank, Record 
No. 092486 (Va. Sup. Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 

 
5. Dunn, McCormack & MacPherson v. Gerald E. Connolly, Record 

No. 100260 (Va. Sup. Ct.) 
 

 6. James H. Blondell v. Officer Donald W. Amos, Jr., Officer Robin D. Wyatt, 
and Officer Katherine S. Wright, Case No.1:10cv249 (E.D. Va.) 

 
7. Dean Marrison and Ashley Marrison v. Department of Family Services, 

Record No. 0174-11-4 (Va. Ct. App.) 
 

(301)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
Page 2 
 

  

8. Carolyn McKay Sydnor v. Fairfax County, Virginia, Civil Action 
No. 1:10-cv-934 (E.D. Va.) 

 
9. Steven W. Faett v. Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive, Case 

No. CL-2011-0000053 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
 
10. Lenir Richardson v. Mount Vernon Recreation Center, Fairfax County Park 

Authority, Power Systems, Inc., and INOVA Physical Therapy, Case 
No. CL-2010-12621 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 

 
11. Johnie R. Muncy, Trustee, and F & M Services, LC, Trustee v. The Fairfax 

County Redevelopment and Housing Authority, the Board of Supervisors of 
Fairfax County, Virginia, Albert A. Owusu, and Grace A. Owusu, Case 
No. CL-2011-0001751 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 

 
12. Latisa M. Head, Trustee v. The Fairfax County Redevelopment and 

Housing Authority, the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, 
and Vicki L. Dodge, Case No. CL-2011-0001752 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Springfield District) 

 
13. Hilda Frazier, Sherry Frazier, and Susan Frazier v. Board of Supervisors of 

Fairfax County, Virginia, Case No. CL-2010-0016336 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Mount Vernon District) 

 
14. Stephen Weidman and Cynthia Weidman v. Board of Supervisors of 

Fairfax County, Virginia, Case No. CL-2010-0018037 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Providence District) 

 
15. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Reynaldo C. 

Medrano and Carla Munoz-Lopez, Case No. CL-2006-0010659 (Fx. Co. 
Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 
 

16. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Thinh V. Luong 
and Thuy T. Trinh, CL-2010-0008779 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 

 
17. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. John A. Foster 

and Shirlean N. Foster, Case No. CL-2010-0015850 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee 
District) 

 
18. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Bernard C. Cox, 

Case No. CL-2010-0016983 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence District) 
 

(302)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
Page 3 
 

  

19. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 
County, Virginia v. George W. Garber and Mary L. Garber, Case 
No. CL-2010-0015516 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Hunter Mill District) 

 
20. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Nelson G. Lameles, Case No. CL-2009-0017503 (Fx. Co. 
Cir. Ct.) (Braddock District) 

 
21. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Peter A. Shultz, 

Case No. CL-2009-0012158 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Springfield District) 
 
22. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Chau Quynh 

Nguyen and Sarah K. Nguyen, Case No. CL-2009-0016344 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Mason District) 

 
23. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. 

M-G Apartments, LLC, Case No. CL-2011-0001769 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Dranesville District) 

 
24. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Mann Realty, Inc., 

and 495 Shipping, Inc., Case No. CL-2010-0005205 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount 
Vernon District) 

 
25. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Robert Brennan, 

Case No. CL-2010-0017543 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee District) 
 
26. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Uyen Dieu H. 

Tran, Case No. CL-2011-0002316 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 
 
27. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Elmer Lopez and 

Sandra Lopez, Case No. CL-2011-0002317 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence 
District) 

 
28. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Donna K. Stone and Loudean Chrisman, Case 
No. CL-2011-0002381 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 

 
29. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Gary Steven Pisner, Case No. CL-2010-0002555 (Fx. Co. 
Cir. Ct.) (Springfield District) 

 

(303)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
Page 4 
 

  

30. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 
County, Virginia v. Pinehills Properties, LLC, Case No. CL-2011-0002805 
(Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence District) 

 
31. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Khalil Arbid, Case No. CL-2011-0003120 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Dranesville District 

 
32. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Ximena Escudero 

and Thomas Escudero, Case No. CL-2011-0003245 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Mason District) 

 
33. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Bum Ho Kim, 

Case No. CL-2011-0003305 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 
 
34. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Sergio D. Alvarez and Raha Alvarez, Case 
No. CL-2011-0003304 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 

 
35. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Santos Gutierrez, 

Case No. CL-2011-0003448 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee District) 
 
36. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Mohammad E. 

Azim, Case No. CL-2011-0003524 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee District) 
 
37. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Gholamreza 

Khamesi and Fariba Vahdani, Case No. CL-2011-0003523 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Dranesville District) 

 
38. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Hossein 

Nilforoush, Civil Case Nos. 10-0028993 and 10-0028994 (Fx. Co. Gen. Dist. 
Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 

 
39. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Haydar Najem 

and Zaynab Najem, Case No. 11-0003629 (Fx. Co. Gen. Dist. Ct.) 
(Springfield District) 

 
 
 

(304)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:00 p.m. 
 
 
Special Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority to Consider Purchase of 
the I-95 Waste-to-Energy Facility 
 
 
The Solid Waste Authority will hold a Special Meeting to consider Purchase of the I-95 
Waste-to-Energy Facility and to approve the minutes of the January 25, 2011 meeting. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I – Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority Meeting Agenda, March 29, 2011 
Attachment II – Minutes of the January 25, 2011, Solid Waste Authority Meeting 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
Joyce M. Doughty, Director, Division of Solid Waste Disposal and Resource Recovery

(305)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(306)



Attachment I 
 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 
 

Special Meeting Agenda 
 

March 29, 2011 
 
 

1. Call-to-Order. 
 
2. Approval of the minutes from the January 25, 2011 meeting. 
 
3. Decision about the purchase of the I-95 Waste-to-Energy Facility. 
  
4. Adjournment. 
 
 

(307)



Attachment II 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

January 25,2011 

At the Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority held in accordance 

with Article III , Section I of the bylaws, in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center in 

Fairfax, Virginia, on Monday, January 25, 2011, at 4:27 p.m., there were present: 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS; 

Chairman Sharon Bulova, presiding 

Supervisor John C. Cook, of Braddock District 

Supervisor John W. Foust, of Dranesville District 

Supervisor Michael R. Frey, of Sully District 

Supervisor Penelope A. Gross, of Mason District 

Supervisor Catherine M. Hudgins, of Hunter Mill District 

Supervisor Jeffrey C. McKay, of Lee District 

Supervisor Patrick S. Herrity, of Springfield District 

Supervisor Linda Q. Smyth, of Providence District 

Anthony H, Griffin, County Executive; Authority Executive Director 

Nancy Vehrs, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors; Authority Secretary 

David P. Bobzien, County Attorney; Authority Attorney 

Joyce Doughty, Director, Division of Solid Waste Disposal and Resource 
Recovery, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES); 
Authority Representative 

Supervisor Gerald W. Hyland, of Mount Vernon District, and Victor Garcia, Director, 

Department of Finance, Treasurer, were absent from the entire meeting. 

(308)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 25,2011 

Supervisor Gross moved that the Board appoint the following officers and officials to the 

Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority: 

OFFICERS 

Sharon Bulova 
Chairman, Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Penelope A. Gross 
Vice-Chairman, Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Victor Garcia 
Director, Office of Finance 

David P. Bobzien 
County Attorney 

Anthony H. Griffin 
County Executive 

Joyce M. Doughty 
Director, Division of Solid Waste 
Disposal and Resource Recovery, 
Department of Public Works and 
Environmental Services (DPWES) 

- Chairman 

- Vice-Chairman 

- Secretary 

- Treasurer 

- Attorney 

- Executive Director 

- Authority Representative 

Supervisor Smyth seconded the motion and it carried by a vote of nine, Supervisor 

Hyland being absent. 

Supervisor Gross moved approval of the minutes from the January 26, 2010, meeting of 

the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority. Supervisor Smyth seconded the motion and it carried 

by a vote of nine, Supervisor Hyland being absent. 

(309)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 25,2011 

Supervisor Gross moved approval of the financial statements attached to the Board 

Agenda Item dated January 25, 2011. Supervisor Smyth seconded the motion and it carried by a 

vote of nine, Supervisor Hyland being absent. 

Chairman Bulova called the Board's attention to item five on the authority's agenda: 

Discussion of the 1-95 Energy/Resource Recovery Facility Agreement. Ms. Doughty noted that 

the Board received the schedule earlier in the meeting and scheduled a public hearing. She 

briefly outlined the status of the 1-95 Energy/Resource Recovery Facility Agreement and the 

schedule of the public meetings and the public hearing to be held before the Board. 

Following an mquiry from Supervisor Smyth, Ms. Doughty stated that it appears that 

Covanta is ready to proceed with an extension of the time the County has to consider the 

purchase of the facility. 

Chairman Bulova referenced the Board Matter she presented earlier in the regular Board 

of Supervisors meeting and reiterated that, in addition to the public hearing that the Board 

authorized for February 22 at 4:30 p.m., there are a number of community outreach discussion 

meetings as follows: 

• Thursday, January 27, 7 p.m. at South County Secondary School 
(8501 Silverbrook Road, Lorton) 

• Monday, January 31, 7 p.m. at the Fairfax County Government Center 
(12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax) in Conference Rooms 2 
and 3 

• Tuesday, February 1, 7 p.m. at the North County Governmental Center 
(12000 Bowman Towne Drive, Reston) in the community room 

Chairman Bulova noted that in addition to holding these public meetings, the Office of 

Public Affairs (OPA) is utilizing the County's social media platform to collect comments and 

(310)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 25,2011 

distribute information. It has scheduled an Ask Fairfax live chat with Department of Public 

Works and Environmental Services staff for residents to ask questions and learn more about the 

proposal online. This will take place on Thursday, January 27 at 1:30 p.m. on the County's 

website, www.fairfaxcounty. gov. 

Supervisor Gross moved to adjourn the Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid 

Waste Authority. Supervisor McKay seconded the motion and it carried by a vote of nine, 

Supervisor Hyland being absent, 

At 4:32 p.m., the Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority was 

adjourned. 

// 

.4. 

(311)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 25, 2011 

The foregoing minutes record the actions taken by the Fairfax County Sohd Waste 

Authority at its meeting held on Monday, January 25, 2011, and reflects matters discussed by the 

Authority. Audio or video recordings of all proceedings are available in the Office of the Clerk 

to the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia. 

// 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Vgars 
Secretary 
Solid Waste Authority 

(312)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on RZ 2010-LE-013 (WPPI Springfield HS, LLC) to Rezone from C-6, CRD, 
HC and SC to PDC, CRD, HC and SC to Permit Commercial Development with an Overall 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1.68 and Approval of the Conceptual Development Plan, Located 
on Approximately 1.63 Acres, Lee District 
 
The application property is located in the northwest quadrant of the intersection of Old 
Keene Mill Road and Amherst Avenue, Tax Map 80-4 ((9)) 4, 5 and 6. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Thursday, February 24, 2011, the Planning Commission unanimously voted 
(Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Murphy absent from the meeting) to recommend the 
following actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of RZ 2010-LE-013 and the associated Conceptual Development Plan, 
subject to the execution of proffers consistent with those dated February 11, 2011, 
with corrections to the sheet numbers referenced in Proffer 8C; 

 
 Approval of an increase in maximum FAR from 1.5 to 1.68, pursuant to Par. 3 of 

Sect. 6-208 of the Zoning Ordinance; 
 

 Modification of the off-street loading space requirement; 
 

 Approval of a 20% parking reduction; 
 

 Modification of the 20-foot minimum rear yard requirement to permit a minimum rear 
yard of 8 feet along the eastern boundary; and 

 
 Modification of the front yard 45-degree bulk plane requirements to permit a front 

yard bulk plane of 4 degrees. 
 
In a related action, the Planning Commission voted unanimously (Commissioners Hall, 
Harsel, and Murphy absent from the meeting) to approve FDP 2010-LE-013, subject to the 
Board’s approval of RZ 2010-LE-013 and the Conceptual Development Plan. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4341564.PDF 
 

(313)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
St. Clair Williams, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(314)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
February 24, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
RZ/FDP 2010-LE-013 – WPPI SPRINGFIELD HS, LLC  
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: I’ll close the public hearing; recognize Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. What we have tonight is a fairly 
straightforward case. It is a request to take a vacant piece of commercial land from the C-6 District to 
a PDC District in order to allow for a proposed 120,000 square foot hotel. This location is in the 
Springfield CRD nearby to what was the old mixing bowl. The applicant has met with the community 
on multiple occasions from the start to make this a better project and I think they have succeeded. 
The application has the support of the Lee District Land Use Committee and staff’s recommendation 
for approval. I concur. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I have a series of motions to make.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes, you do. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: And I apologize. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Not a problem. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: First, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF RZ 2010-LE-013, SUBJECT TO THE 
PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE DATED FEBRUARY 11TH, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Does he need to reference the CDP in that motion as well? 
 
Mr. Williams: The FDP?  
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: That’s the next one. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: The CDP.  
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Oh, CDP. I’m sorry. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, and so, would your motion also include the associated Conceptual 
Development Plan, Commissioner? 
 

(315)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 3, 2011 
RZ/FDP 2010-LE-013 
 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Yes. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay. That motion’s been made. Is there a second? 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioner Flanagan. Any discussion on that motion? 
Commissioner Hart. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’m sorry, got my light here. The – just, I would 
request, as a FRIENDLY AMENDMENT, that that be SUBJECT TO STRAIGHTENING OUT 
THIS PAGE NUMBER business in – wherever that is – [PROFFER] 8C, AS TO WHICH PAGES 
WE’RE TALKING ABOUT. IT’S NOT 14, 15, 16; IT’S SOMETHING ELSE. Straighten that out 
before we get to the Board.  
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: I accept that as a friendly amendment. 
 
Commissioner Hart: Thanks. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, any other discussion on the motion? All those in favor of 
recommending approval of RZ 2010-LE-013 and the associated Conceptual Development Plan, 
subject to the proffers consistent with those dated February 11th, 2011, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Thank you. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVE FDP 2010-LE-013, SUBJECT TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ APPROVAL OF 
RZ-2010-LE-013. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan: Second. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe: – and the Conceptual Development Plan. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: – and the Conceptual Development Plan?  
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Yes. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Okay, so moved. Seconded by Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant. Is 
there a discussion of that motion? All those in favor of recommending approval - - I’m sorry - - 

(316)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 3, 2011 
RZ/FDP 2010-LE-013 
 
 
all those in favor of approving FDP 2010-LE-013, subject to the Board of Supervisors’ approval of 
the rezoning and the CDP, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Thank you. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF AN INCREASE IN 
MAXIMUM FAR FROM 1.5 TO 1.68, PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3 OF SECTION 6-208 OF 
THE ZONING ORDINANCE.  
 
Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant. Any discussion of that 
motion? All those in favor of recommending approval of an increase in maximum FAR from 1.5 to 
1.68, pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Section 6-208 of the Zoning Ordinance, please say aye.  
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Thank you. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE MODIFICATION 
OF THE OFF-STREET LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENT. 
 
Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioners Sargeant and Flanagan. Any discussion of that 
motion? All those in favor of recommending approval of the modification of the off-street loading 
space requirement, please say aye.  
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE 20 PERCENT PARKING REDUCTION. 
 
Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant: Second. 
 

(317)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 
February 3, 2011 
RZ/FDP 2010-LE-013 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant. Any discussion of that 
motion? All those in favor of recommending approval of the 20 percent parking reduction, please say 
aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Thank you. Just two more. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE 
MODIFICATION OF THE 20-FOOT MINIMUM REAR YARD REQUIREMENT TO PERMIT A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD OF EIGHT FEET ALONG THE EASTERN BOUNDARY. 
 
Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant. Any discussion of that 
tongue-twister motion? All those in favor of approving the motion as articulated by Commissioner 
Migliaccio, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries. And finally, Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio: Yes, finally, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE MODIFICATION 
OF THE FRONT YARD 45-DEGREE BULK PLANE REQUIREMENTS TO PERMIT A FRONT 
YARD BULK PLANE OF FOUR DEGREES. 
 
Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant: Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Seconded by Commissioners Flanagan and Sargeant. Any discussion of that 
motion? All those in favor of recommending approval of the modification of the front yard 45-degree 
bulk plane requirements to permit a front yard bulk plane of four degrees, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners: Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: All opposed? That motion carries as well.  
 
// 
 

(318)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 5 
February 3, 2011 
RZ/FDP 2010-LE-013 
 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Murphy absent from the 
meeting.) 
 
JN 
 

(319)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

(320)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on RZ 2010-LE-009 (MR Lewin Park Capital, LLC) to Rezone from R-1 to 
PDC to Permit Commercial Development with an Overall Floor Area Ratio of 1.5 and 
Approval of the Conceptual Development Plan, Located on Approximately 13.45 Acres, Lee 
District 
 
The application property is located in the northwest quadrant of the intersection of 
Franconia-Springfield Parkway and Beulah Street, Tax Map 91-1 ((4)) 1-11, 13-25, 500 and 
501. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, March 2, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 
(Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting) to recommend the following 
actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of RZ 2010-LE-009 and the associated Conceptual Development Plan, 
subject to the execution of proffers consistent with those dated February 21, 2011, 
with the following revisions: 

 
o Clarify proffer 15 to ensure that the 2,500 square feet of indoor recreation 

facilities will not be provided in a secure building that might preclude use by all 
future employees; and 

 
o Revise proffer 27b to increase the number of reserved parking spaces for 

carpools/vanpools from 15 to 50. 
 

 Modification of the loading space requirement for hotel and office uses; 
 

 Waiver of the transitional screening and barrier requirements between uses within the 
PDC District; 

 
 Waiver of the maximum 600-foot private street length requirement; 

 
 Modification of the transitional screening requirement and waiver of the barrier 

requirement along the southern and eastern boundaries of the site in favor of that 
shown on the CDP/FDP; and 

 
 Waiver of the peripheral parking lot landscaping requirements for the subject site in 

favor of that shown on the CDP/FDP. 
 

(321)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously (Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from 
the meeting) to approve FDP 2010-LE-009, subject to Board approval of RZ 2010-LE-009 
and the Conceptual Development Plan. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Verbatim 
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4342683.PDF  
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
St. Clair Williams, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(322)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
March 2, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
RZ 2010-LE-009 – MR LEWIN PARK CAPITAL, LLC  
FDP 2010-LE-009 – MR LEWIN PARK CAPITAL, LLC 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Public hearing is closed; recognize Mr. Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I'd like to thank the speakers tonight.  It's 
not often that we get speakers from Lee District coming all the way here for a public hearing, but 
thank you for coming and speaking on behalf.  Tonight we heard from the applicant looking to put 
the final piece to the puzzle in place on this corner.  The rezoning from R-1 to the PDC District 
would allow for the construction of a Class A office park to complement an existing office park to 
the north.  All buildings would be at least LEED certified - - LEED Silver certified, including the 
hotel option.  It has a TDM program that makes use of the - - its closeness to the Joe Alexander 
Transit Center.  Proffer 15 speaks to their commitment to improving the community by 
contributing funds to recreational fields in Lee District.  The applicant has also - -also will be 
expending more than $2 million for transportation improvements.  This application has the very 
strong support of the Lee District Land Use Committee, support of staff.  And - - and therefore, 
Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF RZ 2010-LE-009 AND THE ASSOCIATED CDP, 
SUBJECT TO THE PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE DATED FEBRUARY 21, 2011, 
WITH THE CHANGES MENTIONED TONIGHT. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those in 
favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ 2010 - - 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Mr. Chairman?  If I may, I did want to say one thing. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  I'm sorry. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Clearly, there is an issue, a transportation issue.  My - - I'm going - -I 
plan to support the motion, and I'm doing it under the assumption that the consequences of not 
having this - - this intersection, which is at present undersign, uncalled for, and unavailable, will 
not result in - - in getting us into a transportation bind in this area.  I - - if we're going to have rapid 
growth there, but it would appear that staff is satisfied that even with the disadvantage of not 
having the intersection, that growth can be sustained.  So, under that assumption, I'll support the - - 
the motion.   
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Thank you. 
 

(323)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
March 2, 2011 
RZ 2010-LE-009 and FDP 2010-LE-009 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Further discussion?  All right.  All those in favor of the motion to recommend 
to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ 2010-LE-009, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE  
FDP 2010-LE-009, SUBJECT TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' APPROVAL OF  
RZ 2010-LE-009 AND THE CDP. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor of the motion to 
approve FDP 2010-LE-009, subsequent to the Board's approval of the Rezoning and Conceptual 
Development Plan, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  Mr. Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENT FOR HOTEL AND OFFICE USES. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING AND WAIVER OF THE BARRIER REQUIREMENTS 
BETWEEN USES WITHIN THE PDC DISTRICT. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Second - - Mr. Alcorn - - by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor of 
the motion, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 

(324)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
March 2, 2011 
RZ 2010-LE-009 and FDP 2010-LE-009 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  And I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE 
MAXIMUM 600-FOOT PRIVATE STREET REQUIREMENT. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  And Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A 
MODIFICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL SCREENING REQUIREMENT AND WAIVER 
OF THE BARRIER REQUIREMENT ALONG THE SOUTHERN AND EASTERN 
BOUNDARIES OF THE SITE, IN FAVOR of what - - OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  And finally, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A 
WAIVER OF THE PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR 
THE SUBJECT SITE, IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  Did you do the one on the eastern boundary - - are 
we okay on that? 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  We did. 

(325)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 
March 2, 2011 
RZ 2010-LE-009 and FDP 2010-LE-009 
 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  I just combined the two. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Combined the two.  I got it.  Okay.  Just wanted to make sure.  Okay.  Thank 
you, Mr. Riegle.  Thank you all.  Thank you for coming.  Real good seeing you again.  Great job 
you guys do down there in Lee District. 
 
// 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 
 

(326)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on SEA 84-M-121-03 (Westminster School, Inc.) to Amend SE 84-M-121 
Previously Approved for a Private School of General Education to Permit the Addition of a 
Nursery School and Child Care Center; to Increase Enrollment from 318 to 360 Children; an 
Increase In Land Area; and Modifications of Site Design and Development Conditions, 
Located on Approximately 6.84 Acres Zoned R-3, Mason District 
 
The application property is located at 3801, 3811 and 3825 Gallows Rd. Tax Map 60-3 
((24)) 3, 4, 5 and 5A. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, February 16, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 9-0-1 (Commissioner 
Alcorn abstaining; Commissioners Harsel and Sargeant absent from the meeting) to 
recommend the following actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of SEA 84-M-121-03, subject to the Development Conditions dated 
 January 20, 2011; and 

 
 Reaffirmation of all previously-approved waivers and modifications, as follows: 

 
o Modification of the transitional screening barriers along the southern and 

northern boundarys in favor of that depicted on the SE Plat; 
 

o Modification of the barrier requirement along all sides of the subject property to 
allow the existing six-foot tall wood fence and other existing fences to serve as 
barriers; and 

 
o Waiver of the requirement that usable outdoor recreation areas shall be limited 

to the areas outside the limits of the required front yard. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4339254.PDF  
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Miriam Bader, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(327)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
February 16, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
SEA 84-M-121-03 – WESTMINSTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Public hearing is closed; recognize Ms. Hall. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I am surprised that we weren't made aware of this 
before because this is not the first Special Exception application or addendum that we've received, 
but it's never too late to bring things to our attention.  I would request that Ms. Strobel get her - - Ms. 
Forsman's information and make sure that - - that you go ahead and contact her and make sure that 
her issues that can be addressed are addressed or exactly get back to what's going on there.  I've never 
thought of that area as having a water problem, but I've never been in her backyard because there are 
a lot of mature trees in this area.  It's quite - - it's definitely grown so it's supporting that and not 
killing trees because there's standing water or something.  The application does enjoy the support of 
the community and the Mason District Land Use Committee.  It came there twice.  And I cannot 
think of any reason why I would not move on this application this evening because I have no doubt 
that the school will address our speaker's concerns to the best of their ability.  It's - - it's just not a 
school that we receive complaints about.  And I don't know what kind of condition we could craft to 
address it.  So, I think we're going to move forward with what we have.  With that, I MOVE THAT 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF SEA 84-M-121-03, SUBJECT 
TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED JANUARY 20, 2011. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Is there a second to the motion? 
 
Commissioner Donahue:  I'll second it. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Mr. Donahue seconds it.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those in favor 
of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve SEA 84-M-121-03, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?   
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Abstain. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Motion carries.  Mr. Alcorn abstains.  
 
Commissioner Hall:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION REAFFIRM ALL 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS, WHICH INCLUDES THE 
FOLLOWING:   
 
 

(328)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 16, 2011 
SEA 84-M-121-03 
 
 

 A MODIFICATION OF TRANSITIONAL SCREENING BARRIERS ALONG 
THE SOUTHERN AND NORTHERN BOUNDARIES, IN FAVOR OF THAT 
DEPICTED ON THE SE PLAT;  

 
 A MODIFICATION TO THE BARRIER REQUIREMENT ALONG ALL 

SIDES OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY TO ALLOW THE EXISTING SIX-
FOOT-HIGH WOOD FENCE AND OTHER EXISTING FENCES TO SERVE 
AS BARRIERS; AND  

 
 REAFFIRMATION OF THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED WAIVER OF THE 

USABLE OUTDOOR RECREATION AREA SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE 
AREAS OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF THE REQUIRED FRONT YARD. 

  
Commissioner Donahue:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Donahue.  Is there a discussion of that motion?  All those in 
favor - -  
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Yes. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Just one comment.  I note that we had previously approved screening and 
that in this case the applicant is reinforcing and extending that screening.  Is that correct?  Did I read 
that right?  One of these? 
 
Commissioner Hall:  I think that - - I'll let staff respond to that. 
 
Kristen Abrahamson, Zoning Evaluation Division (ZED), Department of Planning and Zoning 
(DPZ):  Yes, that's correct.  In places, there's actually supplemental vegetation going into the 
transitional screening. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  It's reinforcing the transitional screening? 
 
Ms. Abrahamson:  Yes.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  All those in favor of the motion, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.    

(329)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 16, 2011 
SEA 84-M-121-03 
 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Abstain. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Mr. Alcorn abstains. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And I want to thank Miriam Bader for coming to 
Mason District.  Thank you very much.  I hope you enjoy your - - your time here. 
 
Miriam Bader, ZED, DPZ:  Thank you. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Right.  Bye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Good job.   
 
// 
 
(The motions carried by votes of 9-0-1 with Commissioner Alcorn abstaining; Commissioners Harsel 
and Sargeant absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 

(330)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on RZ 2010-PR-010 (Neighborhoods, VI, LLC) to Rezone from R-2 to R-5 to 
Permit Residential Development at a Density of 4.84 Dwelling Units Per Acre, Located on 
Approximately 7.44 Acres, Providence District 
 
The application property is located on the N E. side of Blake La. approx. 300 ft. S.E. of its 
intersection with Chain Bridge Rd. Tax Map 47-2 ((1)) 66, 67A and 70A. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, February 16, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 
(Commissioners Harsel and Sargeant absent from the meeting) to recommend the following 
actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of RZ 2010-PR-010, subject to the execution of proffers consistent with 
those dated February 7, 2011; 

 
 Modification of the transitional screening requirement along the eastern property line, 

in accordance with the landscaping shown on the Generalized Development Plan; 
 

 Waiver of the barrier requirement along the eastern property line; and 
 

 Waiver of the 600-foot maximum length requirement for a private street. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4339022.PDF 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Kellie-Mae Goddard-Sobers, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(331)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
February 16, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
RZ 2010-PR-010 – NEIGHBORHOODS VI, LLC 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Public hearing is closed; recognize Mr. Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  We're past that.  Now we've closed the public hearing.  Sorry. 
 
Margaret Owens, 2949 Paddock Wood Court, Oakton:  But you haven't - - 
 
Chairman Murphy:  I'm sorry we're not doing - - 
 
Ms. Owens:  - - and it wasn't. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  I'm sorry.  We're not doing business that way.  Please. 
 
Ms. Owens:  Well, you won't let me speak. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Your time is over.  Thank you.  Mr. Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  In this case, I believe the economy has 
brought us a benefit.  I do indeed think we are better off with what we have than what we would have 
had once the multiplier is removed.  Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF RZ 2010-
PR-010, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS NOW DATED - - 
 
Kelli Goddard-Sobers, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning:  February 
7th. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  FEBRUARY 7, 2011. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. de la Fe.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those in 
favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ 2010-PR-010, 
subject to the execution of the revised proffers, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  Mr. Lawrence. 

(332)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 16, 2011 
RZ 2010-PR-010 
 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING REQUIREMENT ALONG THE EASTERN BOUNDARY 
PROPERTY LINE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LANDSCAPING SHOWN ON THE 
GENERALIZED DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. de la Fe.  Is there a discussion?  All those in favor of that 
motion, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  Mr. Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE BARRIER 
REQUIREMENT ALONG THE EASTERN PROPERTY LINE. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. de la Fe.  Is there a discussion?  All those in favor of that 
motion, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Finally, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A 
WAIVER OF THE 600-FOOT MAXIMUM LENGTH FOR A PRIVATE STREET. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. de la Fe.  Discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  Thanks to Ms. Goddard-Sobers, 
which I'll be repeating in a little while, and to the applicant.  Thank you very much. 
 

(333)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 16, 2011 
RZ 2010-PR-010 
 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Yes, Mr. Flanagan. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  I just want to point out to the speaker who's now leaving that--our witness 
on this particular item—that this comes before the Board of Supervisors again, and she will have an 
ample opportunity to provide further input, you know, at that time. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Well, it's too late.  She left. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  --at that time. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Okay. 
 
// 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Harsel and Sargeant absent from the 
meeting.) 
 
KAD 

(334)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
2:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on SE 2008-PR-021 (James W. Jackson) to Permit a Child Care Center and 
Nursery School with a Maximum Daily Enrollment of up to150 Children, Located on 
Approximately 1.29 Acres Zoned R-1, Providence District 
 
The application property is at 2701 Chain Bridge Rd. Tax Map 48-1 ((1)) 50.   
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, February 16, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 9-1 (Commissioner 
Hall opposed; Commissioners Harsel and Sargeant absent from the meeting) to recommend 
that the Board of Supervisors deny SE 2088-PR-021.  The Commission noted that the 
denial recommendation was based on the proposed intensity of the use, issues related to 
access to the site, incompatibility with the neighboring residences, and insufficient screening 
and landscaping. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4340793.PDF 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Kellie-Mae Goddard-Sobers, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(335)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
February 16, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
SE 2008-PR-021 – JAMES W. JACKSON (Lord Fairfax Academy)   
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Public hearing is closed; Mr. Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Mr. Chairman, this matter was heard first in 2009.  Because there had 
been changes in the application, we have tonight had a second public hearing.  I want to thank 
those from the neighborhood who testified tonight or sent us correspondence with their views on 
the present version of this application.  I note that, although there have been several rounds of 
changes to this application and we are now on the third addendum to the staff report, the concerns 
of the community remain unresolved, despite this activity.  Commissioners will recall that in its 
earlier version, this application had several serious issues.  It was for that reason that I deferred the 
decision on it.  As now presented, the applicant has addressed some of the issues.  For example, 
the proposed enrollment of children has been somewhat reduced, and the height of the structure 
proposed for the site has also been reduced to 35 feet.  I believe, however, that the fundamental 
issues with this application have not been resolved.  At the root of these issues is the proposed 
intensity of use.  This intensity relates very directly to the number of children contemplated in the 
present version of the proposal.  Staff has reported that they continue to recommend denial of this 
application.  I concur with that view.  Staff spells out the issues in the staff report.  My own 
thoughts follow.  Early in my service on this Commission, I was given some excellent advice; 
namely, that every case is unique.  In this instance, analysis must begin with the site.  The 
applicant prepared a table with examples of day care facilities with comparable numbers of 
children on small sites.  It is true that this is a small site.  But its description is not complete at that 
point.  This site is a shallow rectangle, situated at the intersection of Route 123 and Sutton Road, 
both very busy travel ways.  It is constrained not only by size and shape, but also by limited 
access.  Access can only be made from the Sutton Road side of the site, and that is constrained by 
the shallow site dimension and by some gas company structures in the VDOT easement along that 
side.  The concerns given by the County's Department of Transportation in the staff report reflect 
both the constraints of the site and the envisioned intensity of use.  I certainly share those concerns, 
especially about the proposed driveway to the site, and I believe that the future very likely holds 
only more problems.  When Vaden Road Extended is completed, Sutton will be part of a new 
option in movements from Chain Bridge to Lee Highway and vice versa.  If and when Sutton is 
widened as a part of intersection improvements at 123, and/or to add throughput capacity, the 
service road access and stacking will be lost, and access to the site will be an even greater 
challenge.  On this site, the applicant would put a building whose size is a function of the number 
of children and staff to be accommodated.  As expressed in calculations of FAR, the design is for 
some 6,228 square feet; I'm told that if cellar space were included it would be 11,170 square feet.  
The applicant operates other such facilities; it's reasonable to conclude that this size building is 
needed for this number of children, as determined by the applicant's previous experience.  The 
homes nearby are mostly older ones; they are about 2,700 square feet in size.  Of course, today's 
 

(336)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 16, 2011 
SE 2008-PR-021 
 
 
homes are larger; they average about 3,500 square feet.  Footprints for such homes would be about 
1,400 to 1,750 square feet.  Even compared to present-day large homes, the proposed building is 
very much bigger, something over four times the footprint size with a footprint of 7,350 square 
feet.  It's greater than five times the footprint size of the homes now on the nearby land.  In the 
language on Intent and Purpose under the Special Exception provisions of the Zoning Ordinance 
Article 9-001, we read in part, "The Board may approve a Special Exception under the provisions 
of this Article when it is concluded that the proposed use complies with all specified standards and 
that - - and that such use will be compatible with existing or planned development in the area."  In 
Article 9-006 setting forth General Standard Number 3, the size of a building is given as one of the 
factors in determining whether a proposal is harmonious with the use or development of 
neighboring properties.  General Standard Number 4 in Article 9-006 further states that pedestrian 
and vehicular traffic should not be hazardous or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic 
around the site of the proposed use.  The layout of the site is greatly affected by the contemplated 
intensity, as well.  Between the number of staff required to attend the children on the site and the 
number of visitors and parents expected, over 20 parking spaces must be provided.  When the 
drive paths that are needed to create access, egress, and an orderly on-site circulation for vehicles 
are added, the result is the amount of paved site area shown on the SE Plat.  It covers a significant 
portion of the whole land area.  In the same way, play space for the children must be provided.  By 
the rules, this space must be other than that required for the necessary front, side, and rear yards.  
As the Plat shows, about 2,980 square feet of play space can be provided on this site.  At 100 
square feet per child, that play space would serve at most 29 of the children at a time.  When 
setbacks, building footprint, yard space, play space, and paved area are totted up, the space left on 
the site can be used for landscaping, transitional screening, and required barriers.  The applicant 
asks that we waive the normal requirements for barriers, landscape, and screening, in favor of what 
is shown on the SE Plat.  In the Special Exception situation, the land use differs from the 
neighboring uses.  Screening the different use is extremely important.  In Article 9-006 under 
General Standard 3, the Ordinance states, in part, "the nature and extent of screening, buffering, 
and landscaping shall be such that the use will not hinder or discourage the appropriate 
development and use of adjacent or nearby land."  As an additional observation on the importance 
of the screening feature, I note that the Ordinance states, in regulating modifications to approved 
Special Exceptions under Article 9-004, Paragraph 4A(4) that modifications shall in no event 
"reduce the effectiveness of approved transitional screening, buffering, landscaping, or open 
space."  These words embody in detail the general County policy to protect our suburban 
residential neighborhoods; in this context, by seeking to assure and maintain proper transitional 
screening for different uses.  In this case, I believe that adjacent and nearby residential neighbors 
will be affected by the insufficiencies in the buffering and screening provided for the proposed use.  
I believe it's worth a moment to examine the transitional screening at the rear of the site where it 
faces the present Verizon telephone facility.  We know from current events and applications that 
telephone technology is in a state of dramatic change.  It's not implausible that at a future time 
within the span of our Comprehensive Plan, there will no longer be a need for this kind of facility 
in that place.  In such a situation, the land now zoned R-E, might be again used for residential, 
perhaps with a zoning similar to that immediately to its rear along Sutton.  Once again, the 
transitional screening feature for the proposed day care center would be of great importance to  

(337)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 16, 2011 
SE 2008-PR-021 
 
 
such a development.  The applicant asks for a waiver of the three-foot peripheral landscaping 
requirement along this site boundary.  It is clear that the proposed intensity of the day care use on 
this constrained site results inevitably in fundamental issues.  For the number of children to be 
served, the size of the proposed building is not compatible with the adjacent residential homes, and 
at the same time, the site is so filled with the building and other required items, such as play space 
and parking, that there is not enough room for the very transitional buffering and screening that is 
essential to fitting in a different use in one of our residential neighborhoods.  The staff report 
presents development conditions for the proposal.  In Development Condition Number 2, the 
desired enrollment is given as 150 children, but of these it is said that no more than 120 would 
actually be on site at any given time.  It is certainly practicable to verify total enrollment; we can 
look at the list, as staff has aptly spelled out in their development condition language.  But it is as a 
practical matter simply not possible, in my view, to enforce a condition on how many children 
might be on the site at some given time, such as during a special event of some sort.  Who would 
do the counting?  The same point can be made about the number of children on the available play 
space; this difficulty might present itself, for example, when a busload of older children arrives at 
the site on a nice day.  There'll be no program of instruction for the older children, and they could 
be on the site until 6:30 in the evening.  There might be other children on the play space, but I 
think it very plausible that the new arrivals will want to be there too.  Again, who will count?  In 
short, I believe such development conditions to be unenforceable.  While this concern may not be 
of paramount importance in this case, it nevertheless reflects the manifold problems that overly 
intensive use brings.  Therefore, Mr. Chairman, for these and all of the reasons set forth in the staff 
report, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS THAT APPLICATION SE 2008-PR-021 BE DENIED. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn:  Second. 
  
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Alcorn.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those in 
favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it deny SE 2008-PR-021, say 
aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?   
 
Commissioner Hall:  No. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Motion carries.  Ms. Hall votes, "no." 
 
// 
 
(The motion carried by a vote of 9-1 with Commissioner Hall opposed; Commissioners Harsel and Sargeant 
absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 

(338)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:00 p.m.  
 
 
Public Hearing for a Sewer Ordinance Amendment to Revise the Sewer Service 
Charges, Connection Charges, and Availability Charges  
 
 
ISSUE:   
Adoption of a proposed sewer ordinance amendment to revise Sewer Service 
Charges, Availability Charges and Connection Charges to be consistent with the 
Board’s decision on funding of the Extension and Improvement Program and the 
Wastewater Management Program’s “Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Analysis” (the 
Rate Study) for the Sewer System, prepared in cooperation with its consultant, Public 
Resources Management Group, Inc. (PRMG).  The effects of these revisions are as 
follows: 
 

1. To establish the Sewer Service rates for FY 2011 through FY 2015 
2. To establish the Base Charge rates for FY 2011 through FY 2015 
3. To establish the Availability Charges for FY 2011 through FY 2015   
4. To maintain a five-year (FY 2011 - FY 2015) sewer rate schedule; FY 

2010 rates will be deleted, and new FY 2015 rates will be added 
5. To adjust Connection Charges to assist in funding of the County’s 

Extension and Improvement Program for extension of sanitary sewers to 
properties with failed onsite sewage disposal systems within the 
Approved Sewer Service Area  

  
Although the sewer rate schedule in the sewer ordinance is multi-year, all sewer rates 
are reviewed, adjusted as necessary, and adopted annually to ensure sewer rates are 
accurately priced.    
 

The revised, 5-year rate schedule for the Sewer Service Charge per 1,000 gallons, 
with previously adopted rates in parentheses, is as follows: 
 

PROPOSED SEWER SERVICE CHARGE RATE SCHEDULE 
     FY 2011      FY 2012       FY 2013              FY 2014           FY 2015  
     $5.27   $6.01 ($6.17)      $6.85($7.03)     $7.52 ($7.72) $7.97 
 
Sewer service charge rates are increasing as debt and capital expenses rise in 
anticipation of construction of additional treatment facilities to meet more stringent 
nitrogen removal requirements imposed by the state as a result of “Chesapeake 2000” 
Agreement.  Signatories to the Agreement besides the state of Virginia include the 
States of Maryland and Pennsylvania, the District of Columbia, the United States  
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), and the Chesapeake Bay Commission.  

(339)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
The proposed Sewer Service Charge rate increase is 3% less than previously proposed 
rate increase based on cost saving initiatives and operating efficiencies implemented in FY 
2009 and FY 2010.  Operational cost savings and efficiencies included: electricity savings 
based on lower than anticipated fuel factor rates and a reduction in kilowatt usage; sewage 
treatment supply savings associated with a reduction in the unit price for petroleum based 
chemicals used in the treatment of wastewater and a change to less expensive chemicals; 
lower treatment by contract costs based on reduced operating costs at neighboring 
jurisdictions; as well as lower fuel costs, vehicle replacement costs and repair and 
maintenance requirements.  The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
(DPWES) continues to review efficiencies and monitor usage.   
 
The revised, five-year rate schedule for the Base Charge per bill, with previously 
adopted rates in parentheses, is as follows: 
 

PROPOSED BASE CHARGE RATE SCHEDULE 
     FY 2011      FY 2012      FY 2013              FY 2014           FY 2015  
       $5.00          $5.00 ($5.00)       $5.00 ($5.00) $5.00 ($5.00)  $5.00 
 
There is no change to the Base Charge during the forecasted period. The County is 
considering increasing the amount of fixed costs recovered, which would result in an 
increase in the base charge and a corresponding decrease in the volumetric rate 
(sewer service charge rate).  It is anticipated that the County’s consideration will be 
incorporated into the rate recommendations beginning in FY 2013 or later. 
 

PROPOSED CONNECTION CHARGE RATE  
 

In order to assist in the funding for the Extension and Improvement Program an 
increase in the Connection Charges from $6.00 per foot to $152.50 per foot is being 
recommended as described below: 
 

  (1) For residential and community uses:  The connection charge  will be $152.50 per 
front foot of premises (with a minimum of $7,625 and a maximum of $15,250) for the 
connection of single-family detached and attached dwellings, churches, schools, fire 
stations, community centers or other such similar community uses to the Facilities of the 
County. 
 

(A) The above Connection Charges will go in effect starting July 1, 2011 for all 
Facilities of the County constructed after July 1, 2011.  During the period of 
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 Connection Charges for connections to 
Facilities of the County constructed prior to July 1, 2011 will be $6.00 per 
front foot of premises (with a minimum of $300.00 and a maximum of  
$600.00).  Beginning July 1, 2012 all connections to all Facilities of the 
County will be assessed the Connection Charges in (1) above.  

(340)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 

(B) Connection Charges for connection to the Facilities of the County in the 
County’s Extension and Improvement (E&I) Program that are under design 
for construction at the time the above Connection Charges are adopted (i.e. 
April 26, 2011) will be $6.00 per front foot of premises (with a minimum of 
$300.00 and a maximum of $600.00) provided all of the following conditions 
are met: 

(i) property owners in the E&I project area agree to grant all 
required easements within 4 months of the adoption date 
(i.e. no later than August 25, 2011) of the proposed 
Connection Charges  

(ii) 50% of the property owners in the E&I project area pay 
the required Availability Charges within 4 months of the 
adoption date (i.e. no later than August 25, 2011) of the 
proposed Connection Charges 

(iii) connections to the Facilities of the County are made by 
no later than June 30, 2012, or within 30 days of 
completion of the construction of the E&I project, 
whichever comes last.  

 
  (2) For all other uses: The Connection Charge will be $152.50 per front foot of 
premises (with a minimum charge of $15,250) for the connection of all other uses to the 
Facilities of the County. 

 
(3) The connection charges established and imposed above shall not apply to 

premises to be connected to the Facilities of the County if such Facilities of the County 
are constructed totally at private expense.  
 
  (4)  For the purposes of this amendment to the Connection Charges, front foot of 
premises will be determined by measuring the frontage of the premises located on the 
street address side of the premises.  
 
The revised, five-year rate schedule for the Availability Fees for a single-family residence, 
with previously adopted rates in parentheses, is as follows: 
 
 
 

(341)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
 

PROPOSED AVAILABILITY FEE RATE SCHEDULE 
 FY 2011            FY 2012      FY 2013          FY 2014    FY 2015 
   $7,750   $7,750 ($7,750)  $7,750 ($7,750) $7,750 ($7,750)    $7,750  
 
The County is reviewing the calculation of the Availability Fee; these fees will be 
adjusted based upon the results of this review in the FY 2013 or later. 
 
Availability charges for all nonresidential uses will be computed as the number of fixture 
units (including roughed-in fixture units) in accordance with Part I of the current Virginia 
Uniform Statewide Building Code, Section 101.2, Note 1, which incorporates by 
reference the 2006 International Plumbing Code (Chapter 7, Section 709), times the 
fixture unit rate with a minimum charge equivalent to one (1) single family detached 
dwelling per premises.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
The County Executive recommends that the Board adopt the proposed sewer ordinance 
amendment. 
 
 
TIMING:   
Public Notices of the sewer rate revisions were advertised March 4, 2011 and March 11, 
2011, in the Washington Times.  Decision on the sewer rate revisions will coincide with 
the markup and adoption of the FY 2012 Advertised Budget Plan.  FY 2012 sewer rates 
will become effective on July 1, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
In January 2011, the Wastewater Management Program and PRMG completed the 
Rate Study.  Minimum fund balances or “reserves” are maintained to comply with bond 
requirements and to fund major capital expenditures such as the addition of nitrogen 
removal facilities at wastewater treatment plants.  It is anticipated that desired reserve 
levels can be maintained under the proposed ordinance amendment (Attachment I). 
 
A forecasted, four-year rate schedule (FY 2012 - FY 2015) is recommended for the 
County's Sewer Service Charge (see Staff Report, Attachment II).  The Sewer Service 
Charge is based on the volume of water used by a sewer customer and is billed 
quarterly to offset the operations, maintenance, debt, and capital costs allocated to 
“existing customers.”  The table below shows the rate increase for the forecasted 
period. 
 

(342)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Fiscal Year Base Charge Service Charge Annual Bill Increase, $ 

 $/Quarterly 
Billing 

($/1,000 gallons) ($) (% Increase) 

2011 $5.00 $5.27 (17.1%) $420.52 $58.52 (13.9%) 
2012 $5.00 $6.01 (14.0%) $476.76 $56.24 (11.8%) 
2013 $5.00 $6.85 (14.0%) $540.60 $63.84 (11.8%) 
2014 $5.00 $7.52 (9.8%) $591.52 $50.92 (8.6%) 
2015 $5.00 $7.97 (6.0%) $625.72 $34.20 (5.5%) 

 
 
The rate increases will provide for inflation and the cost of constructing nitrogen removal 
facilities at wastewater treatment plants to comply with new discharge requirements 
imposed by the state and the Chesapeake Bay Program. These rate increases are 
consistent with this year’s Rate Study recommendations. 
 
A four-year rate schedule is proposed for the Availability Charges and commercial 
fixture unit rates.  Availability Charges are one-time “tap fees” paid by sewer customers 
to connect to the system.  The revenue from Availability Charges is used to offset the 
costs of expanding major treatment facilities.  The FY 2012 through FY 2015 rate will be 
held equal to FY 2011 rates pending a pricing analysis planned later this year.  
 

The County’s Sewer Service Charges and Availability Charges remain very competitive 
on a local basis.  Below are average annual sewer service billings and Availability 
Charges per Single Family Residential Equivalent (SFRE) for Fairfax County compared 
to other regional jurisdictions, as of January 2011 (FY 2011).  Average sewer service 
billings for the other regional jurisdictions have been developed by applying each 
jurisdiction’s sewer service rate to appropriate SFRE water usage determined from 
Fairfax Water’s average water usage for SFREs. 

(343)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

Comparison of Average Service Charges and Availability Charges for SFREs 
*Based on 19,000 gallons per quarter for all jurisdictions  

 
 
 

Jurisdiction* 

Average 
Annual Sewer 
Service Billing 

Sewer 
Availability 

Fees 
 

 
Fairfax County         $ 421 

 
      $ 7,750 

 
Loudoun Water 326

 
7,120 

 
WSSC  447

 
3,500 

 
DCWASA  480

 
---- 

 
Prince William County 529

 
9,900 

 
City of Alexandria 633

 
7,937 

 
Arlington County 626

 
4,732 

 
 
At the Board of Supervisors Environmental Committee of January 18, 2011, the Board 
directed staff to adjust the Connection Charges such that the future cost of the E&I 
Program is shared equally between the County’s Sewer Fund and the property owners 
seeking public sewer service.  According to the E&I Program, this cost share will be for 
extension of sewer in the Approved Sewer Service Area to those properties with failed 
onsite sewage disposal systems.  Based on the historical cost of the E&I Program, the 
extension of sewers cost an average of $46,000 per property in an E&I project area.  
This means the property owners’ responsibility will be an average of $23,000 per 
property.  The current Availability Charge paid by property owners for connecting to the 
County’s sewer system is $7,750.  This reduces the property owners’ share to $15,250. 
Since most if not all properties in E&I project areas have at least a 100-foot frontage, 
the charge per front footage is $152.50.  Payment of Connection Charges is required in 
full prior to connection of a property to the County’s Sewer system. 
 
In addition, the Board directed staff to allow a one year grace period for all the 
properties wishing to connect to the County’s facilities to pay the current Connection 
Charge of $6 per front footage.  Also the Board directed staff to continue funding of the 
E&I projects that are under design as of the adoption date of the proposed Connection 
Charges provided 1) the property owners agree to grant all necessary easements within 
four months from the adoption date of the proposed Connection Charges, 2) 50% of the 
property owners in an E&I project area pay all required Availability Charges within four 
months from the adoption date of the proposed Connection Charges, and 3) 
connections to the sewer system are made by no later than June 30, 2012, or within 30 
days of completion of the E&I project, whichever comes last. 

(344)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
In FY 2012, assuming a typical water usage per household of 19,000 gallons/quarter (or 
76,000 gallons/year) and a $5 quarterly billing charge (or $20 per year), the average 
homeowner’s sewer bill will be approximately $477 per year, which is an increase of 
$56.24 over the FY 2011 sewer bill.  In FY 2012, approximately $17.6 million in 
additional Sewer Service Charge revenues will be generated with the Sewer Service 
Charge increase.  Revenues from the collection of Sewer Service Charges, Base 
Charges, and Availability Charges are recorded in Fund 400, Sewer Revenue Fund. 
 
The fiscal impacts of the proposed Connection Charges will be closely monitored to 
assure compliance with the Board’s direction to equally share the cost of the E&I 
program between the County’s Sewer Fund and the property owners connecting to the 
County’s sewer system.  It is anticipated that the Connection Charges will generate an 
average of $1.5 M per year based on an annual budget of $3M for the E&I Program.    
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
Attachment I - The Proposed Amendment to Article 67.1-10 (Charges) of the Code of 
the County of Fairfax 
Attachment II - Staff report prepared by the Department of Public Works and 
Environmental Services 
(Copies of PRMG’s “Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Analysis” are available upon 
request) 
 
 
STAFF: 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Randy Bartlett, Deputy Director, DPWES 
Shahram Mohsenin, Director, Wastewater Planning and Monitoring Division, DPWES 

(345)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(346)



                  ATTACHMENT I 

Proposed Amendment 

ARTICLE 10. 
Charges. 

 
Section 67.1-10-2. Availability, Connection, Lateral Spur and Service Charges. 
 

(a) Availability Charges. 
 
 (1) Residential uses:  The following schedule of availability charges for residential uses 
desiring to connect to the Facilities of the County is hereby established and imposed: 
 

   Fiscal Year (July 1-June 30) 
 

Customer Class FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014  FY 2015  

(A) Single Family Detached $7,310 $7,750 $7,750 $7,750  $7,750  $7,750 
(B) Lodging House, Hotel, Inn or Tourist 

Cabin 
7,310 7,750 7,750 7,750  7,750 7,750 

(C) Townhouse 5,848 6,200 6,200 6,200  6,200  6,200 
(D) Apartment 5,848 6,200 6,200  6,200  6,200 6,200 
(E) Mobile Home 5,848 6,200 6,200 6,200  6,200 6,200 
(F) Any other residential dwelling unit 5,848 6,200 6,200 6,200  6,200 6,200 
(G) Hotel, Motel, or Dormitory rental unit 1,827 1,938 1,938 1,938  1,938 1,938 

 
All availability fees paid after February 24, 1976, will be updated by or refunded without interest 
to the current property owners whose properties have not been connected to public sewer within 
five (5) years of the initial date of payment or any subsequent payment update(s). (See Section 
10-5(d), “Refunds and Updates”.)  

 

 (2) Commercial and all other uses:  The following schedule of fixture unit rates for computing 
availability charges for all nonresidential uses is hereby established and imposed: 

 
  Fiscal Year (July 1-June 30) 

 
FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 

Fixture unit rate $378 $401 $401 $401  $401 $401 
 

The availability charge will be computed as the number of fixture units (including roughed-in 
fixture units) in accordance with Part I of the current Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code 
(as amended), Section 101.2, Note 1, which incorporates by reference the 2006 International 
Plumbing Code (Chapter 7, Section 709) (“VUSBC”), times the fixture unit rate with a minimum 
charge equivalent to one (1) single-family detached dwelling per premises.  For Significant 
Industrial Users with wastewater discharge permits authorizing discharge into the Integrated 
Sewer System and other industrial or commercial Users determined by the Director to have 
processes generating significant wastewater flows, the availability fee will be calculated on the 
basis of equivalent units.  One equivalent unit is equal to 370 gallons per day and rated equal to 
one (1) single-family detached dwelling unit.  Therefore, the availability charge for Significant 
Industrial Users and other industrial or commercial Users determined by the Director to have 
processes generating significant flow will be equal to the current rate for a single family 

(347)



detached dwelling unit times the number of equivalent units associated with the permitted flow.  
The number of equivalent units is equal to the permitted or projected flow in gallons per day 
divided by 370 gallons per day.  Fixture unit counts, for Users having fixtures discharging 
continuously or semi-continuously to drainage system leading to the County sanitary sewer 
facilities, shall be increased by two (2) fixture units for each gallon per minute of such 
continuous or semi-continuous discharge.  The rate of such discharge shall be deemed to be that 
rate certified by the manufacturer of the fixture or other equipment, or such other rates as the 
Director shall determine. 

 
 (3) Effective date:  The rate will change on July 1st of each new fiscal year.  The rate applicable 
to each fiscal year is subject to annual review by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
(b) Connection Charges: 
 
 (1) Residential and community uses:  There is hereby established and imposed a connection 
charge of Six Dollars ($6.00) per front foot of premises (with a minimum of Three Hundred Dollars 
($300.00) and a maximum of Six Hundred Dollars ($600.00)) One Hundred Fifty-two and a Half 
Dollars ($152.50) per front foot of premises (with a minimum of Seven Thousand Six Hundred 
Twenty-five Dollars ($7,625) and a maximum of Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars 
($15,250) for the connection of single-family detached and attached dwellings, churches, schools, 
fire stations, community centers or other such similar community uses to the Facilities of the 
County. 
 

A. The above Connection Charges will go in effect starting July 1, 2011 for all Facilities 
of the County constructed after July 1, 2011.  During the period of July 1, 2011 
through June 30, 2012 Connection Charges for connections to Facilities of the 
County constructed prior to July 1, 2011 will be Six Dollars ($6.00) per front foot of 
premises (with a minimum of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) and a maximum of 
Six Hundred Dollars ($600.00)).  Beginning July 1, 2012 all connections to all 
Facilities of the County will be assessed the Connection Charges in Section 
67.1-10-2(b)(1) above.  
 

B. Connection Charges for connection to the Facilities of the County in the County’s 
Extension and Improvement (E&I) Program that are under design for construction at 
the time the Connection Charges in Section 67.1-10-2(b)(1) are adopted (i.e. April 
26, 2011) will be Six Dollars ($6.00) per front foot of premises (with a minimum of 
Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) and a maximum of Six Hundred Dollars ($600.00)) 
provided all of the following conditions are met: 

(i) property owners in the E&I project area agree to grant all 
required easements within 4 months of the adoption date (i.e. 
no later than August 25, 2011) of Connection Charges in 
Section 67.1-10-2(b)(1) 

(ii) 50% of the property owners in the E&I project area pay the 
required Availability Charges within 4 months of the adoption 

(348)



date (i.e. no later than August 25, 2011) of Connection Charges 
in Section 67.1-10-2(b)(1) 

(iii) connections to the Facilities of the County are made by no later 
than June 30, 2012, or within 30 days of completion of the 
construction of the E&I project, whichever comes last.  

 
 (2) All other uses: There is hereby established and imposed a connection charge of Six Dollars 
($6.00) One Hundred Fifty-two and a Half Dollars ($152.50) per front foot of premises (with a 
minimum charge of Six Hundred Dollars ($600.00) Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars 
($15,250)) for the connection of all other uses to the Facilities of the County. 
 
 (3) The connection charges established and imposed above shall not apply to premises to be 
connected to the Facilities of the County if such Facilities of the County are constructed totally at 
private expense. 
 
 (4) For the purposes of Section 67.1-10-2 (b), front foot of premises will be determined by 
measuring the frontage of the premises located on the street address side of the premises.  

 

(c) Lateral spur charges:  There is hereby established and imposed a lateral spur charge of Six 
Hundred Dollars ($600.00) for the connection of all uses to a lateral spur, where such lateral spur 
has been installed by the County at the expense of Fairfax County. 
 
(d) Service charges:  There are hereby established and imposed the following quarterly sanitary 
sewer service charges:  
 
  Sewer Service Charges 

Fiscal Year (July 1 - June 30) 

 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 

Sewer Service Charge, 
$/1,000 gallons 

$4.50 $5.27 S6.17 $6.01 $7.03 $6.85  $7.72 $7.52   $7.97  

 

 
 (1) Effective date:  The rates will change on July 1st of each new fiscal year.  For metered 

accounts, the change is effective with meter readings beginning that date.  For unmetered 
accounts, the change is effective with billings beginning that date.  Effective July 1, 2009, a Base 
Charge of $5.00 per bill will be charged, in addition to the sewer service charge.   

 
(2) Premises having a metered water supply: 

 
 (A) Single-family detached and single-family attached dwellings such as townhouses, 
duplexes, multiplexes, semi-detached, rowhouses, garden court and patio houses with a separate 
water service line meter: 

  (B) All other uses. 
 

(349)



For each one thousand (1,000) gallons of water, based on winter-quarter consumption or 
current quarterly consumption, as measured by the service line meter, whichever is lower, a 
charge equal to the effective unit cost rate ($/1,000 gallons). 

 
  (C) All users. 

For each one thousand (1,000) gallons of water as measured by the water service line, a 
charge equal to the effective unit cost rate ($/1,000 gallons). 

  Base charge of $5.00 per billing. 
   (D) The winter-quarter-maximum consumption is determined as follows: 
 

  (i)   The quarterly-daily-average consumption of water is the 
consumption, measured by the water service line meter for the 
period between meter readings divided by the number of days 
elapsed between meter readings. 

 
    (ii)  The quarterly consumption is 91.5 times the 

quarterly-daily-average consumption of water in leap years or 
91.25 times the quarterly-daily-average consumption in 
non-leap years. 

 
    (iii)  The winter quarterly consumption is the quarterly consumption 

determined at the water service line meter reading scheduled 
between February 1 and April 30.  The 
winter-quarter-consumption of each respective year shall be 
applicable to the four (4) quarterly sewer billings rendered in 
conjunction with the regular meter reading scheduled after the 
next May.  

 
    (iv)  All water delivered to the premises, as measured by the winter 

quarter-consumption for single-family dwellings and 
townhouses or the meter of all other Users, shall be deemed to 
have been discharged to the Facilities of the County. However, 
any person may procure the installation of a second water 
service line meter. Such person may notify the Director of such 
installation, in which event the Director shall make such 
inspection or inspections as may be necessary to ascertain that 
no water delivered to the premises or only the water delivered 
through any such additional meter may enter the Facilities of 
the County. If the Director determines that water delivered 
through an additional meter may not enter the Facilities of the 
County, no charge hereunder shall be based upon such volume 
of water delivery. If the Director determines that only the water 
delivered through an additional meter may enter the Facilities 
of the County, only the water recorded on the additional meter 
shall be charged. In the alternative, any person may procure the 
installation of a sewage meter which shall be of a type and 
installed in a manner approved by the Director, who shall make 

(350)



periodic inspection to ensure accurate operation of said meter; 
in such event, the charge imposed hereunder shall be based 
upon the volume measured by such meter. The cost of all 
inspections required by the foregoing provisions for elective 
metering, as determined by normal cost accounting methods, 
shall be an additional charge for sanitary sewer service to the 
premises on which such meter or meters are installed.  

 
  (E) For single-family premises as in (d) (1)(A) not able to register valid meter readings for the 
measurement of winter-quarter-consumption the following billing method shall apply:  

 

(i) Premises not existing, unoccupied or occupied by a different 
household during the applicable winter quarter, or which due 
to unfavorable weather, meter failure or for any other reason 
of meter inaccuracy cannot register valid meter readings, 
shall not be considered to have a valid meter reading for the 
purpose of winter-quarter-consumption measurement.  

 
 (ii)  Such premises may be billed on the basis of the average 

winter-quarter-consumption for similar dwelling units or the 
current quarterly consumption, as registered by water service 
line meter, or based on historical water usage. Accounts for 
single-family premises established by a builder for sewerage 
service during construction shall be considered a 
nonresidential use.  

 

(3) Premises not having metered water supply or having both well water and public 
metered water supply: 
 
  (A) Single-family dwellings, as in (d)(1)(A). An amount equal to the average winter-quarter-
consumption, during the applicable winter quarter, of similar dwelling units, times the effective unit 
cost rate ($/1,000 gallons). In the alternative, any such single-family residential customer may apply 
to the County, via the water supplier providing water service to the area in which the residential 
customer is located, for special billing rates, based on average per capita consumption of water in 
similar type units. 
 
  (B) All other uses:  The charge shall be based upon the number of fixture units and load 
factor in accordance with the VUSBC and Table I.  There shall be an additional charge equal to the 
effective unit cost ($/1,000 gallons) for the volume discharged by fixtures discharging continuously 
or semi-continuously.  Volume of continuous or semi-continuous discharge shall be deemed to be 
that used in determining availability charge. 

(351)



TABLE I. 
Table of Fixture Units   

Commercial automatic clothes washer (2" standpipe)    3    

Bathroom group consisting of water closet, lavatory and bathtub or shower stall (Residential):    

Tank type closet    6    

Bathtub (with or without overhead shower)    2    

Combination sink-and-tray with food disposal unit    2    

Combination sink-and-tray with 1 1/2" trap    2    

Dental unit or cuspidor    1    

Dental lavatory    1    

Drinking fountain    1/2    

Dishwasher, domestic    2    

Floor drains with 2" waste    2    

Kitchen sink, domestic, with one 1 1/2" waste    2    

Kitchen sink, domestic, with food waste grinder and/or dishwasher    2    

Lavatory with 1 1/4" waste    1    

Laundry tray (1 or 2 compartments)    2    

Shower stall    2    

Sinks:    

Surgeon's    3    

Flushing rim (with valve)    6    

Service (trap standard)    3    

Service (P trap)    2    

Pot, scullery, etc.    4    

Urinal, pedestal, syphon jet blowout    6    

Urinal, wall lip    4    

Urinal stall, washout    4    

Urinal trough (each 6-ft. section)    2    

Wash sink (circular or multiple) each set of faucets    2    

Water closet, tank-operated    4    

Water closet, valve-operated    6    

Fixture drain or trap size:    

1 1/4 inches and smaller    1    

1 1/2 inches    2    

2 inches    3    

2 1/2 inches    4    

3 inches    5    

4 inches    6    

(352)



TABLE II. 
Fixture Units and Load Factors for All Other Premises 

Quarterly Service and Base Charges 
Fiscal Year (July 1 - June 30) 

 

Fixture Units Load 
Factor 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

20 or less 1.00           $117.50 $131.75 $150.25 $171.25  $188.00 $199.25 

21 to 30 1.25            145.63  164.69 187.81 214.06  235.00 249.06 

31 to 40 1.45 168.13 191.04 217.86 248.31  272.60 288.91 

41 to 50 1.60 185.00 210.80 240.40 274.00  300.80 318.80 

51 to 60 1.75 201.88 230.56 262.94 299.69  329.00 348.69 

61 to 70 1.90 218.75 250.33 285.48 325.38  357.20 378.58 

71 to 80 2.05 235.63 270.09 308.01 351.06  385.40 408.46 

81 to 90 2.20 252.50 289.85 330.55 376.75  413.60 438.35 

91 to 100 2.30 263.75 303.03 345.58 393.88  432.40 458.28 

101 to 110 2.40 275.00 316.20 360.60 411.00  451.20 478.20 

111 to 120 2.55 291.88 335.96 383.14 436.69  479.40 508.09 

121 to 130 2.65 303.13 349.14 398.16 453.81  498.20 528.01 

131 to 140 2.75 314.38 362.31 413.19 470.94  517.00 547.94 

141 to 150 2.85 325.63 375.49 428.21 488.06  535.80 567.86 

151 to 160 2.95 336.88 388.66 443.24 505.19  554.60 587.79 

161 to 170 3.05 348.13 401.84 458.26 522.31  573.40 607.71 

171 to 180 3.15 359.38 415.01 473.29 539.44  592.20 627.64 

181 to 190 3.25 370.63 428.19 488.31 556.56  611.00 647.56 

191 to 200 3.35 381.88 441.36 503.34 573.69  629.80 667.49 

201 to 210 3.45 393.13 454.54 518.36 590.81  648.60 687.41 

211 to 220 3.55 404.38 467.71 533.39 607.94  667.40 707.34 

221 to 230 3.65 415.63 480.89 548.41 625.06  686.20 727.26 

231 to 240 3.75 426.88 494.06 563.44 642.19  705.00 747.19 

241 to 250 3.85 438.13 507.24 578.46 659.31  723.80 767.11 

251 to 260 3.90 443.75 513.83 585.98 667.88  733.20 777.08 

261 to 270 4.00 455.00 527.00 601.00 685.00  752.00 797.00 

271 to 280 4.05 460.63 533.59 608.51 693.56  761.40 806.96 

281 to 290 4.10 466.25 540.18 616.03 702.13  770.80 816.93 

291 to 300 4.15 471.88 546.76 623.54 710.69  780.20 826.89 

301 to 310 4.20 477.50 553.35 631.05 719.25  789.60 836.85 

311 to 320 4.30 488.75 566.53 646.08 736.38  808.40 856.78 

321 to 330 4.40 500.00 579.70 661.10 753.50  827.20 876.70 

331 to 340 4.50 511.25 592.88 676.13 770.63  846.00 896.63 

(353)



341 to 350 4.60 522.50 606.05 691.15 787.75  864.80 916.55 

351 to 360 4.70 533.75 619.23 706.18 804.88  883.60 936.48 

361 to 370 4.80 545.00 632.40 721.20 822.00  902.40 956.40 

371 to 380 4.90 556.25 645.58 736.23 839.13  921.20 976.33 

381 to 390 5.00 567.50 658.75 751.25 856.25  940.00 996.25 

391 to 400 5.10 578.75 671.93 766.28 873.38  958.80 1,016.18 

401 to 410 5.20 590.00 685.10 781.30 890.50  977.60 1,036.10 

411 to 420 5.30 601.25 698.28 796.33 907.63  996.40 1,056.03 

421 to 430 5.40 612.50 711.45 811.35 924.75  1,015.20 1,075.95 

431 to 440 5.50 623.75 724.63 826.38 941.88  1,034.00 1,095.88 

441 to 450 5.60 635.00 737.80 841.40 959.00  1,052.80 1,115.80 

451 to 460 5.70 646.25 750.98 856.43 976.13  1,071.60 1,135.73 

461 to 470 5.80 657.50 764.15 871.45 993.25  1,090.40 1,155.65 

471 to 480 5.90 668.75 777.33 886.48 1,010.38  1,109.20 1,175.58 

481 to 490 6.00 680.00 790.50 901.50 1,027.50  1,128.00 1,195.50 

491 to 500 6.10 691.25 803.68 916.53 1,044.63  1,146.80 1,215.43 

501 to 525 6.25 708.13 823.44 939.06 1,070.31  1,175.00 1,245.31 

526 to 550 6.50 736.25 856.38 976.63 1,113.13  1,222.00 1,295.13 

551 to 575 6.75 764.38 889.31 1,014.19 1,155.94  1,269.00 1,344.94 

576 to 600 7.00 792.50 922.25 1,051.75 1,198.75  1,316.00 1,394.75 

601 to 625 7.25 820.63 955.19 1,089.31 1,241.56  1,363.00 1,444.56 

626 to 650 7.50 848.75 988.13 1,126.88 1,284.38  1,410.00 1,494.38 

651 to 675 7.75 876.88 1,021.06 1,164.44 1,327.19  1,457.00 1,544.19 

676 to 700 8.00 905.00 1,054.00 1,202.00 1,370.00  1,504.00 1,594.00 

701 to 725 8.20 927.50 1,080.35 1,232.05 1,404.25  1,541.60 1,633.85 

726 to 750 8.40 950.00 1,106.70 1,262.10 1,438.50  1,579.20 1,673.70 

751 to 775 8.60 972.50 1,133.05 1,292.15 1,472.75  1,616.80 1,713.55 

776 to 800 8.80 995.00 1,159.40 1,322.20 1,507.00  1,654.40 1,753.40 

801 to 825 9.00 1,017.50 1,185.75 1,352.25 1,541.25  1,692.00 1,793.25 

826 to 850 9.20 1,040.00 1,212.10 1,382.30 1,575.50  1,729.60 1,833.10 

851 to 875 9.35 1,056.88 1,231.86 1,404.84 1,601.19  1,757.80 1,862.99 

876 to 900 9.50 1,073.75 1,251.63 1,427.38 1,626.88  1,786.00 1,892.88 

901 to 925 9.65 1,090.63 1,271.39 1,449.91 1,652.56  1,814.20 1,922.76 

926 to 950 9.80 1,107.50 1,291.15 1,472.45 1,678.25  1,842.40 1,952.65 

951 to 975 9.95 1,124.38 1,310.91 1,494.99 1,703.94  1,870.60 1,982.54 

976 to 1,000 10.15 1,146.88 1,337.26 1,525.04 1,738.19  1,908.20 2,022.39 

1,001 to 1,050 10.55 1,191.88 1,389.96 1,585.14 1,806.69  1,983.40 2,102.09 

1,051 to 1,100 10.90 1,231.25 1,436.08 1,637.73 1,866.63  2,049.20 2,171.83 

(354)



1,101 to 1,150 11.30 1,276.25 1,488.78 1,697.83 1,935.13  2,124.40 2,251.53 

1,151 to 1,200 11.70 1,321.25 1,541.48 1,757.93 2,003.63  2,199.60 2,331.23 

1,201 to 1,250 12.00 1,355.00 1,581.00 1,803.00 2,055.00  2,256.00 2,391.00 

1,251 to 1,300 12.35 1,394.38 1,627.11 1,855.59 2,114.94  2,321.80 2,460.74 

1,301 to 1,350 12.70 1,433.75 1,673.23 1,908.18 2,174.88  2,387.60 2,530.48 

1,351 to 1,400 13.00 1,467.50 1,712.75 1,953.25 2,226.25  2,444.00 2,590.25 

1,401 to 1,450 13.25 1,495.63 1,745.69 1,990.81 2,269.06  2,491.00 2,640.06 

1,451 to 1,500 13.50 1,523.75 1,778.63 2,028.38 2,311.88  2,538.00 2,689.88 

1,501 to 1,600 14.05 1,585.63 1,851.09 2,111.01 2,406.06  2,641.40 2,799.46 

1,601 to 1,700 14.60 1,647.50 1,923.55 2,193.65 2,500.25  2,744.80 2,909.05 

1,701 to 1,800 15.15 1,709.38 1,996.01 2,276.29 2,594.44  2,848.20 3,018.64 

1,801 to 1,900 15.70 1,771.25 2,068.48 2,358.93 2,688.63  2,951.60 3,128.23 

1,901 to 2,000 16.25 1,833.13 2,140.94 2,441.56 2,782.81  3,055.00 3,237.81 

2,001 to 2,100 16.80 1,895.00 2,213.40 2,524.20 2,877.00  3,158.40 3,347.40 

2,101 to 2,200 17.35 1,956.88 2,285.86 2,606.84 2,971.19  3,261.80 3,456.99 

2,201 to 2,300 17.90 2,018.75 2,358.33 2,689.48 3,065.38  3,365.20 3,566.58 

2,301 to 2,400 18.45 2,080.63 2,430.79 2,772.11 3,159.56  3,468.60 3,676.16 

2,401 to 2,500 19.00 2,142.50 2,503.25 2,854.75 3,253.75  3,572.00 3,785.75 

2,501 to 2,600 19.55 2,204.38 2,575.71 2,937.39 3,347.94  3,675.40 3,895.34 

2,601 to 2,700 20.10 2,266.25 2,648.18 3,020.03 3,442.13  3,778.80 4,004.93 

2,701 to 2,800 20.65 2,328.13 2,720.64 3,102.66 3,536.31  3,882.20 4,114.51 

2,801 to 2,900 21.20 2,390.00 2,793.10 3,185.30 3,630.50  3,985.60 4,224.10 

2,901 to 3,000 21.75 2,451.88 2,865.56 3,267.94 3,724.69  4,089.00 4,333.69 

3,001 to 4,000 26.00 2,930.00 3,425.50 3,906.50 4,452.50  4,888.00 5,180.50 

4,001 to 5,000 29.50 3,323.75 3,886.63 4,432.38 5,051.88  5,546.00 5,877.88 

5,001 to 6,000 33.00 3,717.50 4,347.75 4,958.25 5,651.25  6,204.00 6,575.25 

6,001 to 7,000 36.40 4,100.00 4,795.70 5,469.10 6,233.50  6,843.20 7,252.70 

7,001 to 8,000 39.60 4,460.00 5,217.30 5,949.90 6,781.50  7,444.80 7,890.30 

8,001 to 9,000 42.75 4,814.38 5,632.31 6,423.19 7,320.94  8,037.00 8,517.94 

9,001 to 10,000 46.00 5,180.00 6,060.50 6,911.50 7,877.50  8,648.00 9,165.50 

10,001 to 11,000 48.85 5,500.63 6,435.99 7,339.71 8,365.56  9,183.80 9,733.36 

11,001 to 12,000 51.60 5,810.00 6,798.30 7,752.90 8,836.50  9,700.80 10,281.30 

12,001 to 13,000 54.60 6,147.50 7,193.55 8,203.65 9,350.25  10,264.80 10,879.05 

13,001 to 14,000 57.40 6,462.50 7,562.45 8,624.35 9,829.75  10,791.20 11,436.95 

14,001 to 15,000 60.00 6,755.00 7,905.00 9,015.00 10,275.00  11,280.00 11,955.00 

NOTES:      (1) Baseline water use for 20 fixture units is 25 TG/Qtr. 
 (2) Base charge is not included in rates. 

The Service Charge rates will change on July 1st of each new fiscal year for accounts with meter readings beginning that 
date.  For unmetered accounts, the change shall be effective with the billings beginning July 1st of each new fiscal year. 

(355)



 
 1 

      ATTACHMENT II 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
   Sewer Ordinance Amendment - Proposed Sewer Rate Schedule 
 
ISSUE:  Board of Supervisors’ approval is required for adoption of a 
sewer ordinance amendment to Chapter 67.1, "Sanitary Sewers and Sewage 
Disposal" of the Code of the County of Fairfax.  The purpose of the 
amendment is to revise the County's sewer rate structure as follows: 
 

Sewer Service Charge 
     Unit Cost ($) per 1,000 gallons of water 

    
Current Rate Recommended Rate  

FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 
$5.27 $6.01 $6.85 $7.52 $7.97 

 
    Base Charge  

          Cost ($) per Quarterly Billing 
    
Current Rate Recommended Rate 

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 
$5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 
                     

Effective date:  The rates will change on July 1st of each new fiscal 
year. For metered accounts, the change is effective with meter readings 
beginning that date.  For unmetered accounts, the change is effective 
with billings beginning that date.   
 
 Availability Charges 
 Unit Cost ($) per Connection or Fixture Unit 
 

Service Class Current 
Rate 

Recommended Rate  

Residential Uses: FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 
 (a) SFR 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750
 (b) Hotel, Inn, or 
       Tourist Cabin 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750 7,750

 (c) Townhouse 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200

 (d) Apartment 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200
 (e) Mobile Home 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200
 (f) Any other 
        dwelling 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200 6,200

 (g) Hotel, Motel 
          rental unit 1,938 1,938 1,938 1,938 1,938

Commercial and all 
other uses: 

  

   Fixture Unit Rate 401 401 401 401 401 
 
Effective date:  The rates will change on July 1st of each new fiscal 
year. 

(356)



 
 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 
 
Staff recommends the following actions: 
 

1. Board authorization to advertise a public hearing. 
2. Adoption of the proposed sewer rate structure. 

 
SOURCE: 
 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
 
COORDINATION: 
 
The proposed sewer ordinance amendment has been reviewed by the following 
agencies: 
 

1. Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
2. Department of Management and Budget 
3. Office of the County Attorney 

 
 
SEWER RATES - BACKGROUND AND HISTORY: 
 
Sewer rates are established by the Board of Supervisors through Chapter 
67.1-10,Section 2  of the County Code.  Rates and the language of the 
County Code are reviewed annually by the County staff as part of the 
County's annual long range planning and short-term budgeting process. 
 
For purposes of assessing rates and charges, the system's customers are 
categorized as either "new" or "existing" customers.  New customers are 
those who wish to connect to the Sanitary Sewer System (the “System”) but 
who have not paid an Availability Fee to the County.  Payment of the 
Availability Fee guarantees them capacity in the System.  Existing 
customers include those customers connected to the System and receiving 
wastewater services as well as those customers who have prepaid an 
Availability Fee but who are not specifically receiving service.  
Existing customers are charged a quarterly service charge to cover the 
costs of operation and maintenance of the System in proportion to the 
service provided and to provide additional services such as Enhanced 
Nutrient Removal (conversion of nitrogen forms to nitrogen gas). 
 
Operation and maintenance of the County's Integrated Sewer System is 
managed by the Wastewater Management Program and has historically been 
funded by Sewer Service Charges and Sales of Service revenues.  
Construction of the System has been financed by a combination of Sewer 
Service Charges, Availability Fees, Sales of Service revenue, developer 
contributions, federal and state grants and bond proceeds. 
 
 
Following are tables that summarize the rates for Sewer Service Charges 
and Availability Fees that have been imposed by the Program since its 
creation in 1955. 

(357)



 
 3 

 
Sewer Service Charges 

  Fiscal Year           Charges        
  1955 - 1970   $  39/Year 

    1971 – 1972      0.85/1,000 Gallons 
  1973 – 1977      0.95/1,000 Gallons 
  1978 - 1980      1.41/1,000 Gallons 
  1981 - 1984      1.62/1,000 Gallons 
  1985       2.02/1,000 Gallons 
  1986 - 1993      2.34/1,000 Gallons 
  1994       2.50/1,000 Gallons 
  1995 - 1998      2.60/1,000 Gallons 
  1999 - 2000      2.70/1,000 Gallons 
2001 2.81/1,000 Gallons 
2002 2.88/1,000 Gallons  

    2003        2.95/1,000 Gallons 
    2004        3.03/1,000 Gallons 
    2005          3.20/1,000 Gallons 
    2006       3.28/1,000 Gallons 
    2007       3.50/1,000 Gallons 
      2008       3.74/1,000 Gallons 
      2009       4.10/1,000 Gallons 
    2010       4.50/1,000 Gallons 
    2011       5.27/1,000 Gallons 
    2012       6.01/1,000 Gallons 
   
 Availability Charges, per SFR 

  Fiscal Year           Charges      
  1955 - 1957   $     40 

    1958 - 1964    100 
  1965 - 1970    300 
  1971          600 
  1972 - 1980       1,000 
  1981 - 1984       1,350 
  1985 - 1990       2,500 
  1991        3,132 
  1992        3,359 
  1993        3,602 
  1994 - 1995       3,863 
  1996        4,101 
  1997         4,353 
  1998 - 2000           4,621 
2001 4,898 
2002 5,069 

    2003         5,247 
    2004        5,431 
    2005         5,621 
    2006        5,874 
    2007        6,138 

  2008        6,506 
  2009        6,896 
  2010        7,310 
  2011 - 2012       7,750 
 

(358)



 
 4 

 
Because of significant expenditures projected over the next five years 
for projects which will upgrade treatment levels, particularly for Total 
Nitrogen (TN) removal, as well as repair, renovate, and replace System 
infrastructure assets, a substantial decrease in fund balance is 
unavoidable.  Public Resources Management Group, Inc. (PRMG), the 
System’s independent financial analyst, recommends that fund balances be 
maintained for the integrity of the Sewer Fund and to maintain AAA/AA 
Sewer Revenue bond ratings.  To maintain fund balances and satisfy cash 
flow needs, Revenue Bonds will be issued to fund sewer projects.   
 
Since EPA grant funding is no longer available and since State grant 
funding is questionable, funding for System upgrades and renovations will 
depend primarily on Sewer Service Charges and Availability Fee revenues. 
However, the Wastewater Management Program will seek State grant funds 
and/or low interest loans from the State Revolving Fund (SRF), if and 
when available to Fairfax County, to offset funding dependency on Sewer 
Service Charges, Availability Fee, and Sewer Revenue Bond revenues.  The 
SRF is managed by the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
in conjunction with the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA).  
 
As expected, a review of recent upgrade and renovation projects indicates 
a significant increase in the cost per unit of capacity.  This is due in 
large part to new environmental restrictions placed on the System by 
State and Federal (Chesapeake Bay Program) regulators for total nitrogen 
removal.  
 
FINANCIAL REVIEWS, FORECASTS AND RATE ANALYSES: 
 
Financial forecasts and sewer rate analyses are performed annually to: 
 

1. Be accountable for the sewer service rate structure and to 
enable System customers and bond holders to assess that 
accountability. 

2. Provide meaningful financial information which can be used by 
the Wastewater Management Program in determining current and 
projected financial needs of the sewer system. 

3. Assist customers and bond holders in assessing the level of 
services that can be provided by the Wastewater Management 
Program along with its ability to meet its obligations. 

 
In addition, as required by the 1986 (Sewer) Revenue Bond Resolution, an 
annual financial review and forecast of the Enterprise Fund is performed 
to accurately reflect fund balances, revenues and expenditure projections 
along with cash flow requirements.  Another reason for annual reviews is 
to determine the adequacy of prevailing rates and charges. 
 
The most recent annual “Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Analysis” was 
performed by PRMG (January, 2011).  PRMG recommended the FY 2012 – 2014 
sewer service charge rates and the new FY 2015 rate as proposed in the 
"Rate Revision Notices" being submitted to the Board for advertisement.  
Likewise, Availability fee rates will remain as adopted with the addition 
of the new FY 2015 rate. 
 
 

(359)



 
 5 

Fiscal Impact 
 
In FY 2012, assuming a typical water usage per household of 19,000 
gallons/quarter (or 76,000 gallons/year) and a $5 quarterly billing 
charge (or $20 per year), the average homeowner’s sewer bill will be 
approximately $477 per year, which is an increase of $56.24 over the FY 
2011 sewer bill.  Because of construction requirements for building 
nitrogen removal facilities and for renovating aging infrastructure, the 
annual cost impact of the FY 2012 to FY 2015 rate increases for a typical 
homeowner are outlined in the following table. 
 
 

Fiscal Year Base Charge Service Charge Annual Bill Increase, $ 

 
$/Quarterly 

Billing 
($/1,000 gallons) ($) (% Increase) 

2011 $5.00 $5.27 (17.1%) $420.52 $58.52 (13.9%) 
2012 $5.00 $6.01 (13.9%) $476.76 $56.24 (11.8%) 
2013 $5.00 $6.85 (14.0%) $540.60 $63.84 (11.8%) 
2014 $5.00 $7.52 (9.8%) $591.52 $50.92 (8.6%) 
2015 $5.00 $7.97 (6.0%) $625.72 $34.20 (5.5%) 

               
In perspective, the FY 2012 to FY 2015 cost impact on a typical 
homeowner of the rate increases will be approximately an additional 
$2.85 to $5.32 monthly or $8.55 to $15.96 quarterly as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Monthly Bill Increase Quarterly Bill Increase 
 ($) ($) ($) ($) 

2011 $35.04 $4.88 $105.13 $14.63 
2012 $39.73 $4.69 $119.19 $14.06 
2013 $45.05 $5.32 $135.15 $15.96 
2014 $49.29 $4.24 $147.88 $12.73 
2015 $52.14 $2.85 $156.43 $8.55 

               

(360)



 
 6 

 
SEWER ORDINANCE - CODE CHANGE SCHEDULE 

       Chapter 67.1-10 Section 2 
                       For FY 2012 Budget Sewer Rate Changes 
 
 
Milestone Date      Description of Task 
 
October 2010 Begin developing annual "Five-Year Financial Forecast" and 

PRMG rate study.   
 
December 2010 Finalize rate structure.  
 
December 2010 Submit proposed rate changes to DMB. 
 
January 2011 Release draft “Five-Year Financial Forecast.” 
 
January 2011  Draft Board Item for Advertisements to  

DPWES. 
 
February 22, 2011 BOARD AGENDA ITEM - “Advertisement” for Sewer Rate Changes 

and Public Hearing date. Public Hearing will coincide with 
other Public Hearings on the FY 2012 budget.  

 
March 4, 2011 First Advertisement for Public Hearing (PH) on Sewer 

Ordinance Changes, Washington Times. 
 
March 14, 2011 Second PH Advertisement, Washington Times. 
 
March 10, 2011 Draft Board Item Public Hearing to 

DPWES. 
 
March 29, 2011 3:00 P.M. (1)BOARD AGENDA ITEM - “Public Hearing” on Sewer 

Ordinance and Rate Changes. 
 
March 29-31, 2011 Public Hearings on FY 2012 Budget. 
 
April 7, 2011 Draft Board Item BOS Decision to DPWES. 
 
April 12, 2011 Begin FY 2012 Budget markup. 
 
April 26, 2011 10:00 A.M. (1) BOARD AGENDA ITEM -”Board Decision” on Sewer 

Ordinance and Sewer Rate Changes. 
 
April 26, 2011 Adoption of FY 2012 Budget. 
 
 
 
(1)  Dates are confirmed; times are scheduled, but tentative. 
 
 

(361)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(362)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Chapters 2 (Property Under County 
Control), 61 (Building Provisions), 101 (Subdivision Ordinance), 104 (Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control), and 112 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Code of the County of 
Fairfax, Virginia RE: Adjustment of the Fees Charged by Land Development Services 
for Plan Review, Permits, and Inspection Services 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Adjustments to the fees charged for plan review, permits and inspection services to 
maintain the current level of cost recovery and more accurately reflect and cover the 
cost of providing services.   
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
On Wednesday, March 2, 2011, the Planning Commission unanimously voted 
(Commissioner Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent 
from the meeting) to recommend the following actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Adoption of the proposed amendments as advertised and set forth in the staff 
report dated February 8, 2011; 

 
 The proposed amendments become effective at 12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2011, and 

that the revised fees shall be applicable to any submissions after this date with 
the following plans grandfathered:  Site and Subdivision Plans (excluding 
Preliminary Plats) submitted prior to July 1, 2011, shall not be charged a second 
submission base fee. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board adopt the proposed amendments 
amendments to the Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia (County Code), as 
recommended by the Planning Commission.   
 
 
TIMING: 
On February 8, 2011, the Board authorized the advertising of public hearings.  The 
Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 2, 2011.  If approved, these 
amendments will become effective at 12:01 A.M. on July 1, 2011.  The revised fees are 
applicable to any submissions after this date with the following plans grandfathered:  

(363)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Site and Subdivision Plans (excluding Preliminary Plats) submitted prior to July 1, 2011, 
shall not be charged a second submission base fee.     
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) is proposing to 
adjust the fees charged by Land Development Services (LDS).  LDS fees were last 
increased in 2009 (FY 2010) and prior to that date in 2005 (FY 2006).  At the time of the 
last fee adjustment in 2009, the Board asked LDS to review fees on a two-year cycle 
and make any adjustments to the fees incrementally to avoid the large adjustments that  
were needed in both 2009 and 2005.  The Board’s request was based on feedback 
received from industry representatives from the Northern Virginia Building Industry  
Association (NVBIA), the National Association of Industrial and Office Properties 
(NAIOP), and the Engineers & Surveyors Institute (ESI) regarding the negative impacts 
to land development projects caused by large and unpredictable fee increases.    
 
The fees charged for reviewing plans, processing permits and making inspections are 
based on the actual costs of delivering the regulatory services.  In response to 
economic conditions, LDS has taken aggressive steps to reduce its costs through 
personnel re-assignments, elimination of limited term positions and through holding 
positions vacant.  However, the cost of doing business has risen slightly with inflation.  
In addition, despite efforts to balance its revenue and costs, LDS is still not meeting its 
targeted recovery rate of 90%.  As a result, LDS staff is proposing a modest fee 
increase to the majority of its fees.  Regulatory initiatives are also being proposed to 
simplify and standardize how fees are determined, improving LDS’s efficiency and 
streamlining the process for applicants.  A summary of the proposed amendments is 
below.   
 
SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS: 
The primary impact of the proposed amendments is to generally increase the fees for 
site and subdivision plan review and inspections, and the building code fees except 
those fees bulleted below.  The proposed fees are contained in Attachment A.  In 
addition, the proposed amendments include regulatory initiatives that, if adopted, would 
eliminate the common errors and time-consuming tasks involved in calculating fees 
making the LDS fee process simpler and more efficient.  The proposed amendments 
are described below.  
 
Proposed Fee Adjustments Provide a More Regular and Predictable Adjustment 
in the Land Development Fees 
 
The proposed fee amendments adjust the land development fees by an across-the-
board increase in direct proportion to the increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for 

(364)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Urban Wage Earners & Clerical Workers in the Washington-Baltimore area for the 12 
month period beginning in March, 2009.  The proposed fee increases will account for 
inflation that has increased LDS's costs for providing these services.  In addition, since 
the proposed fees will be in effect for at least two years, the increase will assist LDS in 
not falling further below its targeted recovery rate of 90%.  In general, the fees will 
increase by 3.1% with some fees increasing by up to 3.8% due to rounding, with the 
following exceptions:   
 

 The base permit fee, the plan resubmission fee, the fee for failure to obtain a 
building permit prior to beginning work (non-permitted work), and the fee for each 
discipline (electrical, mechanical, etc.) taking part in a team inspection, should 
the inspection not involve all disciplines, will increase from $85 to an even $90 (a 
5.9% increase).  The higher increase is justified in this case by the actual costs of 
providing these services.   

 
 The re-inspection permit fee increases from $83 to match the base fee of $90 (an 

8.4% increase) based on the actual cost to provide this service.   
 

 The calculation of the review fee for site and subdivision plans is being 
restructured to separate first and second submission fees, to increase the 
maximum fee charged for first and second submissions combined from $11,130 
to $12,900 for subdivisions, and to apply a charge for substitute sheets inserted 
into first submission plans. 

 
 Permit fees remain constant, due to rounding, for an amendment to a permit, 

multiple permits, permits requiring no inspections, permits for interior alterations 
to an existing building, permits for an addition or exterior alterations to an existing 
residential structure (class R-3, R-4 and R-5 structures), and permits for  
accessory structures on a residential property (class R-3, R-4 and R-5 
structures).   

 
 Permit fees for amusement devices and carnival rides remain constant in 

accordance with the Virginia Amusement Device Regulations.   
 

 Permit fees for household appliances, home improvement contractor licenses 
and vertical transportation remain constant because the existing fees adequately 
cover the actual costs to provide these services.   

 
 Fire Marshal fees (pass through fees collected by LDS for the Fire Marshal) are 

not being adjusted at this time.  The Fire Marshal fees were last adjusted in 2009 
(FY 2010). 
 

(365)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

 Fees for parking reductions requiring Board approval are being restructured.  The 
current fees are divided into four tiers based on the number of parking spaces 
required.  These fees are being increased by 3.1%.  The break points between 
the tiers are being increased by 100 parking spaces which will allow more 
reductions to be processed within the lower tiers.  In addition, separate 
categories for parking reductions based on proximity to a mass transit station and 
Transportation Demand Management Programs are being created with the fees  
set at the minimum tier because the review is unrelated to the number of parking 
spaces required.  

 
 Pursuant to the current regulations, no fee is charged to review a recycling plan; 

to repair, replace, or otherwise re-construct a residential, commercial or industrial 
structure damaged as the result of a catastrophic event; or to install solar energy 
equipment, replace defective sprinkler heads or construct radiation fallout or blast 
shelters.   

 
Proposed Fee Adjustments Simplify and Standardize How Fees are Determined, 
Improving LDS’s Efficiency    
 
With less staff available for reviewing plans, processing permits and making site and 
building inspections, it has become increasingly important to find ways to provide 
services more efficiently.  The proposed amendments incorporate the following 
initiatives that simplify and standardize how fees are determined making the fee process 
easier and more efficient for LDS customers and staff.  
 

1) Standardize the review fee calculation related to site and subdivision plans: 
 

The proposed amendment standardizes the review fees related to site and 
subdivision plans by charging a separate fee for first and second submissions.  
Separating the review fees will help developers manage their cash flow by 
allowing them to pay less money up-front.  It also gives developers an 
opportunity to reduce their costs when submitting quality plans that require only 
one plan submission.  Under the proposed amendments, a charge is being 
assessed for substitute sheets inserted into first submission site and subdivision 
plans; and the maximum fee assessed for first and second submissions 
combined increases from $11,130 to $12,900 for subdivisions.   

 
2) Simplify the review fee calculation related to subdivision plans: 

 
In the past, the amount of time required to review a subdivision plan was closely 
dependent on the size of the project; therefore, review fees were based on the 
project size with an allowance to subtract out the first hectare (2.5 acres).   

(366)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

Subtracting out a hectare on smaller subdivision projects made sense because in 
the past smaller projects generally had fewer improvements to review and 
therefore took less time.  Due to the complexity of all projects, this is no longer 
the case.  The proposed amendment simplifies the fee calculation by removing 
the hectare component thereby eliminating a common error involved in 
calculating this fee.   
 

3) Standardize the site inspection fee calculation related to bond extensions and 
reductions: 
 
When a developer requests an extension of his performance bond, an inspection 
fee is charged based on the proposed linear footage of utility lines and total 
disturbed site acreage.  The proposed amendment codifies current practice by 
clarifying that the site inspection fee accompanying bond extensions shall be 
calculated based on one-half of the site’s disturbed area for those projects that 
have reduced their disturbed area by at least one-half.  The proposed 50 percent 
reduction of the disturbed area shown on the original performance agreement 
applies to projects with a current agreement and a performance bond in good 
standing.      

 
4) Convert metric units of measurements into their English equivalents: 

 
The design community is not using metric measurements in plan submission and 
VDOT no longer publishes metric design standards.  Revising the fee schedules 
to convert the metric units of measurement into their English equivalents makes 
calculating fees much easier and more accurate for both county staff and LDS’s 
customers.  The metric units are being retained in the computer system, since 
metric can be utilized on a case-by-case basis for submission of new plans 
based on previously approved metric plans. 

 
5) Relocate the site and building fee schedules into a single table:   

 
Currently, the site and building fees are incorporated in Chapters 2, 61, 101, 104 
and 112 of the Code.  The proposed amendment relocates the fees into a single 
source, as Appendix Q to the Code, for ease of reference.  The new LDS Fee 
Schedule is included as Attachment A.    

 
Proposed Fee Adjustments are Comparable with Neighboring Jurisdictions’ Site 
and Building Development Fees  
 

(367)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
The proposed fee increases would result in fees generally comparable to neighboring 
jurisdictions.  The table in Attachment C of the staff report compares the current fees 
charged by Loudoun, Prince William and Arlington Counties, the Cities of Alexandria, 
Falls Church, Manassas and Fairfax with Fairfax County’s current site fees and with the 
proposed fee increases.  The table in Attachment D of the staff report compares the 
current fees charged by Loudoun, Prince William, Arlington and Montgomery Counties, 
the Cities of Alexandria and Fairfax with Fairfax County’s current building fees and with 
the proposed fee increases.  Although it is difficult to precisely compare fees of these 
jurisdictions due to the type and level of review and inspection provided by each 
jurisdiction, the comparison does reveal that Fairfax County’s current site-related fees 
for plan review and inspection fall more in the middle range for the region.  Current 
building-related fees for both commercial and residential development are on the low 
end of the range as shown on the fee comparison chart in Attachment D of the staff 
report.  Even with the proposed site and building fee increases, Fairfax County’s fees 
would remain comparable with neighboring jurisdictions’ site and building development 
fees.  
 
 
Proposed Fee Adjustments are Generally Supported by Industry Representatives  
 
On July 14, 2010, staff met with industry representatives from NVBIA, NAIOP and ESI 
to discuss the proposed amendments and any expectations from industry.  At that time, 
the land development community supported the proposed amendments subject to the 
following considerations.  Staff’s responses are provided in italics.   
 

a. Consider allowing up-front meetings, prior to first submission, to pre-review 
plans.  Staff supports up-front meetings and encourages applicants to arrange 
meetings to discuss important issues prior to plan submission.   
 

b. Consider amending the fees related to best management practices (BMP) to 
include a separate, lower fee for certain innovative BMP’s.  This suggestion will 
be evaluated by staff and with stakeholders as part of our review of the pending 
changes to the State’s Stormwater Regulations.  
 

c. Consider providing training to better equip applicants to get through the site plan 
and subdivision plan review process on first submission.   Staff will explore 
opportunities to provide additional training to industry as part of our continuing 
process evaluations. 

 

(368)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
REGULATORY IMPACT: 
The proposed fee amendments are in response to the Board’s directive, at the request 
of industry, for biannual fee updates and incremental adjustments to the land 
development fees to minimize the impacts of fee increases on land development 
projects.  The proposed amendment adjusts the fees charged by LDS for plan review, 
permits and inspection services in line with the CPI and accommodates an increase in 
LDS's costs for providing these services.  In general, the fees will increase by 3.1%, 
with some fees increasing by up to 3.8% due to rounding, except for the Fire Marshal 
fees and the fees for household appliance permits, home improvement contractor 
licenses, vertical transportation permits and permits for amusement devices and 
carnival rides, which are not being adjusted.  In addition, smaller miscellaneous permit 
fees remain constant due to rounding.   
 
The base permit fee, the plan resubmission fee, the fee for failure to obtain a building 
permit prior to beginning work (non-permitted work), and the fee for each discipline 
(electrical, mechanical, etc.) taking part in a team inspection, should the inspection not 
involve all disciplines, will increase from $85 to an even $90 (a 5.9% increase).  The re-
inspection permit fee increases from $83 to match the base fee of $90 (an 8.4% 
increase).  The higher increase is justified in these cases by the actual costs of 
providing these services.  Although the fees for parking reductions are increasing by 
3.1%, the restructuring of these fees will result in fewer reduction requests falling into 
the higher fee categories.  All fees, if approved, shall become effective on July 1, 2011.  
Refer to Appendix A of the Staff Report for a copy of the proposed LDS Fee Schedule. 
 
The proposed regulatory initiatives simplify and standardize how fees are determined, 
making the fee calculations easier and more accurate for both County staff and LDS’s 
customers by:     
 

 Charging a separate review fee for first and second submissions related to site 
and subdivision plans.  Under the proposed amendments, a charge is being 
assessed for substitute sheets inserted into first submission site and subdivision 
plans; and the maximum fee assessed for first and second submissions 
combined increases from $11,130 to $12,900 for subdivisions.   

 
 Removing the first hectare (2.5 acre) component thereby eliminating the common 

error involved in calculating the review fee for site and subdivision plans. 
 

 Clarifying that the site inspection fee calculation related to bond extension and 
reduction requests shall be based on the site’s disturbed area at the time of the 
bond extension or reduction.  The proposed change applies to projects with an 
active and current agreement and a performance bond in good standing.  A 

(369)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

maximum 50 percent reduction of the disturbed acreage shown on the original 
performance agreement is permitted.  

 
 Converting the metric units of measurements into their English equivalents.  
 
 Relocating the site and building fee schedules into a single source, as Appendix 

Q of the Code, for ease of reference.   
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
If adopted by the Board, it is anticipated that the proposed fee adjustments will generate 
increased revenue of approximately $560,000 in FY 2012.  This revenue estimate is 
based on the FY 2011 revenue of $18 million and assumes that workload remains 
constant in FY 2012.  Any reduction in plan and permit activity may have a negative 
impact on the projected revenue.  Staff in LDS will work in close coordination with the 
Department of Management and Budget to monitor these trends.  If approved by the 
Board, the additional revenue will be included in the FY 2012 budget as part of the FY 
2012 Add-On process.   
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I- Staff Report Staff Report (Distributed to Board Members under separate 
cover and available online at 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dpwes/publications/pfm/proposedfees.pdf 
Attachment II- Planning Commission Verbatim 
 
 
STAFF: 
Eileen McLane, Zoning Administrator, DPZ 
James Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES)  
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, Land Development Services, DPWES  

(370)



 

Planning Commission Meeting        Attachment 2 
March 2, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
COUNTY CODE AMENDMENTS – ADJUSTMENT OF THE FEES CHARGED BY LAND 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FOR PLAN REVIEW, PERMITS, AND INSPECTION SERVICES 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Without objection, the public hearing is closed; recognize Mr. Hart. 
 
Commissioner Hart:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  First, let me thank staff: Michelle Brickner, Jan 
Leavitt, John Friedman, and Debra McMahon for their fine work on this case.  This is a fairly 
straightforward Amendment, which has staff's support, and I concur with their recommendation.  The 
increases in these categories are fairly modest and the timing corresponds to our previous suggestions 
to monitor fees every couple years rather than wait 10 years and have substantial increases.  
Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 
CHAPTERS 2, 61, 101, 104, AND 112 OF THE COUNTY CODE REGARDING ADJUSTMENT 
OF THE FEES CHARGED FOR PLAN REVIEW, PERMITS, AND INSPECTION SERVICES, AS 
ADVERTISED AND SET FORTH IN THE STAFF REPORT DATED FEBRUARY 8, 2011.  I 
FURTHER MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD 
THAT THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS BECOME EFFECTIVE AT 12:01 A.M. ON JULY 1, 
2011, AND THAT THE REVISED FEES SHALL BE APPLICABLE TO ANY SUBMISSIONS 
AFTER THIS DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING PLANS GRANDFATHERED: SITE AND 
SUBDIVISION PLANS, EXCLUDING PRELIMINARY PLATS, SUBMITTED PRIOR TO JULY 
1, 2011, SHALL NOT BE CHARGED A SECOND SUBMISSION BASE FEE. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. de la Fe.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those in 
favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it adopt the County Code 
Amendments as articulated by Mr. Hart, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
// 
 
(The motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Alcorn not present for the vote; 
Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 
 

(371)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(372)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment Re:  Zoning Fees 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance amendment to increase filing fees for zoning applications 
and zoning compliance letters by approximately 3.1%, with a minimum increase of 
$5.00.  
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, March 2, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 
(Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting) to recommend the following 
actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of the proposed amendment as set forth in the staff report dated 
February 8, 2011, with the following change: 

 
  On page 8 of the staff report, revise the fee for Interpretation of Approved 
  Zoning Applications from $520 to $515. 

 
 The amendment become effective at 12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2011; and 
 
 The revised fees shall be applicable to any zoning application filed subsequent 

to the effective date of the amendment; and 
 

 Zoning applications which were filed but not accepted prior to the effective date 
of the amendment and that are in compliance with the applicable submission 
requirements shall be grandfathered from this amendment. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance amendment as recommended by the Planning Commission.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Board of Supervisors’ authorization to advertise – February 8, 2011; Planning 
Commission public hearing – March 2, 2011; Board of Supervisors’ public hearing – 
March 29, 2011 
 

(373)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed amendment increases the filing fees for the various types of zoning 
applications and compliance letters which are set forth in Section 18-106 of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  The amendment is on the 2010 Priority 1 Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Work Program and is in response to a Board directive to review fees on a two year 
cycle to better keep up with escalating costs and avoid having to impose the large scale 
fee increases experienced in 2009 (FY 2010).   
 
Staff is proposing a modest increase of approximately 3.1%, rounded to the nearest 
$5.00 increment, for most zoning application fees including, variances, special permits, 
special exceptions, rezonings, comprehensive sign plans, PRC Plans and amendments 
thereto based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Urban Wage Earners & Clerical 
Workers in the Washington-Baltimore area for the 12 month period beginning in March, 
2009, which tracks inflation and other costs in this region.  This is the same index used 
by the Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) to support 
their proposed increase in land development fees.  In addition, fees for certain zoning 
compliance letters, modifications to the affordable dwelling unit program, interpretations 
of approved zoning applications and deferral of public hearings for affidavit related 
errors are proposed to increase by approximately 3.1%.  It is noted that staff discovered 
an error due to rounding in the advertised fee for interpretations of approved zoning 
applications, and as such the Planning Commission recommended a revised fee from 
$520 to $515 to correct this error.  
 
Fees for non-residential use permits, sign permits and zoning compliance letters for 
single family dwellings, which currently range from $50 to $100, will increase by a 
minimum of $5.00, which is slightly more than 3.1%.  At this time, no new fees are 
proposed, and the proposed fee increase will not affect either the zoning appeal fee, 
which was recently reduced by the Board from $2455 to $600, or the $50 fee for a 
Home Occupation Permit, which already represents close to 100% cost recovery.  
 
The proposed fee is in conformance with Sect. 15.2-2286 (A)(6) of the Code of Virginia 
which gives localities the authority to collect fees to “…to cover the cost of making 
inspections, issuing permits, advertising of notices and other expenses incident to the 
administration of a zoning ordinance or to the filing or processing of any appeal or 
amendment thereto.”  The proposed 3.1% increase will recover approximately 75% to 
78% of the administrative costs associated with the processing of zoning applications 
and permits.   
 
A more detailed discussion of the proposed amendment as advertised is set forth in the 
Staff Report included as Attachment 1. 
 
 

(374)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
REGULATORY IMPACT: 
The proposed amendment does not revise the regulations or requirements for land 
development. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The proposed amendment will increase the cost to applicants filing the various zoning 
and permit applications by 3.1%.  At the time of authorization of the proposed 
amendment, the Board questioned the basis for the 3.1% increase given that there has 
been no increase in staff salaries during the past two years.  It is noted that while 
employee salaries have remained constant since July 2009, there has been an increase 
of approximately 7% in employee benefit costs to the County.  Anticipating that costs 
will continue to increase by the time fees are again reviewed in conjunction with the FY 
2014 Budget, the modest increase proposed will help to maintain the cost recovery rate 
at or near the 75% level over this next two year period.  It is anticipated that the 
proposed fee increase will generate an additional $73,160 over the FY 2012 Budget 
Year revenue projection of $2,360,027.  If approved by the Board, the additional 
revenue will be included as part of the Add-On process. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Staff Report (Distributed to Board Members under separate cover and 
available online at 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dpz/zoningordinance/proposed/zoning_fees_sr.pdf 
Attachment 2 – Planning Commission Verbatim 
 
 
STAFF: 
Fred Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Eileen M. McLane, Zoning Administrator, DPZ 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division (ZED), DPZ 
Leslie B. Johnson, Senior Deputy Zoning Administrator, DPZ 
Regina M. Coyle, Assistant Director, ZED, DPZ 
 

(375)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(376)



 

Planning Commission Meeting      Attachment 2 
March 2, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – INCREASE IN THE FILING FEES FOR ZONING 
APPLICATIONS AND COMPLIANCE LETTERS 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Chairman Murphy:  The public hearing is closed; recognize Mr. Sargeant. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  First, I'd like to thank Leslie Johnson and 
Regina Coyle for the detailed work on this particular Zoning Ordinance Amendment and the 
insightful perception of answering any and all questions related to these fees.  So, Mr. Chairman, 
with that, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENT TO INCREASE ZONING FEES, AS SET FORTH IN THE STAFF REPORT 
DATED FEBRUARY 8, 2011, WITH THE FOLLOWING CHANGE: THE FEE FOR 
INTERPRETATION OF APPROVED ZONING APPLICATIONS ON PAGE 8 OF THE 
STAFF REPORT SHOULD BE $515. INSTEAD OF $520.  I FURTHER MOVE THAT THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THAT 
THE AMENDMENT BECOME EFFECTIVE BY 12:01 A.M. ON JULY 1, 2011, AND THAT 
THE REVISED FEES SHALL BE APPLICABLE TO ANY ZONING APPLICATION FILED 
SUBSEQUENT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDMENT AND THE ZONING 
APPLICATIONS, WHICH WERE FILED BUT NOT ACCEPTED PRIOR TO THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDMENT AND THAT ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE APPLICABLE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, SHALL BE GRANDFATHERED 
FROM THIS AMENDMENT. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Second. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Seconded by Mr. Lawrence.  Is there a discussion of the motion?  All those 
in favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it amend the Zoning 
Ordinance as articulated by Mr. Sargeant with his amendment, say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Chairman Murphy:  Opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
// 
 
(The motion carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 
 

(377)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(378)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the FY 2012 Effective Tax Rate Increase 
 
 
ISSUE:   
Because the assessed value of existing property has increased by one percent or more, 
Virginia Code Section 58.1-3321 requires the Board to hold a public hearing on the real 
estate tax rate.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors maintain the real 
estate tax rate at the FY 2011 level of $1.09 per $100 of assessed value.  Action on the 
tax rate is recommended to take place on April 26, 2011 as part of the annual adoption 
of the tax rate resolution, after the public hearings on the FY 2012 Advertised Budget 
Plan on March 29, 30, and 31, 2011 and the Board markup on April 12, 2011.   
 
 
TIMING: 
On February 22, 2011, the Board authorized advertisement of a public hearing to be 
held on March 29, 2011, at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The FY 2012 Advertised Budget Plan is based on a real estate tax rate of $1.09 per 
$100 of assessed value.  The tax rate being proposed remains the same as FY 2011.  
Although no numerical change in the Real Estate tax rate is being proposed; the total 
assessed value of existing property has increased by more than one percent.  Under 
such circumstances, Virginia Code Section 58.1-3321 requires that the Board advertise 
a public hearing and take action to adopt the proposed FY 2012 rate rather than the rate 
computed by the statutory formula.  It should be noted that the total increase in 
assessed value of existing properties is expected to be 2.67 percent, including an 
increase of 2.34 percent for residential real property and an increase of 3.73 percent for 
non-residential real property.  As a result, most property owners will experience an 
increase in their real estate tax bill. 
 
The following language, based on Virginia Code, describes the effective tax increase 
due to appreciation and a constant tax rate. 
 
1. Assessment Increase: Total assessed value of real property, excluding additional 

assessments due to new construction or improvements to property, exceeds last 

(379)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 

year’s total assessed value of real property by 2.67 percent. 
 
2. Lowered Rate Necessary to Offset Increased Assessment: The tax rate which would 

levy the same amount of real estate tax as last year, when multiplied by the new 
total assessed value of real estate with the exclusions mentioned above, would be 
$1.0616 per $100 of assessed value.  This rate will be known as the “lowered tax 
rate.” 

 
3.  Effective Rate Increase: Fairfax County, Virginia, proposes to adopt a tax rate of 

$1.09 per $100 of assessed value.  The difference between the lowered tax rate and 
the proposed rate would be $0.0284 per $100, or 2.67 percent.  This difference will 
be known as the “effective tax rate increase.” 

 
Individual property taxes may, however, increase at a percentage greater than or 
less than the above percentage.  

 
4. Proposed Total Budget Increase: Based on the proposed real property tax rate and 

changes in other revenues, the total budget of Fairfax County, Virginia, will exceed 
last year’s by 2.85 percent1. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The FY 2012 real estate tax rate of $1.09 per $100 of assessed value results in the 
revenue projections outlined in the FY 2012 Advertised Budget Plan.  If the tax rate is 
lowered to a rate of $1.0616 per $100 of assessed value described by Virginia Code 
Section 58.1-3321, then the revenue projection set forth in the FY 2012 Advertised 
Budget Plan would decrease by $54,810,969.   
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None 
 
 
STAFF: 
Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive  
Edward L. Long, Jr., Deputy County Executive 
Susan W. Datta, Director, Department of Management of Budget 
Kevin C. Greenlief, Director, Department of Tax Administration 
Michael Long, Deputy County Attorney 
 
                                                 
1 The total budget increase is based on all revenues received by the General Fund of Fairfax County.  
Projected FY 2012 disbursements reflect a decrease of 0.53 percent from the FY 2011 level.   

(380)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on RZ 2010-SP-012 (Westbrook Property, LLC) to Rezone from R-1 and WS 
to PDH-2 and WS to Permit Residential Development at a Density of 1.93 Dwelling Units 
Per Acre (du/ac) and Approval of the Conceptual Development Plan, Located on 
Approximately 7.27 Acres, Springfield District 
 
The application property is located at the E. terminus of Autumn Willow Dr. approx. 2,300 ft. 
E. of Stringfellow Rd. Tax Map 55-4 ((3)) R7. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Wednesday, February 9, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 10-0-1 (Commissioner 
Sargeant abstaining; Commissioner Harsel absent from the meeting) to recommend the 
following actions to the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of RZ 2010-SP-012, subject to the execution of proffers consistent with 
those dated February 2, 2011; 

 
 Direct the Director of the Department of Public Works & Environmental Services to 

grant a three percent deviation from the tree preservation target area required in 
Sect. 12-057.1 of the Public Facilities Manual, and that the applicant continue to work 
with the staff of the Urban Forest Management Division to provide additional tree 
save areas and planting at the time of Subdivision Plan submission. 

 
The Planning Commission also voted 10-0-1 (Commissioner Sargeant abstaining; 
Commissioner Harsel absent from the meeting) to approve FDP 2010-SP-012, subject to 
Board approval of RZ 2010-SP-012, and subject also to the following Development 
Condition: 
 
 “Should VDOT not approve the three-way stop sign in Proffer 6C, the applicant shall 

provide, subject to VDOT approval, center line marking, plus striping and signing for 
the east-west bicycle lanes on Autumn Willow Drive between the recreation areas at 
Stringfellow Road and the proposed park entrance opposite the applicant’s proposed 
cul-de-sac.  The markings and signing shall be installed prior to opening the Autumn 
Willow Drive/Lincoln Drive segment of the roadway on the applicant’s property, 
except that, if permitted by VDPT, final striping of the on-site segment may be 
deferred until final surfacing of the roadway.” 

 
 

(381)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4339418.PDF  
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Suzianne Zottl, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(382)



 

Planning Commission Meeting       Attachment 1 
February 9, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
RZ 2010-SP-012 – WESTBROOK PROPERTY, LLC  
FDP 2010-SP-012 – WESTBROOK PROPERTY, LLC  
 
Decision Only During Commission Matters 
(Public Hearing held on February 3, 2011) 
 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Yes, Mr. Murphy. 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  I have a decision only in the Springfield District for an application that we 
heard a week ago or so.  It's RZ 2010-SP-012 and FDP 2010-SP-012.  This is a straightforward 
rezoning application in the Springfield District.  And according to staff analysis and I concur with 
that, it's in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.  It's in conformance with the applicable 
Zoning Ordinances.  It's in conformance with the P-District Standards and the Residential 
Development Criteria.  We had a couple questions come up at the public hearing regarding the tree 
cover and that's going to be addressed in a motion I will make, which staff is supporting and so is - - 
and so - - the Urban Forester is also supporting it.  The main contentious issue with the citizens was 
the proposal to connect Lincoln Drive with Autumn Willow Drive to form a circulation pattern 
through this part of town up to Stringfellow Road.  They now experience at the end of Lincoln Drive 
a temporary cul-de-sac, which has been in place for a long time, and as we all know temporary cul-
de-sacs are just that, they are temporary cul-de-sacs that will be destroyed and repaved as a road 
when the road connects from, in this case, Lincoln Drive to Willow - - Autumn Willow Drive.  That 
plan for this road to be connected has been on the Comprehensive Plan since 1991.  And as I've 
explained to the citizens the only way you can get rid of that language in the Plan is to do it with an 
Out-of-Turn Plan Amendment or a Plan Amendment during one of our normal Area Plans Review 
cycles.  But quite frankly, I've also told them that notwithstanding any motion I might make on that 
Plan Amendment to take this road out of the Plan or Mr. Herrity might make, the Board of 
Supervisors in this - - the Twentieth Century, is not in the habit of taking roads off the Plan.  We went 
through that many, many years ago when there was an effort to stop development in Fairfax County, 
and the feeling was if you take a road off the Plan it's going to stop development.  And so they took a 
lot of roads off the Plan and they took a lot of Plan language out of the Plan, which would widen 
already existing roads as time went on.  And this was all to stop development.  And look what 
happened, those roads came off the Plan and we are now at 1,200,000 people in Fairfax County.  So 
stopping development by taking roads off the Plan did not work.  And we suffered from that because 
some of those roads never went back on the Plan like the old Monticello Freeway.  Having said that, 
this road connection I don't think is going to be as horrendous as the citizens make it out to be.  I 
think this is going to form a circulation pattern within this part of town that's going to alleviate some 
of the congestion and some of the traffic going out with the one entrance from this community onto 
Stringfellow Road and one connection to Stringfellow Road from the Autumn Willow Drive.  So, I 
am going to move that that - - obviously that that in this context of approving the application that this 
road will be connected, the temporary cul-de-sac will be just  

(383)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
February 9, 2011 
RZ 2010-SP-012 and FDP 2010-SP-012 
 
 
that, it will come down, it will be part of a new Lincoln - - Lincoln Drive to connect with Autumn 
Willow Drive.  So therefore, Mr. Chairman - - and I've also - - I want to call the Commission's 
attention to the Proffer 6C, which deals with traffic-calming measures which we're going to put in the 
proffers to hope to alleviate some of the citizens' concerns that when this road is connected, it will 
become a speedway.  I've been told by other citizens in the area who are not objecting to this but 
don't live on Lincoln Drive that right now people drive through that community very quickly.  So, 
with this connection, with some traffic-calming devices, we hope that that particular issue is 
addressed.  And as I suggested at the public hearing, it would be good for these people to have some 
sort of Neighborhood Watch program to advise their neighbors that it's not a good idea in this 
residential community to drive at rapid speeds on roads that just can't handle that kind of speed.  So 
this proffer deals with a traffic-calming device, which calls for a three-way stop sign at the 
intersection of Lincoln Drive Extended and the proposed cul-de-sac street referred to in the proffer, 
which is above C, which would be 6A.  It also - - I'm also going to make a motion to add at the end of 
the regular motions to add a condition to the Final Development Plan, which will address if VDOT, 
which has the final say-so on this matter, does not think - - rejects the proposal to put in a three-way 
stop sign, we're suggesting, and the applicant agrees to this, that there is another traffic-calming 
measure that should be introduced.  So having said that, Mr. Chairman, I move the Planning 
Commission recommend - - oh by the way, this has the endorsement of the Springfield Fairfax Center 
Land Use Committee.  And also I want to say parenthetically the applicant has agreed to provide 
extra trees and buffer for Mr. Yi on a property that abuts the - - abuts the subject property, and we can 
put that on the record that they do agree to do that.  So therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THAT IT 
APPROVE RZ 2010-SP-012, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT 
WITH THOSE DATED FEBRUARY 2, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Hall.  Any discussion on that motion?  All those 
in favor of recommending that the Board of Supervisors approve RZ 2010-SP-012, subject to the 
proffers dated February 2nd, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.   
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Mr. Chairman, I will abstain.  I was not present for the public hearing. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Mr. Sargeant abstains, not present for the public hearing.  Mr. Murphy. 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE 
FDP 2010-SP-012, SUBJECT TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' APPROVAL OF THE 
REZONING RZ 2010-SP-012, AND SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITION 
NUMBER 1, WHICH WILL READ, "SHOULD VDOT NOT APPROVE THE THREE-WAY  

(384)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
February 9, 2011 
RZ 2010-SP-012 and FDP 2010-SP-012 
 
 
STOP SIGN IN PROFFER 6C, THE APPLICANT SHALL PROVIDE, SUBJECT TO VDOT 
APPROVAL, CENTER LINE MARKING, PLUS STRIPING AND SIGNING FOR EAST-WEST 
BICYCLE LANES ON AUTUMN WILLOW DRIVE BETWEEN THE RECREATION AREAS AT 
STRINGFELLOW ROAD AND THE PROPOSED PARK ENTRANCE OPPOSITE THE 
APPLICANT'S PROPOSED CUL-DE-SAC.  THE MARKINGS AND SIGNING SHALL BE 
INSTALLED PRIOR TO OPENING THE AUTUMN WILLOW DRIVE/LINCOLN DRIVE 
SEGMENT OF THE ROADWAY ON THE APPLICANT'S PROPERTY, EXCEPT THAT IF 
PERMITTED BY VDOT, FINAL STRIPING OF THE ON-SITE SEGMENT MAY BE 
DEFERRED UNTIL FINAL SURFACING OF THE ROADWAY." 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Hall.  Any discussion on that motion?  All those 
in favor of approving FDP 2010-SP-012, subject to the development condition - -? 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  Development condition. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  - - development condition as articulated by Commissioner Murphy, please 
say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.   
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Mr. Chairman, abstain, not present for the public hearing. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Same abstention.  Thank you, Mr. Sargeant.  Mr. Murphy. 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECT THE Department of - - 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES TO GRANT A 
THREE PERCENT DEVIATION FROM THE TREE PRESERVATION TARGET AREA 
REQUIRED IN THE PFM SECTION 12-0507.1, AND THAT THE APPLICANT CONTINUE TO 
WORK WITH THE URBAN FOREST MANAGEMENT STAFF TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL 
TREE SAVE AREAS AND PLANTING AT THE TIME OF SUBDIVISION PLAN. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Lawrence.  Any discussion on that motion?  All 
those in favor of that motion, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 

(385)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 
February 9, 2011 
RZ 2010-SP-012 and FDP 2010-SP-012 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.   
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Abstain. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Same abstention.  Mr. Murphy. 
 
Commissioner Murphy:  Thank you very much.  I want to thank Suzi Zottl for all the really hard 
work - - it was sort of ping pong ball there at the end going back and forth, and also the applicant and 
his attorney, thank you very much, Mr. McDermott, we appreciate it. 
 
// 
 
(The motions carried by votes of 10-0-1 with Commissioner Sargeant abstaining; Commissioner 
Harsel absent from the meeting.) 
 
KAD 

(386)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
Public Hearing on SE 2010-DR-024 (Discovery Woods Learning Community, LLC) to Permit 
a Child Care Center and Private School of General Education with a Total Enrollment of 26 
Students, Located on approx.1.48 ac. of land zoned R-1, Dranesville District 
 
The application property is located at 9224 and 9232 Leesburg Pk. Tax Map 19-4 ((1)) 6 
and 11. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission’s public hearing on SE 2010-DR-024 was held on Wednesday, 
March 16, 2011, and the decision was deferred to March 23, 2011.  The Commission’s 
recommendation will be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors subsequent to that date. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4340278.PDF  
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Suzianne Zottl, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(387)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

(388)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
4:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the Acquisition of Certain Land Rights Necessary for the Construction 
of Reston Avenue Walkway Improvements (Hunter Mill District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Public hearing on the acquisition of certain land rights necessary for the construction of 
Project 4YP201 (PB015) – Reston Avenue Walkway, Pedestrian Improvements-Bond 
Funded, Fund 304, Transportation Improvements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the attached 
resolution authorizing the acquisition of the necessary land rights. 
 
 
TIMING: 
On March 8, 2011, the Board authorized advertisement of a public hearing to be held on 
March 29, 2011, commencing at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County is planning to complete the pedestrian improvements along the west side of 
Reston Avenue, from Southington Lane to Shaker Drive.  These improvements consist 
of the construction of approximately 700 linear feet of six-foot wide asphalt sidewalk that 
ties into the existing trail. 
 
These improvements require land rights on one parcel, with all additional improvements 
located within the existing right-of-way.  The required land rights include a trail 
easement, and a grading agreement and temporary construction easement across the 
subject property.  
  
Although the Land Acquisition Division has been negotiating to acquire these land rights 
since July 31, 2009, as of this date, staff has been unable to reach resolution on this 
parcel due to property owner concerns about the project.  Repeated deferrals to move 
forward on the project have meant increases in project costs; thus, condemnation is 
necessary.  Pursuant to state statute, namely Va. Code Ann. § 15.2-1903 (2008), a 
public hearing is required before property interests can be acquired by eminent domain. 
 
 
 

(389)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding is available in Project 4YP201 (PB015) – Reston Avenue Walkway, Pedestrian 
Improvements-Bond Funded, in Fund 304, Transportation Improvements.  This project 
is included in the Fairfax County Second Four-Year Transportation Plan endorsed by 
the Board of Supervisors on October 15, 2007.  Sufficient funds are available in the 
project for land acquisition.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment A - Project Location Map 
Attachment B – Resolution with Fact Sheet on the affected parcel with a plat showing 
interests to be acquired (Attachment 1 and 1A). 
 
 
STAFF: 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 

 

(390)



ATTACHMENT A

-'" ~ 3
N'" ~8 ~

0-e 26
"-c .,

~ 2 ~4
17

~

23

26--
---

Tax Map: 11-2

RESTON AVENUE WALKWAY
Project 4YP201 (PB015)

Hunter Mill District

Scale: Not to Scale

Scope: This project consists of the construction of approximately 700 linear feet

of six-foot wide asphalt sidewalk along the west side of Reston Avenue from

Southington Lane to Shaker Drive.

Affected Property: Trail Easement: 11111111111

(391)



U/-1LCi-H
ATTACHMENT 1-A

"')

~
~

~ ~~
<::;";f.~~
.1 <;::) ,~
<5 -- c,o ce
J.,h..~«>.!.<;::)N.~
-'-J~'<:)
~ '>::ies~

~
~

E4SEMENT ARE4S NOTES:
ALL PREVIOUSLY RECORDED RIGHT-OF-WAYS,EAS£MENTS, OR
OTHER INTERESTS OF THE COUNTY REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND
EFFECT UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY SHOWN HEREON. .

THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED MTHOUT TH£ BENEFlT.OF j TlTlE
REPORT. THEREFORE ALL ENCUMBRANCES TO THE PROPERTY
ARE NOT NECESSARILY SHOWN HEREON.

THE INFORMAJ70N SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM
THE COMBINATION OF A FIELD SURVEY AND E)(ISTING LAND
RECORDS AND DOES NOT.REPRESENT THE RESULTS OF AN
.ACTUAL BOUNDARY SURVEY.

THE PROPERTY DEL!NEA7ED ON THIS PLAT IS LOCATED ON
ASSESSMENT MAP 1/ -2-Of, PARCEL 19

TRAIL E4SEMENT
GRADING AGREEMENT AND TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCT/ON E4SEMENT A
GRADING AGREEMENT AND TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCT/ON E4SEMENT B

2, 095 SQ, FT.

2, 452 SQ. FT.

3,015 SQ, FT.

IP.F. N 1.01-5.183.13'E 11,8/0,813.66' VCs 1983 NORTH

~

RESTON AVENUE WALKWAY
PROJECT NUMBER 4YP201-PB015

. .Ip.F.

nx MAP 1/-2-0/-0019

EARLE A, PAYNE
AND

MARY J. PAYNE

;.::::
"<i

~ ;.::::
ss
~

1M 1/-2-01-0018

DANIEl J THOMPSON
NANCY L. THOMPSON

(0.8. 8036, Pc. 1/00)
~
~.".
I~
Iv;

GRADING AGREEMENT AND
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTlON
EASEMENT A

i"::

'~I
'"~I
~

DEED BOOK 33B8, PAGE 296

HUNTER MILL DISTRICT
FAIIIFAX COUNTY, I1RGINt4

SHEET r OF /

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VlRCINIA
DEPARTMENT OF PUBUC WORKS

&- ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
CAPITAL FACIUT/ES

/---------

Slit 10.;.93.82
OFfSET 23.90'

PLAT SHOWING
TRAIL E4SEMENT

AND
GRADING AGREEMENT AND

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCT/ON E4SEMENTS
THROUGH THE LAND OF

EARLE A. PAYNE
AND

MARY J. PAYNE

S06'J5'51"W-

GRADING ACREEMENT AND
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT B

208., ,

RESTON AVENUE
ROUTE 79/7
(/'IIDTH ~RIES) I NOT TO SCALE I

30 0 16 JO 60 120

~-- ~: I
( IN FEET)

1 inch = 80 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
CURVE TABLE

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH TANCENT CHO~/) BEARING DELTA
CI 11.00' 4.81' 211' 1,81' #/6'/1'08"£ 5'5/'19'
C2 53.00' ·/1,67' 5.86' 1/.65' #12'51'29"£ 12'37'07'
C3 50.00' 11.21' 5.61' If,22 r #13'02'22"£ /2'52'50'

LSC4jE' 1'=30'1 ~7JATE: 11/17/08 I DRAWN BY: FJO I

.~
•
H,
.5 •. Il'Illil'
~:~&
!~.~
'IHL·.,!~
!!I~
J!I11 t-

'"
I .
u.D..

•..
(J)
(1)•••
C'CS.-oo
(J)
(J)

<C
c:
C).-
(J)
(1)c
So..

(1).:.r:::
c:

~

01-128-H

(392)



 ATTACHMENT B 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
  At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, 
Virginia, held in the Board Auditorium in the Government Center at 12000 Government 
Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday, March 29, 2011, at which meeting a 
quorum was present and voting, the following resolution was adopted: 
 
  WHEREAS, there exists a need for the construction of the Reston Avenue 
Walkway Project; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the property interests that are necessary have been 
identified; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that it would be in the best 
interest of the citizens of Fairfax County to acquire a portion of the parcel of land located 
along the west side of Reston Avenue from Southington Lane (Route 7912) to Shaker 
Drive (Route 7910), Fairfax, Virginia; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is necessary to expedite the acquisition of this land; and 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Attorney is 
hereby authorized and directed to institute the necessary legal proceedings to acquire 
the following land rights by the process of eminent domain: 
 
PROPRETY  TAX MAP  INTEREST(S)   ESTIMATED 
OWNER(S)  NUMBER(S)  REQUIRED    VALUE 
 
Earle A. Payne 011-2-01-0049 Trail 

Easement – 2,095 sq. ft. 
 $27,346.00 

Mary J. Payne Grading Agreement and   
      Temporary Construction 
      Easement – 5,467 sq. ft. 
 
 
 
      A Copy – Teste: 
 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Nancy Vehrs 
      Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 

(393)



 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
1. AFFECTED PROPERTY 
 

Tax Map Number: 011-2-01-0049 
Street Address: 1224 Reston Avenue, Herndon, VA 20170 

 
2. OWNER(S): Earle A. Payne 
   Mary J. Payne 
 
3. INTEREST(S) REQUIRED (As shown on attached plat/plan) 
 
 Trail Easement – 2,095 sq. ft. 
 Grading Agreement and Temporary Construction Easement – 5,467 sq. ft. 
 
4. VALUE 
 

Estimated value of interests and damages: 
 
TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FOURTY-SIX DOLLARS 
($27,346.00) 

 
 
 
 

(394)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
4:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the Acquisition of Certain Land Rights Necessary for the Construction 
of Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer E & I (Sully District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Public Hearing on the acquisition of certain land rights necessary for the construction of 
Project X00828 (10003) - Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer E & I, Fund 402, Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution 
authorizing the acquisition of the necessary land rights. 
 
 
TIMING: 
On March 8, 2011, the Board authorized advertisement of a public hearing to be held on 
March 29, 2011, commencing at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County is planning to install approximately 785 linear feet of sanitary sewer force 
main to serve properties on Colewood Street and Bennett Road. 
 
The most accessible and beneficial location for the proposed sanitary sewer line, that 
will meet the needs of the area residents, is within the 30’ wide outlet road identified as 
Colewood Street, located on Tax Map Number 035-4.  A sanitary sewer easement is 
needed to facilitate the installation and maintenance of the proposed eight-inch sanitary 
sewer line improvement. 
 
A title search performed on the 30’ outlet road indicates that the property must be titled 
as “Heirs of Harry R. Stutsman and/or Unknown Owners”; therefore, condemnation is 
required to obtain title to the affected property.  
 
In order to commence construction of this project on schedule, it is necessary for the 
Board to utilize quick-take eminent domain powers.  These powers are conferred upon 
the Board by statute, namely, Va. Code Ann. §§ 15.2-1904 and 15.2-1905 (2008).  
Pursuant to these provisions, a public hearing is required before property interests can 
be acquired in such an accelerated manner. 
 

(395)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No funding is required at this time.  Funding is available for future requirements in 
Project X00828 (10003) – Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer E & I within Fund 402, 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment A – Project Location Map 
Attachment B – Resolution with Fact Sheets on the affected parcel with a plat showing 
interests to be acquired (Attachments 1 and 1A).  
 
 
STAFF: 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 
 
 

(396)



ATTACHMENT A

f2SOf 1~?J

(]) I
15 \50 I I,

fe, ~:
51 r:.:':.J 49 48 47 46 ~:45C

52-r~:- s-,
""?,

I
I

Colewood SI.

4

55 56 57 59

174-45 ~J f2111j11l

54
58

3

I
COLEWOOD STREET SANITARY SEWER E&I

Project X00828 (10003)
Sully District

Scope: The County is planning to install approximately 785 linear feet of sanitary sewer
force main to serve properties on Colewood Street and Bennett Road.

Tax Map: 035-4 Scale: 1" = 350'

Affected Property:

I I
Sanitary Sewer Improvements:

(397)



<I...•
E-4
Z

i
u
<E-4
E-4
<

/
~~. -~

I

I I

~\~ ":t'i .., :'~;:;'.:/ 'W"~ ~ ~ ~I I~

~ ~ ~~"~'2~''l9' - ~ ~ ~ _
-c <I, _@L=-- i!:. ~ ~ _ -r-,

ti2~~":"i" N. _m~ It;~ ~ ~~!
I !!) !>i~: C~:,O'\ I'~?.,,' i):EJ, 1Il1&:! I~! I~ 1!;~b:r~NOe"4~'S;"~" ".", ',,I.. ;q /,., ~~B ~8 I~& I"I~Q

o i" 10Q2' 4f>"OT'Se"" ~ ?l~ r<! 1';- lRl~~
OC, ".'" .~ ~, ~,~ J;'~' -x ;; Slq 4f>32 E " Q Q'<' $:I Q ' '

o ~~~'2J}·E ~ :i:rl ... :l~ n ':1. 1(>:h1", • -o J
I- lht;,' ,. 1..'.1..;:} ,1 .,(.:::<}~-, (fJ.))
\J) N&I"31'40"" Ise 11' Nl>'I"31'40"H 151.06' Nl>'I"31~"H Iqe.oo' Nl>'I"~I'40"" 10000' N&I"31'40""qq.oo' N&I"~I'40"H 1%.00'
~ Ex:rCJ4A EASEFt:Nt J"- -- se4-31'40-"E-"08.M' - - --......- , - - - - _

- - - ,-; - J2.f2 ~j~.J:i4_ ---- - '-SANITARY serER EASEI-ENT GOLEit'IOOD STREET '-SANITARY 5EI'£R EA5fr£NT",\ SOO"IO'14"E 3000'-1
NOO 34 21"E ~:J3 N&I"2e'44"" 315.46' -. ._ N&l"~I'40"H Sq3JO' _

---.; seq"2f>'«~ 315,46' ~'40-E Qeoo' seq"31'-0"E- - ~"~I'40"E IqeW - -r---;:.;~I,';<'~ 1~2,~ - ~

~. :)) I "" "\;''[; ,c:,' I~ :;)~~§. -: .: NO~: g~;:'~: ';;:;

1
··.:;r, 8' 8 8 'rnIS PLAT >-IA5 PREPARED "ITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE

:"'; 0' : il.:.::: N Q o REPORT. THEREFORE ALL ENaJt-t3RA~ TO THE PROPERTY
'";:;,, N ARE NOT ~E55ARIL Y SHO~ HEREON.

- twl"2e'1,of"" 3660~ - - - . ::::5;~ ~ ~ ~ THE INFORHATION SHOJ-oINON ms PLAT KA6 COMPILED FRoM

: , '<,: ~ ~ ~ EXISTINe LAND RECORDS AND DOES NOT REPRESENT THE

__ ~.~~'~AC_ __ ~ ~,~~~ -_C~'-i ~@ __ J~;;:;==~'''~_~'M-r- 'v r- _"31'40"" sqS16'

/
/

(,I(,,,.?~rl" ;;;:AO?fj.

II500"~3'42""
e22'

1!f\'l"~131"H

,:'~~:

~;I~ii'il~

~'"~(\

~:~
~I~

":":':'~Ik ISq,,,:,!' __

~
~

11"

~--

COLEY-lOOD SANITARY E 4 I
X00828 (10003)

FAIRFAX COUNTY,VIR61NIA
DEPT, OF PUBLIC HORKS 4 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

CAPITAL FACILITIES, LAND =<JRYEY BRANCH
12000 60YERNMENT CENTER PKJ-fr', FAIRFAX, VIR6INIA

PLAT SHaHIN6
SANITARY SEHER EASEMENT

ON

COLEHOOD STREET
(A 30' OUTLET ROAD)I NOT TO SCALE I

EA5EMENT AREA
SANITARY SEH:R EASEMENT

BEiNe IN THE NAME OF

HEIRS OF HARRY R. SlUTSMAN
AND/OR UNKNOv-IN OHNERS

H.B, 23, P6, 184

SULLY DISTRICT, FAIRFAX COUNTY SHEET I OF I

I SGALE, 1"=50 I DATE, '1/13/10 l[)~--",~Y, CJJ I

21,2Qq sa, FT,

50 0 50 100 150

I""W--- !
5<;.010:I- - 50'

G:\ASU\SURVfY PROJEClS\402.XOO8Z6.£106·COLEWOOOSTREET\dw9\X~26 SANnAAYPIJ.T.dw~, ItlK241:vnC

(398)



   ATTACHMENT B 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
  At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, 
Virginia, held in the Board Auditorium in the Government Center at 12000 Government 
Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday, March 29, 2011, at which meeting a 
quorum was present and voting, the following resolution was adopted: 
 
  WHEREAS, certain Project X00828 (10003) – Colewood Street Sanitary 

Sewer E & I Improvements had been approved; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing pursuant to advertisement of notice was held 

on this matter, as required by law; and 

  WHEREAS, the property interests that are necessary have been 

identified; and 

  WHEREAS, in order to keep this project on schedule, it is necessary that 

the required property interests be acquired not later than March 31, 2011.   

  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director, Land 

Acquisition Division, in cooperation with the County Attorney, is directed to acquire the 

property interests listed in Attachments 1 and 1A by gift, purchase, exchange, or 

eminent domain; and be it further 

  RESOLVED, that following the public hearing, this Board hereby declares 

it necessary to acquire the said property and property interests and that this Board 

intends to enter and take the said property interests for the purpose of constructing  

sanitary sewer improvements as shown and described in the plans of Project X00828 

(10003) – Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer E & I Improvements on file in the Land 

Acquisition Division of the Department of Public Works and Environmental Services, 

12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 457, Fairfax, Virginia; and be it further 

  RESOLVED, that this Board does hereby exercise those powers granted 

(399)



to it by the Code of Virginia and does hereby authorize and direct the Director, Land 

Acquisition Division, on or subsequent to March 30, 2011, unless the required interests 

are sooner acquired, to execute and cause to be recorded and indexed among the land 

records of this County, on behalf of this Board, the appropriate certificate in accordance 

with the requirements of the Code of Virginia as to the property owner, the indicated 

estimate of fair market value of the property and property interests and/or damages, if 

any, to the residue of the affected parcel relating to the certificate; and be it further 

  RESOLVED, that the County Attorney is hereby directed to institute the 

necessary legal proceedings to acquire indefeasible title to the property and property 

interests identified in the said certificate by condemnation proceedings; if necessary. 

PROPERTY TAX MAP INTEREST(S) ESTIMATED 
OWNER(S) NUMBER(S) REQUIRED    VALUE 
 
Heirs of Harry R.  035-4 Sanitary Sewer Easement $750.00 
Stutsman and/or  27,209 sq. ft.  
Unknown Owners  
    
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
      A Copy – Teste: 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Nancy Vehrs 
      Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

   

(400)



 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
1. AFFECTED PROPERTY 
 

Tax Map Number: 035-4Street Address: N/A 
 
2. OWNER(S): Heirs of Harry R. Stutsman 
   and/or Unknown Owners 
 
3. INTEREST(S) REQUIRED (As shown on attached plat/plan) 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Easement – 27,209 sq. ft. 
  
4. VALUE 
 

Estimated value of interests and damages: 
 
SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($750.00) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

(401)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(402)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
4:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the Proposed Consolidated Plan One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Public hearing for public review and comment before the Fairfax County Board of 
Supervisors on the Proposed Consolidated Plan One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 as 
issued by the Consolidated Community Funding Advisory Committee (CCFAC). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board submit all comments on the 
Proposed Consolidated Plan One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 to the CCFAC for its 
consideration and recommendation to the Board for final Board Action on April 26, 
2011. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action on the Proposed One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 is scheduled for April 
26, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A Proposed Consolidated Plan One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 (One-Year Action 
Plan for FY 2012) has been issued by the CCFAC for public review and comment.  In 
accordance with the Fairfax County Citizen Participation Plan for the Consolidated Plan, 
a public hearing is required to be held before the Board to allow citizens the opportunity 
to comment on the One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012.  On March 8, 2011, the Board 
authorized advertisement of a public hearing on the proposed document to be held on 
March 29, 2011.  Citizens may express their views on housing and community 
development needs, fair housing, and the County’s community development program.  
The document was released February 24, 2011 to meet the federal requirement for a 
30-day public comment period.  
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires the 
submission of this document as part of the planning and application aspects of four 
federal programs from which Fairfax County receives annual funding allocations.  The 
four programs are Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program (HOME), Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), and Housing 
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA).  In addition, the document describes 

(403)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
the Continuum of Care for homeless services and programs in the Fairfax community, 
and the Consolidated Community Funding Pool (CCFP).  The Proposed Consolidated 
Plan One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 includes the second year of the two-year 
funding cycle for the CCFP.  The CCFP was established by the Board and provides 
funding for community-based programs by nonprofit organizations through a competitive 
solicitation process.  The FY 2012 CCFP funding awards will be made by the Board in 
April, subject to annual appropriations.   
 
The One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 also include the public and private resources 
available for housing and community development activities, and the CCFP funding 
priorities adopted by the Board.  In accordance with federal requirements, the One-
Year Action Plan for FY 2012 contains several certifications, including drug-free 
workplace, affirmatively furthering fair housing, prohibition of excessive force, and 
lobbying requirements, which will be signed by the County Executive following Board 
action in April 2011. 
 
Funding levels incorporated in the One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 by the CCFAC are 
based on the funding levels of FY 2011, as formal notification from HUD of actual grant 
levels had not been received by the County at the time of the release of the documents. 
Some prior year funds are recommended for reallocation.  The funds are unused due to 
project completion or they are leftover and no longer needed for certain projects, or the 
project has been abandoned or the program expired or is ending.  The use of funds 
identified in the One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 is summarized below.  A description 
for each activity is provided in the Proposed One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012.  
 
 
CDBG Funds FY 2012          Reallocated Total 
 Grant      Prior Year Funds 
 
Payments on Section 108 Loans  $1,681,367    $ 1,681,367 
Home Repair for the Elderly Program  $   275,000          $    275,000 
Relocation Program       $   296,560    $    296,560 
Homeownership Program  $   408,674    $    408,674 
Fair Housing  $     57,514   $      75,000   $    132,514 
   Completed Public Improvements in 
    Conservation Areas   ($      61,000) 
  Revitalization   ($      14,000) 
Planning (Programs and Compliance)  $   475,921           $    475,921 
General Administration  $   677,791           $    677,791 
Affordable Housing Fund (Consolidated 
  Community Funding Pool (CCFP))  $1,113,445    $ 1,113,445 
Non-Profit Affordable Housing Project – 
     Blueprint     $   500,000   $    500,000 
  Affordable Housing Fund (Prior Year CCFP)    ($   417,865)  

(404)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
  Completed Public Improvements in  
    Conservation Areas      ($     82,135) 
Targeted Public Services - CCFP 
 (@maximum 15% of CDBG grant)  $   969,469    $    969,469 
Senior/Disabled/Homeless Housing  $   146,342     $   112,915   $    259,257 
  Contingency                                                        ($     68,205)  
  Revitalization                               ($     25,000)  
  Housing Development Corporation     ($     19,710)  
North Hill Project  $   161,050     $   569,236   $    730,286 
  Accessibility Modifications/FCRHA  
    Properties     ($   500,000)  
   Completed Public Improvements in  
    Conservation Areas     ($    69,236)  
Rehabilitation of FCRHA Properties  $   200,000                       $    200,000 
TOTAL  $6,463,133     $        0   $ 7,720,284 
 
 
HOME Funds FY 2012        Reallocated                Total 
                                        Grant        Prior Year Funds   
       
Non-Profit Affordable Housing Project – 
     Blueprint  $   590,324    $1,579,594  $ 2,169,918 
  Silver Lining Initiative     ($1,579,594)  
New Down Payment Assistance Program  $   950,000   $    950,000 
TBRA – PROGRESS Center Reasonable 
      Accommodations and Emergencies   $   104,305   $   104,305 
Tenant Based Rental Assistance 
     (TBRA) Homeless Prevention, Partnership 
     for Permanent Housing,  Non-elderly 
     Disabled   $    373,327      $    376,673  $    750,000 
  TBRA - Partnership for Permanent  
      Housing and Homeless        ($   376,673)  
CHDO Set-Aside  $   403,892   $    403,892 
HOME Administration  $   246,337       $    246,337 
Fair Housing  $     24,427    $      24,427 
Rehabilitation of FCRHA Properties    $    950,000  $    950,000 
 Silver Lining Initiative  ($    950,000) 
Senior/Disabled/Homeless Housing                                     $      68,702     $      68,702 
  HOME Development Costs                      ($      68,702)   
TOTAL  $2,692,612  $        0  $ 5,667,581 
 
  
 
Based on program income during FY 2010 and part of FY 2011, $230,000 in CDBG 
program income is estimated for FY 2012 and $30,000 is estimated for HOME in FY 
2012.  Of the $230,000 estimated in CDBG program income, $70,000 is recommended 

(405)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
for the North Hill Project, $25,000 for Fair Housing, and the remaining balance, 
$135,000, for Senior/Disabled/Homeless Housing.  The $30,000 estimated in HOME 
program income is recommended for Senior/Disabled/Homeless Housing. 
 
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG)  $   262,768 
 
The ESG funds will be used to support part of the operating cost of six County shelters. 
Depending upon the fiscal year for which new requirements pending under the federal 
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 
(HEARTH Act) take effect, a portion of the FY 2012 ESG funds may need to be 
designated for prevention services.  Under the terms of the HEARTH Act, ESG will 
become the Emergency Solutions Grant and at least 40% of the funding must be used 
for prevention services.    
 
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)  $   380,000 
 
Total FY 2012 Entitlement Funding              $9,798,513 
 
This is the thirteenth year that the CCFP has been included in the Consolidated Plan 
One-Year Action Plan.  Beginning with FY 2000, the former Community Funding Pool 
and the CDBG Affordable Housing funds and Targeted Public Services funds were 
merged into a single Consolidated Community Funding Pool.  The CCFP consolidates 
the solicitation and award processes by establishing a single application process with a 
common set of funding priorities and proposal evaluation criteria for programs of 
community-based nonprofit organizations.   
 
The funding available through the CCFP is allocated bi-annually through a competitive 
Request for Proposals process.  The County Executive appoints a Selection Advisory 
Committee of citizens to review and rank applications received and make funding 
recommendations to the Board, which makes the final project funding awards.  The 
One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 will cover the second year of projects for the two-
year funding cycle (FY 2011 – 2012).  The Board will make final awards for FY 2012 in 
April 2011 with action on the annual County budget.  
 
The following are estimated amounts that will be available for the CCFP for FY 2012: 
 
*CDBG Affordable Housing Funds $  1,113,445 
*CDBG Targeted Public Services Funds $     969,469 
**Federal and State Community Services and Block Grant (CSBG) $     390,157 
        Funds 
**County General Funds $  8,580,530 
Total Proposed CCFP Funding:                                                             $11,053,601 

(406)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
*CDBG Affordable Housing Funds and CDBG Targeted Public Services Funds totaling 
$2,082,914 estimated to be available for the CCFP are a part of the total $6,463,133 in 
FY 2012 CDBG funds incorporated in the One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012. 
 
**These amounts are based on the FY 2011 County budget and will be revised subject 
to the final federal entitlement amounts for the CSBG program and the appropriation of 
local General Funds by the Board for FY 2012.  
 
The One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 also contains a policy recommendation 
applicable to the Rehabilitation of Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
(FCRHA) Properties project.  In prior years, restrictions had been placed on the use of 
these funds, limiting them to the rehabilitation of housing and facilities only for persons 
with physical or mental disabilities.  Many of the FCRHA properties contain a mixture of 
residents who may or may not have a disability.  Because those properties do not 
contain 100% of residents with disabilities, prior year funds designated under the 
Rehabilitation of FCRHA Properties project could not be used on needed improvements 
at various FCRHA properties.  Further, these unused funds impact the required timely 
expenditure of funds under CDBG and HOME.  Lifting the restriction on the use of these 
funds provides the FCRHA with more flexibility to address improvement needs at 
FCRHA properties and will enable more timely expenditure of HUD funds.  It is 
recommended that the restrictions be lifted for the funds used for this project/activity for 
an estimated $821,438. 
 
The One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 is being circulated for review and comment by 
citizens, service providers and other interested parties during the formal public comment 
period which ends with the closing of the public hearing on March 29, 2011.  Following 
the March 29th public hearing and public comment period, the CCFAC will consider all 
comments received on the One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012, and will forward its 
recommendation to the Board for final action on April 26, 2011. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total entitlement funding anticipated of $9,798,513, based on FY 2011 funding levels,  
has been recommended in this item: for CDBG – Fund 142 ($6,463,133), HOME – Fund 
145 ($2,692,612), ESG ($262,768), and HOPWA ($380,000).  In addition, reallocated 
funds of prior year monies of $4,232,120 have also been recommended as well as total 
program income anticipated of $260,000: for CDBG – Fund 142 ($230,000) and HOME 
– Fund 145 ($30,000).  If significant funding cuts are made to these programs (in 
excess of 10%), adjustments will be brought back to the Board for review and approval. 
 
Funding for the HOPWA Program is estimated and actual funding will depend on the 
final allocation made available to Northern Virginia jurisdictions through the Northern 

(407)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
Virginia Regional Commission and the District of Columbia, recipient of the funds.  The 
CSBG and County General Funds for the CCFP are based on the FY 2011 County 
budget and will be revised subject to the final federal entitlement amounts for the CSBG 
program and the appropriation of local General Funds by the Board for FY 2012. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None.  The Proposed One-Year Action Plan for FY 2012 is the same document that 
was enclosed with the March 8, 2011 Board Item for authorization to advertise the 
public hearing.  The document is also available on line at 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/rha 
 
 
STAFF: 
Paula C. Sampson, Director, Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
John Payne, Deputy Director, Real Estate and Development, HCD 
Aseem K. Nigam, Director, Real Estate Finance and Grants Management Division, HCD 
Robert C. Fields, Interim Associate Director, Grants Management, HCD 
Stephen E. Knippler, Senior Program Manager, Grants Management, HCD  

(408)



Board Agenda Item 
March 29, 2011 
 
 
6:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the County Executive’s Proposed FY 2012 Advertised Budget Plan, 
the Advertised Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2012-2016 (CIP) (With 
Future Fiscal Years to 2021) and the Current Appropriation in the FY 2011 Revised 
Budget Plan  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None.  Board Members will receive the Planning Commission’s recommendations on 
the Advertised Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2012-2016 (With Future 
Fiscal Years to 2021) prior to the March 29, 2011, public hearing.  The Planning 
Commission workshop on the Capital Improvement Program was held on March 3, 
2011, the public hearing was held on March 10, 2011, and the mark-up session is 
scheduled on Wednesday, March 23, 2011.   

 
Board Members are requested to bring to the meeting the following documents 
previously forwarded to them: 
1. FY 2011 Third Quarter Review 
2. FY 2012 Advertised Budget Plan, Volumes 1 & 2 and the Budget Overview 
3. Advertised Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2012-2016 (With 

Future Fiscal Years to 2021) 
 
 
STAFF: 
Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive  
Edward L. Long, Jr., Deputy County Executive 
Susan W. Datta, Director, Department of Management of Budget 
 
 

(409)



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

(410)


	3-29Agenda
	9 30 Presentations
	10 30 Appointments
	10 30 Appointments-Attachment
	10 30 Items Presented by the County Executive
	Admin1
	Admin1-Attachment A
	Admin2
	Admin3
	Admin3-Attachments
	Admin4
	Admin4-Attachments
	Admin5
	Admin5-Attachments
	Admin6
	Admin6-Attachments
	Admin7
	Admin7-Attachment 1
	Admin8
	Admin8-Attachments
	Admin9
	Admin9-Attachment 1
	Admin10
	Action1
	Action1-Attachments
	Action2
	Action2-Attachments
	Action3
	Action3-Attachment
	Action4
	Action4-Attachments
	Action5
	Action5-Attachments
	Action6
	Action6-Attachments
	Action7
	Info1
	Info1-Attachment 1
	Info2
	Info2-Attachments
	Info3
	Info3-Attachments
	Info4
	Info4-Attachment 1
	Info5
	Info5-Attachment 1
	Info6
	Info6-Attachments
	Info7
	Info7-Attachments
	10 45 Matters Presented by Board Members
	11 35 Closed Session
	2 00 PH-Solid Waste Authority Special Meeting
	2 00 PH-Solid Waste Authority Special Meeting-AttachmentS
	2 30 PH-RZ 2010-LE-013 (Done)
	2 30 PH-RZ 2010-LE-009 (Done)
	2 30 PH-SE 2008-PR-021 (Done)
	2 30 PH-RZ 2010-PR-010 (Done)
	2 30 PH-SEA 84-M-121-03 (Done)
	3 00 PH-Sewer Ordinance Amendment
	3 00 PH-Sewer Ordinance Amendment-Attachments
	3 00 PH-Adjustment of the Fees Charged by LDS
	3 00 PH-Adjustment of the Fees Charged by LDS-Attachments
	3 00 PH-ZOA RE  Zoning Fees
	3 00 PH-ZOA RE  Zoning Fees-Attachments
	3 30 PH-FY 2012 Effective Tax Rate Increase
	3 30 PH-RZ 2010-SP-012 (Done)
	3 30 PH-SE 2010-DR-024 (PC on 03-23)
	4 00 PH-Reston Avenue Walkway Improvements
	4 00 PH-Reston Avenue Walkway Improvements-Attachments
	4 00 PH-Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer
	4 00 PH-Colewood Street Sanitary Sewer-Attachments
	4 30 PH-Consolidated Plan FY 2012
	6 00 PH-FY 2012 Budget CIP  TQ



